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serves the entire energy value chain.  
make energy.  

We move energy.  
We manage energy.  

We market energy.  
Duke Energy's customers benefit from our 

comprehensive Integration of energy and energy
related services. We provide these services to 
energy producers, distributors and consumers. liquids 

Initerstate natural 

From energy source to custom energy services gas transpotation 

beyond the meter, Duke Energy delivers. refined products 

Deregulation, privatization and emerging tranotion 

markets around the world are creating big 

opportunities - and demanding big capabilities.  

Electric Operations Energy Services 
Duke Power Duke Energy Field Services, Inc.  

Nantahala Power and Light Duke Energy Trading and 

Energy TransmissionL.L.C.  
Northeast Pipelines 

Texas Eastern Transmission Duke Energy Power Services, LLC 
Corporation Duke Energy International, LLC Naturaf 
Algonquin Gas Transmission Duke Engineering & Services, Inc.  
Company Duke/Fluor Daniel 

Midwest Pipelines DukeSolutions, Inc. production 
Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line TEPPCO Partners, L.P. Natural gas gatherig 
Company Diversified Operations Natural gas storage 
Trunkline Gas Company Crescent Resources, Inc.  

DukeNet Communications, Inc.  
Duke Water Systems 

IA _DukeEngineering_&_Services,_Inc.



RetaHl electric 
operations Total energy solutions 

Generation Energy supply and logistics 
Electri ission Efficiency and productivity 

Reliability and risk 
anagement 

utilities Engineering; 
',inmanagement construction; 

operations & 
mitnance 

selectric 
ransmission 
grated ener  
rojects 

Customer 
Envionmenta 

Develop, own and 
operate faciities 

generation 
prc transmission 
ral gas transmission/ 

orage 
itiatietsagatural gas gathering/ 

processing 
algas Natural gas liquids 

aural gas liquids pipelines 

)Commodity energy Refined products 
price risk pipelines 
management
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of three 
ttlig2,645 MW; 

Midcontinent/Gulf Coast Placed into servi 
Power Plant; Duke Energy moved forward with Gathering System 

natural gas and power assets along the capacity of 600 MM 
Gulf Coast and completed or announced Began construction of 

computer 
acquisitions stretching from the Gulf Mobile Bay Processing Plan %* 
Coast to the Rockies: associated 40 MW Mobile 
* Completed several acquisitions and Cogeneration Facility; and 

entered Into an agreement for an Moved ahead with plans 
additional acquisition to expand Field the 510 MW Hidalgo Powe 
Services' gathering pipeline systems South Texas, to be designed an :W 
by 8,700 miles and processing capa- structed by Duke/Fluor Daniel. -1 

bclitaes by 2.7 Bcf/d; 
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Northeast U.S., 
......... Maritim rvne 

A showcase region Mr 
Energy's 'value chain" 
making, moving, managing 
marketing energy, icluding
* Completed Phase I of Bridgep 

Energy Project (340 MWwt 
Phase II (180 MW) to be in sene 

by July 1999; 
* Launched construction of 520 MW 

natural gas-fired Maine Independ
ence Station expected to be In 
service In 2000; 

* Constructed 83 miles of the 
650-mile Maritimes & Northeast 
Pipeline scheduled to begin deliver
ing natural gas by late 1999; 

* Announced Algonquin HubLine, 
to interconnect Algonquin and 
Maritimes & Northeast pipelines 
and serve power generation projects 
in greater Boston Harbor area; 

* Formed a joint venture to build 
Cross Bay Pipeline, expanding 
service to New York City; and 

- Signed long-term agreements with 
three leading industrial companies 
in Canada's Maritimes Provinces 

Field Services Offices * Energy Marketing Offices Floridato provide more than 97 MMcd 
Processing Plants * Energy Services Offices Shrinking reserve ma of natural gas.  
Natural Gas Storage Field * Liquids Marketing limited grid interconnection 

~ -j Algonquin LNG Facility 

Trunkline LNG Company Generating Facilities Florida attractive for power ge 
Natural Gas Gathering Systems * Nuclear development. Duke Energy filed 

Crude Oil Gathering 0 Coal the Florida Public Service Commission 
qusds Pipelines A16Ia to build a 500 MW wholesale mer
uke Power Service Territory J H c chant power plant at New Smyrna 

tahala Power and Light Energy BeaCh.  
ice Territory *Diese 

E"g Idmg Centers AUnde prnelopment 
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ment in'Aguaytta Energy, 

mrdal operation In 1998. It feat .  
* 125 -miles of natural gas pipeline; 
* Natural gas processing facilities to 

extract NGLs from 55 Mlc/d 
* 65 miles of NGL pipelines; 
-Natural gas fractionation, storage drltdsrie.Dk niern 
and distribution facilities; a 

*155 MW natural gas-fired power Dk nryItrainlprhsd&Srie D&) hog t fie 

plant; and 
*250-mile high-voltage transmission paywt:-Amjregnrigctatfoa 
Ilne to move energy from central 

:168~~~~~~~~ ~ ~~~ Africay n 3000pepei SuhAria n 
Long-ter puowerg project betat o-InMuiis ostuto ea 
Ine4l Ecuadorrat's inat ut998.y ItS feattrnwaleeg 

Naua gasrgy posi fcie toportunity topruke Energy s presence in some 
extrac to fromdor 55 Mfc/d scoegions is anchored by its subsidiaries 

* 65mile of GL ppelies;that provide engineering, construction 
ices Natural ga fractionation, storagand related services. Duke Engineering 
andu& Services (DE&S), through its offices 

plant anda 51.5 percent interest in Electroquil in South Africa, announced two major 
* 20-ilehih-oltgetrnsmsson SA in 1998, an electric generation com- projects in 1998: 

pany wth: *A major engineering contract for a 
* Four diesel-powered units with rural electrification project serving 

Pea crssth Ade t te oat. 168 MW capacity; and 300,000 people in South Africa; and 

4' * Long-term power sales contracts to *In Mauritius, construction began 
4, inecel, Ecuador's state utility DE&S' largest renewable energy 
~44 44 Duke Energy has the opportunity to project to date - a 70 MW cogener~ 

'4 bring to Ecuador its full scope of serv- tion plant to generate steam and 
ices related to ownership, development power from sugar cane byproducts.  
and operations of energy facilities.



tions, om4* 
Ing Duke Energy 
An additional 195 
generating facilitles a 
Indonesia Is owned by Due 
International and operated by 
affiliate of Duke/Fluor Dalet 

* PTNNT Batu Hiljau, a 159 MW co 
fired generating facility for which 
an affiliate of Duke/Fluor Daniel 
Is engineering, procurement and 
construction (EPC) contractor; and 

* Palton Private Power, a 1,230 MW 
coal-fired station for which affiliates 
of Duke/Fluor Daniel are members 
of the EPC consortium.  

teEern G 

sign 

interstate pipeline 
in 2000; 
Agreed to purchase fro 
power business, including 392 -
of power generation facilities, 
electric transmission facilities, 
and an 11.8 percent interest in 
Goldfields Gas Transmission All these provide significant oppor
pipeline; and tunities to build a complete, integrated 

*Selected by the government of position, including power generation 
Tasmania to study the feasibility of and energy trading and marketing.  
bringing natural gas to the island 
state and a resulting opportunity to 
elop natural gas reserves "from V Gas exploration/production Generai 

ground up." National Mechanol * Coal Wf International engineering, 0 Nr 
construction, environmental f 

projects 
bgNatural Gas Pipeline



Deliv 
Duke Energy Corporation 

Years Ended December 31, 

In millions, except where noted 1998 1997a 1996a 

Operating Revenues $17,610 $16,309 $ 12,302 
4Earnings Before Interest and Taxes 2,647 2,108 2,294 

Income Before Extraordinary Item 1,260 974 1,091 
Net Income 1,252 974 1,074 

iEarnings Available for 
Common Stockholders 1,231 902 1,030 

2 Common Stock Data 
Weighted Average 

1Shares Outstanding 361 360 361 
Basic Earnings per Share (before 

00Iextraordinary item) $ 3.43 $ 2.51 $ 2.90 
1996 1997 1998 Basic Earnings per Share 3.41 2.51 2.85 

-Basic Earnings per Share Dividends per Share 2.20 1.90 1.57 
Dividends per Share 

Capitalization 
Common Equity 49% 50% 51% 

2 Preferred Stock 2% 3% 5% 
Trust Preferred Securities 6% 2% 

18Total Debt 43% 45% 9 
SEC Fixed Charges Coverage 4.7 4.1 

1-Total Assets $ 26,806 $ 24,029 $ 22,366 
Total Debt 7,168 6,777 6,295 

6Cash Flows from Operations 2,331 2,140 2,335 
Capital and Investment Expenditures 2,500 2,028 1,550 

Operating Datab 
1996 1997 1998 Electric Operations Volumes, 

Sales-GWh 82,011 77,935 77,547 
Natural Gas Transmission Volumes, 

Throughput-TBtu 2,593 2,862 2,939 
Natural Gas Marketed, TBtu/dc 8.4 7.3 6.0 
Electricity Marketed, GWhd 98,991 64,650 4,229 
Natural Gas Gathered and 

90 Processed/Transported, TBtu/d 3.6 3.4 2.9 
Natural Gas Liquids 

Production, MBbl/d 110.2 108.2 78.5 
60 aFinancial information reflects accounting for the 1997 merger with PanEnergy Corp as a pooling of interests. As a 

result, the financial information gives effect to the merger as if it had occurred January 1, 1996.  

30 bUnits of measure used are gigawatt-hours (GWh), trillion British thermal units (TBtu), trillion British thermal units 

per day (TBtu/d) and thousand barrels per day (MBbI/d), as applicable.  

Cincludes Trading and Marketing and Field Services volumes.  

0Duke" S&P S&P Excludes Electric Operations volumes.  
Energy Utilities 500



strong comp aiy 
To Our Shareholders 

For 1998, the story of Duke Energy stretches deliver record sales of 82,011 GWh. Earnings 
from Brisbane, Australia, to Sable Island, Nova before interest and taxes (EBIT) for Electric 
Scotia. It's a story of people blazing new trails Operations grew to $1,513 million, an 18 percent 
around the world and of nurturing deep roots in increase compared to 1997.  
the Carolinas and Texas.  

The Duke Energy story is built on - and grows Strategy: Own 
from - four basic strategies. In two years these and operate 
strategies have gone from being almost uniquely strategic energy 
ours to being the most imitated strategies in the supply assets 
energy industry. We're flattered. We're also worldwide.  
inspired to execute those strategies better than Our strategy 
any companies that might choose to copy us. is to develop or 

Let's look at these strategies and how the people acquire significant 
of Duke Energy have taken hold of them and power generation 
delivered. First, Duke Energy delivered a total and natural gas 
shareholder return of 19.7 percent for 1998, and assets, and to build 
our market capitalization grew from $19.9 billion a broad platform 
in 1997 to $23.3 billion in 1998. In a year of of assets to serve 
accelerating change in the energy industry we regions we have 
have delivered a balanced and strong combination targeted for their Richard B. Priory 
of growth in earnings, assets and capabilities. Our growth potential. Chairman, President and 
strategies help us tell that story in more detail. In the Northeast Chief Executive Officer 

U.S., we are 
Strategy: Provide superior redrawing the natural gas pipeline map with three 
electric service to the Carolinas. projects: Maritimes & Northeast, Algonquin 

For the second straight year, Duke Power led HubLine and Cross Bay pipelines. In this region 
the electric utility industry in customer satisfaction where tens of thousands of megawatts of proposed 
in the American Customer Satisfaction Index. new natural gas-fired power plants are still on the 
The data was collected by the National Quality drawing board, Duke Energy Power Services will 
Research Center, compiled by the University of complete and place into service in 2000 power 
Michigan, and the rankings were published in plants totaling more than 1,000 MW to serve 
Fortune magazine. the region's wholesale power markets.  

Two of our coal-fired plants in the Carolinas In the Midwest U.S., we reached an agreement 
were ranked the most efficient in the U.S. in 1998, with CMS Energy Corporation to sell Panhandle 
according to Electric Light & Power magazine. Eastern Pipe Line Company and Trunkline Gas 
For more than a quarter of a century, no company Company (Midwest Pipelines), along with natural 
has been able to generate more electricity from gas storage and liquefied natural gas facilities. The 
a ton of coal than Duke Power. market is characterized by plentiful supply and 

Our retail electric operations in the Carolinas slower growth than we target for our assets.  
delivered solid earnings growth through increased CMS Energy Corporation will pay $1.9 billion 
sales, efficient, reliable generation, and a relentless and assume $300 million of Panhandle Eastern 
drive to improve service and lower costs. Weather Pipe Line Company debt, making the transaction 
conditions in the second and third quarters com- worth $2.2 billion. Absence of the Midwest 
bined with a strong regional economy to help us Pipelines will reduce near-term earnings growth



somewhat, but we will direct the capital to other In Latin America, the Aguaytia Energy Project 
business opportunities that can deliver higher in Peru began commercial operation in 1998. By 
rates of return long term. EBIT for Natural Gas fully integrating natural gas and electric systems it 
Transmission grew to $702 million in 1998, up serves as a model for how similar projects will be 
from $624 million in 1997. developed going forward.  

Low energy commodity prices in 1998 created We are in the early stages of developing our 
ongoing opportunities for Duke Energy to acquire strategy for entry into the European market. The 

combination of privatization of energy assets, and 

Our strategy is to the strong trading and marketing potential of this 
-&I- area make it an attractive market.  

put together a broad Overall, the growth and performance of our 

pla ormdomestic and international asset base increased 
Puca'uu,,,of e erg as ets EBIT for our Global Asset Development group 

and ervces hatwil from $5 million for 1997 to $80 million for 1998.  and services That will 
make our entry into Strategy: Supply and trade 
new markets solidly multiple forms of energy.  

new arkeitssoldlyOne of our goals is to rank among the top 

profiable.marketers of both natural gas and electricity in profitable.  the U.S. and Canada - and to rank among the 
most profitable. In the second quarter of 1998, 

other strategic assets. Low crude oil prices kept unprecedented volatility in U.S. power markets 
strong downward pressure on prices for natural caused several major marketers to exit the busi
gas liquids, which is Duke Energy Field Services' ness. Duke Energy Trading and Marketing 
key energy commodity. EBIT fell to $76 million produced strong growth in volumes and record 
for 1998, compared with $157 million for 1997. EBIT, which grew from $44 million for 1997 
Those same market conditions, however, opened to $122 million for 1998.  
up opportunities for us to acquire and enter into In the Canadian Maritimes Provinces, Duke 
purchase agreements for natural gas gathering, Energy Marketing, the Canadian arm of Duke 
processing and fractionation assets. The biggest Energy Trading and Marketing, signed contracts 
of these was our announced $1.35 billion purchase with three of the region's leading industrial 
of assets from Union Pacific Resources. In a customers for gas supply contracts totaling 
consolidating industry, Duke Energy emerged more than 97 million cubic feet per day. By 
as a clear leader in 1998. bringing both the natural gas delivery assets of 

Internationally, we are targeting Asia Pacific, the Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline and market
Latin America and Europe. As in the U.S., our ing capabilities to this market, we can provide 
strategy is to put together a broad platform of cost-effective services, and be a most formidable 
energy assets and services that will make our entry competitor.  
into new markets solidly profitable. Our goal is to This illustrates an important aspect of our 

build regional energy businesses encompassing "supply and trade" strategy: We call it "leverag

much of the energy value chain. ing" our assets and capabilities. For example, 

A good example is in Australia where we Duke Energy Power Services assumed ownership 

completed or announced acquisitions of the and operation of more than 2,600 MW of power 

Queensland Gas Pipeline and Australian-based generation facilities in California during 1998, 
energy marketing operations; the Eastern Gas while Duke Energy Trading and Marketing 
Pipeline which is under development; and BHP managed the supply of natural gas fuel and 
Energy's power generation assets and its owner- marketed the megawatt-hours generated by 
ship interest in the Goldfields Pipeline, the facilities.  

1 0



Strategy: Provide energy-related We continue to build the best team in the energy 
products and services worldwide. business. In 1998, W.W. Johnson and Buck Mickel 

DukeSolutions was created in 1997 to provide retired from our Board of Directors, after long and 
integrated energy services for large energy users distinguished service to our corporation. We will 
across North America. Their mission - to be the miss their valuable counsel. From our Policy 
premier business-to-business retail energy services Committee, Paul Anderson and Jim Hackett 
provider. Consistent with that goal, DukeSolutions departed to lead other companies, and we grateful
established a strong presence in Canada and the ly acknowledge their contributions in making the 
U.S. They delivered on a promise to be profitable merger to create Duke Energy Corporation one of 
for the fourth quarter and built an excellent foun- the most effective on record. Through our industry 
dation for future profitability by signing more leadership we are well positioned to recruit strong
than 24 contracts with a future revenue stream ly from the best talent in the industry. Our team 
of $1.2 billion. has been strengthened by the addition of Harvey 

Duke/Fluor Daniel signed new contracts world- Padewer, who has joined the Policy Conmittee as 
wide for power plant engineering, procurement and Group President of Energy Services. He brings 
construction, as well as significant operations and extensive experience, encompassing electric power 
maintenance contracts. Duke Engineering & and gas pipeline industries, and a strong track 
Services began construction of a major renewable record in business development.  
energy power project in Mauritius, completed a We are able to recruit people of this caliber 
major component switch-out in a U.S. nuclear sta- because of the reputation of the entire Duke 
tion and helped bring electric service to 300,000 Energy team. Fortune magazine's annual rankings 
South Africans. Other Energy Services EBIT of America's Most Admired Companies reflect a 
was $10 million in 1998, down from $18 million nationwide consensus of business leaders and 
in 1997. financial analysts, and this year the performance 

of our team made Duke Energy the most admired 
Going forward: company in the industry sector of electric and gas 

The strategies help tell most, but not all, of the utilities. When the Financial Times of London 
story. The rest of the story springs from our com- surveyed CEOs around the world they ranked us 
mitment to our shareholders - our commitment as the world's most respected utility company.  
to deliver growth in shareholder value. These accolades have been earned by, and belong 

We continue to target annual growth in earnings to, each and every member of our team. When 
per share of 8 to 10 percent. In 1998 the Duke Electric Light & Power magazine named Duke 
Energy Board of Directors voted to maintain the Energy "Utility of the Year" that applied to the 
current annual dividend rate of $2.20 per share people who can build massive energy projects 
until earnings growth reduces the payout ratio to around the world and to the people who can 
50 percent of earnings. This will help provide the provide reliable, responsive and friendly service 
capital with which we will produce growth in earn- to a homeowner in the Carolinas.  
ings, in stock value and total shareholder return. There are few companies in the world today 

Virtually all of our businesses are capital inten- that can do all of this. Our commitment going 
sive, and it is critical that we maintain the financial forward is that none will do it better. For 1999, 
strength to take advantage of the "windows of our commitment to our customers and to our 
opportunity" that the world's dynamic energy mar- owners comes down to one simple statement: 
kets open to us. We'll deliver.  

Our goal is to have all systems "year 2000 l 72-.. y 
ready" by mid-1999. Our program also extends to 
our suppliers, and we are working with the electric Rick Priory . utility and natural gas industry groups to ensure Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer 
safe, reliable energy supplies and services. February 12, 1999 

mistervlal1ousl1rmorPlc
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Duke Power's Oconee Nudear Station took a bold 

step to lead the industry 6or anotlher- generation when 

it becamne only the second nuclear plant in the U.S. to 
apply to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission for an 

operatmng icense extension Community support in 

the upstate region of South Caroina has been strong.  
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Duke Power's Belews Creek and Marshall coal-fired power plants were 
ranked the two most efficient in the U.S. by Electric Light & Power 
magazine in 1998. Designed, built and operated 
by Duke Power, the plants produced more elec
tricity per ton of coal than any other plants. Duke 
Power coupled efficiency and reliability with its 
generation system to deliver quality service to 
customers and earnings growth to shareholders.  

Duke Energy's global power generation port
folio grew by 3,483 MW in 1998. Duke Energy 
Power Services (Power Services) completed the 
purchase of Morro Bay, Moss Landing and 
Oakland power plants in California. From July 1 
to December 31, 1998, they generated 4,245,000 MWh of Veazie, Maine, Town Manager Bill 

electricity under the Duke Energy banner. Duke Energy Reed and Maine Independence 
Trading and Marketing (Trading and Marketing) secured Project Director Rufus Kellam inspect 

construction progress. Said Reed: "The 
the plants' natural gas fuel supply and marketed their output. people of Veazie welcome this project 
Power Services has proposed to modernize two of the plants and Duke Energy Power Services 
to increase efficiency and output, reduce emissions and lower not only for the economic impact of 

plant profiles along the scenic California coast. the project but for their commitment 
to our community and state." 

Power Services has led the 
development of new power genera
tion in the Northeast U.S. by bringing 
Bridgeport Energy Project's Phase I on 
line in Connecticut in time to meet 1998 
summer load demand, while Duke/Fluor 
Daniel began construction of the 520 MW 

U Maine Independence Station in Veazie, 
Maine, on their behalf. Many plants have 
been proposed for the region on the heels 

Dukof newly available Canadian and U.S.  
thisnatural gas, but Duke Energy's plants 
cog eneraflon plani 6or Occidental 'J will be among the first of the new plants 

emicto serve the region.  
Conoco G obal Power. Located 

hng esidle, Texais, it will becomne 

Dailbea9ontutono9he50M



Aguaytia Energy began commercial operation 
in 1998 as Per-u's first Integrated energy project, 

comprising ncatural gas transportation, storage, 
processing and fractionation along with power 
aeneration and transmission: a clean, efficient, 

integrated approchl to energy. Aguayfiai moves 

eneigy - ais both natural gas anid electricity 
fromn the ungle of Central Peru to cities and Duke Energy is leading a major 

towns In other regions. Duke Energy owns a expansion of facilities to serve 

21 .9 percent interest in the project. producers in the Eastern Gulf...  
of Mexico. Thne mobile Bay 
Processing Plant incorporates a 40 MW cogeneration plant and showcases Duke Energy's 
capabilities in cdeveloping 
natural gas/electric facilities.  

Donnye Moore, left, and Tony Most Inspect construction progress of Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline where it crosses the Great Works River in Mie 

Designed to trcmsport 400 MMcf/d, fromn the Sabl esland offshore production area to the Northeast U.S. anid Canada, the pipeline is pro ectedt 

be in se-vc by Noeme *<*9 Duk Enrg - wn . a .5 pecn - interst in the pipeline.



Moving energy in a new direction: 
*tegrating natural gas and electricity, 

assets and services.  
Beginning in late 1999, Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline will bring new 
offshore natural gas supplies to the Northeast U.S. and Canadian Maritimes 
Provinces. Through its Algonquin HubLine and Cross Bay Pipeline projects, 
Duke Energy will expand natural gas services to the Northeast from both 
Canadian and U.S. supplies.  

In the Northeast and elsewhere, pipelines today are closely linked 
in the energy value chain with electric assets. Energy marketers link 
assets by supplying natural gas fuel for power generation and market
ing both natural gas and electricity to end users. Virtually all new 
power generation proposed for the Northeast is low-cost, clean 
burning natural gas-fired generation.  

In 1999, Duke Energy will complete the sale of Panhandle Eastern 
Pipe Line Company, Trunkline Gas Company, related natural gas 
storage facilities and Trunkline LNG Company to CMS Energy for 
$1.9 billion in cash and $300 million in assumed debt. Abundant and . growing natural gas transportation capacity into the Midwest flat
tened growth potential, and the sale enables Duke Energy to redeploy Duke Energy Chairman, President and 
the capital to markets with greater growth and earnings potential. CEO Rick Priory traveled to Australia 

One such market is Australia, where Duke Energy International an po e Engt te 

announced three major purchases in 1998: the 389-mile Queensland company's relationships with that 
Pipeline; the 500-mile Eastern Gas Pipeline, which will country and its people.  
be built to connect major natural gas production regions 
with Sydney, Australia's largest city; and the electric power assets 
and pipeline interest of Broken Hill Proprietary Company Limited.  
Duke Energy International has targeted Australia to develop natural 
gas pipeline capabilities in conjunction with power generation, 
energy marketing and other services.  

Duke Energy Field Services (Field Services) continued to lead a 
nationwide trend of consolidation in the natural gas gathering and 
processing industry. In 1998, Field Services added 1,500 miles of 
gathering pipelines which connect producers, processors, transporters 
and marketers. In 1999, Field Services expects to close on its $1.35 
billion purchase of Union Pacific Resources' natural gas gathering, 
processing, fractionation and NGL pipelines. Completed and pending 
transactions exceed $1.5 billion in value and will make Duke Energy 
the largest U.S. producer of NGLs, one of the largest natural gas 
gatherers and marketers and one of the largest NGL marketers.  

15
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DuikeSolutions is providing energy performance contracting ser-vices to IBM, covering more than 4 million square feet of offices, 

. . atri s, w drk e . nd .. oc tio * facilities ait its campus at Research Triancle Park in North Carolina,



Integrating energy and energy services is a cornerstone of Duke 
Energy's success. DukeSolutions became a flagship energy management 
company when Duke Energy founded it in 1997.  
DukeSolutions is Duke Energy's full-scope 
provider of energy services, helping customers 
across North America to improve efficiency, 
productivity and financial performance while 
reducing cost and risk.  

DukeSolutions made significant progress in 
1998 toward becoming a leading North American 
retail energy solutions provider: 

* The company signed more than 24 significant 
long-term contracts, creating a future revenue 
stream of $1.2 billion. DukeSolutions is delivering comprehen

* The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission issued sive services for more than 70 North 
DukeSolutions a license to operate as a power marketer. American facilities of Kraft Foods, Inc., 

* DukeSolutions achieved a true North American scope facliyin Mostoralif.,whr 
through its purchase of Tescor Energy Services, Inc., one Mary Wyand, DukeSolutions Senior 
of Canada's leading energy services companies. Tescor has Project Manager and Desire Bouagnon, 

delivered energy savings to its clients worth more Kraft Engineering and Maintenance 
than $135 million. Manager, discuss cost reduction measures to improve a boiler's efficiency.  With deregulating wholesale and retail markets, 

energy marketing has strong growth potential as part of an 
energy management portfolio. Trading and Marketing manages 
fuel procurement, energy purchasing and energy marketing 
for generators and utilities. Its services extend from the point 
of production to the customer's usage meter.  

In its regulated markets, Duke Power's energy services 
beyond the meter give industrial and commercial retail cus
tomers power to lower costs, improve product quality and 
focus on their core business. Account managers work closely 
with customers to identify savings through rate options, elec
trotechnologies and other opportunities to increase efficiency 
and lower costs. These services enable Duke Power customers 
to be competitive in cost, efficiency and productivity. They 
are also crucial in the evolution to deregulated retail markets.
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Duke Energy rading an 
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and energy marketing. Duke Energy's Denis Marcoux, left, andNomnCetg, 
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irvng i sStee Krstukrig hav he>edbuid tat .;t.nGene Magnicher, loft,Pln 

Engineer at Mohawk Inci 

Calhoun, Go., plant.  

Duke Energy Traiding and Marketing operates trading floors in Colgary, Allberta; Salt Lake City. Utah, and Houston, Texas. In 1998 volr u rade 

on te flo .s- Icsed 15 pe cn agas and 53 percent for electricity.
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Duke Energy continued to rank among the top natural gas marketers 
and top power marketers in the U.S. in 1998. Trading and Marketing 
solidified its North American position during 
1998 in a number of areas. Contracts associated 
with the new Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline 
were signed with the Irving Group, CGC and 
Stora Port Hawkesbury Ltd. to provide combined 
gas services of more than 97 MMcf/d to the large 
industrial facilities of these companies.  

In British Columbia, Trading and Marketing 
was awarded a contract by BC Gas Utility Ltd.  
to provide up to 50 MMcf/d of natural gas 
beginning in 1999. Alliance Gas Management in 
Ontario signed an energy management agreement with From Charlotte, N.C., Duke Power's 
Trading and Marketing to manage supply, storage and Bulk Power Marketing department 
transportation of natural gas. has responsibility to purchase capacity w and energy, as necessary to serve the In the United States, Trading and Marketing began serving business unit's "native load" 
the City of Hamilton, Ohio, providing natural gas supply, tomers and to sell temporary surplus 
transportation and storage services, along with financial capacity and energy in the wholesale 
services to provide price certainty, market.  

Duke Energy's power trading business 
was bolstered by the inclusion in 1998 of Power 
Services' newly acquired California power generation 
assets (2,645 MW) and Phase I of Bridgeport Energy 
(340 MW). Trading and Marketing's power market
ing business continued to grow strongly and in 1998 
accounted for approximately 18 percent of its EBIT.  
In highly volatile power markets during the second 
quarter, Duke Energy's disciplined approach to 
trading and risk management provided for continued 
reliability and profitability.  

Internationally, Duke Energy International estab
lished a strategic marketing presence in Australia 
through its purchase of the natural gas marketing 
operations of PG&E Corporation.



1998 Year in Review 

Duke Energy's four key strategies set gas, and positioned itself to become 

the direction. Duke Energy's people the largest U.S. producer of natural gas 

deliver the results. In addition to high- liquids (NUL) through a number of 

lights covered in pages 2 through 19, transactions in 1998. The continued 

the 1998 Year in Review offers sum- industry consolidation trend in 1998, 

maries of other accomplishments that along with low NGL prices and process

transformed strategies into results. ing margins, prompted Field Services to 
continue its strategy of growth through 

Provide Superior Electric Service McGuire's second consecutive highest acquisitions. Highlights include: 

to the Carolinas. rating. Catawba's two units set a record - From ONEOK, Inc., Field Services 

Duke Power earned top customer dual-unit run of 158 days. McGuire purchased interests in gas gathering, 

satisfaction ranking for second Unit 1 completed its refueling outage treating and processing facilities in 

straight year. Fortune magazine in company-record time of 33 days, Oklahoma, Kansas and Louisiana.  

reported that Duke Power led a list 19 hours and four minutes. McGuire - Field Services acquired from Dynegy 

of 20 electric utilities in overall cus- generated a station record 18,744,906 Midstream Services Limited 

tomer satisfaction in a nationwide net MWh in 1998. The McGuire Partnership and GPM the Roberts 

poll of more than 50,000 consumers. team achieved a 97.26 percent Ranch processing plant in West Texas.  

Electric Distribution served growth capacity factor for the year, establish- - Field Services agreed to purchase 

with higher satisfaction, lower costs. ing a new "best" for all Duke Power the natural gas gathering, processing, 

Duke Power's Electric Distribution nuclear plants. fractionation and NGL pipeline 

has added approximately 270,000 Duke Power customers will benefit business of Union Pacific Resources 

new retail from power purchase agreement (UPR) for $1.35 billion. Also under 

customers signed with Dynegy Power Corp. the agreement Duke Energy will 

since 1994. Duke Power's agreement with Dynegy gather and process much of UPR's 

In 1998, is for the purchase of 600 MW of U.S. production for a minimum of 

the group future capacity and energy generated ten years. UPR will also dedicate 

improved its by a power plant that Dynegy is for 5 years most of its natural gas 

service com- constructing in North Carolina. and NGL production to Duke Energy 

mitment rate The contract term begins July 1, 2000, for marketing.  

to 98 per- and runs through 2003 with an option Duke Energy continued to redraw 
cent. In the "new construction" category, to extend it through 2008. natural gas pipeline map for 
the customer satisfaction rating Hydro stations set records. Record Northeast U.S. in 1998. Duke Energy 

increased 18 percent in 1998, while generation marks were set by Bad continued to develop natural gas 

direct capital cost per new customer Creek Hydroelectric Station in 1998 assets to serve the growing needs of 

was reduced by 2.5 percent. of 2,129,138 MWh. The pumped this region, tapping into Canadian and 

Weather, healthy economy helped storage hydro system hit a new mark U.S. resources.  

drive record power demand in of 3,007,404 MWh, and the entire Construction progressed on 

Carolinas. Duke Power customers hydro system, comprising both Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline, 
set three records in power demand conventional and pumped storage with 83 miles 

in 1998, the latest on July 21, when facilities also achieved a new mark of pipeline 

demand reached 15,812 MW. of 4,990,239 MWh. constructed 

Nuclear stations earned top ratings, by the end 
set several records. McGuire Nuclear Own and Operate Strategic Energy of 1998. The 
Station and Catawba Nuclear Station Supply Assets Worldwide. pipeline is 
earned the Institute of Nuclear Power Field Services cited markets, timing 37.5 percent 

Operations' highest rating, covering in bold moves for expansion and owned by 

systems and equipment, knowledge consolidation. Duke Energy Field affiliates of 

and performance of personnel, and Services strengthened its position as Duke Energy 

management effectiveness. It was a top processor and gatherer of natural 37.5 percent



by Westcoast Energy Inc, 12.5 per- Duke Energy acquired greater $39 million from those reserves to 
cent by Mobil Corporation and 12.5 stake in TEPPCO through sale of third quarter earnings.  
percent by Nova Scotia Power. DETTCO. Duke Energy sold Duke 

* Algonquin Gas Transmission Co. Energy Transport and Trading Co. Supply and Trade Multiple 
announced plans to construct (DETTCO), which gathers, stores, Forms of Energy.  
Algonquin HubLine, a 70-mile transports and markets crude oil and Duke Energy acquired stake in 
pipeline that will interconnect operates two NGL pipelines. The buyer Alliance Pipeline, contracted for 
Algonquin and Maritimes & was TEPPCO capacity. Duke Energy subsidiaries 
Northeast pipelines and serve new Partners L.P., a acquired a 9.8 percent ownership 
power generation facilities in the publicly owned position in the Alliance Pipeline 
Boston area. master limited Partnership, which is developing a 

* Duke Energy, MarketSpan and partnership that system to transport natural gas from 
Williams formed a joint venture transports western Canada to the Chicago area 
to develop Cross Bay Pipeline to refined products market center for distribution through
increase natural gas delivery capability and liquefied out North America. Another Duke 
into New York City by more than petroleum gases Energy subsidiary took advantage 
25 percent. through a 4,300- of this direct access to contract for 
Duke Energy International acquired mile pipeline 67.25 MMcf/d of capacity.  

a 51.5 percent controlling interest in system. Through the sale, Duke Energy Duke Energy's Electric Transmission 
Electroquil SA, an electric power acquired an additional 3.9 million part- achieved record number of transactions 
generating company in Guayaquil, nership units, raising to 21.1 percent, in active markets. Favorable weather, 
Ecuador. Electroquil owns and oper- its ownership of TEPPCO. a strong economy and rapid growth in 
ates a four-unit 168 MW turbine power FERC approved Texas Eastern's 
plant, which sells its output to Inecel, rate reduction plan. The Federal 
Ecuador's state electric utility, under Energy Regulatory Commission 
power purchase agreements. At the (FERC) approved Texas Eastern's 
time of the purchase, Duke Energy's Customer Rate Initiative that will 
newly established presence in the reduce cus
country was touted for the development tomer rates 
opportunities for Duke Energy and for and make the 
the development of Ecuador's energy pipeline more 
sector and growth in the competitive.  
country's economy and industrial The plan 
competitiveness. provides rate 

Natural gas-fired power plant stability and 
began commercial operation in certainty until 
Chile. Electrica Santiago SA, a 370 2004 and "wheeling" power to serve wholesale 
MW natural gas-fired combined cycle provides that markets added up to a record volume 
power plant in Santiago, Chile, began Texas Eastern in wholesale transactions for 1998.  
commercial operation April 1. Duke will assume The System Operating Center 
Energy International owns 24 percent risk of capacity turnback through 2003. processed 59 percent more tariff trans
of the plant which is also known as Texas Eastern's long-haul rates will be actions in 1998 compared to 1997.  
Nueva Renca. Its output is sold on the reduced by approximately 17 percent. A record transmission system peak 
competitive grid in Chile and through Texas Eastern resolved important demand of 19,322 MW was set on June 
customer contracts. cost issue related to FERC Order 26, 1998, and the volume of energy 

New Smyrna Beach power plant 636. Texas Eastern reached final settle- transported under Duke Energy's tariff 
subject of filing, hearings. Power ment of gas purchase contracts that increased by 65 percent for the year.  
Services filed with the Florida Public were affected by Order 636 in 1993. Trading and Marketing, BC Gas 
Service Commission its plans to build The order resulted in pipeline compa- Utility received go-ahead for 15-year 
and operate a natural gas-fired 500 MW nies moving from buying and selling contract. The British Columbia Utility 
wholesale merchant power plant that natural gas to transporting it only, cre- Commission approved a 15-year con
will provide lower cost power to the ating gas supply realignment costs, for tract between Trading and Marketing 
City of New Smyrna Beach and to which Texas Eastern had taken charges and BC Gas Utility, in which Duke 
Florida's wholesale power market. against earnings totaling $140 million Energy will provide up to 50 MMcf/d 
Hearings before the commission are in 1993 and 1995. With the resolution of natural gas beginning November 
expected to continue throughout 1999. of these charges Texas Eastern posted 1999. The contract will diversify 
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BC Gas' supply portfolio and helps Iowa State University contracted DukeSolutions acquired leading 
meet increasing demand in Vancouver. with DE&S to decommission Canadian energy services company.  

Largest Canadian natural gas Argonaut nuclear reactor. The reactor With offices across Canada and a track 

wholesaler signed agreement was used as part of an instructional record of more than $135 million of 
with Duke Energy. Alliance Gas facility beginning in 1959. DE&S will energy savings for more than 3,000 

Management signed an energy man- develop plans and carry out decommis- buildings, Tescor Energy Services, Inc.  

agement agreement with Trading and sioning and site remediation and will extended DukeSolutions' reach across 

Marketing, in which Duke Energy will team with NSC Environmental Services much of North America.  

manage supply, storage and transporta- to perform demolition, disposal and DukeSolutions scored big contracts 
tion for the company. Alliance Gas facility restoration. in 1998. In addition to its contracts 

Management serves more than 490,000 Duke/Fluor Daniel awarded 11 with Kraft Foods, IBM and Pillowtex 

Canadian residential and small com- major contracts in 1998. In addition (pages 16-17), other major contracts 

mercial users. to the Ingleside Project (page 13) and awarded to DukeSolutions included: 

Duke Energy Trading and Maine Independence Project (page 13), Three U.S. Department of Energy 

Marketing agreed to purchase NP an affiliate of the partnership began regional contracts to identify and 

Energy. The purchase will include risk construction of a 220 MW natural gas- install energy-saving improvements 

management and project development fired simple cycle plant on the island at federal facilities in 29 states. These 

efforts, including marketing agree- of Trinidad in the Republic of Trinidad contracts include the application of 

ments with power cooperatives and and Tobago. It was awarded a turnkey energy efficient technologies to light

power projects in Ohio and Arizona. contract by Dearborn Industrial ing, heating and cooling, electric 

Generation, L.L.C. to build a 550 MW motors and other energy-consuming 

Provide Energy-Related cogeneration plant serving Rouge Steel systems.  

Products and Services. and Ford Motor Company facilities in A contract to provide energy 

The Steam Generating Team Ltd. Dearborn, Mich. Overall, Duke/Fluor efficiency services, deregulation 

(SGT) awarded $200 million contract. Daniel was awarded five major engi- preparation services and electric and 

SGT is jointly owned by Duke neering, procurement and construction gas commodity services to Dana 

Engineering & Services (DE&S) and (EPC contracts. It also expanded Commercial Credit Corporation of 

Morrison Knudsen. The contract was operations and maintenance (O&M) Toledo, Ohio.  

awarded by Baltimore Gas & Electric contracts, with four new facilities 
contracts and two renewals, bringing Diversified Operations0 
a total of 1,875 MW under contract. Delivered in 1998.  

DE&S awarded contract to build Crescent Resources expanded its 
renewable energy plant on reputation, projects across Southeast.  

Mauritius. Compagnie Thermique De In Florida, Crescent Resources moved 

Belle Vue Limited awarded DE&S a forward with: -$74 million turnkey EPC contract for a * Two new buildings totaling more than 
70 MW power generation plant that 300,000 square feet at Primera office 
will be fueled by bagasse, a waste fiber park north of Orlando; 

from sugar cane, the island's main E Three office buildings at its Hidden 
crop. The renewable fuel and the clean- River development on Tampa's east 

burning plant offer an environmental side; and 

Co. to replace steam generators in the step forward for the island, located in The 260-acre mixed use CrossTown 

Calvert Cliffs Nuclear Power Plant. the Indian Ocean. Center south of Tampa.  

SGT's turnkey responsibilities include Duke Energy created subsidiary In Nashville, Crescent Resources is 

project management, procurement, to market antenna sites to wireless developing CentrePoint, a 220-acre 

licensing support, engineering, design communications industry. Duke warehouse/distribution park, and contin

and installation. Communication Services began ued development at its Corporate Centre 

DE&S expanded hydropower marketing more than 34,000 existing 

services. Its purchase of Cascades towers and property holdings in 34 Fv oiemCnr 

Environmental Services, Inc. and states to help meet the rapidly growing 

Hydropower Technologies brought need for wireless communication 
additional environmental consulting antennas. The subsidiary offers turnkey 

expertise in hydropower and water services to construct, install, own and 

resources and hydro mechanical con- manage antenna sites for single and 

sulting services to the DE&S portfolio, multiple wireless carriers. 1



office park with two new buildings earned recognition from several impor- Trust for Public Land to protect the 
totaling 266,000 square feet. tant conservation organizations: watershed and Charlotte's drinkng 

In Charlotte, Crescent Resources is The South Carolina Wildlife water supply.  
moving toward a build-out of Coliseum Federation's Conservationist of the Duke Energy provided warmth in 
Centre with the opening of Five Year for Duke Energy's key role in winter, relief from heat Duke Power 
Coliseum Centre and construction of public acquisition of the Jocassee customers and Duke Energy sharehold
six-story Four Coliseum Centre. At Lake Gorges - what S.C. Governor David ers combined to give more than $1.2 
Norman, The Point residential develop- Beasley called "the most significant million to the company's Share the 
ment sold a record 71 lots for $15 mil- conservation project in the Southern Warmth Fund, which provides money 
lion in only four hours. Appalachian Mountains in the latter for winter fuel bills to low-income 

DukeNet Communications tripled half of the 20th century;" families in Duke Power's service area.  
fiber optic capacity and revenues in Edison Electric Institute's National In Houston, Duke Energy contributed 
1998. The explosive growth in internet Land Management Award for Duke to the Channel 11 Spirit of Texas Heat 
and wireless communications, along Power's partnerships with community Relief Drive to provide window air
with steady growth in long-distance and environmental groups; right-of- conditioners to people suffering during 
telephone communications continued way management; environmental the searing Texas heat wave of '98.  
to drive strong growth in revenues and education and outreach; wildlife and Duke Energy delivered strong 
system expansion of DukeNet's fiber fisheries habitat development; and its pilanthropic support. More than 
optic system in 1998. System capacity fish, wildlife and recreational resource $10 million was provided to charitable . was expanded by installing additional management; causes as diverse as community volun
electronic equipment on existing fiber The National Wild Turkey teer development, early childhood 
optic routes. DukeNet will expand Federation's Outstanding JAKES intervention, environmental initiatives 
service to several mid-size cities in the Event Award to Oconee Nuclear and the arts.  
Carolinas in 1999, such as Burlington Station, for a youth event that taught Duke Energy, Crescent Resources 
and Hickory, N.C. biology, hunting skills and ethics, added 32,000 acres to U.S. wilderness 

and other outdoors skills; legacy. Through sales totaling more 
Corporate Citizenship: Delivering a The National Wildlife Federation's than $24 million and donations worth 
Quality-of-Life Dividend. Certificate of Exceptional Merit for more than 

More than 4,700 Duke Energy Oconee's Backyard Wildlife Habitat $46 million, 
employees served communities to program - the nation's first industrial Duke Energy 
mark Duke Energy's first anniver- site to win the award; and Crescent 
sary. Active and retired employees The South Carolina Chapter of the Resources 
volunteered their services to help people American Fisheries Society's Fishery helped move 
in 75 cities where Duke Energy is a cor- Conservation Award for Duke Power's some of the most 
porate citizen. The homeless and the "cumulative contribution" to fisheries environmentally 
hungry, the young and the old, the sick research, reservoir management, fish- important lands 
and the shut-in all benefitted from eries restoration and environmental in the eastern 
thousands of acts of community service education; and U.S. into public 
that were a fitting reminder of Duke Water Quality Coalition's Blue Thumb ownership. The State of South Carolina 
Energy's commitment to serving people. Award to Crescent Resources for The closed on 24,000 acres of spectacular 

Environmental awards spotlighted Overlook on Mountain Island Lake Jocassee Gorges property in 1998, with 
Duke Energy's environmental stew- residential developmen described as ownership of 8,000 additional acres 
ardship, citizenship. Duke Energy and "...a model development in terms to transfer in 1999. In North Carolina, 
its business units continued the corpora- of environmental protection" for Duke Energy, Crescent Resources 
tion's long-standing commitment to the Charlotte, N.C.'s watershed. Crescent and the state moved toward closing 
environment in 1998, and in the process also sold a 1,231-acre tract to The on 9,600 acres.  
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Results of Operations and Financial Condition 

Introduction Power Services, LLC (Duke Energy Power Services) and 

Duke Energy Corporation (collectively with its subsidiaries, Duke Energy International, LLC (Duke Energy International).  

"Duke Energy") is an integrated energy and energy services Other Energy Services provides engineering, consulting, 

provider with the ability to offer physical delivery and man- construction and integrated energy solutions worldwide, 

agement of both electricity and natural gas throughout the primarily through Duke Engineering & Services, Inc.  

United States and abroad. Duke Energy provides these and (Duke Engineering & Services), Duke/Fluor Daniel and 

other services through seven business segments: DukeSolutions, Inc. (DukeSolutions).  

* Electric Operations Real Estate Operations conducts its business through 

* Natural Gas Transmission Crescent Resources, Inc., which develops high quality 

* Field Services commercial and residential real estate projects and manages 

*forest 
holdings in the southeastern United States.  

* Trdingand arkeingThe 1997 merger of Duke Power Company (Duke Power) 

* Global Asset Development and PanEnergy Corp (PanEnergy) was accounted for as a pool

* Other Energy Services ing of interests; therefore, the Consolidated Financial state

* Real Estate Operations ments and other financial information included in this Annual 

These segments were defined as a result of Duke Energy Report for periods prior to the merger include the combined 

adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards historical financial results of Duke Power and PanEnergy.  

No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise (See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

and Related Information." Management's Discussion and Analysis should be read 

Electric Operations generates, transmits, distributes and in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements.  

sells electric energy in central and western North Carolina 

and the western portion of South Carolina (doing business Results of Operations 
as Duke Power or Nantahala Power and Light). These elec- In 1998, earnings available for common stockholders 

tric operations .are subject to the rules and regulations of the increased 36.5% over 1997, to $1,231 million, or $3.41 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the North per basic share, net of an extraordinary loss of $8 million, 

Carolina Utilities Commission (NCUC) and the Public or $0.02 per basic share. The increase in earnings available 

Service Commission of South Carolina (PSCSC). for common stockholders was primarily due to increased 

Natural Gas Transmission, through its Northeast Pipelines, electric sales and energy marketing activities, expansions and 

provides interstate transportation and storage of natural gas acquisitions, gains on sales of assets and the absence of 1997 

for customers primarily in the Mid-Atlantic and New England non-recumng merger costs. These increases were partially 

states. Until the expected sale of the Midwest Pipelines in offset by decreased NGL prices 

early 1999, Natural Gas Transmission also provides interstate and increased interest expense 

transportation and storage services in the midwest states. and minority interests.  

See further discussion of the proposed sale of the Midwest Earnings available for com

Pipelines in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section mon stockholders decreased 3,000 

of Management's Discussion and Analysis. The interstate 12.4% in 1997 compared to 

natural gas transmission and storage operations are also 1996, to $902 million or $2.51 

subject to the rules and regulations of the FERC. per basic share in 1997 from 2250 

Field Services gathers, processes, transports and markets $1,030 million or $2.85 per 

natural gas and produces and markets natural gas liquids basic share in 1996. The 

(NGL). Field Services operates gathering systems in ten decrease was due primarily 

states that serve major gas-producing regions in the to non-recurring 1997 merger 1,500 

Rocky Mountain, Permian Basin, Mid-Continent and Gulf costs, 1997 severance costs, 

Coast areas. premiums associated with the 

Trading and Marketing markets natural gas, electricity and redemption and tender offer 750 

other energy-related products across North America. Duke for ten issues of preferred stock 

Energy owns a 60% interest in Trading and Marketing's opera- and increased nuclear expenses.  

tions, with Mobil Corporation owning a 40% minority interest. Partially offsetting the decrease 

Global Asset Development develops, owns and operates were lower expenses in 1997 1996 1997 1998 

energy-related facilities worldwide. Global Asset Develop- as compared to 1996, when U EBIT 

ment conducts its operations primarily through Duke Energy major storms affected Electric Net Income



Operations' distribution costs, and an extraordinary loss to industrial customers increased 
related to the early retirement of debt in 1996. slightly in 1998 over 1997, 

Operating income for 1998 was $2,433 million with sales to textile customers 
compared to $1,970 million in 1997 and $2,159 million relatively flat. The number 
in 1996. Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) were of customers in the Electric 
$2,647 million, $2,108 million and $2,294 million for 1998, Operations service territory 
1997 and 1996, respectively. Operating income and earnings increased 2.5% in 1998 over 
before interest and taxes, excluding the effect of gains on 1997 due to economic growth 1200 

asset sales of $34 million by Field Services in 1998, are in the region.  
affected by the same fluctuations for Duke Energy and each In 1997, earnings before 
of its business segments. Earnings before interest and taxes interest and taxes for Electric 800 

by business segment are summarized below and are discussed Operations declined 9.7% as 
by business segment thereafter. compared to 1996, primarily 

as a result of severance costs 40 
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes by Business Segment and increased nuclear outage 

Years Ended December 31, expenses. Also contributing to 
(In millions) 1998 1997 1996 the decrease were lower 
Electric Operations $1,513 $1,282 $1,419 electric revenues, which were 0 
Natural Gas Transmission 702 624 595 1996 1997 1998 
Field Services 76 157 152 due primarily to mild weather 
Trading and Marketing 122 44 58 and to the South Carolina rate reduction, which was effective 
Global Asset Development 80 5 - June 1, 1996. Partially offsetting the decrease in earnings 
Other Energy Services 10 18 20 
Real Estate Operations 142 98 88 were lower expenses in 1997 as compared to 1996, when 
Other Operations 2 (120) (38) major storms affected distribution costs.  
Consolidated EBIT $2,647 $2,108 $2,294 

Other Operations primarily includes communication 
services, water services and certain unallocated corporate 
costs. Included in the amounts discussed below are inter
company transactions that are eliminated in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.  

18,000 
Electric Operations 

Years Ended December 31, 

(Dollars in millions) 1998 1997 1996 

Operating Revenues $4,626 $4,401 $4,498 12,000 
Operating Expenses 3,228 3,221 3,195 

Operating Income 1,398 1,180 1,303 
Other Income, Net of Expenses 115 102 116 

EBIT $1,513 $1,282 $1,419 6,000 

Volumes, Sales - GWh a 82,011 77,935 77,547 
a Gigawatt-hour 

In 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Electric 0.1996 1997 1998 

Operations increased 18.0% to $1,513 million from Residential 

$1,282 million in 1997, primarily due to a 5.2% increase in General Services 
Other Industrial gigawatt-hour sales. The increase in earnings before interest Textile 

and taxes due to the absence of 1997 severance costs was sub
stantially offset by 1998 severance and other costs related to 
the shut-down of Electric Operations' merchandising business.  

Sales to weather-sensitive customers increased signifi
cantly in 1998 compared to 1997, which was a mild weather 
year, with sales to residential and general service customers 
up 7.5% and 7.1I%, respectively, primarily due to warmer 

ispnng and summer weather conditions. On July 21, 1998, 
Electric Operations customers set the third record demand 
of the summer, reaching a peak of 15,812 megawatts. Sales 
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Natural Gas Transmission Field Services 
Years Ended December 3), Years Ended Deember 31, 

(Dollars in millions) 1998 1997 996 Dollars in millions) 19s 1997 1996 

Operating Revenues $1,528 $1,572 $1,556 Operating Revenues $2,639 $3,055 $2,637 
Operating Expenses 864 964 973 Operating Expenses 2,598 2,898 2,487 

Operating Income 664 608 583 Operating Income 41 157 150 
Other Income, Net of Expenses 38 16 12 Other Income, Net of Expenses 35 - 2 

EBIT $ 702 $ 624 $ 595 EBIT $76 $157 $152 

Volumes, Throughput - TBtu a 2,593 2,862 2,939 Volumes 
a Trillion British thermal units Natural Gas Gathered and 

Processed/Transported, TBtu/d a 3.6 3.4 2.9 
Natural Gas Marketed, TBtu/d 0.4 0.4 0.5 

Earnings before interest and taxes for Natural Gas NGL Production, MBblId b 110.2 108.2 78.5 
Transmission increased $78 million in 1998 over 1997. a Trillion British thermal units per day 

Earnings before interest and taxes for Northeast Pipelines b Thousand harrels per day 

increased $56 million to $476 million in 1998 compared 
to 1997, primarily as a result of the favorable resolution In 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Field 
of regulatory issues related to gas supply realignment costs, Services decreased $81 million compared to 1997, primarily 

favorable state property tax rulings and increased market due to a decrease in average NGL prices of approximately 

expansion projects. These increases were partially offset $0.09 per gallon, or 25.7%. The decrease in earnings before 
by a decrease in throughput primarily as a result of mild interest and taxes was partially offset by $34 million of 

winter weather. gains on sales of assets which are included in other income.  

In 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Midwest Earnings before interest and taxes for Field Services 

Pipelines increased 10.8% compared to 1997, primarily due increased 3.3% in 1997 over 1996, primarily due to higher 
to a gain on the sale of the general partner interests in Northern volumes as a result of acquisitions in 1996. Natural gas 

Border Partners, L.P and non-recurring 1997 litigation expenses. gathered and processed volumes increased 17.2%, and NGL 
These increases were partially offset by the favorable resolu- production increased 37.8% in 1997 compared to 1996.  
tion of certain regulatory matters in 1997, which was reflected Partially offsetting these increases were lower NGL prices 

as additional revenue and other income. See the Liquidity of approximately $0.04 per gallon, or 8%, and higher natural 

and Capital Resources - Investing Cash Flows section of gas prces.  
Management's Discussion and Analysis for a discussion of 
the expected sale of the Midwest Pipelines in early 1999.  
(See also Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

Earnings before interest and taxes for Natural Gas 
Transmission increased 4.9% in 1997 over 1996, with 160 

increases in earnings at Northeast 
auralPipelines and Midwest Pipelines 

Trsissionof 5.3% and 4.0%, respectively. 120 0.3 

Earnings before interest and taxes 
00for the Northeast Pipelines 

increased primarily due to market
expansion projects placed in service. 80 0.2 

600 For the Midwest Pipelines, 
earnings before interest and taxes 
increased primarily due to the t
favorable resolution of certain 

400 regulatory matters in 1997 
in amounts in excess of those 
resolved in 1996, which was 1996 1997 1998 1996 1997 1998 

reflected as additional revenue 
and other income. This increase 
was partially offset by 1997 
litigation expenses.  

1996 1997 1998 
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Trading and Marketing Global Asset Development 
Years Ended December.3). Years Ended December 31, 

(Dollars in millions) 1998 1997 1996 (In millions) 199 1997 1996 

Operating Revenues $8,785 $7,489 $3,814 Operating Revenues $319 $123 $72 
jperating Expenses 8,665 7,446 3,758 Operating Expenses 261 129 73 

' (Oerating Income 120 43 56 Operating Income 58 (6) (1) 
Other Income, Net of Expenses 2 1 2 Other Income, Net of Expenses 22 11 
EBIT $ 122 $ 44 $ 58 EBIT $80 $5 $

Volumes 
Natural Gas Marketed, TBtu/d 8.0 6.9 5.5 
Electricity Marketed, GWh 98,991 64,650 4,229 In 1998, earnings before 

interest and taxes for GlobalDelomn 
In 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Trading Asset Development increased 

and Marketing increased $78 million over 1997. The increase $75 million over 1997. The 
resulted primarily from increased financial trading margins increase results primarily from 
and electricity margins, partially offset by increased expenses business expansion and 
due to business growth. Electricity volumes marketed acquisitions, including Duke 
increased primarily as a result of acquiring the remaining Energy Power Services'July 1, 7 

50% ownership interest in the Duke/Louis Dreyfus, L.L.C. 1998 acquisition of three electric 
(D/LD) joint venture in June 1997. generating stations in California 

Earnings before interest from Pacific Gas & Electric 50 
a taxes for Trading and Company (PG&E) and 
Marketing decreased $14 mil- December 1997 acquisition 
lion in 1997 compared to 1996. of an indirect 32.5% ownership 

160The acquisition of the remain- interest in American Ref-Fuel 2 

ing 50% ownership interest Company. Duke Energy 
in the D/LD joint venture in International also contributed 

120 1997, coupled with a full year to the increase in earnings 190 9719 
of operations of the joint yen- before interest and taxes in 1998 
ture with Mobil Corporation compared to 1997 through an 

80formed in August 1996, expansion to the PT Puncakjaya power generation facility 

increases in Trading and earnings resulting from lower prices at National Methanol, 
Marketing revenues, related a methanol and MTBE (methyl tertiary butyl ether) plant in 

40operating expenses (including Saudi Arabia.  
increased purchased power In 1997, earnings before interest and taxes increased 
expense) and volumes in 1997 slightly compared to 1996, due primarily to business expan

1 , over 1996. Increased natural sion and acquisitions, including the December 1997 acquisi

80 

1996 1997 1998 gas volumes marketed of tion of an ownership interest in American Ref-Fuel Company, 
25.5% in 1997, in addition to and a gain on the sale of an investment. These increases were 

increased natural gas margins from trading activities, were partially offset by increased expenses due to business growth.  
largely offset by the emerging electric power trading and 
marketing activities. Higher operating expenses, due primarily 
to increased personnel levels and system development costs 
to provide the necessary infrastructure for growth in the trad
ing and marketing business, resulted in a decrease in earnings 
before interest and taxes in 1997 as compared to 1996.  
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Other Energy Services Other Operations 
Years Ended December 31. Earnings before interest and taxes for Other Operations 

(in millions) 1998 1997 1996 increased in 1998 compared to 1997, primarily as a result 
Operating Revenues $521 $376 $ 204 of the absence of $71 million of non-recurring 1997 merger
Operating Expenses 511 353 184C 

Opertin Expnse 511 353 184 related costs and the favorable resolution of certain contin
Operating Income 10 23 20 g 
Other Income, Net of Expenses - (5) 

EBIT $ 10 $ 18 $ 20 and taxes was partially offset by a 1997 gain on the sale of 
the ownership interest in the Midland Cogeneration Venture.  

Earnings before interest and taxes for Other Operations 

In 1998, earnings before declined $82 million in 1997 compared to 1996. Contributing 

interest and taxes for Other to the decrease were increased merger-related expenses 

Energy Services decreased of $57 million in 1997 compared to 1996 and the 1997 

$8 million compared to 1997, 20 amortization of goodwill associated with the purchase of the 

primarily due to decreased remaining 50% ownership interest in the DILD joint venture.  

earnings of Duke Engineering This decline was partially offset by the sale of the ownership 

& Services. Earnings before interest in the Midland Cogeneration Venture in 1997.  
interest and taxes for Other 

Energy Services decreased Other Impacts on Earnings Available for 
$2 million in 1997 compared Common Stockholders 
to 1996, primarily as a result 10 Interest expense increased 8.9% in 1998 over 1997 due 

of start-up expenses of to higher average debt balances outstanding. In 1997, interest 

DukeSolutions partially expense decreased $27 million, or 5.4%, as compared to 

offset by increased earnings 1996 as a result of lower interest rates.  

of Duke Engineering & In 1998, minority interests increased $73 million compared 

Services due to growth. to 1997. This increase includes 1998 dividends for trust 
preferred securities, of which $350 million were issued 

1996 997 198 L in December 1997 and $600 million were issued in 1998.  
See further discussion of the 1998 issuances of trust preferred 

securities in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section 

Real Estate Operations of Management's Discussion and Analysis. Excluding these W 
Years Ended December 31, dividends, minority interests relate primarily to the trading 

(In millions) 1998 1997 1996 and marketing joint venture with Mobil Corporation formed 

Operating Revenues $181 $ 124 $ 114 in August 1996.  
Operating Expenses 39 26 26 In January 1998, TEPPCO Partners, L.P., in which a 
Operating Income 142 98 88 subsidiary of Duke Energy has a 2% general partner interest 
Other Income, Net of Expenses -

EBIT $142 $ 98 $ 88 ada1.%lmtdprnritrsrdee eti is 
Mortgage Notes. A non-cash extraordinary loss of $8 million, 
net of income tax of $5 million, was recorded related to costs 

In 1998, earnings before of the early retirement of that debt.  

interest and taxes for Real On October 1, 1996, a subsidiary of Duke Energy redeemed 

Estate Operations increased its $150 million, 10% debentures and its $100 million, 

44.9% compared to 1997, 0O% debentures, both due 2011. A non-cash extraordinary 
primarily as a result of loss of $17 million, net of income tax of $10 million, was 

increased project and lake recorded related to the unamortized discount on this early 

lot sales and a gain on land retirement of debt.  
120 sales in the ocassee Gorges In December 1997, Duke Energy redeemed four issues of 

region of South Carolina. preferred stock and commenced a tender offer to purchase a 

Earnings before interest portion of an additional six issues of preferred stock. Premiums 

80 and taxes for Real Estate related to these redemptions were included in the Consolidated 
Operations increased 11.4% Statements of Income in 1997 as Dividends and Premiums on 

in 1997 over 1996, primarily Redemptions of Preferred and Preference Stock.  

due to gains associated with 
bulk land sales in 1997.  

10 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources acquisition of an ownership interest in American Ref-Fuel 
Operating Cash Flows. Assets and liabilities recorded in Company for $237 million. The increase in capital and 

the Consolidated Balance Sheets related to purchased capac- investment expenditures in 1997 over 1996 also included 
@ ty levelization and natural gas transition cost recoveries and increased Electric Operations construction costs, primarily 
1W e related cash flow impacts are affected by state and federal due to steam generator replacements at certain of its nuclear 

regulatory initiatives and specific agreements. For more plants and increased distribution line construction, and busi
information on the purchased capacity levelization and the ness expansion for the Natural Gas Transmission segment.  
natural gas transition cost recoveries, see Notes 5 and 4, These increases were partially offset by the 1996 acquisition 
respectively, to the Consolidated Financial Statements. of certain assets from Mobil Corporation.  

On August 29, 1998, the FERC approved a settlement Duke Energy plans to maintain its regulated electric 
from Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation (TETCO), a operations facilities in the Carolinas and pursue business 
subsidiary of Duke Energy, which will accelerate recovery of expansion as opportunities arise. Projected 1999 capital and 
natural gas transition costs and reduce depreciation expense investment expenditures for Electric Operations, including 
to more appropriately reflect the estimated useful lives allowance for funds used during construction, are approxi
of its facilities, principally interstate natural gas pipelines. mately $900 million. These projections include expenditures 
The order was effective October 1, 1998 and includes a rate for existing plants, including refurbishment and upgrades 
moratorium until 2004. Cash flows from operations are not related to the Oconee Nuclear Station's application for a 
expected to change for the first two years after implementa- 20-year renewal of its operating license. The license renewal 
tion due to the offsetting effect on customer rates of the process could take three to five years to complete. All 
reduced depreciation expense and increased recovery of natu- projections are subject to periodic review and revisions.  
ral gas transition costs. When the natural gas transition costs Actual expenditures incurred may vary from such estimates 
are fully recovered, cash flows from operations are expected due to various factors, including industry restructuring, 
to decrease during 2001 through 2003 by an estimated total weather, economic growth, regulatory constraints and 
of $270 million. For more information concerning the settle- environmental regulation.  
ment, see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Projected 1999 capital and investment expenditures for 

Investing Cash Flows. Capital and investment expendi- Natural Gas Transmission, including allowance for funds used 
tures were approximately $2.5 billion in 1998 compared during construction, are approximately $400 million which 
to approximately $2.0 billion in 1997. This increase was do not include projections related to the Midwest Pipelines 

W rimarily due to business expansion by Global Asset which are expected to be sold in early 1999. These projections 
evelopment, which included Duke Energy Power Services' include the completion of the Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline 

$501 million purchase of three electric generating stations project, which will deliver natural gas to markets in the 
in California from PG&E and Canadian Maritimes provinces and the northeastern United 

Capitaland the completion of the first phase States from a supply basin offshore Nova Scotia. These pro
al es of Bridgeport Energy, a $265 jections also include other market expansion projects and 

million, 520-megawatt combined costs relating to existing assets.  
cycle natural gas-fired merchant Duke Energy plans to continue to significantly grow sev
generation plant. Business eral of its business segments: Field Services, Global Asset 
expansion for Natural Gas Development, Trading and Marketing and Other Energy 

2.1 Transmission and Field Services Services. Expansion opportunities for Field Services include 
also contributed to the increase the planned $1.35 billion acquisition of the natural gas gath
in capital and investment ering, processing, fractionation and NGL pipeline business 

1.4 expenditures. The increase was of Union Pacific Resources along with its natural gas and 
partially offset by decreased NGL marketing activities. The transaction is expected to 
expenditures for Electric close in the first half of 1999 and is contingent upon comple
Operations, primarily as a result tion of due diligence and receipt of clearances under the 
of steam generator replacements Hart-Scott-Rodino Act.  
at certain of its nuclear plants in Expansion opportunities for Global Asset Development's 
1997, and by the acquisition of international division, Duke Energy International, include 
the remaining 50% ownership the $315 million purchase of power generation and transmis

1996 1997 1998 of the D/LD joint venture in sion assets in western Australia and New Zealand, including 
June 1997. an ownership interest in a pipeline in western Australia.  

Capital and investment expenditures in 1997 included the This acquisition also includes a development proposal 
acquisition of the remaining 50% ownership interest in the for a cogeneration plant and a portfolio of international 

/LD joint venture for $247 million, which substantially and Australian-based projects. This transaction closed represented goodwill, and Global Asset Development's on January 22, 1999.  
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Also, Duke Energy International recently purchased 
the rights to develop and operate the 500-mile Eastern Gas 

Pipeline project in eastern Australia. Construction of this 

$270 million pipeline project is scheduled to begin in July Mortgage Bonds A- Aa3 A- AA 
$20Senior Unsecured A Al A+ A

1999 and completion is expected by the middle of 2000. Preferred Stock A al A+ A+ 

Expansion opportunities for Global Asset Development's SeuiesA a A+ + 

domestic division, Duke Energy Power Services, include Commercial Paper A P1 F-1+ D-1+ 

the continuation of greenfield projects, such as the Bridge

port Energy project and the Maine Independence Station, To maintain financial flexibility and reduce the amount 

a 520-megawatt combined cycle natural gas-fired merchant of financing needed for growth opportunities, Duke Energy's 

generation plant in Maine which is scheduled to begin Board of Directors adopted a dividend policy in June 1998 

producing power in the summer of 2000. Other expansion that targets 50% of earnings paid out in dividends on common 

opportunities include the Hidalgo project, a 510-megawatt stock. Prior to the adoption of the policy, approximately 65% 

power plant to be built in south Texas, which is targeted to of earnings were paid out in dividends. The Board of Directors 

begin producing power in mid-2000. Other similar initiatives intends to maintain dividends at the current quarterly rate 

in 1999 for both Duke Energy International and Duke Energy of $0.55 per share until the target payout ratio is reached.  

Power Services will likely require significant capital and In February 1998, Duke Energy completed its tender offer 

investment expenditures, which will be subject to periodic for a maximum of 50% of the outstanding shares of six of its 

review and revision and may vary significantly depending preferred stock issues, purchasing two million shares of its 

on the value-added opportunities presented. preferred stock for $180 million.  

Projected 1999 capital and investment expenditures for Duke Capital Corporation (Duke Capital) is a wholly 

Trading and Marketing, Other Energy Services and Real owned subsidiary of Duke Energy and serves as the parent 

Estate Operations are approximately $30 million, $90 million for Duke Energy's business segments except Electric 

and $300 million, respectively. All projected capital and Operations and certain other operations. In July 1998, Duke 

investment expenditures are subject to periodic review and Capital issued $400 million of Senior Unsecured Notes.  

revision and may vary significantly depending on acquisition Also, during 1998, Duke Capital's business trusts, which are 

opportunities, market volatility, economic trends and the treated as indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Duke Energy 

value-added opportunities presented. for financial reporting purposes, issued $600 million of trust 

In October 1998, Duke Energy, through its wholly owned preferred securities.  

subsidiaries, PanEnergy and Texas Eastern Corporation, (See Note 12 to the 

entered into an agreement to sell Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Consolidated Financial 

Company (PEPL), Trunkline Gas Company (Trunkline) and Statements.) 

additional storage related to those systems, which substan- In December 1998, 

tially comprise the Midwest Pipelines, along with Trunkline Duke Energy issued 

LNG Company, to CMS Energy Corporation. The sales price $300 million of Senior 

of $2.2 billion involves cash proceeds of $1.9 billion and the Unsecured Notes. The 

assumption of existing PEPL debt of approximately $300 mil- proceeds, along with 

lion. The sale is expected to close in early 1999 and will result $200 million in commer

in an after-tax gain of approximately $700 million. The sale cial paper, were used to 

is contingent upon receipt of clearances under the Hart-Scott- redeem $500 million of 

Rodino Act. First and Refunding 

Financing Cash Flows. Duke Energy's consolidated Mortgage Bonds, which 

capital structure at December 31, 1998, including short-term were called on December 

debt, was 43.3% debt, 5.5% trust preferred securities, 31, 1998. In January 

2.0% preferred stock and 49.2% common equity. Fixed 1999, Duke Energy 

charges coverage, calculated using the Securities and issued $200 million of 

Exchange Commission method, was 4.7 times, 4.1 times 1996 1997 1998 Senior Notes.  

and 4.3 times for 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively. Trt efr Under its commercial 

Duke Energy plans to continue to significantly grow Securities paper facilities, Duke 

several of its business segments: Field Services, Trading Preferred Stock Energy had the ability to 

and Marketing, Global Asset Development and Other Energy Common Equity borrow up to $2.8 billion 

Services. These growth opportunities, along with dividends, and $2.5 billion as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, respec

debt repayments and operating and investing requirements, tively. At December 31, 1998, the commercial paper facilities 

are expected to be funded by cash from operations, external consisted of $1.25 billion for Duke Energy and $1.55 billion 

debt financing and the proceeds from the sale of the for Duke Capital. At December 31, 1997, the commercial 

Midwest Pipelines, paper facilities consisted of $1.25 billion each for Duke



Energy and Duke Capital. At December 31, 1998 and 1997, 1998 and 1997. In the event of a significant change in interest 
Duke Energy's various bank credit facilities totaled appro- rates, management would likely take actions to manage its 
ximately $2.9 billion and $2.7 billion, respectively. At exposure to the change. However, due to the uncertainty of .December 31, 1998, $1.9 billion was outstanding under the the specific actions that would be taken and their possible 
commercial paper facilities and $100 million was outstanding effects, the sensitivity analysis assumes no changes in Duke 
under the bank credit facilities. Energy's financial structure.  

As of December 31, 1998, Duke Energy and its sub- Commodity Price Risk. Duke Energy, substantially 
sidiaries, excluding PEPL, had authority to issue up to through its subsidiaries, is exposed to the impact of market 
$1.2 billion aggregate principal amount of debt and other fluctuations in the price and transportation costs of natural 
securities under shelf registrations filed with the Securities gas, electricity and petroleum products marketed. Duke 
and Exchange Commission. Such securities may be issued Energy employs established policies and procedures to 
as First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds, Senior Notes, manage its risks associated with these market fluctuations 
Subordinated Notes or Preferred Stock. On January 27, 1999, using various commodity derivatives, including futures, swaps 
Duke Capital filed a $1 billion shelf registration statement, and options. (See Notes 1 and 7 to the Consolidated Financial 
which was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Statements.) The risk in the commodity trading portfolio is 
Commission on February 10, 1999. measured on a daily basis utilizing a Value-at-Risk model to 

Duke Energy used authorized but unissued shares of its determine the maximum potential one-day favorable or unfa
common stock to meet 1998 employee benefit plan contribu- vorable Daily Earnings at Risk (DER). The DER is monitored 
tion requirements instead of purchasing shares on the open in comparison to established thresholds. Other measures are 
market. This practice is expected to be continued in 1999. also utilized to monitor the risk in the commodity trading 

portfolio on a monthly and annual basis.  
Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures The DER computations are based on a historical simula
About Market Risk tion, which utilizes price movements over a specified period 

Risk Policies. Duke Energy is exposed to market risks to simulate forward price curves in the energy markets to 
associated with commodity prices, interest rates, equity estimate the favorable or unfavorable impact of one-day's 
prices and foreign exchange rates. Comprehensive risk price movement on the existing portfolio. The historical 
management policies have been established by the Corporate simulation emphasizes the most recent market activity, which 
Risk Management Committee (CRMC) to monitor and is considered the most relevant predictor of future market .mkontrol these market risks. The CRMC is chaired by the movements for natural gas, electricity and petroleum products.  
Chief Financial Officer and primarily comprises senior The DER computations utilize several key assumptions, 
executives. The CRMC has responsibility for overseeing including a 95% confidence level for the resultant price 
all corporate energy risk management and recommending movement and the holding period specified for the calcula
energy financial exposure limits, as well as responsibility tion. Duke Energy's calculation includes commodity deriva
for oversight of interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and tive instruments and forwards held for trading purposes and 
credit risk. excludes the effects of embedded physical options in the trad

Interest Rate Risk. Duke Energy is exposed to risk ing portfolio. At December 31, 1998 and 1997, the estimated 
resulting from changes in interest rates as a result of its potential one-day favorable or unfavorable impact on earn
issuance of variable-rate debt, fixed-rate debt and trust ings before income taxes related to commodity instruments 
preferred securities, commercial paper and auction market held for trading purposes was approximately $10 million and 
preferred stock, as well as fixed-to-floating interest rate $2 million, respectively. During 1998, the average estimated 
swaps and interest rate lock agreements. Duke Energy potential one-day favorable or unfavorable impact on earn
manages its interest rate exposure by limiting its variable-rate ings before income taxes related to commodity instruments 
and fixed-rate exposure to a certain percentage of total capi- held for trading purposes was approximately $5 million. The 
talization, as set by policy, and by monitoring the effects of increase in 1998 compared to 1997 is a result of an increase 
market changes in interest rates. (See Notes 1, 7, 10, 12 and in the authorized energy financial exposure limit, which was 
13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.) approved by the CRMC. Changes in markets inconsistent 

If market interest rates average I % higher (lower) in 1999 with historical trends could cause actual results to exceed 
than in 1998, interest expense would increase (decrease), and predicted limits. Market risks associated with commodity 
earnings before income taxes would decrease (increase) by derivatives held for purposes other than trading were not 
approximately $23 million. Comparatively, had interest rates material at December 31, 1998 and 1997.  
averaged 1% higher (lower) in 1998 than in 1997, interest Subsidiaries of Duke Energy are also exposed to market 
expense would have increased (decreased), and earnings fluctuations in the prices of NGLs related to their ongoing 
before income taxes would have decreased (increased) by gathering and processing operating activities. Duke Energy 
ppoximately $24 million. These amounts were determined closely monitors the risks associated with NGL price changes 

by considering the impact of the hypothetical interest rates on its future operations, and where appropriate, uses crude oil 
on the variable-rate securities outstanding as of December 3 e1, and natural gas commodity instruments to hedge NGL prices.  
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If NGL prices averaged one cent per gallon less in 1998, Operations continues to strive to maintain low costs and 

earnings before income taxes would have decreased by competitive rates for its customers and to provide high 

approximately $8 million. Duke Energy generally does not quality customer service. Duke Energy does not expect a 

maintain a material inventory of NGLs or actively trade com- negative impact as a result of such agreements on its results 

modity derivatives related to NGLs. of operations or financial position. (See further discussion in 

Equity Price Risk. Duke Energy maintains trust funds, the Electric Competition section below.) 

as required by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, to fund The Northeast Pipelines are an essential part of Natural 

certain costs of nuclear decommissioning. (See Note 11 to Gas Transmission's strategy to advance projects that provide 

the Consolidated Financial Statements.) As of December 31, expanded services to meet the specific needs of customers.  

1998 and 1997, these funds were invested primarily in The proposed sale of the Midwest Pipelines allows Natural 

domestic and international equity securities, fixed-rate, Gas Transmission to focus on regions, such as the north

fixed-income securities and cash and cash equivalents. eastern U.S., with increasing demand for gas. Northeast 

Management believes that its exposure to fluctuations pipeline projects will provide transportation from new 

in equity prices or interest rates will not affect consolidated supplies in both eastern and western Canada in addition to 

results of operations. See further discussion in the Current traditional domestic supply basins.  

Issues, Nuclear Decommissioning Costs section of Duke Energy plans to significantly grow several of its 

Management's Discussion and Analysis. business segments: Field Services, Trading and Marketing, 

Foreign Operations Risk. Duke Energy is exposed to Global Asset Development and Other Energy Services.  

foreign currency risk, sovereign risk and other foreign opera- Deregulation of energy markets in the United States and 

tions risks arising from equity investments in international abroad is providing 

affiliates and businesses owned and operated in foreign substantial opportunities for 

countries. At December 31, 1998 Duke Energy had more these segments to capitalize 

than $100 million invested in Australia. Investments in other on their broad capabilities.  

foreign countries were not material at December 31, 1998 Field Services will expand 

or 1997. In order to mitigate risks associated with foreign 160 through the purchase of the 

currency fluctuations, the majority of contracts entered natural gas gathering, process

into by Duke Energy or its affiliates are denominated in or ing, fractionation and NGL 

indexed to the U.S. dollar or may be hedged through issuance pipeline business from 

of debt denominated in the foreign currency. Duke Energy 120 Union Pacific Resources 

also uses foreign currency swaps, where appropriate, to along with its natural gas 

manage its risk related to foreign currency fluctuations. and NGL marketing activities.  

Other exposures to foreign currency risk, sovereign risk or 80 Global Asset Development 

other foreign operations risk are periodically reviewed by expects to continue strong 

management and were not material to consolidated results growth through acquisitions, 

of operations or financial position during 1998 or 1997. construction of greenfield 
projects and expansion of 

Current Issues existing facilities as value

Operations Outlook. Duke Energy's business strategy added opportunities present 

is to develop regional centers of energy assets involving gas, 0 themselves. Duke Energy's 

electric generation and marketing in the United States and inter- combination of assets and 

nationally. In the United States, Duke Energy is aggressively capabilities that span the energy value chain have contributed 

investing in new pipelines and power plants in the Northeast, to Global Asset Development's successful combination of 

Gulf Coast and West. Internationally, Duke Energy is focusing natural gas pipeline capabilities, power generation, energy 

on opportunities in Asia Pacific, South America and Europe. marketing and other services. This demonstrated domestic 

Electric Operations is expected to grow moderately, con- strategy is now being deployed internationally in the Asia 

sistent with historical trends. Expansion will primarily result Pacific area and in South America. Other Energy Services 

from continued economic growth in its service territory. In seeks to grow with types of services including comprehensive 

1997, as a result of the merger with PanEnergy, Duke Energy energy efficiencies in food, textile and government facilities.  

signed various agreements with the NCUC, PSCSC and the The strong real estate market in the Southeast continues 

FERC capping base rates to retail and wholesale electric to present substantial growth opportunities for Real Estate 

customers at existing levels through 2000. In addition, Duke Operations. In 1998, Real Estate Operations initiated devel

Energy signed agreements with the other joint owners of the opment of significant office and industrial facilities in each 

Catawba Nuclear Station providing for a cap on certain rates of its established markets to capitalize on market conditions.  

charged under interconnection agreements. In response to While the proposed sale of the Midwest Pipelines wil 

these rate agreements and competitive pressures, Electric provide an opportunity to deploy capital into areas of higher 
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growth, Duke Energy expects to experience some near-term Electric industry restructuring is being addressed in all 
earnings pressure as a result of the sale. Duke Energy believes 50 states and in the District of Columbia which is resulting 
that its strategy of developing regional centers of energy in changes in the industry. These changes will likely impact . assets will return long-term growth and increase shareholder all entities owning electric generating assets. The NCUC and 

alue. Duke Energy continues to target long-term annual the PSCSC are studying the merits of restructuring the elec
growth in earnings per share of eight to ten percent. tric utility industry in the Carolinas. Although the North 

Electric Competition. Wholesale Competition. The Energy Carolina and South Carolina legislatures have not made 
Policy Act of 1992 (EPACT) and the FERC's subsequent rule- a final decision on this matter, initiatives are underway 
making activities have established the regulatory framework to determine whether it is in the best interests of all parties 
to open the wholesale energy market to competition. EPACT to deregulate the electric industry.  
amended provisions of the Public Utility Holding Company In May 1997, North Carolina passed a bill that established 
Act of 1935 and the Federal Power Act to remove certain bar- a study commission to examine whether competition should 
riers to a competitive wholesale market. EPACT permits utili- be implemented in the state. The commission's report to the 
ties to participate in the development of independent electric state General Assembly is expected to be completed by early 
generating plants for sales to wholesale customers, and also 2000. Duke Energy is a member of the study commission 
permits the FERC to order transmission access for third parties along with other utility representatives, legislators, customers 
to transmission facilities owned by another entity. It does not, and a member of an environmental group.  
however, permit the FERC to issue an order requiring trans- On February 3, 1998, the PSCSC presented its report to 
mission access to retail customers. The FERC, responsible in the South Carolina House of Representatives on how to 
large measure for implementation of the EPACT, has moved deregulate the electric industry. The report leaves the final 
vigorously to implement its mandate, interpreting the statute decisions to the General Assembly of South Carolina. The 
broadly and issuing orders for third-party transmission service Public Utility Subcommittee of the House of Representatives 
and a number of rules of general applicability, including Committee on Labor, Commerce and Industry has been 
Orders 888 and 889. conducting hearings regarding electric industry restructuring 

Open-access transmission for wholesale customers as during the past year.  
defined by the FERC's final rules provides energy suppliers, Late in 1998, a task force was formed by the South 
including Duke Energy, with opportunities to sell and deliver Carolina Senate to examine issues related to deregulation of 
capacity and energy at market-based prices. Duke Energy the state's electric utility business. This task force will pre
and several of its non-regulated subsidiaries were granted pare a report for review, discussion and possible legislative 
authority by the FERC to act as power marketers in 1995. action by the Senate Judiciary Committee and the General 
In 1998, an additional non-regulated subsidiary was granted Assembly as a whole.  
power marketer authority. Electric Operations obtained from Currently, the electric utility industry is predominantly 
the FERC open-access rule the rights to sell capacity and regulated on a basis designed to recover the cost of providing 
energy at market-based rates from its own assets. Open electric power to customers. If cost-based regulation were to 
access provides another supply option through which Electric be discontinued in the industry for any reason, including 
Operations can purchase at attractive rates a portion of competitive pressure on the cost-based prices of electricity, 
capacity and energy requirements resulting in lower overall profits could be reduced and electric utilities might be 
costs to customers. Open access also provides Electric required to reduce their asset balances to reflect a market 
Operations' existing wholesale customers with competitive basis less than cost. Discontinuance of cost-based regulation 
opportunities to seek other suppliers for their capacity and would also require affected utilities to write off their associ
energy requirements. ated regulatory assets. Duke Energy's regulatory assets are 

Wholesale sales represented approximately 11.3% of total included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The portion 
gigawatt-hour sales for Electric Operations in 1998. Supple- of these regulatory assets related to Electric Operations is 
mental power sales to the other joint owners of Catawba approximately $1.5 billion, including primarily purchased 
Nuclear Station comprised the majority of wholesale sales. capacity costs, debt expense and deferred taxes related to 
Such supplemental power sales will continue to decline in regulatory assets. Currently, Duke Energy is recovering sub
1999 as the joint owners retain more capacity and energy stantially all of these regulatory assets through its wholesale 
from Catawba Nuclear Station or purchase from a third party. and retail electric rates and would attempt to continue to 
(See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.) recover these assets during a transition to competition. In 

Retail Competition. Currently, Electric Operations addition, Duke Energy would seek to recover the costs of 
operates as a vertically integrated, investor-owned utility its electric generating facilities in excess of the market price 
with exclusive rights to supply electricity in a franchised of power at the time of transition.  . service territory-a 20,000-square-mile service territory Duke Energy supports a properly managed and orderly 
in the Carolinas. In its retail business, the NCUC and the transition to competitive generation and retail services in the 
PSCSC regulate Electric Operations' service and rates. electric industry. However, transforming the current regulated 
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industry into efficient, competitive generation and retail not subject to radioactive contamination. Duke Energy 

electric markets is a complex undertaking, which will require a contributes to an external decommissioning trust fund and 

carefully considered transition to a restructured electric indus- maintains an internal reserve to fund these costs.  

try. The key to effective retail competition is fairness among The balance of the external funds as of December 31, 1998 

customers, service providers and investors. Duke Energy and 1997, was $580 million and $471 million, respectively 

intends to work with customers, legislators and regulators to The balance of the internal reserve as of December 31, 1998 

address all the important issues. Management cannot predict and 1997, was $217 million and $211 million, respectively, 

the potential impact, if any, of these competitive forces on and is reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as 

future consolidated results of operations or financial position. Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization.  

Natural Gas Competition. Wholesale Competition. Both the NCUC and the PSCSC have granted Duke 

On July 29, 1998, the FERC issued a Notice of Proposed Energy recovery of estimated decommissioning costs through 

Rulemaking (NOPR) on short-term natural gas transportation retail rates over the expected remaining service periods of 

services, which proposed an integrated package of revisions its nuclear plants. Management believes that funding of the 

to its regulations governing interstate natural gas pipelines. decommissioning costs will not have a material adverse effect 

"Short term" has been defined in the NOPR as all transactions on consolidated results of operations or financial position.  

of less than one year. Under the proposed approach, cost- (See Note I1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

based regulation would be eliminated for short-term trans- As of December 31, 1998 and 1997, the external decom

portation and replaced by regulatory policies intended to missioning trust fund was invested primarily in domestic and 

maximize competition in the short-term transportation market, international equity securities, fixed-rate, fixed-income securi

mitigate the ability of companies to exercise residual monop- ties and cash and cash equivalents. Maintaining a portfolio 

oly power and provide opportunities for greater flexibility that includes long-term equity investments maximizes the 

providing pipeline services. The proposed changes include returns to be utilized to fund nuclear decommissioning, which 

initiatives to revise pipeline scheduling procedures, receipt in the long-term will better correlate to inflationary increases 

and delivery point policies and penalty policies, and require in decommissioning costs. However, the equity securities 

pipelines to auction short-term capacity. Other proposed included in Duke Energy's portfolio are exposed to price 

changes would improve the FERC's reporting requirements, fluctuations in equity markets, and the fixed-rate, fixed

permit pipelines to negotiate rates and terms of services, income securities are exposed to changes in interest rates.  

and revise certain rate and certificate policies that affect Duke Energy actively monitors its portfolio by bench

competition. marking the performance of its investments against certain 

In conjunction with the NOPR, the FERC also issued a indexes and by maintaining, and periodically reviewing 

Notice of Inquiry (NOI) on its pricing policies in the existing established target allocation percentages of the assets in its 

long-term market and pricing policies for new capacity. trusts. Because the accounting for nuclear decommissioning 

The FERC seeks comments on whether its policies are biased recognizes that costs are recovered through the Electric 

toward either short-term or long-term service, provide accu- Operations segment's rates, fluctuations in equity prices or 

rate price signals and the right incentives for pipelines to interest rates do not affect consolidated results of operations.  

provide optimal transportation services and construct facilities Environmental. Duke Energy is subject to international, 

that meet future demand and do not result in over building federal, state and local regulations regarding air and water 

and excess capacity. Comments on the NOPR and NOI are quality, hazardous and solid waste disposal and other 

due in April, 1999. environmental matters.  

Because these notices are at a very early stage and ultimate Manufactured Gas Plants and Superfund Sites. Duke 

resolution is unknown, management cannot estimate the Energy was an operator of manufactured gas plants until 

effects of these matters on future consolidated results of the early 1950s and has entered into a cooperative effort with 

operations or financial position. the State of North Carolina and other owners of certain for

Retail Competition. Duke Energy currently does not mer manufactured gas plant sites to investigate and, where 

provide retail natural gas service, but changes in regulation necessary, remediate these contaminated sites. The State of 

to allow retail competition could affect Duke Energy's South Carolina has expressed interest in entering into a simi

natural gas transportation contracts with local distribution la arrangement. Duke Energy is considered by regulators 

companies. Natural gas retail deregulation is in the very early to be a potentially responsible party and may be subject to 

stages of development and management cannot estimate future liability at seven federal Superfund sites and three 

the effects of this matter on future consolidated results of state Superfund sites. While the cost of remediation of the 

operations or financial position. remaining sites may be substantial, Duke Energy will share 
Nuclear Decommissioning Costs. Duke Energy's in any liability associated with remediation of contamination 

estimated site-specific nuclear decommissioning costs total at such sites with other potentially responsible parties.  

approximately $1.3 billion stated in 1994 dollars based on Management believes that resolution of these matters will 

decommissioning studies completed in 1994. This estimate not have a material adverse effect on consolidated results 

includes the cost of decommissioning plant components of operations or financial position.



PCB (Polychlorinated Biphenyl) Assessment and Clean-up Energy's current strategy includes using low-sulfur coal, pur
Programs. TETCO, a wholly owned subsidiary of Duke chasing sulfur dioxide emission allowances and installing low
Energy, is currently conducting PCB assessment and clean-up nitrogen oxide burners and emission monitoring equipment.  . programs at certain of its compressor station sites under con- Construction activities needed to comply with Phase 11 require
itions stipulated by a U.S. Consent Decree. The programs ments are substantially complete. Additional annual operating 

include on- and off-site assessment, installation of on-site expenses of approximately $25 million for low-sulfur coal 
source control equipment and groundwater monitoring wells, premiums, emission allowance purchases and other compliance 
and on- and off-site clean-up work. TETCO completed the activities will occur after 2000. This strategy is contingent 
soil clean-up programs during 1998, subject to regulatory upon developments in future markets for emission allowances, 
approval. Groundwater monitoring activities will continue low-sulfur coal, future regulatory and legislative actions and 
at several sites beyond 1999. advances in clean air technologies.  

In 1987, the Commonwealth of Kentucky instituted a In October 1998, the EPA issued a final ruling on regional 
suit in state court against TETCO, alleging improper disposal ozone control which requires revised State Implementation 
of PCBs at TETCO's three compressor station sites in Plans for 22 eastern states and the District of Columbia. This 
Kentucky. This suit is still pending. In 1996, TETCO com- EPA ruling is being challenged in court by various states, 
pleted clean-up of these sites under the U.S. Consent Decree. industry and other interests, including the states of North 

Duke Energy has also identified environmental contami- Carolina and South Carolina and Duke Energy. Depending 
nation at certain sites on the PEPL and Trunkline systems on the resolution of this matter, costs to Duke Energy may 
and has undertaken clean-up programs at these sites. The range from approximately $100 million to $500 million.  
contamination resulted from the past use of lubricants In December 1997, the United Nations held negotiations 
containing PCBs and the prior use of wastewater collection in Kyoto, Japan to determine how to achieve worldwide 
facilities and other on-site disposal areas. Soil and sediment stabilization of greenhouse gas emissions, including carbon 
testing, to date, has detected no significant off-site con- dioxide emissions from fossil-fired generating facilities and 
tamination. Duke Energy has communicated with the methane from natural gas operations, Further neeotiations 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and appropriate in November 1998 in Buenos Aires, Argentina, resulted in 
state regulatory agencies on these matters. Under the terms a work plan to complete the operational details of the Kyoto 
of the agreement with CMS Energy Corporation, Duke agreement by late 2000. Duke Energy is taking steps to . Energy is obligated to complete the PEPL and Trunkline prepare for possible action on greenhouse gas emissions 
clean-up programs at certain agreed-upon sites. These and has completed a greenhouse gas emissions inventory.  
clean-up programs are expected to continue until 2001. Implications of greenhouse gas emissions are being inte

At December 31, 1998 and 1997, remaining estimated grated into planning processes. Because this matter is in 
clean-up costs on the TETCO, PEPL and Trunkline systems the early stages of discussion, management cannot estimate 
were accrued and included in the Consolidated Balance the effects on future consolidated results of operations or 
Sheets as Environmental Clean-up Liabilities. These cost esti- financial position.  
mates represent gross clean-up costs expected to be incurred, Litigation and Contingencies. For information concern
have not been discounted or reduced by customer recoveries ing litigation and other commitments and contingencies, see 
and generally do not include fines, penalties or third-party Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  
claims. Costs expected to be recovered from customers have Year 2000 Readiness Program. State of Readiness.  
been deferred and are included in the Consolidated Balance Duke Energy initiated its Year 2000 Readiness Program in 
Sheets as Environmental Clean-up Costs. 1996 and began a formal review of computer-based systems 

The federal and state clean-up programs are not expected to and devices that are used in its business operations both 
interrupt or diminish Duke Energy's ability to deliver natural domestically and internationally. These systems and devices 
gas to customers. Based on Duke Energy's experience to date include customer information, financial, materials manage
and costs incurred for clean-up operations, management ment and personnel systems; as well as components of natu
believes the resolution of matters relating to the environmental ral gas production, gathering, processing and transmission, 
issues discussed above will not have a material adverse effect and electric generation, distribution and transmission.  
on consolidated results of operations or financial position. Duke Energy is using a three-phase approach to address 

Air Quality Control. The Clean Air Act Amendments of year 2000 issues: 1) inventory and preliminary assessment of 
1990 require a two-phase reduction by electric utilities in aggre- computer systems, equipment and devices; 2) detailed assess
gate annual emissions of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide by ment and remediation planning; and 3) conversion, testing 
2000. Duke Energy currently meets all requirements of Phase I. and contingency planning. Duke Energy is employing a 
Duke Energy supports the national objective of protecting air combination of systems repair and planned systems replace
quality in the most cost-effective manner, and has already ment activities to achieve year 2000 readiness for its business 
reduced emissions by operating plants efficiently, using nuclear and process control systems, equipment and devices. Duke 
and hydroelectric generation and implementing various compli- Energy has substantially completed the first two phases 
ance strategies. To meet Phase H requirements by 2000, Duke throughout its business operations, and is in various stages 

met5 r usatal opee diinlana prtn



of the third and final phase. Duke Energy's goal is to have its bility is remote, if Duke Energy's internal systems, or the 
critical systems, equipment and devices year 2000 ready by internal systems of external parties, fail to achieve year 2000 
mid-1999. Business acquisitions routinely involve an analysis readiness in a timely manner, Duke Energy's business, con
of year 2000 readiness and are incorporated into the overall solidated results of operations or financial condition could 
program as necessary. be adversely affected.  

Duke Energy is actively evaluating and tracking year New Accounting Standard. In September 1998, State
2000 readiness of external third parties with which it has a ment of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, 
material relationship. Such third parties include vendors, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
customers, U.S. governmental agencies, foreign governments Activities," was issued. Duke Energy is required to adopt this 
and agencies, and other business associates. While the year standard by January 1, 2000. SFAS No. 133 requires that all 
2000 readiness of third parties cannot be controlled, Duke derivatives be recognized as either assets or liabilities and 
Energy is attempting to assess the readiness of third parties measured at fair value, and it defines the accounting for 
and any potential implications to its operations. Alternate changes in the fair value of the derivatives depending on 
suppliers of critical products, goods and services are being the intended use of the derviative. Duke Energy is currently 
identified, where necessary. reviewing the expected impact of SFAS No. 133 on 

Costs. Management believes it is devoting the resources consolidated results of operations and financial position.  
necessary to achieve year 2000 readiness in a timely manner. Subsequent Event. On February 18, 1999, Duke Energy 
Current estimates for total costs of the program, including inter- announced its intent to make a concurrent cash tender offer in 
nal labor as well as incremental costs such as consulting and Chilean pesos in Chile and the United States for 51% of the 
contract costs, are approximately $65 million, of which approx- outstanding shares of Endesa-Chile. The estimated total cash 
imately $41 million had been incurred as of December 31, outlay is approximately $2.1 billion based on current 
1998. These costs exclude replacement systems that, in addition exchange rates. The offer will be contingent upon, among 
to being year 2000 ready, provide significantly enhanced other things, certain Endesa-Chile shareholder approvals. If 
capabilities which will benefit operations in future periods. all approvals are obtained, the transactions are expected to be 

Risks. Management believes it has an effective program in completed during the second quarter of 1999. Endesa-Chile 
place to manage the risks associated with the year 2000 issue controls and operates 10,247 megawatts of generating 
in a timely manner. Nevertheless, since it is not possible to capacity in Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Colombia and Peru.  
anticipate all future outcomes, especially when third parties Forward-Looking Statements. From time to time, Duke 
are involved, there could be circumstances in which Duke Energy may make statements regarding its assumptions, 
Energy would temporarily be unable to deliver energy or projections, expectations, intentions or beliefs about future 
energy services to its customers. Management believes that events. These statements are intended as "forward-looking 
the most reasonably likely worst case scenario would be statements" under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act 
small, localized interruptions of service, which likely would of 1995. Duke Energy cautions that assumptions, projections, 
be rapidly restored. In addition, there could be a temporary expectations, intentions or beliefs about future events may and 
reduction in energy needs of customers due to their own year often do vary from actual results and the differences between 

2000 problems. In the event that such a scenario occurs, it is assumptions, projections, expectations, intentions or beliefs 
not expected to have a material adverse impact on consolidated and actual results can be material. Accordingly, there can be 
results of operations or financial position. no assurance that actual results will not differ materially from 

Contingency Plans. Year 2000 contingency planning those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements.  
is currently underway to assure continuity of business Factors that could cause actual achievements and events to 
operations for all periods during which year 2000 impacts differ materially from those expressed or implied in such for
may occur. Duke Energy is participating in multiple industry ward-looking statements include state and federal legislative 
efforts to assure effective year 2000 contingency plans, and and regulatory initiatives that affect cost and investment 
intends to complete its own year 2000 contingency plans recovery, have an impact on rate structures and affect the 
by mid-1999. These plans address various year 2000 risk speed and degree to which competition enters the electric and 

scenarios that cross departmental, business unit and industry natural gas industries; industrial, commercial and residential 

lines as well as specific risks from various internal and growth in the service territories of Duke Energy and its sub

external sources, including supplier readiness. sidiaries; the weather and other natural phenomena; the timing 

Based on assessments completed to date and compliance and extent of changes in commodity prices and interest rates; 

plans in process, management believes that year 2000 issues, changes in environmental and other laws and regulations to 

including the cost of making critical systems, equipment and which Duke Energy and its subsidiaries are subject or other 
devices ready, will not have a material adverse effect on external factors over which Duke Energy has no control; the 

Duke Energy's business operation or consolidated results of results of financing efforts; growth in opportunities for Duke 
operations or financial position. Nevertheless, achieving year Energy's business units; achievement of year 2000 readiness; 
2000 readiness is subject to risks and uncertainties, including and the effect of accounting policies issued periodically by 
those described above. While management believes the possi- accounting standard-setting bodies.  
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Selected Financial Data 

In millions, except per share amounts 1998 1997a 1996a 1995a 1994a . ncome Statement 
perating revenues $ 17,610 $ 16,309 $ 12,302 $ 9,694 $ 9,115 

Operating expenses 15,177 14,339 10,143 7,626 7,309 

Operating income 2,433 1,970 2,159 2,068 1,806 
Other income and expenses 214 138 135 122 101 

Earnings before interest and taxes 2,647 2,108 2,294 2,190 1,907 
Interest expense 514 472 499 508 485 
Minority interests 96 23 6 -

Earnings before income taxes 2,037 1,613 1,789 1,682 1,422 
Income taxes 777 639 698 664 558 

Income before extraordinary item 1,260 974 1,091 1,018 864 
Extraordinary loss, net of tax (8) - (17) -

Net income 1,252 974 1,074 1,018 864 
Dividends and premiums on redemptions of 

preferred and preference stock 21 72 44 49 50 

Earnings available for common stockholders $ 1,231 $ 902 $ 1,030 $ 969 $ 814 

Common Stock Data 
Shares of common stock outstanding 

Year-end 363 360 359 362 361 
Weighted average 361 360 361 361 360 

Earnings per share (before extraordinary item) 
Basic $ 3.43 $ 2.51 $ 2.90 $ 2.68 $ 2.26 
Dilutive $ 3.42 $ 2.50 $ 2.88 $ 2.67 $ 2.25 

Earnings per share 
Basic $ 3.41 $ 2.51 $ 2.85 $ 2.68 $ 2.26 
Dilutive $ 3.40 $ 2.50 $ 2.83 $ 2.67 $ 2.25 

Dividends per share $ 2.20 $ 1.90 $ 1.57 $ 1.50 $ 1.44 

Balance Sheet 
Total assets $ 26,806 $ 24,029 $ 22,366 $ 20,868 $ 20,254 
Long-term debt $ 6,272 $ 6,530 $ 5,485 $ 5,803 $ 5,931 
Preferred stock with sinking fund requirements $ 124 $ 149 $ 234 $ 234 $ 280 

Common Stock Data by Quarter 

1998 1997 
Dividends Stock Price Range Dividends Stock Price Range 
Per Share High Low Per Sharea High Low 

First Quarter $ 0.55 $ 60%/ $ 53Y6 $ 0.40 $48 $ 43% 
Second Quarter 1.10 62%A6  55% 0.40 48 42% 
Third Quarter - 66Y%6 57%6 0.55 51Y 47%Ys 
Fourth Quarter 0.55 70'%6 60%6 0.55 56I6 45% 
a Financial information reflects accounting for the 1997 merger with PanEnergy Corp as a pooling of interests. As a result, the financial information 

gives effect to the merger as if it had occurred January 1. 1994.  
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

Duke Energy Corporation Years Ended December 31, 

(In millions, except per share amounts) 1998 1997 1996 

Operating Revenues 
Sales, uailng and marketing of natural gas 

and petroleum products (Notes 1 and 4) $ 7,854 $ 8,151 $ 5,848 

Transportation and storage of natural gas (Notes I and 4) 1,450 1,504 1,523 

Generation, transmission and distribution of electricity (Notes 1 and 4) 4,586 4,334 4,436 

Trading and marketing of electricity (Notes I and 4) 2,788 1,665 78 

Other (Note 8) 932 655 417 

Total operating revenues 17,610 16,309 12,302 

Operating Expenses 
Natural gas and petroleum products purchased (Note 1) 7,497 7,705 5,414 

Fuel used in electric generation (Notes 1 and 11) 767 743 758 

Net interchange and purchased power (Notes 1, 4 and 5) 2,916 1,960 457 

Other operation and maintenance (Notes 4, 11 and 14) 2,738 2,721 2,383 

Depreciation and amortization (Notes 1 and 5) 909 841 789 

Property and other taxes 350 369 342 

Total operating expenses 15,177 14,339 10,143 

Operating Income 2,433 1,970 2,159 

Other Income and Expenses 
Deferred returns and allowance for funds used 

during construction (Note 1) 88 109 105 

Other, net 126 29 30 

Total other income and expenses 214 138 135 

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes 2,647 2,108 2,294 

Interest Expense (Notes 7 and 10) 514 472 499 

Minority Interests (Notes 2 and 12) 96 23 6 

Earnings Before Income Taxes 2,037 1,613 1,789 

Income Taxes (Notes 1 and 6) 777 639 698 

Income Before Extraordinary Item 1,260 974 1,091 
Extraordinary Loss, net of tax (8) - (17) 

Net Income 1,252 974 1,074 

Dividends and Premiums on Redemptions of 
Preferred and Preference Stock (Note 13) 21 72 44 

Earnings Available for Common Stockholders $ 1,231 $ 902 $ 1,030 

Common Stock Data (Note 1) 
Weighted average shares outstanding 361 360 361 

Earnings per share (before extraordinary item) 

Basic $ 3.43 $ 2.51 $ 2.90 

Dilutive $ 3.42 $ 2.50 $ 2.88 

Earnings per share 
Basic $ 3.41 $ 2.51 $ 2.85 

Dilutive $ 3.40 $ 2.50 $ 2.83 

Dividends per share $ 2.20 $ 1.90 $ 1.57 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

* Duke Energy Corporation Years Ended December 31, 
(In millions) 1998 1997 1996 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Net Income $ 1,252 $ 974 $ 1.074 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 1,055 983 965 
Deferred income taxes (35) 99 94 
Purchased capacity levelization 88 56 73 
Transition cost (payments) recoveries, net (28) (36) 91 
(Increase) decrease in 

Receivables (18) (266) (646) 
Inventory (104) (7) 45 
Other current assets (39) (18) 17 

Increase (decrease) in 
Accounts payable 72 239 577 
Taxes accrued (6) 50 (11) 
Interest accrued (2) (13) (18) 
Other current liabilities 84 15 (10) 

Other, net 12 64 84 

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,331 2,140 2,335 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Capital expenditures (2,159) (1,323) (1,394) 
Investment expenditures (341) (705) (156) 
Decommissioning, retirements and other 24 34 (18) 

Net cash used in investing activities (2,476) (1,994) (1,568) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Proceeds from the issuance of 

Long-term debt 1,357 1,618 363 
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in subordinated 

notes of Duke Energy Corporation or subsidiaries 581 339 
Common stock and stock options 176 15 12 

Payments for the redemption of 
Long-term debt (698) (869) (527) 
Common stock - (25) (159) 
Preferred and preference stock (180) (224) 

Net change in notes payable and commercial paper (350) (290) 159 
Dividends paid (814) (726) (609) 
Other 6 (41) (12) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 78 (203) (773) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (67) (57) (6) 
Cash received from business acquisitions 38 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 109 166 172 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 80 $ 109 $ 166 

Supplemental Disclosures 
Cash paid for interest, net of amount capitalized $ 490 $ 476 $ 493 
Cash paid for income taxes $ 733 $ 470 $ 550 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Duke Energy Corporation December 31, 

(In millions) 1998 1997 

ASSETS 
Current Assets (Note 1) 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) $ 80 $ 109 
Receivables (Note 7) 2,318 2,281 
Inventory 543 440 

Current portion of natural gas transition costs (Note 4) 100 67 
Current portion of purchased capacity costs (Note 5) 99 76 
Unrealized gains on mark to market transactions (Note 7) 1,457 551 
Other (Note 7) 228 161 

Total current assets 4,825 3,685 

Investments and Other Assets 
Investments in affiliates (Notes 8 and 14) 902 686 

Nuclear decommissioning trust funds (Notes 7 and 11) 580 471 

Pre-funded pension costs (Note 17) 332 337 

Goodwill, net (Notes 1, 2 and 6) 495 504 

Notes receivable 244 240 

Unrealized gains on mark to market transactions (Notes I and 7) 396 66 

Other 283 144 

Total investments and other assets 3,232 2,448 

Property, Plant and Equipment (Notes 1, 5, 9, 10, 11 and 14) 
Cost 27,128 25,448 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 10,253 9,712 

Net property, plant and equipment 16,875 15,736 

Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits (Note 1) 
Purchased capacity costs (Note 5) 648 759 

Debt expense 253 253 

Regulatory asset related to income taxes 506 511 

Natural gas transition costs (Note 4) 80 194 

Environmental clean-up costs 87 104 

Other 300 339 

Total regulatory assets and deferred debits 1,874 2,160 

Total Assets $ 26,806 $24,029 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

W Duke Energy Corporation December 31, 

(In millions) 1998 1997 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 1,754 $ 1,670 
Notes payable and commercial paper (Notes 7 and 10) 209 170 
Taxes accrued (Note 1) 119 125 
Interest accrued 109 111 

Current maturities of long-term debt and preferred stock (Notes 10 and 13) 707 77 
Unrealized losses on mark to market transactions (Notes 1 and 7) 1,387 538 

Other (Notes 1 and 14) 642 584 

Total current liabilities 4,927 3,275 

Long-term Debt (Notes 7 and 10) 6,272 6,530 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities (Note 1) 
Deferred income taxes (Note 6) 3,733 3,707 
Investment tax credit (Note 6) 242 257 
Nuclear decommissioning costs externally funded (Notes 7 and 11) 580 471 
Natural gas transition liabilities (Note 4) 4 78 
Environmental clean-up liabilities (Note 14) 148 158 
Unrealized losses on mark to market transactions (Note 7) 362 50 
Other 903 967 . Total deferred credits and other liabilities 5,972 5,688 

Minority Interests (Note 2) 253 168 

Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests in Subordinated 
Notes of Duke Energy Corporation or Subsidiaries (Notes 7 and 12) 919 339 

Preferred and Preference Stock (Notes 7 and 13) 
Preferred and preference stock with sinking fund requirements 104 149 
Preferred and preference stock without sinking fund requirements 209 340 

Total preferred and preference stock 313 489 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 5, 11 and 14) 

Common Stockholders' Equity (Notes 15 and 16) 
Common stock, no par, 500 million shares authorized; 363.0 million and 359.8 

million shares outstanding at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively 4,449 4,284 
Retained earnings 3,701 3,256 

Total common stockholders' equity 8,150 7,540 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $26,806 $24,029 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders' Equity 

Duke Energy Corporation Years Ended December 31, 

(In millions) 1998 1997 1996 

Common Stock 
Balance at beginning of year $ 4,284 $ 4,289 $ 4,297 
Stock repurchased (Note 15) - - (31) 

Dividend reinvestment and employee benefits 165 (9) 23 
Other capital stock transactions, net - 4 

Balance at end of year 4,449 4,284 4,289 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at beginning of year 3,256 3,052 2,716 
Net income 1,252 974 1,074 

Common stock dividends (794) (682) (566) 
Preferred and preference stock dividends and premiums 

on redemptions (Note 13) (21) (72) (44) 

Other capital stock transactions, net 8 (16) (128) 

Balance at end of year 3,701 3,256 3,052 

Total Common Stockholders' Equity $ 8,150 $ 7,540 $ 7,341 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 

.1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies or Net Interchange and Purchased Power. Deferred gains and 
Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements losses related to such instruments are reported in the Con

include the accounts of all of Duke Energy Corporation's solidated Balance Sheets as Current Assets or Liabilities until 
majority-owned subsidiaries after the elimination of signifi- recognized in income. If the commodity derivative is no longer 
cant intercompany transactions and balances. Investments sufficiently correlated to the underlying commodity, or if the 
in other entities that are not controlled by Duke Energy underlying commodity transaction closes earlier than antici
Corporation, but where it has significant influence over pated, the deferred gains or losses are recognized in income.  
operations, are accounted for using the equity method. Derivative Financial Instruments. Duke Energy uses 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity interest rate swaps, accounted for under the accrual method, 
with generally accepted accounting principles requires to manage the interest rate characteristics associated with 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect outstanding debt. Interest rate differentials to be paid or 
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accom- received as interest rates change are accrued and recognzed 
panying notes. Although these estimates are based on man- as an adjustment to interest expense. The amount accrued 
agement's knowledge of current and expected future events, as either a payable to or receivable from counterparties is 
actual results could differ from those estimates. included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Regulatory 

"Duke Energy" is used from time to time herein as a collec- Assets and Deferred Debits.  
tive reference to Duke Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries. Duke Energy also utilizes interest rate lock agreements 

Cash and Cash Equivalents. All liquid investments to hedge interest rate risk associated with new debt issuances.  
with maturities at date of purchase of three months or less Under the deferral method of accounting, gains or losses 
are considered cash equivalents. on such agreements, when settled, are deferred in the 

Inventory. Inventory consists primarily of materials Consolidated Balance Sheets as Long-term Debt and are 
and supplies, gas held for transmission, processing and sales amortized in the Consolidated Statements of Income as 
commitments and coal held for electric generation. Inventory an adjustment to interest expense.  .is recorded at the lower of cost or market, primarily using the Duke Energy enters into foreign currency swap agree
average cost method. ments to manage foreign currency risks associated with 

Commodity Derivatives. Duke Energy, primarily through energy contracts denominated in foreign currencies. These 
its subsidiaries, manages its exposure to risk from existing agreements are accounted for under the mark-to-market 
contractual commitments and provides risk management ser- method. See previous discussion of the mark-to-market 
vices to its customers and suppliers through forward contracts, method in the Commodity Derivatives section.  
futures, over-the-counter swap agreements and options. Goodwill Amortization. Goodwill related to the pur

Commodity derivatives and certain forward contracts chases of Duke/Louis Dreyfus, L.LC. (DILD), Texas Eastern 
utilized for trading purposes are accounted for using the mark- Corporation (TEC) and other natural gas gathering, trans
to-market method. Under this methodology, these instruments mission and processing facilities and engineering consulting 
are adjusted to market value, and the gains and losses are rec- businesses is amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 years, 
ognized in current period income and are included in the 40 years and 15 years, respectively. See Note 2 for a descrip
Consolidated Statements of Income as Natural Gas and tion of the D/LD acquisition. Goodwill recorded as of 
Petroleum Products Purchased or Net Interchange and December 31, 1998 and 1997 related to the 1989 TEC acqui
Purchased Power. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded in sition was $245 million. Accumulated amortization of good
the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Unrealized Gains or will at December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $166 million and 
Losses on Mark to Market Transactions. $124 million, respectively.  

Futures, over-the-counter swap agreements and options are Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and 
also utilized for non-trading purposes to hedge the impact of equipment are stated at original cost. Duke Energy capitalizes 
market fluctuations in the price and transportation costs of nat- all construction-related direct labor and material costs, as 
ural gas, electricity and other energy-related products. In order well as indirect construction costs. Indirect costs include 
to qualify as a hedge, the price movements in the commodity general engineering, taxes and the cost of money. The cost 
derivatives must be highly correlated with the underlying of renewals and betterments that extend the useful life of 
hedged commodity. Under the deferral method of accounting, property, plant and equipment is also capitalized. The cost 
gains and losses related to commodity derivatives which of repairs and replacements is charged to expense as 
qualify as hedges of commodity commitments are recognized incurred. Depreciation is generally computed using the 
in income when the underlying hedged physical transaction straight-line method. The composite weighted-average 
closes and are included in the Consolidated Statements of depreciation rates, excluding nuclear fuel, were 3.82%, 
Income as Natural Gas and Petroleum Products Purchased 3.67% and 3.77% for 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.



When property, plant and equipment maintained by Duke future financial position or results of operations. However, 
Energy's regulated operations are retired, the original cost Duke Energy continues to position itself to effectively meet 
plus the cost of retirement, less salvage, is charged to accu- these challenges by maintaining competitive prices.  
mulated depreciation and amortization. When entire regulated Common Stock Options. The intrinsic value method 
operating units are sold or non-regulated properties are retired of accounting is used for common stock options issued 
or sold, the property and related accumulated depreciation to employees.  
and amortization accounts are reduced, and any gain or loss Revenues. Revenues on sales of electricity and transporta
is recorded in income, unless otherwise required by the tion and storage of natural gas are recognized as service is 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). provided. Revenues on sales of natural gas and petroleum 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The recoverability of products are recognized in the period of delivery. Receivables 
long-lived assets and intangible assets are reviewed whenever on the Consolidated Balance Sheets included $193 million and 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying $232 million as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, 
amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Such evaluation for electric service that has been provided but not yet billed 
is based on various analyses, including undiscounted cash to customers. When rate cases are pending final approval, a 
flow projections. portion of the revenues is subject to possible refund. Reserves 

Unamortized Debt Premium, Discount and Expense. have been established where required for such cases.  
Premiums, discounts and expenses incurred in connection Nuclear Fuel. Amortization of nuclear fuel is included 
with the issuance of presently outstanding long-term debt are in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Fuel Used in 
amortized over the terms of the respective issues. Any call Electric Generation. The amortization is recorded using the 
premiums or unamortized expenses associated with refinanc- units-of-production method.  
ing higher-cost debt obligations used to finance regulated Deferred Returns and Allowance for Funds Used 
assets and operations are amortized consistent with regula- During Construction (AFUDC). Deferred returns represent 
tory treatment of those items. the estimated financing costs associated with funding certain 

Environmental Expenditures. Environmental expendi- regulatory assets. These regulatory assets primarily arose 
tures that relate to an existing condition caused by past from the funding of purchased capacity costs above levels 
operations and do not contribute to current or future revenue collected in rates. Deferred returns are non-cash items and 
generation are expensed. Environmental expenditures relating are primarily recognized as an addition to Purchased Capacity 
to current or future revenues are expensed or capitalized as Costs with an offsetting credit to Other Income and Expenses.  
appropriate. Liabilities are recorded when environmental AFUDC represents the estimated debt and equity costs 
assessments and/or clean-ups are probable and the costs can of capital funds necessary to finance the construction of new 
be reasonably estimated. Certain of these environmental regulated facilities. AFUDC is a non-cash item and is recog
assessments and clean-up costs are expected to be recovered nized as a cost of Property, Plant and Equipment, with offset
from Natural Gas Transmission customers and have, there- ting credits to Other Income and Expenses and to Interest 
fore, been deferred and are included in the Consolidated Expense. After construction is completed, Duke Energy is per
Balance Sheets as Environmental Clean-up Costs. mitted to recover these costs, including a fair return, through 

Cost-Based Regulation. Duke Energy's regulated opera- their inclusion in rate base and in the provision for depreciation.  
tions are subject to the provisions of Statement of Financial Rates used for capitalization of deferred returns and 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, "Accounting for the AFUDC by Duke Energy's regulated operations are calcu
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation." Accordingly, certain lated in compliance with FERC rules.  
assets and liabilities that result from the regulated ratemaking Income Taxes. Duke Energy and its subsidiaries file a 
process are recorded that would not be recorded under gener- consolidated federal income tax return. Deferred income 
ally accepted accounting principles for non-regulated entities. taxes have been provided for temporary differences. Temporary 
These regulatory assets and liabilities are classified in the differences occur when events and transactions recognized 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as Regulatory Assets and for financial reporting result in taxable or tax-deductible 
Deferred Debits and Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities, amounts in different periods. Investment tax credits have been 
respectively. The applicability of SFAS No. 71 is routinely deferred and are being amortized over the estimated useful 
evaluated, and factors such as regulatory changes and the lives of the related properties.  
impact of competition are considered. Discontinuing cost-based Earnings Per Common Share. Basic earnings per share 
regulation or increasing competition might require companies is based on a simple weighted average of common shares 
to reduce their asset balances to reflect a market basis less outstanding. Dilutive earnings per share reflects the potential 
than cost and to write off their associated regulatory assets. dilution that could occur if securities or other agreements to 
Management cannot predict the potential impact, if any, of dis- issue common stock, such as stock options, were exercised 
continuing cost-based regulation or increasing competition on or converted into common stock. The numerator for the 
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calculation of basic and dilutive earnings per share is earn- 1.0444 shares of Duke Energy's common stock. In addition, 
ings available for common stockholders. each outstanding option to purchase PanEnergy common 

stock became an option to purchase common stock of Duke 
Denominator for Earnings per Share Energy, adjusted accordingly. The merger was accounted 
(In millions) 19 9 for as a pooling of interests; therefore, the Consolidated 
Denominator for basic earnings per share Financial Statements and other financial information included 

(weighted average shares outstanding) 361 360 361 in this Annual Report for periods prior to the merger include 
Assumed exercise of dilutive stock options 1 2 2 the combined historical financial results of Duke Power 
Denominator for dilutive earnings per share 362 362 363 and PanEnergy.  

Operating revenues and net income previously reported by 
Extraordinary Items. In January 1998, TEPPCO the separate companies and the combined amounts presented 

Partners, L.P. (TEPPCO), in which a subsidiary of Duke in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income are 
Energy has a 2% general partner interest and a 19.1% limited as follows: 
partner interest, redeemed certain First Mortgage Notes.  
A non-cash extraordinary loss of $8 million, net of income Year Ended December 31. 1996 

tax of $5 million, was recorded related to costs of the early (/n illins) Duke Power PanEnergy Adjustments Combined 

retirement of debt. Earnings per common share for 1998 Operating revenues $4,758 $7,505 $39 $12,302 
Income before 

were reduced by $0.02 as a result of this charge. extraordinary item $ 730 $ 361 - $ 1,091 
On October 1, 1996, Texas Eastern Transmission Net income $ 730 $ 344 - $ 1,074 

Corporation (TETCO), a subsidiary of Duke Energy, 
redeemed $150 million, 10% debentures and $100 million, The adjustment to operating revenues is a reclassification 
I 0% debentures due 2011. TETCO recorded a non-cash of PanEnergy's equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 
extraordinary item of $17 million, net of income tax of from other income to revenues to be consistent with Duke 
$10 million, related to the unamortized discount on this Energy's financial statement presentation.  
early retirement of debt. Earnings per common share for Duke/Louis Dreyfus, L.L.C. On June 17,1997, a wholly 
1996 were reduced $0.05 as a result of this charge. owned subsidiary of Duke Energy acquired the remaining 50% 

Reclassifications. Certain amounts have been reclassified ownership interest in D/LD from affiliates of Louis Dreyfus 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the Corp. for $247 million. D/LD markets electric power, natural 
current presentation. gas and energy-related services to utilities, municipalities and 

New Accounting Standard. In September 1998, SFAS other large energy users in North America. The acquisition was 
No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging accounted for by the purchase method, and the assets and ha
Activities," was issued. Duke Energy is required to adopt this bilities and results of operations of D/LD have been consoli
standard by January 1, 2000. SFAS No. 133 requires that all dated in Duke Energy's financial statements since the date of 
derivatives be recognized as either assets or liabilities and purchase. The purchase price substantially represents goodwill.  
measured at fair value, and it defines the accounting for Duke/UAE L.L.C. During December 1997, a wholly 
changes in the fair value of the derivatives depending on the owned subsidiary of Duke Energy formed a joint venture 
intended use of the derivative. Duke Energy is currently with UAE Ref-Fuel L.L.C. (UAE), a wholly owned subsidiary 
reviewing the expected impact of SFAS No. 133 on consoli- of United American Energy Corp. Duke Energy owns a 65% 
dated results of operations and financial position. interest in the joint venture, with UAE owning a 35% minority 

interest. The joint venture acquired a 50% ownership interest 
2. Business Combinations in American Ref-Fuel Company, a waste-to-energy firm with 

PanEnergy Corp (PanEnergy). On June 18, 1997, operations primarily in New York and New Jersey. Thus.  
Duke Power Company (Duke Power) changed its name to Duke Energy has an indirect 32.5% ownership interest in 
Duke Energy Corporation and completed a stock-for-stock American Ref-Fuel Company and provided $237 million of 
merger with PanEnergy (the merger). PanEnergy was investment and financing to the venture.  
involved in the gathering, processing, transportation and Duke Energy Trading and Marketing, L.L.C. On August 
storage of natural gas; the production of natural gas liquids 1, 1996, a wholly owned subsidiary of Duke Energy formed 
(NGL); and the marketing of natural gas, electricity and other a natural gas and power marketing joint venture with Mobil 
energy-related products. Pursuant to the merger agreement, Corporation affiliates. The marketing company conducts busi
Duke Energy issued 158.3 million shares of its common ness as Duke Energy Trading and Marketing, L.L.C. in the 
stock in exchange for all of the outstanding common stock United States and as Duke Energy Marketing L.P. in Canada.  
of PanEnergy. Accordingly, each share of PanEnergy com- Duke Energy operates the joint venture and owns a 60% inter

fmon stock outstanding was converted into the right to receive est, with Mobil Corporation owning a 40% minority interest.  
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3. Business Segments early 1999, Natural Gas Transmission also provides interstate 

DukeEnegy s a inegrtedenegy nd nery services transportation and storage services in the midwest states.  Duke Energy is an integrated energy and energysrie 

provider with the ability to offer physical delivery and man- See further discussion of the proposed sale of the Midwest 

agement of both electricity and natural gas throughout the Pipelines in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  

United States and abroad. Duke Energy provides these and The interstate natural gas transmission and storage operatio 

other services through seven business segments: are also subject to the rules and regulations of the FERC W 

* Electric Operations Field Services gathers, processes, transports and markets 

* Natural Gas Transmission natural gas and produces and markets NGLs. Field Services 

* Field Services operates gathering systems in ten states that serve major gas
" Trdingand arkeingproducing regions in the Rocky Mountain, Permian Basin, 

* Trading and MarketingMid-Continent and Gulf Coast areas.  
* Global Asset Development Trading and Marketing markets natural gas, electricity 
* Other Energy Services and other energy-related products across North America. Duke 

* Real Estate Operations Energy owns a 60% interest in Trading and Marketing's opera

These segments were defined as a result of Duke Energy tions, with Mobil Corporation owning a 40% minority interest.  

adopting SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Global Asset Development develops, owns and operates 

Enterprise and Related Information." energy-related facilities worldwide. Global Asset Development 

Electric Operations generates, transmits, distributes and conducts its operations primarily through Duke Energy 

sells electric energy in central and western North Carolina Power Services, LLC (Duke Energy Power Services) and 

and the western portion of South Carolina (doing business Duke Energy International, LLC (Duke Energy International).  

as Duke Power or Nantahala Power and Light). These elec- Other Energy Services provides engineering, consulting, 

tric operations are subject to the rules and regulations of the construction and integrated energy solutions worldwide, 

FERC, the North Carolina Utilities Commission (NCUC) and primarily through Duke Engineering & Services, Inc., 

the Public Service Commission of South Carolina (PSCSC). Duke/Fluor Daniel and DukeSolutions, Inc.  

Natural Gas Transmission, through its Northeast Pipelines, Real Estate Operations conducts its business through 

provides interstate transportation and storage of natural gas Crescent Resources, Inc., which develops high quality 

for customers primarily in the Mid-Atlantic and New England commercial and residential real estate projects and manages 

states. Until the expected sale of the Midwest Pipelines in forest holdings in the southeastern United States.  

Business Segment Data 
Depreciation Capital and 

Unaffiliated Intersegment Total and Investment Segment 

(In mllions) Revenues Revenues Revenues EBIT Atortization Expenditures Assets 

Year Ended December 31, 1998 
Electric Operations $ 4,626 $ - $ 4,626 $1,513 $522 $ 586 $13,073 
Natural Gas Transmission 1,426 102 1,528 702 215 290 4,99 
Field Services 2,094 545 2,639 76 80 304 1,893 
Trading and Marketing 8,614 171 8,785 122 11 8 3,233 
Global Asset Development 237 82 319 80 31 1,027 2,061 
Other Energy Services 436 85 521 10 12 41 376 
Real Estate Operations 181 - 181 142 6 217 724 
Other Operations (4) 26 22 2 32 27 848 
Eliminations - (1,011) (1,011) - - - (398) 

Total Consolidated $17,610 $ - $17,610 $2,647 $909 $2,500 $26,806 

Year Ended December 31, 1997 
Electric Operations $ 4,401 $ - $ 4,401 $1,282 $498 $ 743 $12,958 
Natural Gas Transmission 1,468 104 1,572 624 229 247 5.059 
Field Services 2,481 574 3,055 157 71 157 1,855 
Trading and Marketing 7,411 78 7,489 44 7 18 1,857 
Global Asset Development 109 14 123 5 9 348 988 
Other Energy Services 343 33 376 18 6 47 223 
Real Estate Operations 124 - 124 98 4 223 594 
Other Operations (28) - (28) (120) 17 245 941 
Eliminations - (803) (803) - - (446) 

Total Consolidated $16,309 $ - $16,309 $2,108 $841 $2,028 $24029 

Year Ended December 31, 1996 
Electric Operations $ 4,498 $ - $ 4,498 $1,419 $481 $ 610 $12,625 

Natural Gas Transmission 1.470 86 1,556 595 228 194 5,186 

Field Services 2,216 421 2.637 152 59 531 1,709 
Trading and Marketing m3773 41 3.814 58 4 7 1,404 

Global Asset Development 65 7 72 - 7 35 522 

Other Energy Services 183 21 204 20 3 39 130 

Real Estate Operations 114 - 114 88 4 115 446 

Other Operations (17) - (17) (38) 3 19 727 

Eliminations - (576) (576) - w - (383) 

Total Consolidated E3 t2 $ - $12,302 $2.294 $789 $1,550 $22366



Duke Energy's reportable segments are strategic business with amortization of the demand-side management deferral 
units that offer different products and services and are account. The rate adjustment was made, in part, because 
each managed separately. Management evaluates segment cumulative levelized revenues associated with the recovery 
performance based on earnings before interest and taxes of Catawba Nuclear Station purchased capacity costs had 
(EBIT). Segment earnings before interest and taxes, pre- exceeded purchased capacity payments and associated 
sented in the accompanying table, includes intersegment deferred returns.  
sales accounted for at prices representative of unaffiliated Certain of Electric Operations' electric wholesale cus
party transactions. Segment assets are provided as additional tomers, excluding the other Catawba Nuclear Station joint 
information in the accompanying table and are net of inter- owners, initiated proceedings in 1995 before the FERC con
company advances, intercompany notes receivable and cerning rate related matters. Duke Energy and nine of its 
investments in subsidiaries. eleven wholesale customers entered into a settlement in July 

Other Operations primarily includes communication 1996 which reduced the customers' electric rates by approxi
services, water services and certain unallocated corporate costs. mately 9% and renewed their contracts with Duke Energy 

through 2000. Both of the customers that did not enter into 
4. Regulatory Matters the settlement signed agreements and began purchasing elec

Electric Operations. The NCUC and the PSCSC approve tricity from other suppliers in 1997. Early in 1998, Duke 
rates for retail electric sales within their respective states. The Energy reached agreements, which were approved by the 
FERC approves Electric Operations' rates for electric sales to FERC in September 1998, with both of these former cus
wholesale customers. Electric sales to the other joint owners tomers to recover the stranded costs incurred to serve these 
of the Catawba Nuclear Station, which represent a substantial customers. Management believes that these agreements will 
majority of Electric Operations' electric wholesale revenues, not have a material adverse impact on consolidated results 
are set through contractual agreements. of operations or financial position.  

In 1997, in conjunction with the merger, Duke Energy In December 1997, Duke Energy filed applications with 
agreed to cap the base electric rates for retail customers at the FERC, NCUC and PSCSC for authority to combine 
existing levels through 2000, with very limited exceptions. Nantahala Power and Light (a wholly owned subsidiary) and 
Duke Energy also agreed to freeze rates, except for the Duke Power. Duke Energy received the necessary approvals 
market-based rates, for transmission and wholesale electric in June, April and February 1998, respectively. Nantahala 
sales. In addition, Duke Energy agreed to a cap on the rates Power and Light began operations as a division of Duke .charged to the other joint owners of Catawba Nuclear Station Power effective August 3, 1998.  
under the interconnection agreements and on the reimburse- Natural Gas Transmission. Duke Energy's interstate 
ment of certain costs related to administration and general natural gas pipelines primarily provide transportation and 
expenses and general plant costs under operation and fuel storage services pursuant to FERC Order 636. Order 636 
agreements. Management believes that these agreements allows pipelines to recover eligible costs resulting from 
will not have a material adverse effect on consolidated results implementation of the order (transition costs). In 1994, the 
of operations or financial position. FERC approved TETCO's settlement resolving regulatory 

Fuel costs are reviewed semiannually in the wholesale issues related primarily to Order 636 transition costs and a 
jurisdiction and annually in the South Carolina retail juris- number of other issues related to services prior to Order 636.  
diction, with provisions for reviewing such costs in base Under the 1994 settlement, TETCO's liability for transition 
rates. In the North Carolina retail jurisdiction, a review costs was estimated based on the amount of producers' nat
of fuel costs in rates is required annually and during general ural gas reserves and other factors. This settlement provided 
rate case proceedings. All jurisdictions allow Duke Energy for the recovery of certain of these transition costs from cus
to adjust electric rates for past over- or under-recovery tomers through volumetric and reservation charges. In 1995, 
of fuel costs. Therefore, the difference between actual fuel based upon producers' discoveries of additional natural gas 
costs incurred for electric operations and fuel costs recovered reserves, TETCO increased the estimated liabilities for transi
through rates is reflected in revenues. The stipulation tion costs by $126 million, increased regulatory assets by 
agreements related to the merger do not apply to the fuel $86 million for amounts expected to be collected from cus
cost adjustments. tomers and recognized a $40 million charge to operating 

The PSCSC, on May 7, 1996, ordered a rate reduction in expenses ($26 million after tax). In 1998, TETCO favorably 
the form of a decrement rider of 0.432 cents per kilowatt- resolved all remaining gas purchase contracts, recognizing 
hour, or an average of approximately 8%, affecting South $39 million of income ($24 million after tax).  
Carolina retail customers. South Carolina retail sales repre- On August 29, 1998, the FERC approved a settlement 
sent approximately 30% of Electric Operations' total regu- filed by TETCO, which accelerates recovery of natural gas e lated electric sales. The rate reduction was reflected on bills transition costs and reduces depreciation expense to more 
rendered on or after June 1, 1996. This net decrement rider appropriately reflect the estimated useful lives of its facilities, 
reflects an interim true-up decrement adjustment associated principally interstate natural gas pipelines. Prior to the 
with the levelization of Catawba Nuclear Station purchased settlement, Duke Energy reviewed the condition of its natural 
capacity costs and an interim true-up increment associated gas pipeline facilities and current maintenance practices, and



concluded that extension of the useful lives was appropriate. Duke Energy is obligated to purchase occurs in the eleventh 

These facilities have a book value of approximately $1.8 bil- calendar year of operation for each unit. This significant 

lion, net of accumulated depreciation of $2.6 billion. The decrease occurred in 1995 for Unit 1 and 1996 for Unit 2.  

new weighted average rate of depreciation for storage and The interconnection agreements also provide for supple

transportation plant is approximately 1.25%. Implementation mental power sales by Duke Energy to the other joint owners 

of the settlement began October 1, 1998, and a rate morato- of Catawba Nuclear Station to satisfy their capacity and 

rium will be in effect until 2004. The settlement reduces energy needs beyond the capacity and energy which they 

customer rates as a result of the reduced depreciation expense retain from the station or potentially acquire in the form of 

offset through 2001 by the accelerated recovery of natural other resources. The agreements further provide the other joint 

gas transition costs. The settlement is not expected to have owners the ability to secure such supplemental requirements 

a material effect on the net results of operations or financial outside of these contractual agreements following an appropri

position of Duke Energy. ate notice period. NCEMC and Saluda River have given such 

Global Asset Development. Two California electric gen- appropriate notice effective January 1, 2001 and January 1, 

erating plants, Moss Landing and Oakland, sell electricity 2002, respectively. 10 addition, as a result of the merger, the 

under the terms of Reliability Must Run (RMR) Agreements other joint owners have the right to end their supplemental 

with the California Independent System Operator (ISO), capacity requirements as of January 1, 2001 upon notice to 

which purchases electricity at FERC regulated rates. Duke Duke Energy by December 31, 1999. As the other joint own

Energy has not received final approval from the FERC with ers retain more capacity and energy from the station, or obtain 

respect to the electric rates charged by the two plants, and, additional capacity and energy from a third party, supplemen

therefore, the rates are subject to partial refund. Management tal power sales are expected to decline. Management believes 

believes that the final resolution of this matter will not have this will not have a material adverse effect on consolidated 

a material adverse effect on consolidated results of operations results of operations or financial position.  

or financial position. The interconnection agreements with the other joint 

owners include provisions that Duke Energy will provide gen

5. Joint Ownership of Generating Facilities erating reserves to backstand the other joint owners' retained 

Jointcapacity 
in the station at the system average cost of installed 

Join Owersip o Caawb NucearStaioncapacity. Additionally, the agreements include certain reliabil
Owner Ownership Interest 

Owne 0.nrshi Intrest ity exchanges designed to manage outage-related risks by 
North Carolina Municipal Power 

Agency Number 1 (NCMPA) 37.5% 
North Carolina Electric Membership McGuire Nuclear Stations, impacting Duke Energy as well as 

Corporation (NCEMC) 28.125% all the other joint owners. The agreements also provide the 
Duke Energy Corporation 12.5% 
Piedmont Municipal Power other joint owners the ability to terminate the interconnection 

Agency (PMPA) 12.5% agreements in their entirety upon eight years written notice to 
Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc. Duke Energy. Such notice was submitted by PMPA in 

(Saluda River) 9.375% 
(Salda iver 9.75% December, 1997, and by Saluda River in May, 1998. Both 100% 

PMPA and Saluda River will provide the reserves associated 
with their respective retained capacity. Management believes 

As of December 31, 1998, $516 million of Property, Plant this will not have a material adverse effect on consolidated 

and Equipment, net of $219 million of accumulated deprecia- results of operations or financial position.  

tion and amortization, represented Duke Energy's investment Purchased energy cost payments are based on variable 

in Catawba Nuclear Station Units I and 2. Duke Energy's operating costs and are a function of the generation output 

share of operating costs is included in the Consolidated of the station. Purchased capacity payments are based on 

Statements of Income. the fixed costs of the station and include capital costs and 

Duke Energy entered into contractual interconnection fixed operating and maintenance costs. Actual purchased 

agreements with the other joint owners of Catawba Nuclear capacity costs for 1998 and projected obligations through 

Station to purchase declining percentages of the generating 2000, the last year of the purchase buy-backs, are approxi

capacity and energy from the station. These purchased power mately $73 million, $53 million and $7 million, respectively.  

agreements were effective beginning with the commercial The portion of purchased capacity subject to levelization 

operation of each unit. Units 1 and 2 began commercial not currently recovered in rates is being deferred, and a 

operation in June 1985 and August 1986, respectively. deferred return is recorded on the accumulated balance. Duke 

The purchased power agreements were established for Energy is recovering the accumulated balance, including the 

fifteen years for NCMPA and PMPA and ten years for deferred return, when the sum of the declining purchased 

NCEMC and Saluda River. While the purchased power agree- capacity payments and accrual of deferred returns for the cur

ments with NCMPA and PMPA extend for fifteen years, rent period drops below the levelized revenues. Jurisdictional 

a significant decrease in the percentage of capacity and energy levelizations are intended to recover total costs, including 

48



deferred returns, and are subject to adjustments, including Net Deferred Income Tax Liability Components 
final true-ups. The costs of purchased energy and the non- December 31.  

levelized portion of purchased capacity is recorded on a (In millions 198 1997 

current basis. Deferred credits and other liabilities $ 268 $ 409 

The current levelized revenues approved in the last Ater 36 46 

general rate proceedings are approximately $211 million, Otler 3 4 
$94 million and $7 million for North Carolina retail, South Valuation allowance (52) (47) 
Carolina retail and Other Wholesale (FERC), respectively. Net deferred income tax assets 282 438 
Purchased power costs, subject to levelization, are deferred Investments and other assets (207) (263) 
based on allocation factors of approximately 62%, 26% and Property, plant and equipment (2,405) (2,358) 

Regulatory assets and deferred debits (542) (623) 
2% for North Carolina retail, South Carolina retail and Other Regulatory asset related to restating to pre-tax basis (435) (438) 
Wholesale (FERC), respectively. The PSCSC, on May 7, Other (69) (99) 
1996, ordered a rate reduction in the form of a decrement Total deferred income tax liabilities (3,658) (3,781) 
rider for an interim true-up adjustment. Deferred amounts State deferred income tax, net of federal tax effect (357) (364) 
related to two former wholesale customers have been recov- Net deferred income tax liability $(3,733) $(3,707) 
ered separately and are no longer collected through wholesale aThe alternative minimum tax credit canyforward can be carried forward indefinitely.  

rates. An allocated amount of purchased power costs in the 
pricing of supplemental sales made to the other joint owners 
is also recovered on a current basis.  

For the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, in an increase in goodwill and deferred income tax liability.  
purchased capacity and energy costs from the other joint 
owners was approximately $88 million, $120 million and income tax assets and other tax reserves are recognized sub
$151 million, respectively. These amounts, after adjustments sequent to December 31, 1998, approximately $29 million 
for the costs of capacity purchased not reflected in current will be allocated as an adjustment to goodwill.  
rates, are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income 7. Risk Management and Financial Instruments 
as Net Interchange and Purchased Power. As of December Duke Energy, primarily through Trading and Marketing, 
31, 1998 and 1997, $747 million and $836 million, respec- manages its exposure to risk from existing contractual 

* tively, associated with the cost of capacity purchased but commitments and provides risk management services to 
not reflected in current rates have been accumulated in the its customers through forward contracts, futures, over-the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as Purchased Capacity Costs 
and Current Portion of Purchased Capacity Costs. counter swap agreements and options (collectively, "com

and urr nt P rti n ofPurhase Ca acit Cots.modity instruments"). Energy commodity forward contracts 
6. Income Taxes involve physical delivery of an energy commodity. Energy 
Income Tax Expense commodity futures involve the buying or selling of natural 

gas, electricity or other energy-related commodities at a For the Years Ended December 31, fixed price. Over-the-counter swpagreements rqieDuke 
(In millions) 198 1997 1996 

Curret inome axesEnergy to receive or make payments based on the difference Current income taxes 
Federal $673 $433 $514 between a specified price and the actual price of the underly
State 138 100 109 ing commodity. Energy commodity options held to mitigate 

Total current income taxes 811 533 623 price risk provide the right, but not the requirement, to buy 
Deferred income taxes, net or sell energy-related commodities at a fixed price.  

Federal (15) 112 73 
State (4) 9 13 Commodity Instruments - Trading. Duke Energy 

Total deferred income taxes, net (19) 121 86 engages in the trading of commodity instruments, and there
Investment tax credit amortization (15) (15) (11) fore experiences net open positions. Duke Energy manages 
Total income tax expense $777 $639 $698 open positions with strict policies which limit its exposure 

to market risk and require daily reporting to management of 
Income Tax Expense Reconciliation to Statutory Rate potential financial exposure. These policies include statistical 

For the Years Ended December31 risk tolerance limits using historical price movements to 
(in millions) 1998 1997 19 calculate a daily earnings at risk measurement. The weighted

Income tax, computed at the average life of Duke Energy's commodity risk portfolio statutory rate of 35% $713 $565 $626 was approximately 51 months at December 31, 1998. During 
Adjustments resulting from: 

State income tax, net of federal 1998, 1997 and 1996, net gains of $114 million, $34 million 
* income tax effect 90 71 79 and $25 million, respectively, were recognized from trading Other items, net (26) 3 (7) natural gas commodity derivatives. During 1998, net gains 
0 Total income tax expense $777 $639 $698 of $14 million were recognized from trading electricity com

Effective tax rate 38.1% 39.6% 39.0% modity instruments. Net gains related to trading electricity 
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commodity instruments were not material during 1997 and Weighted Average Rates for Interest Rate Swaps 

1996. As of December 31, 1998 and 1997, the absolute For the Years Ended December 31, 

notional contract quantity of natural gas commodity deriva- 198 1997 996 

tives held for trading purposes was 11,149 billion cubic 8% Series B Swap 5.69% 5.78% 5.64% 

feet (Bcf) and 5,408 Bcf, respectively. As of December 31, 7.5% Series B Swap 6.74% 6.83% 6.69% 

1998, the absolute notional contract quantity of electricity 
commodity instruments held for trading purposes was The fair value of interest rate swaps was approximately 

112,867 gigawatt hours (GWh). As of December 31, 1997, $8 million and $10 million at December 31, 1998 and 1997, 

outstanding electricity commodity instruments were respectively. These amounts represent estimated amounts 

not material. At December 31, 1998 and 1997, other out- that Duke Energy would have received if the swaps had 

standing energy-related commodity derivatives held for been settled at current market rates on the respective dates.  

trading purposes were not material. In connection with the January 1999 issuance of $200 
million Senior Notes, Duke Energy entered into Treasury 

Commodity Instruments - Trading Rate Lock Agreements in December 1998 to hedge its 

1998 1997 interest rate risk. The agreements, with a notional principal 

(In millions) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities amount of $200 million, were settled on January 7, 1999, 

Fair value at December 31 $1,853 $ 1,749 $ 617 $ 588 and resulted in a deferred gain of approximately $2 million, 
Average fair value for the year 685 646 384 369 which will be amortized to interest expense over the life 

of the underlying debt issuance. The fair value of the lock 

Commodity Derivatives - Non-Trading. At December 31, agreements was not material at December 31, 1998.  

1998 and 1997, Duke Energy held or issued several derivatives Foreign Currency Derivatives. Trading and Marketing 

that reduce exposure to market fluctuations relative to price enters into foreign currency swap agreements to manage 

and transportation costs of natural gas, electricity and petro- foreign currency risks associated with energy contracts 

leum products. Duke Energy's market exposure arises from denominated in foreign currencies. The agreements, with 

natural gas storage inventory balances and fixed-price pur- a notional contract amount of approximately $120 million, 

chase and sale commitments that extend for periods of up begin in the year 2000 and extend to the year 2005. The 

to eight years. Futures, swaps and options are used to manage weighted average fixed exchange rate for the agreements 

and hedge price and location risk related to these market is 1.472 Canadian dollars to U.S. dollars. The fair value of 

exposures. Futures and swaps are also used to manage margins these agreements was not material at December 31, 1998.  

on underlying fixed-price purchase or sale commitments for Market and Credit Risk. New York Mercantile Exchange 

physical quantities of natural gas, electricity and other energy- (Exchange) traded futures and option contracts are guaranteed 

related commodities. Options are utilized to manage margins by the Exchange and have nominal credit risk. On all other 

and to limit overall price risk exposure. The gains, losses and transactions previously described, Duke Energy is exposed to 

costs related to those commodity derivatives that qualify as credit risk in the event of nonperformance by the counterpar

a hedge are not recognized until the underlying physical ties. For each counterparty, Duke Energy analyzes the financial 

transaction closes. At December 31, 1998, Duke Energy condition prior to entering into an agreement, establishes credit 

had deferred net gains of $10 million related to commodity limits and monitors the appropriateness of these limits on an 

derivative hedges. As of December 31, 1998, the absolute ongoing basis. The change in market value of exchange-traded 

notional contract quantity of commodity derivatives held futures and options contracts requires daily cash settlement in 

for non-trading purposes was 218 Bcf of natural gas and margin accounts with brokers. Swap contracts and most other 

10,618 GWh of electricity. Commodity derivatives held for over-the-counter instruments are generally settled at the expira

non-trading purposes were not material at December 31, 1997. tion of the contract term and may be subject to margin require

Interest Rate Derivatives. In order to obtain variable ments with the counterparty.  

rate financing at an attractive cost, Duke Energy entered Financial Instruments. In 1996, TETCO received 

into interest rate swap agreements in which $200 million $99 million from the financing of the right to collect certain 

of 8% Series B First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds were Order 636 natural gas transition costs, with limited recourse.  

effectively exchanged for floating rate debt at the three-month At December 31, 1998 and 1997, $17 million and $53 million, 

London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a 0.074% mar- respectively, remained outstanding related to the transition 

gin and $100 million of 7.5% Series B First and Refunding cost recovery rights and were included in the Consolidated 

Mortgage Bonds were effectively exchanged for floating rate Balance Sheets as Other Current Liabilities and Deferred 

debt at three-month LIBOR plus a 1.1272% margin. The Credits and Other Liabilities. Management believes the prob

interest rate swaps expire in 1999 and 2000, respectively, and ability that Duke Energy will be required to perform under 

rates are reset quarterly. As a result of the interest rate swap the recourse provisions is remote.  

contracts, interest expense on the Consolidated Statements The fair value of financial instruments is summarized below.  

of Income is recognized at the weighted average LIBOR rate Judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the W 

for the year plus the applicable margins, estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates determined



as of December 31, 1998 and 1997 are not necessarily indica- The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, notes receiv
tive of the amounts Duke Energy could have realized in current able, notes payable and commercial paper and nuclear 
market exchanges. The majority of the estimated fair value decommissioning trust funds are not materially different 
amounts were obtained from independent parties. from their carrying amounts because of the short-term nature W of these instruments or because the stated rates approximate 
Financial Instruments market rates.  

1998 1997 Guarantees made to affiliates or recourse provisions from 
Approximate Approximate affiliates and the sales agreement for Order 636 natural gas 

(ln millions) Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value transition cost recovery have no book value associated with 
Long-term debta $6,959 $7,240 $6,607 $6,843 
Guaranteed preferred beneficial 

interests in subordinated notes quoted market prices are not available.  
of Duke Energy or subsidiaries 919 937 339 356 

Preferred stocka 333 346 489 530 
Td Includes current maturities.  

a. Investment in Affiliates Global Asset Development Global Asset Development 
Investments in domestic and international affiliates which has investments in various natural gas and electric generation 

are not controlled by Duke Energy but where it has signifi- and transmission facilities worldwide. Significant investments 
cant influence over operations are accounted for by the include a 32.5% indirect interest in American Ref-Fuel 
equity method. These investments include undistributed Company, a 9.76% indirect interest in Hidroelectrica Piedra del 
earnings of $5 million and $21 million in 1998 and 1997, Aguila. S.A. and a 25% indirect interest in National Methanol 
respectively. Duke Energy's share of net income from these Company, which owns and operates a methanol and MTBE 
affiliates are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of (methyl tertiary butyl ether) plant in Jubail, Saudi Arabia.  
Income as Other Operating Revenues. Other Energy Services. Investments include the par

Natural Gas Transmission. Investments primarily include ticipation in various construction and support activities for 
ownership interests in natural gas pipeline joint ventures which fossil-fueled generating plants.  
transport gas from Canada to the United States. Investments Real Estate Operations. Investments include various real 
include a 37.5% ownership interest in Maritimes & Northeast estate development projects.  
Pipeline and a 9.8% ownership interest in Alliance Pipeline. Other Operations. Investments include, a 20% interest 

Field Services. Investments primarily include a in the BellSouth PCS L.P. joint venture, which provides 
37% interest in a partnership which owns natural gas gather- wireless personal communication services.  
ing systems in the Gulf of Mexico (Dauphin Island Gathering 
Partners) and a 2 1.m1% interest in TEPPCO.  

Investment in Affiliates 
December 31. 1998 December 31. 1997 December 31, 1996 

(InM M sllons) Domestic Ioternational Total Domestic international Total Domestic ttenational Total 

Natural Gas Transmission $104 $ 37 $141 $ 67 $ $ 67 $ 46 $ $ 46 
Field Services 303 - 303 160 ne160 130 ne130 
Global Asset Development 171 223 394 174 208 382 14 184 198 
Other Energy Services 19 23 42 16 10 26 50 1 
Real Estate Operations 5 - 5 2 - 2 5 - 5 
Other Operations 17 - 17 36 13 49 60 13 73 
Total $619 $283 $902 $455 $231 $686 $305 $198 $503 

Equity in Earnings of Investment 
December 31. 1998 December 31, 1997 December 31. 1996 

(In m t s aront s Domestic n ternational Total Domestic International Total Domestic Intenatioal Total 

Natural Gas Transmission $ 14 $ 3 $ 17 $ 8 $- $ 8 $ 5 $- $ 5 
Field Services 9 - 9 19 M i19 12 I G12 
Global Asset Development 50 18 68 8 21 29 6 19 25 
Other Energy Services 1 13 14 4 8 12 19 2 21 
Real Estate Operations - - - - - a m a M 
Other Operations (29) - (29) (30) - (30) (31) 1 (30) 

eTotal $ 45 $ 34 $ 79 $ 9 $ 29 $ 38 $ i $ 22 $ 33 
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Summarized Combined Financial Information of 10. Debt and Credit Facilities 
Unconsolidated Subsidiaries Long-term Debt 

December31 December 31, 

(In millions) 1998 1997 1996 (Ic millions) Year Due 1998 1997 

Balance Sheet Duke Energy a 
Current Assets $ 848 $ 642 $ 1,025 First and refunding mortgage bonds: 
Noncurrent Assets 7,340 5,868 5,661 5.76%-8% 1999 $ 425 $ 425 
Current Liabilities 1,084 758 879 7% 2000 200 200 
Noncurrent Liabilities 3,884 3,257 3,462 5X% - 7.41% 2001 -2004 500 600 

Net Assets $ 3,220 $ 2,495 $2,345 6A7 - 7% 2005 -2008 125 325 
________________________________________ 6Y% - 8.30% 2023 - 2025 678 878 

Income Statement 7%-8.95% 2027-2033 165 165 
Operating Revenues $ 1,667 $ 905 $3,133 Mortgage bonds matured during 1998 - 50 
Operating Expenses 1,166 703 2,494 Pollution control bonds, 3.85% - 7.75% 2012-2017 172 172 
Net Income 263 72 160 Notes: 

6.9%-9.21% 2011- 2016 65 
6% 2028 300 

Duke Energy had outstanding notes receivable from certain Commercial paper, 5.28% and 5.9% 
weighted-average rate at December 3 1, 

affiliates of $80 million and $87 million at December 31, 1998 1998 and 1997. respectively 1,200 800 

and 1997, respectively. Other debt 23 26 

Duke Capital Corporation 
Senior Notes: 

9. Property, Plant and Equipment 6/4% 2005 250 
December 31. 6Y% 2018 150 

(In millions) 1998 1997 Commercial paper, 5.73% and 6.03% 
weighted-average rate at December 31, 

Electric utility 1998 and 1997, respectively 500 800 
Generation $ 7,670 $ 7,575 Other debt 24 
Transmission and distribution 6,324 6,084 
General plant 1,127 1,119 Banneg 
Nuclear fuel 554 644 Bonds: 
Construction work in progress 328 222 

Total electric utility 16,003 15,644 Notes: 

Natural gas transmission 6,194 6,094 9.55% - 9.9%, maturing serially 1998 -2003 59 73 
Gathering and processing 1,409 1,315 7% - 8X% 1999 -2006 450 450 
Construction work in progress 469 351 TETCO 
Other property and equipment 3,053 2,044 Notes: 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment $27,128 $25,448 8%_ lox% 2000-2004 500 500 
medium term, Series A, 7.64 -9.07% 1999 -2012 100 100 

Algonquin Gas Transmission Company 
Accumulated Depreciation 9.13% Notes 2003 100 100 

December 31, Panhandle Eastern Pipe 

(In millions) 1998 1997 Line Company (PEPL) 

Electric utilitya $ 6,371 $6,068 7% Note 2004 100 100 

Natural gas transmission 2,585 2,459 
Other 1,297 1,185 Crescent Resources, Inc. b 

Total Accumulated Depreciation $10,253 $9,712 Construction and mortgage loans, 
_____________________________________ 5.21% -7.10% 1998 -2011 69 117 

a Includes amortization of nuclear fuel: 1998 - $325 million: 1997 - $370 million. Revolving credit facilities, 5.98% and 
6.30% weighted-average rate at 

On July, 1, 1998, a subsidiary of Duke Energy purchased December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively 2001 100 77 

three electric generating stations in California for $501 mil- Global Asset Development 
5.2% - 18% Notes 1999 -2004 ill 

lion from Pacific Gas & Electric Company. These stations 
have a combined capacity of 2,645 megawatts. Two of the Unamortized debt discount and premium, net (48) (46) 

three plants, Moss Landing and Oakland, are subject to the Total long-term debt 6,959 6,607 

terms of RMR Agreements with the California ISO. The cost Current maturities of long-term debt (687) (77) 

of these facilities is included within "Other property and Total long-term portion $6,272 $ 6,530 
a Substantially all of Duke Energy's electric plant was mortgaged.  

equipment" above. b Substantial amounts of Crescent Resources' real estate development projects, 

land and buildings were pledged as collateral.  

The annual maturities of consolidated long-term debt 

at December 31, 1998 were $687 million, $413 million, 
$388 million, $133 million and $526 million for 1999 
through 2003, respectively. Such payments exclude 

5%%-74%202-20 0 0



$1,853 million of long-term debt that matures after 2003 and 2 - 2013, Oconee 3 - 2014; McGuire 1 - 2021, McGuire 2 
which have call options whereby Duke Energy has the option - 2023; and Catawba 1 - 2024, Catawba 2 - 2026.  
to repay the debt early. Based on the years in which Duke During 1998 and 1997, Duke Energy expensed approxi
Energy may first exercise their redemption options, $820 mil- mately $57 million which was contributed to the external 
lion could potentially be repaid in 1999, $178 million in funds for decommissioning costs and accrued an additional 
2000, $328 million in 2002, $427 million in 2003 and $6 million and $3 million to the internal reserve in 1998 and 
$100 million thereafter. 1997, respectively. Nuclear units are depreciated at an annual 

rate of 4.7%, of which 1.61% is for decommissioning. The 
Credit Facilities balance of the external funds as of December 31, 1998 and 

December 31, 1997, was $580 million and $471 million, respectively.  
1998 1997 The balance of the internal reserve as of December 31, 1998 

Credit Credit and 1997, was $217 million and $211 million, respectively, 
(in millions) Facilities Outstanding Facilities Outstanding and is reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as 
Annually renewable facilities $ - $ - $ 54 $16 
364-day facilities a 600 - 300 - Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization. Management 
Two-year revolving facilities b - - 40 - believes that the decommissioning costs being recovered 
Four-year revolving facilities 125 100 125 77 
Five-year revolving facilities a 2,200 - 2,200 - through rates, when coupled with assumed after-tax fund 

Total Consolidated $2,925 $100 $2,719 $93 earnings of 5.5% to 5.9%, are currently sufficient to provide 
a Supported commercial paper facilities. for the cost of decommissioning.  
b Supported pollution control bonds. A provision in the Energy Policy Act of 1992 established 

a fund for the decontamination and decommissioning of the 
Notes Payable and Commercial Paper Department of Energy's (DOE) uranium enrichment plants.  

December 31, Licensees are subject to an annual assessment for 15 years 
(In millions) 1998 1997 based on their pro rata share of past enrichment services.  
Credit facilities outstanding $ 100 $ 93 The annual assessment is recorded in the Consolidated 
Note payable 4 4 
Commercial paper outstanding 1,905 1,750 Statements of Income as Fuel Used in Electric Generation.  

2,009 1,847 Duke Energy paid $10 million during 1998 and has paid 
Less portion classified as long-term $65 million cumulatively related to its ownership interests 

Credit facilities (100) (77) in nuclear plants. The remaining liability and regulatory asset 
Commercial paper (1,700) (1,600) 

Portion classified as short-term $ 209 $ 170 

is 1997, respectively, is reflected in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets as Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities and 

The weighted average interest rate on outstanding short- Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits, respectively.  
term notes payable and commercial paper at December 31, Spent Nuclear Fuel. Under provisions of the Nuclear 
1998 and 1997 was 5.23% and 6.04%, respectively. Waste Policy Act of 1982, Duke Energy has entered into 

contracts with the DOE for the disposal of spent nuclear 
11. Nuclear Decommissioning Costs fuel. The DOE failed to begin accepting the spent nuclear 

Nuclear Decommissioning Costs. Estimated site-specific fuel on January 31, 1998, the date provided by the Nuclear 
nuclear decommissioning costs, including the cost of decom- Waste Policy Act and by Duke Energy's contract with the 
missioning plant components not subject to radioactive conta- DOE. On June 8, 1998, Duke Energy filed with the United 
mination, total approximately $1.3 billion stated in 1994 States Court of Federal Claims a claim against the DOE for 
dollars based on decommissioning studies completed in 1994. damages in excess of $1 billion arising out of the DOE's 
This amount includes Duke Energy's 12.5% ownership in the failure to begin accepting commercial spent nuclear fuel by 
Catawba Nuclear Station. The other joint owners of Catawba January 31, 1998. Damages claimed in the suit are intended 
Nuclear Station are responsible for decommissioning costs to recover costs that Duke Energy is incurring and will con
related to their ownership interests in the station. Both the tinue to incur as a result of the DOE's partial material breach 
NCUC and the PSCSC have granted Duke Energy recovery of of its contract with Duke Energy, including costs associated 
estimated decommissioning costs through retail rates over the with securing additional spent fuel storage capacity. Duke 
expected remaining service periods of Duke Energy's nuclear Energy will continue to safely manage its spent nuclear fuel 
stations. Such estimates presume each unit will be decommis- until the DOE accepts it. Payments made to the DOE for 
sioned as soon as possible following the end of its license life. disposal costs are based on nuclear output and are included 
Although subject to extension, the current operating licenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Fuel Used in 
for Duke Energy's nuclear units expire as follows: Oconee 1 Electric Generation.  
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12. Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests in Preferred Stock without Sinking Fund Requirements 
Subordinated Notes of Duke Energy or Subsidiaries lDnhare im Shares Outstanding December3I.  

Duke Energy and Duke Capital Corporation (Duke Capital) Rate/Series Year Issued at December 31, 1998 198 1997 

have each formed business trusts for which they own all the 4.50% C 1964 175,000 $ 18 $ 35 

respective common securities. The trusts issue and sell pre- 7.05%W 1993 249,989 25 50 

ferred securities and invest the gross proceeds in assets of the 7.04% Y 1993 299,995 30 60 

trusts. Substantially all the assets of each trust are junior subor- 6.375% (Preferred Stock A) 1993 1,257,185 31 60 

dinated notes issued by the respective company. to $209 $340 

Trust Preferred Securities 
(In milli is) December31, The call provisions for the outstanding preferred stock 

Issued Rate 1998 1997 Junior Subordinated Notes specify various redemption prices not exceeding 104% of 
Duke Energy par value, plus accumulated dividends to the redemption date.  

1997 7.2% $350 $350 7.2% Series A due 2037 During December 1997, Duke Energy redeemed approxi
Duke Capital 

1998 7X% 250 - 7X% Series A due 2038 mately three million shares of preferred stock for $203 million.  
1998 7X% 350 - 7X% Series B due 2038 During February 1998, Duke Energy purchased approximately 

Unamortized debt discount (31) (1) two million shares of its preferred stock for $180 million.  
$919 $339 The premiums related to these redemptions were included 

in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Dividends and 
These trust preferred securities represent preferred undi- Premiums on Redemptions of Preferred and Preference Stock 

vided beneficial interests in the assets of the respective trusts. for 1997.  
Payment of distributions on these preferred securities is guar
anteed by the respective company, but only to the extent the 14. Commitments and Contingencies 
trusts have funds legally and immediately available to make Future Construction Costs. Duke Energy plans to main
such distributions. Dividends of $44 million and $15 million tam its regulated electric operations facilities in the Carolinas 
related to the trust preferred securities have been included in and pursue business expansion as opportunities arise.  
the Consolidated Statements of Income as Minority Interests Projected 1999 capital and investment expenditures for 
for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Electric Operations, including allowance for funds used 

13.during construction, are approximately $900 million. These 

13.hPrieeSre ano f erence Stock projections include expenditures for existing plants, including W 
Authorized Sae of Stc as9 o refurbishment and upgrades related to the Oconee Nuclear 
December 31,1998 and 1997Stations application for a 20-year renewal of its operating 

Shares 
Par Value (in millions) license. The license renewal process could take three to five 

Preferred Stock $100 12.5 years to complete. All projections are subject to periodic 
Preferred Stock A $ 25 10.0 review and revisions. Actual expenditures incurred may vary 
Preference Stock $100 1.5 from such estimates due to various factors, including industry 

As of December 31, 1998 and 1997, there were no shares str ints and er ental gulation.  

of preference stock outstanding. srit n niomna euain 
of pefernce toc outtandng.Projected 1999 capital and investment expenditures for 

PreferredNatural 
Gas Transmission, including allowance for funds 

Prefrre Stck wth inkng und equremntsused during construction, are approximately $400 million and 
(Dollars in millins) Shares Outstanding December 3 1.  

(Dolar into/hus) hars Olsidig Dcemer 1. do not include projections related to the Midwest Pipelines 
Rate/Series Year Issued at December 31, 1998 1998 1997 which are expected to be sold in early 1999. These projections 

5.95% B (Preferred Stock A) 1992 800,000 $ 20 $ 20 
6.10% C (Preferred Stock A) 1992 800,000 20 20 
6.20% D (Preferred Stock A) 1992 800,000 20 20 project, which will deliver natural gas to markets in the 
6.20% T 1992 130,000 13 13 Canadian Maritimes provinces and the northeaster United 
6.30% U 1992 130,000 13 13 
6.40% V 1992 130,000 13 13 States from a supply basin offshore Nova Scotia. These 
6.75% X 1993 250,000 25 50 projections also include other market expansion projects 

Total $124 $ 149 and costs relating to existing assets.  

Duke Energy plans to continue to significantly grow sev

The annual sinking fund requirements for 1999 through eral of its business segments: Field Services, Global Asset 
2003 are $20 million, $33 million, $33 million, $13 million Development, Trading and Marketing and Other Energy 
and $1 million, respectively. Some additional redemptions Services. Expansion opportunities for Field Services include 

are perm-iitted at Duke Energy's option. the planned $1.35 billion acquisition of the natural gas 
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gathering, processing, fractionation and NGL pipeline busi- Primary Liability Insurance. The maximum required private 
ness of Union Pacific Resources along with its natural gas primary liability insurance of $200 million has been purchased 
and NGL marketing activities. The transaction is expected to along with a like amount to cover certain worker tort claims.  
close in the first half of 1999 and is contingent upon comple- Excess Liability Insurance. This policy currently provides 
tion of due diligence and receipt of clearances under the approximately $9.6 billion of coverage through the Price
Hart-Scott-Rodino Act. Anderson Act's mandatory industry-wide excess secondary 

Expansion opportunities for Global Asset Development's insurance program of risk pooling. The $9.6 billion of cover
international division, Duke Energy International, include age is the sum of the current potential cumulative retrospective 
the $315 million purchase of power generation and transmis- premium assessments of $88 million per licensed commercial 
sion assets in western Australia and New Zealand, including nuclear reactor. This $9.6 billion will be increased by $88 
an ownership interest in a pipeline in western Australia. This million as each additional commercial nuclear reactor is 
acquisition also includes a development proposal for a cogen- licensed, or reduced by $88 million for certain nuclear reac
eration plant and a portfolio of international and Australian- tors that are no longer operational and may be exempted 
based projects. This transaction closed on January 22, 1999. from the risk pooling insurance program. Under this pro

Also, Duke Energy International recently purchased gram, licensees could be assessed retrospective premiums to 
the rights to develop and operate the 500-mile Eastern Gas compensate for damages in the event of a nuclear incident at 
Pipeline project in eastern Australia. Construction of this any licensed facility in the nation. If such an incident occurs 
$270 million pipeline project is scheduled to begin in July and public liability damages exceed primary insurances, 
1999 and completion is expected by the middle of 2000. licensees may be assessed up to $88 million for each of their 

Expansion opportunities for Global Asset Development's licensed reactors, payable at a rate not to exceed $10 million 
domestic division, Duke Energy Power Services, include the a year per licensed reactor for each incident. The $88 million 
continuation of greenfield projects, such as the Bridgeport amount is subject to indexing for inflation and may be sub
Energy project and Maine Independence Station, as well as ject to state premium taxes.  
the Hidalgo project, a 510-megawatt power plant to be built Duke Energy is a member of Nuclear Electric Insurance 
in south Texas, which is targeted to begin producing power Limited (NEIL), which provides property and business 
in mid-2000. Other similar initiatives in 1999 for both Duke interruption insurance coverages for Duke Energy's nuclear 
Energy International and Duke Energy Power Services will facilities under the following three policy programs: 
likely require significant capital and investment expenditures, Primary Property Insurance. This policy provides $500 
which will be subject to periodic review and revision and million in primary property damage coverage for each of 
may vary significantly depending on the value-added Duke Energy's nuclear facilities.  
opportunities presented. Excess Property Insurance. This policy provides excess 

Projected 1999 capital and investment expenditures for property, decontamination and decommissioning liability 
Trading and Marketing, Other Energy Services and Real Estate insurance in the following amounts: $2.25 billion for the 
Operations are approximately $30 million, $90 million and Catawba Nuclear Station and $1.5 billion each for the 
$300 million, respectively. These projected capital and invest- Oconee and McGuire Nuclear Stations.  
ment expenditures are subject to periodic review and revision Business Interruption Insurance. This policy provides 
and may vary significantly depending on acquisition opportuni- business interruption and/or extra expense coverage 
ties, market volatility, economic trends and the value-added resulting from an accidental outage of a nuclear unit. Each 
opportunities presented. unit of the McGuire and Catawba Nuclear Stations is insured 

Nuclear Insurance. Duke Energy owns and operates the for up to approximately $4 million per week and the Oconee 
McGuire and Oconee Nuclear Stations with two and three Nuclear Station units are insured for up to approximately 
nuclear reactors, respectively, and operates and has a partial $3 million per week. Coverage amounts per unit decline if 
ownership interest in the Catawba Nuclear Station with two more than one unit is involved in an accidental outage. Initial 
nuclear reactors. Nuclear insurance coverage is maintained coverage begins after a 17-week deductible period and con
in three program areas: liability coverage; property, decon- tinues at 100% for 52 weeks and 80% for the next 104 weeks.  
tamination and decommissioning coverage; and business If NEIL's losses ever exceed its reserves for any of the 
interruption and/or extra expense coverage. Certain expenses above three programs, Duke Energy will be liable for assess
associated with nuclear insurance premiums paid by Duke ments of up to five times its annual premiums. The current 
Energy are reimbursed by the other joint owners of the potential maximum assessments are as follows: Primary 
Catawba Nuclear Station. Property Insurance - $23 million; Excess Property Insurance 

Pursuant to the Price-Anderson Act, Duke Energy is - $23 million; Business Interruption Insurance - $20 million.  
required to insure against public liability claims resulting The other joint owners of the Catawba Nuclear Station 
from nuclear incidents to the full limit of liability of approxi- are obligated to assume their pro rata share of any liabilities 
mately $9.8 billion. for retrospective premiums and other premium assessments



resulting from the Price-Anderson Act's excess secondary Litigation. On April 25, 1997, a group of affiliated plain

insurance program of risk pooling or the NEIL policies. tiffs that own and/or operate various pipeline and marketing 

Environmental. Duke Energy is subject to international, companies and partnerships primarily in Kansas filed suit 

federal, state and local regulations regarding air and water against PEPL, a subsidiary of Duke Energy, in the U.S.  

quality, hazardous and solid waste disposal and other envi- District Court for the Western District of Missouri. The 

ronmental matters. plaintiffs allege that PEPL has engaged in unlawful and anti

TETCO is currently conducting PCB (polychlorinated competitive conduct with regard to requests for interconnects 

biphenyl) assessment and clean-up programs at certain of its with the PEPL system for service to the Kansas City area 

compressor station sites under conditions stipulated by a U.S. Asserting that PEPL has violated the antitrust laws and tor 

Consent Decree. The programs include on- and off-site assess- tiously interfered with the plaintiffs' business expectancies, 

ment, installation of on-site source control equipment and the plaintiffs seek compensatory and punitive damages 

groundwater monitoring wells and on- and off-site clean-up Under the terms of the agreement with CMS Energy 

work. TETCO completed the soil clean-up programs during Corporation discussed in Other Commitments and 

1998, subject to regulatory approval. Groundwater monitoring Contingencies below, Duke Energy is retaining any liability 

activities will continue at several sites beyond 1999. associated with this suit. Based on information currently 

In 1987, the Commonwealth of Kentucky instituted a suit available to Duke Energy, management believes that the 

in state court against TETCO, alleging improper disposal of resolution of this matter will not have a material adverse 

PCBs at TETCO's three compressor station sites in Kentucky. effect on consolidated results of operations or financial position 

This suit is still pending. In 1996, TETCO completed clean-up Duke Energy and its subsidiaries are also involved in 

of these sites under the U.S. Consent Decree. other legal, tax and regulatory proceedings before various 

Duke Energy has also identified environmental contamina- courts, regulatory commissions and governmental agencies 

tion at certain sites on the PEPL and Trunkline Gas Company regarding matters arising in the ordinary course of business, 

(Trunkline) systems and has undertaken clean-up programs at some of which involve substantial amounts. Where appro

these sites. The contamination resulted from the past use of priate, Duke Energy has made accruals in accordance with 

lubricants containing PCBs and the prior use of wastewater SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies," in order to 

collection facilities and other on-site disposal areas. Soil and provide for such matters. Management believes that the final 

sediment testing, to date, has detected no significant off-site disposition of these proceedings will not have a material 

contamination. Duke Energy has communicated with the adverse effect on consolidated results of operations or finan 

Environmental Protection Agency and appropriate state regu- cial position.  
latory agencies on these matters. Under the terms of the Other Commitments and Contingencies. In January 

agreement with CMS Energy Corporation discussed in Other 1998, Duke Energy acquired a 9.8% ownership in Alliance 

Commitments and Contingencies below, Duke Energy is Pipeline. This pipeline is designed to transport natural 

obligated to complete the PEPL and Trunkline clean-up pro- gas from western Canada to the Chicago-area market 

grams at certain agreed-upon sites. These clean-up programs center for distribution throughout North America. The 

are expected to continue until 2001. pipeline is scheduled to begin commercial operation in late 

At December 31, 1998 and 1997, remaining estimated 2000. In addition to buying an ownership interest in the 
clean-up costs on the TETCO, PEPL and Trunkline systems pipeline project, Duke Energy has a contractual commitment 

have been accrued and are included in the Consolidated for 67.25 million cubic feet per day of capacity on the line 

Balance Sheets as Other Current Liabilities and Environ- over 15 years for an estimated total of $315 million.  

mental Clean-up Liabilities. These cost estimates represent Periodically, Duke Energy may become involved in con

gross clean-up costs expected to be incurred, have not been tractual disputes with natural gas transmission customers 

discounted or reduced by customer recoveries and generally involving potential or threatened abrogation of contracts by 

do not include fines, penalties or third-party claims. the customers. If the customers are successful, Duke Energy 

Costs to be recovered from customers are included in the may not receive the full value of anticipated benefits under 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1998 the contracts.  

and 1997, as Environmental Clean-up Costs. In the normal course of business, certain of Duke Energy's 

The federal and state clean-up programs are not expected subsidiaries and affiliates enter into various contracts for 

to interrupt or diminish Duke Energy's ability to deliver energy services which contain certain schedule and perfor

natural gas to customers. Based on experience to date and mance requirements. Risk management techniques are used 

costs incurred for clean-up operations, management believes to mitigate their exposure associated with such contracts.  

the resolution of matters relating to the environmental issues Certain subsidiaries of Duke Energy have guaranteed 

discussed above will not have a material adverse effect on performance under some of these contracts. In addition, 

consolidated results of operations or financial position. certain subsidiaries of Duke Energy have guaranteed debt 
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agreements of affiliates and have provided surety bonds and 16. Stock-Based Compensation 
letters of credit. Under Duke Energy's 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, stock 

Management believes that these commitments and contin- options for up to fifteen million shares of common stock may 
gencies will not have a material adverse effect on consolidated be granted to key employees. Under the plan, the exercise 
results of operations or financial position. price of each option granted equals the market price of Duke 

Duke Energy, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Energy's common stock on the date of grant. Vesting periods 
PanEnergy and TEC, entered into an agreement to sell PEPL, range from one to five years with a maximum exercise term 
Trunkline and additional storage related to those systems of ten years.  
(collectively, the PEPL Companies), which substantially Effective with the merger, each share of PanEnergy common 
comprise the Midwest Pipelines, along with Trunkline LNG stock, outstanding immediately prior to the merger, was con
Company (Trunkline LNG), to CMS Energy Corporation verted into the right to receive 1.0444 shares of Duke Energy 
(CMS Energy). The sales price of $2.2 billion involves cash common stock. Each option to purchase PanEnergy common 
proceeds of $1.9 billion and the assumption of existing PEPL stock, outstanding prior to the merger, was assumed by Duke 
debt of approximately $300 million. Management believes Energy and became exercisable upon the same terms as under 
that the retention of certain assets and liabilities, such as the the applicable PanEnergy stock option plan and option agree
Houston office building, certain environmental, legal and tax ment, except that these options became options to purchase 
liabilities, and substantially all intercompany balances, will shares of Duke Energy common stock, appropriately adjusted.  
not have a material adverse effect on consolidated results 
of operations or financial position. The sale will result in an Stock Option Grants 
after-tax gain of approximately $700 million and is contin- Weighted 

gent upon receipt of clearances under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Ontons Eerae 

Act. Closing is expected in early 1999. Outstanding at December 31, 1995 3,559 $18 

Total assets of the PEPL Companies and Trunkline LNG Granted 498 28 
Exercised (712) 16 

were $1.2 billion at December 31, 1998. Forfeited (71) 22 

Outstanding at December 31, 1996 3,274 20 
Combined 1998 Operating Results of the PEPL Companies Granted 388 44 

and Trunkline LNG a Exercised (873) 19 _______________________________________Forfeited (60) 27 
(In millions) Outstanding at December 31 1997 2,729 24 
Operating Revenues $482 Granted 3,548 57 
Operating Expenses 278 Exercised (948) 21 
Other Income, Net 10 Forfeited (868) 57 

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes $214 Outstanding at December 31, 1998 4,461 45 

aExcludes intercompany building rental revenue, allocated corporate expenses, 
building depreciation and certain other costs to be retained by Duke Energy. Stock Options at December 31, 1998 

Leases. Duke Energy utilizes assets under operating Outstanding Exercisable 

leases in several areas of operations. Consolidated rental Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Rag fAverage Average Average 

expense amounted to $80 million, $92 million, and Exercise Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise 

$84 million in 1998, 1997, and 1996, respectively. Future Prces (in thousands) Life (Years) Price (in thousands) Price 

minimum rental payments under Duke Energy's various $ to $20 67 4.9 18 67 18 

operating leases for the years 1999 through 2003 are $21 to $25 556 4.9 21 556 21 
$85 million, $76 million, $65 million, $41 million, and $26 to $31 199 7.1 27 199 27 

$42 to $50 240 8.1 44 87 44 
$33 million, respectively. $55 to $60 2,709 9.2 57 -

$66 to $67 63 9.7 67 7 67 

15. Common Stock TOt 4,461 1,543 22 
The Board of Directors authorized Duke Energy to 

repurchase up to $1 billion of its common stock during the Duke Energy had two million options exercisable at both 
period beginning February 1996 and ending February 2001. December 31, 1997 and 1996, with weighted average exercise 
As a result of the merger, shares repurchased between prices of $21 and $19 per option, respectively.  
February 1996 and June 1999 were limited to 15 million The weighted-average fair value of options granted was 
shares. As of December 31, 1996, approximately three mil- $9, $10 and $9 per option during 1998, 197 and 1996, 
lion shares had been repurchased for $159 million. No repur- respectively. The fair value of each option grant was esti
chases of common stock were made in 1997 or 1998, and mated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
none are anticipated in the future, pricing model.  
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Weighted-Average Assumptions for Option-Pricing Duke Energy's policy is to fund amounts, as necessary, on 
1998 1997 1996 an actuarial basis to provide assets sufficient to meet benefits 

Stock dividend yield 4.2% 3.5% 2.6% to be paid to plan participants. On December 30, 1997, assets 
Expected stock price volatility 15.1% 20.7% 26.0% and related liabilities of $236 million and $204 million, 
Risk-free interest rates 5.6% 6.5% 5.7% 
Expected option lives 7 years 7 years 7 years respectively, for certain PanEnergy plan participants were 

transferred to the Duke Power plan. As a result of this trans

Had compensation expense for stock-based compensation fer, no contributions to the Duke Power plan were necessary 

been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates, in 1998 or 1997.  
1998 net income would have been $1,250 million, or $3.40 In 1998, Duke Energy adopted SFAS No. 132, "Employers' 

per basic share; 1997 net income would have been $971 million, Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits," 

or $2.50 per basic share; and 1996 net income would have which required the restatement of prior year data. This 

been $1,074 million, or $2.85 per basic share. restatement did not change the net periodic expense or the 
funded status of the retirement or postretirement benefit plans.  

17. Employee Benefit Plans 
Retirement Plans. Duke Energy and its subsidiaries have Components of Net Periodic Pension Costs 

maintained multiple non-contributory defined benefit retire- For the Years Ended December 31.  

ment plans covering most employees with minimum service (In milions) 1998 1997 1996 

requirements. Effective January 1, 1997, the Duke Power Service cost benefit earned during the year $ 63 $ 62 $ 63 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 169 164 153 

retirement plan was amended to base a plan participant's Expected return on plan assets (218) (209) (192) 

benefit on a cash balance formula. Under a cash balance Amortization of prior service cost (4) (5) (2) 

formula, a plan participant accumulates a retirement benefit Amortization of net transition asset (4) (4) (5) Recognized net actuarial loss 10 17 13 
based upon a percentage, which may vary with age and years Settlement gain (10) -

of service, of current eligible earnings and current interest Net periodic pension costs $ 6 $ 25 $ 30 

credits. Prior to January 1, 1997, the Duke Power retirement 
plan benefits were based on an age-related formula which Reconciliation of Funded Status to Pre-funded Pension Costs 
took into account the participant's years of benefit accrual 
service and highest average eligible earnings. (!l millions 1"8 1997 

Through December 31, 1998, the PanEnergy plan pro- Change in Benefit Obligation 
vided retirement benefits (i) for eligible employees of certain Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,372 $2,126 

subsidiaries that are generally based on an employee's years Service cost 63 62 
Interest cost 169 164 

of benefit accrual service and highest average eligible earn- Plan amendment 5 11 

ings, and (ii) for eligible employees of certain other sub- Actuarial loss 141 179 

sidiaries under a cash balance formula. In 1998, a significant Special termination benefit 
Benefits paid (210) (172) 

amount of lump sum payouts was made from the PanEnergy Benefit obligation at end of year $ 2,540 $2,372 

plan resulting in a settlement gain of $10 million. Effective 
January 1, 1999, the benefit formula under the PanEnergy Change in Plan Assets 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year a $ 2,725 $2,445 
plan, for all eligible employees, was changed to a cash bal- Actual return on plan assets 406 451 

ance formula. Employer contributions 1 

In connection with the expected 1999 sale of the Midwest Benefits paid (210) (172) 

Pipelines to CMS Energy, benefit accruals under the PanEnergy Fair value of plan assets at end of year a $ 2,922 $2,725 

plan were frozen on December 31, 1998, for all participants 
who, as a result of the sale, will become employees of CMS Funded status $ 382 $ 353 

Unrecognized net experience loss 2 81 
Energy and its subsidiaries. Once the transfer of benefit Unrecognized prior service cost reduction (27) (65) 

obligation and related assets of the affected participants Unrecognized net transition asset (25) (32) 

to CMS Energy is completed, the PanEnergy plan will be Pre-funded pension costs $ 332 $ 337 

merged into the Duke Energy Plan. Principally cquity and fixed income securities.  

On December 31, 1998, all defined benefit retirement 

plans maintained by Duke Energy, except for the PanEnergy Assumptions Used for Pension Benefits Accounting a 

plan, were merged to form the Duke Energy Retirement Cash Penenr 198 1997 1996 

Balance Plan (Duke Energy Plan). The plan merger changed Discount rate 6.75 7.25 7.50 

the benefit for certain participants, from a formula based Salary increase 4.67 4.15 4.80 Expected long-term rate of retumn 
primarily on benefit accrual service and highest average on plan assets 9.25 9.25 9.18 

earnings, to a cash balance formula. Reflects weighted averages across all plans.



Duke Energy also sponsors employee savings plans Reconciliation of Funded Status to 
which cover substantially all employees. Employer matching Accrued Postretirement Benefit Costs 
contributions of $53 million, $53 million and $35 million December 31.  

were expensed in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively. (in millins) 198 997 

Other Postretirement Benefits. Duke Energy and most Change in Benefit Obligation 

of its subsidiaries provide certain health care and life insur- ated ostretr b obliatio 

ance benefits for retired employees on a contributory and Service cost 10 tO 

non-contributory basis. Employees become eligible for these Pnrtcit c b 6 6 

benefits if they have met certain age and service require- Amendments (49) 4 

ments at retirement, as defined in the plans. Under plan Actuarial (gain) loss (6) 4 

amendments effective late 1998 and early 1999, health care Acumlaedpotreir4et enfi 

benefits for future retirees were changed to limit employer obligation at end of year $ 625 $667 

contributions and medical coverage. Change in Plan Assets 
Such benefit costs are accrued over the active service Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year a $ 266 $225 

period of employees to the date of full eligibility for the Actual return on plan assets 34 45 

benefits. The net unrecognized transition obligation, resulting Employer contributions 45 40 Plan participants' contributions 6 1 
from the implementation of accrual accounting, is being Benefits paid (46) (45) 

amortized over approximately 20 years. Fair market value of plan assets at end of year $ 305 $266 

Duke Energy is using an investment account under section 
401(h) of the Internal Revenue Code, a retired lives reserve Und ed tatu s cost 9 4 

(RLR) and multiple voluntary employees' beneficiary associ- Unrecognized net experience (gain) loss (23) 4 

ation (VEBA) trusts under section 501 (c)(9) of the Internal Unrecognized transition obligation 239 256 

Revenue Code to partially fund postretirement benefits. The Accrued postretirement benefit costs $ (95) $ (77) 

401(h) vehicle, which provides for tax deductions for contri- Principally equity and fixed income securities.  

butions and tax-free accumulation of investment income, 
partially funds postretirement health care benefits. The RLR, Assupto Us8 for Pnt 
which has tax attributes similar to 401(h) funding, partially D 

funds postretirement life insurance obligations. Certain Salary increase 4.67 4.33 4.84 
subsidiaries use the VEBA trusts to partially fund accrued Expected long-term rate of return on 

40()ast 9.25 9.25 9.00 postretirement health care benefits and fund postretirement 401(h) asse 

life insurance obligations. RLR assets 6.75 6.75 6.50 
Expected long-term rate of return on 

VEBA assets 9.25 9.25 9.50 
Components of Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Costs Assumed tax rate b 39.60 39.60 39.60 

For the Years a Reflects weighted averages across alt plans.  
Ended December 31, b Health care portion of posretirement benefits in VEBA trusts.  

(In millions) 1998 1997 1996 

Service cost benefit earned during the year $ 10 $ 10 $ 8 For measurement purposes, a 5% weighted average rate of 
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits 

benefit obligation 43 46 44 
Expected return on plan assets (18) (19) (16) was assumed for 1998. The rate was assumed to decrease 
Amortization of prior service cost 7 6 1 gradually to 4.75% for 2005 and remain at that level there
Amortization of net transition obligation 16 16 18 after. Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant 
Recognized net actuarial loss (gain) 1- effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans.  

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs $A59 $ 58 $ 55 

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumed Health Care 
Cost trend Rates 

I-Percentage - 1Perce 0ge 
(In millions) Point tncrease Point Decrease 

Effect on totai of service and interest 
cost components $ 3 $ (2) 

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 30 (28) 
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18. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 
(In millions, except per share data) First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total 

1998 
Operating revenues $4,115 $4,014 $5,298 $4,183 $17,610 
Operating income 608 549 826 450 2,433 
EBIT 678 582 871 516 2,647 
Income before extraordinary item 328 279 429 224 1,260 
Net income 320 279 429 224 1,252 
Earnings per share (before extraordinary item) 

Basic $ 0.89 $ 0.76 $ 1.18 $ 0.60 $ 3.43 
Dilutive $ 0.89 $ 0.76 $ 1.17 $ 0.60 $ 3.42 

Earnings per share 
Basic $ 0.87 $ 0.76 $ 1.18 $ 0.60 $ 3.41 
Dilutive $ 0.87 $ 0.76 $ 1.17 $ 0.60 $ 3.40 

1997 
Operating revenues $3,786 $ 3,113 $4,820 $ 4,590 $16,309 
Operating income 610 352 606 402 1,970 
EBIT 644 407 632 425 2,108 
Net income 312 168 309 185 974 
Earnings per share 

Basic $ 0.84 $ 0.43 $ 0.83 $ 0.41 $ 2.51 
Dilutive $ 0.83 $ 0.43 $ 0.83 $ 0.40 $ 2.50 

19. Subsequent Event (Unaudited) 
On February 18, 1999, Duke Energy announced its intent 

to make a concurrent cash tender offer in Chilean pesos in 
Chile and the United States for 51% of the outstanding shares 
of Endesa-Chile. The estimated total cash outlay is approxi
mately $2.1 billion based on current exchange rates. The 
offer will be contingent upon, among other things, certain 
Endesa-Chile shareholder approvals. If all approvals are 
obtained, the transactions are expected to be completed 
during the second quarter of 1999. Endesa-Chile controls 
and operates 10,247 megawatts of generating capacity in 
Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Colombia and Peru.



Independent Auditors' Report Responsibility for Financial Statements 

* To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of The financial statements of Duke Energy Corporation 
Duke Energy Corporation (Duke Energy) are prepared by management, which is 

responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The statements 
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Duke are prepared in conformity with generally accepted account

Energy Corporation and subsidiaries (Duke Energy) as of ing principles appropriate in the circumstances to reflect in 
December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related consolidated all material respects the substance of events and transactions 
statements of income, common stockholders' equity and which should be included. The other information in the 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended annual report is consistent with the financial statements.  
December 31, 1998. These financial statements are the In preparing these statements, management makes informed 
responsibility of Duke Energy's management. Our responsi- judgments and estimates of the expected effects of events 
bility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and transactions that are currently being reported.  
based on our audits. The consolidated financial statements Duke Energy's system of internal accounting control is 
give retroactive effect to the merger of Duke Power designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safe
Company and PanEnergy Corp, which has been accounted guarded and transactions are executed according to manage
for as a pooling of interests as described in Note 2 to the ment's authorization. Internal accounting controls also 
consolidated financial statements. We did not audit the state- provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
ments of income, common stockholders' equity and cash properly, so that financial statements can be prepared accord
flows of PanEnergy Corp and subsidiaries for the year ended ing to generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, 
December 31, 1996, which statements reflect total operating accounting controls provide reasonable assurance that errors 
revenues of (in millions) $7,537 for the year ended December or irregularities which could be material to the financial 
31, 1996. Those financial statements were audited by other statements are prevented or are detected by employees within 
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our a timely period as they perform their assigned functions.  

opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Duke Energy's accounting controls are continually reviewed . PanEnergy Corp and subsidiaries for 1996, is based solely for effectiveness. In addition, written policies, standards and 
on the report of such other auditors. procedures, and a strong internal audit program augment 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally Duke Energy's accounting controls.  
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that The Board of Directors pursues its oversight role for the 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance financial statements through the audit committee, which is 
about whether the financial statements are free of material composed entirely of directors who are not employees of 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, Duke Energy. The audit committee meets with management 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the and internal auditors periodically to review the work of each 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the group and to monitor each group's discharge of its responsi
accounting principles used and significant estimates made bilities. The audit committee also meets periodically with 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial Duke Energy's independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP.  
statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the The independent auditors have free access to the audit com
report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for mittee and the Board of Directors to discuss internal account
our opinion. ing control, auditing and financial reporting matters without 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the the presence of management.  
other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Duke Energy as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, 
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1998 in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Jeffrey L. Boyer 

ViePresident and Corporate Controller 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Charlotte, North Carolina Deloitte & 
February 12, 1999 Topehpe bp 
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Glossary 

Base Load The minimum amount Generation The process of Peak Load The amount of electri

of electric power or natural gas deliv- transforming other forms of energy, city required during periods of highest 

ered or required over a given period of such as nuclear or fossil fuels, into demand. Peak periods fluctuate by 
time at a steady rate. The minimum electricity. Also, the amount of elec- season, generally occurring in the 

continuous load or demand in a power tric energy produced, expressed in morning hours in winter and in late 

system over a given period of time megawatt-hours. afternoon during the summer.  

usually not temperature sensitive. Independent System Operator Throughput The amount of 

British Thermal Unit (Btu) A (ISO) Ensures non-discriminatory natural gas transported through a 

standard unit for measuring thermal access to a regional transmission sys- pipeline system.  

energy or heat commonly used as ter, providing all customers access to Transmission System (Electric) 

a gauge for the energy content of the power exchange and clearing all An interconnected group of electric 

natural gas and other fuels. bilateral contract requests for use of transmission lines and related equip

Cogeneration Facility A facility the electric transmission system. Also ment for moving or transferring elec

that produces electric energy and use- responsible for maintaining bulk elec- tric energy in bulk between points of 

ful thermal energy for industrial, com- tric system reliability, supply and points at which it is trans

mercial, heating or cooling purposes. Jurisdictional Facilities and activi- formed for delivery over a distribution 

Combined Cycle The combination ties subject to the primary regulatory system to customers, or for delivery 

of one or more gas turbines and steam oversight of FERC or state regulatory to other electric transmission systems.  

turbines in an electric generation agencies. Transmission System (Natural 

plant. An electric generating technolo- Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) Gas) An interconnected group of nat

gy in which electricity is produced Natural gas that has been converted to ural gas pipelines and associated facil

from otherwise lost waste heat exiting a liquid by cooling it to -2600 F ities for transporting natural gas in 

from one or more gas turbines. Merchant Plant A power plant that bulk between points of supply and 

Cubic Foot (cf) The most common sells directly to wholesale customers delivery points to industrial cus

unit of measurement of gas volume; without its output necessarily being tomers, local distribution companies, 

the amount of natural gas required to committed to long-term power sales or for delivery to other natural gas 

fill a volume of one cubic foot under agreements. transmission systems.  

stated conditions of temperature, Natural Gas A naturally occurring 

pressure and water vapor. mixture of hydrocarbon and non
Distribution The system of lines, hydrocarbon gases found in porous Units of Measure: 

transformers and switches that con- geological formations beneath the TBtu One trillion British thermal units 

nect the electric transmission system earth's surface, often in association TBtu/d One trillion British thermal units 

to customers. with petroleum. The principal con- per day 

Federal Energy Regulatory stituent is methane. Mef One million cubic feet 

Commission (FERC) The agency Natural Gas Liquids (NGLs) MMcfd One million cubic feet per day 

that regulates the transportation of Liquid hydrocarbons extracted MW Megawatts, one million watts 
elctiit adnatural gas in interstate during the processing of natural gas. MWh Megawatt-hour, one million 

electricity and naturalogassnointerstat 
commerce and authorizes the buying Principal commercial NGLs include wanGigawatt, onelw 

and selling of energy commodities at butanes, propane, natural gasoline GWh Gigawatt-hour, one billion 
market-based rates. and ethane. watt-hours of energy 

Gathering System Pipeline, Natural Gas/Power Marketer MBbI/d One thousand barrels per day 

processing and related facilities that An entity which buys and sells a cor

access production and other sources modity or commodities at either fixed 

of natural gas supplies for delivery to or index prices. More sophisticated 
mainline transmission systems. trader/marketing entities also provide 

comprehensive energy management 
services, such as capacity, supply, 
storage and price risk management.  
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Duke Energy Corporation 
Principal Officers & Subsidiary Officers 

. Duke Energy Corporation Energy Services Finance 

Richard B. Priory * Harvey J. Padewer Richard J. Osborne 
Chairman of the Board, President and Group President, Energy Services Executive Vice President and 
Chief Executive Officer John F. Norris, Jr. Chief Financial Officer 

Senior Vice President, Energy Services David L. Hauser 
DuePwrand Chairman and Chief Executive Senior Vice President and Treasurer Duke PowerOfficer, Global Asset Development Sue A. Becht 

William A. Coley *Bradley C. Karp Vice President, Investor Relations 
Group President, Duke Power President and Chief Executive Officer, Jeffrey L. Boyer 
Michael S. Tuckman Duke Energy Trading and Marketing Vice President and Corporate Controller 
Executive Vice President, Nuclear Theodore C. McMeekin Cary D. Flynn 
Generation President and Chief Executive Officer, Vice President, Tax 

Curtis H. Davis Duke Engineering & Services 
Senior Vice President, Power Generation David L. Rehn 
E. 0. Ferrell, HI President and Chief Executive Officer, Corporate Administration 
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President, DukeSolutions Leonard B. Gatewood 

Fred J. Fowler * Senior Vice President, Strategic 
Group President, Energy Transmission Planning and Development . Jimmy W. Mogg General Counsel A. R. Mullinax 
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Management 

Standing, left to right: Fred Fowler William Coley, Richard Priory, Ruth Shaw and Richard Osborne.  

Seated: Harvey Padewer and Richard Blackburn.  

Policy Committee 

Richard B. Priory Fred I Fowler Ruth G. Shaw 
Chairman, President and Group President, Energy Transmission Executive Vice President and Chief 

Chief Executive Officer 53, joined Duke Energy in 1985; elected Administrative Officer 

52, joined Duke Energy in 1976; elected President of Trunk]ine in 1991; elected 51, joined Duke Energy in 1992 as Vice 

President of Duke Power in 1994; elected President of iSource Corporation in President, Corporate Communications; 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in 1993; elected President of Texas Eastern elected Senior Vice President, Corporate 

1997; elected President in 1998. in 1994; elected Group President of Resources in 1994; elected Executive 
Energy Transmission in 1997. Vice President and Chief Administrative 

Richard W. Blackburn Officer in 1997.  

Executive Vice President and Richard I Osborne 
General Counsel Executive Vice President and 
56, joined Duke Energy in 1997. Prior to Chief Financial Officer 

joining Duke Energy, Mr. Blackburn was 48, joined Duke Energy in 1975; elected 
President and Group Executive with Vice President and Chief Financial 

NYNEX Worldwide Communications and Officer in 1991; elected Executive 

Media Group. Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer in 1997.  

William A. Coley 
Group President, Duke Power Harvey J. Padewer 
55, joined Duke Energy in 1966; elected Group President, Energy Services 
President of Duke Power Company's 51, joined Duke Energy in 1998. Prior to 
Associated Enterprises Group in 1994; joining Duke Energy, Mr. Padewer was 

elected Group President of Duke Power Senior Vice President and General 

in 1997. Manager of Utilicorp Energy Group.  
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Quarterly Report Request Card 

Duke Energy sends Quarterly Reports to Shareholders and other 

interested parties who request them.  

If you would like to receive Quarterly Reports, please complete 
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Quarterly Report Request Card 

Duke Energy sends Quarterly Reports to Shareholders and other 
interested parties who request them.  

If you would like to receive Quarterly Reports, please complete 
and return this postage-paid response card.  

Yes, I want to receive Duke Energy's Quarterly Reports 
to Shareholders.  

Name: 

Address: 

City/State/Zip Code: 

Telephone Number:



Board of Directors 

* Richard B. Priory 
52, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief 
Executive Officer, Duke Energy Corporation.  
(Chairman, Management Committee; 
Finance Committee; Nominating Committee).  
Director since 1990.  

Alex Bernhardt, Sr. Harold S. Hook 
55, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 67, Retired Chairman and Chief Executive 
Bernhardt Furniture Company. Officer, American General Corporation.  
(Chairman, Corporate Performance Review (Corporate Performance Review Committee; 
Committee; Finance Committee). Finance Committee).  
Director since 1991. Director since 1978.  ERobert J. Brown George Dean Johnson, Jr.  
64, Chairman and President, 56, President and Chief Executive Officer, 
B&C Associates, Inc. Extended Stay America.  
(Audit Committee; Corporate Performance (Chairman, Finance Committee; 
Review Committee). Compensation Committee).  
Director since 1994. m u Director since 1986.  

WillGam A. Coley Dr. Max Lennon 
55 President, Duke Power. 58, President, Mars Hill College.  
(Management Committee). (Chairman, Audit Committee; Corporate 

CDirector since 1990. Governance Committee).  
Director since 1988.  

William T. Esrey Leo E. Linbeck, Jr.  
59, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 64, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive 
Sprint Corporation. Officer, Linbeck Corporation.  
(Compensation Committee; Corporate (Audit Committee; Compensation Committee).  
Governance Committee). Director since 1986.  
Director since 1985.  

Ann Maynard Gray James G. Martin 
53, Former President, Diversified -63, Vice President, Research 
Publishing Group, ABC, Inc. -Carolinas HealthCare System.  

(Audit Committee; Corporate Performance (Chairman, Corporate Governance Committee; 

Review Committee). Compensation Committee).  
Director since 1994. Director since 1994.  E Dennis R. Hendrix -Russell M. Robinson, HI 
59, Retired Chairman and Chief Executive 67, Attoney-at-Law, Robinson, 
Officer, PanEnergy Corp. Bradshaw & Hinson, PA.  
(Corporate Performance Review Committee; (Audit Committee; Corporate Performance 
Corporate Governance Committee). Review Committee).  
Director since 1990. Director since 1995.  
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Shareholder Information 

Annual Meeting InvestorDirect Choice Plan Transfer Agent and Registrar 

TheThe InvestorDirect Choice Plan Duke Energy maintains shareholder 
Therg 1999annualdeMeeting ofue: provides a simple and convenient records and acts as Transfer Agent 

Energy Shareholders will be: 
way for interested parties to purchase and Registrar for the company's corn

Date: Thursday. April 15, 1999 common stock directly through the mon and preferred stock issues.  
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Dear Rick: 
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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER. THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995 

From' time to fime,-Duke Energy may make statements regarding its assumptions, projections, expectationts, intentions
or beliefs about future events. These ' statements are intended as "forward-looking statements" uinder.:the Private'. Securities 
Litigation Reform Act of 19 95. Duk6 Energy cautions t hat assumptions; projections,- I xpe ctations,' intent onisor beliefs'about 
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-differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. For'a discussion of some factors that 
,could cause actual achievements and events to differ miiterially, from~those expressed or imiehd in such forward-looki 
statements, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and, Financial. Condition, Current 1ss 

Forward-Looking. Statements." '. -



PART .  

1. Business.  
NERAL 

Duke Energy Corporation (collectively with its subsidiaries, "Duke Energy") is an integrated energy and 'energy' ser
vices provider with the ability to offer physical delivery and management of both electricity and natural gas. throughout the 
United,States and abrdad. Duke Energy provides these and other services through seven business segments: 

* Electric Operations 
* Natural Gas Transmission 
* Field Services 
* Trading and Marketing 
* Global Asset Development 
* Other Energy Services 
* Real Estate Operations .  

These segments were defined as a result of Duke Energy adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information." 

Electric Operations generates, transmits, distributes and sells electric energy in central and western, North Carolina and 
the western portion of South Carolina (doing business as Duke Power or Nantahala-Power and Light). These electric opera
tions are subject to the rules and regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the North Carolina 
Utilities Commission (NCUC) and the Public Service Commission of South Cardlitia (PSCSC.  

Natural Gas Transmission, through is Northeast Pipelines, provides interstate transportatiofianid storage of naturaf gas 
for customers primarily in the Mid-Atlantic and New England states. Until the expected sale of the Midwest Pipeliiibs in 
early 1999, Natural Gas Transmission also provides inteIrstate transportation and storage services in 'the Midwest states. See 
further discussion.of the proposed sale of-the Midwest Pipelines in.Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The 

erstate natural gas transmission and storage operations are also subject to the rules and regulations of the FERC.  
Field Services gathers, processes, transports and markets natural gas and produces and markets, natural gas liquids 

GL). Field Services operates'gathering systems in ten states that, serve rmajor' gas-'produciiig'regions in the Rocky Moun
tain, Permian Basin, Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast areas.  

Trading and. Marketing markets natural gas, 'electricity and other energy-related products across North America. Duke 
Energy owns a 60% interest in Trading and Marketing's operations, with Mobil Corporation'owning a 40% minority interest.  

Global Asset Development develops, owns and operates energy-related facilities worldwide. Global Asset D'eve.l6pm~ent 
conducts its.operations primarily through Duke Energy Power Services, LLC'(Duke Energy Power Services) and Duke 
Energy International, LLC (Duke Energy International). .  

Other Energy Services' provides engin'eering,' coinsulting, constrOction and integrated energy solutions worldwide, pri
marily through Duke Engineering & Services, Inc. (Duke Engineering & Services), Dtike/Fluor Daniel and DukeSolutions, 
Inc., (DukeSolutions).  

Real Estate Operations conducts its business through Crescent Resources, Ilic., 'which develops high quality coinmer
cial and residential real estate projects and manages forest holdings in the sotitheastern-United States.  

The 1997 merger of Duke Power Company (Duke Power) and PanEnergy Corp (PanEnergy) was accounted for.as, a 
pooling of interests; therefore all financial information included in this annual report for periods prior to the inerger include 
the combined historical financial results of Duke Power arid PanEiergy. (See Note'2 to the Consolidated Financial, Statements.) 

Certain terms used to describe Duke En&'s business are explained below.  

Base Load. The:minimum amount'of efectric power or naturalgas delivered or required over a givei period of time at a 
steady rate. The minimum continuous load or demand ina power system over algiven period of time usually not'tempera
ture sensitive.  

O ritish Thermal Unit (Btu). A standard unit for measuring 'thermail energy Or. heat commonly used as a gauge for the eniergy 
ntent of natural gas and other fuels.



Brownfield Development. The development of a new power generating facility on a site with existing industrial assets 
typically power generating assets.  

Cogeneration Facility. A facility that produces electric energy and useful thermal energy for industrial, commercial, heW 
ing or cooling purposes.  

Combined Cycle. The combination of one or more gas turbines and steam turbines in an electric generation plant. An 'elec
tric generating technology in Which electricity is produced' froin otherwise lost waste heat exiting from one or inore gas 
turbines.  

Cubic Foot (cf). The most common unit of measurement of gas volume; the amount of natural gas required to fill a vol
ume of one cubic foot under stated conditions of temperature, pressure and water vapor.  

Distribution. The system of lines, transformers and switches that connect the electric transmission system to customers.  

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). The agency that regulates the transportation 'of electricity-aiid natural 
gas, in interstate commerce and authorizes the buying and selling of energy commodities at markt-based rates.  

Gathering System. Pipeline, processing and related facilities that access production "and other sources of natural gas sup
plies for delivery to mainline transmission systems.  

Generation. The process of transforming Other forms of eiergy, such as nuclear or fossil fuels, into electricity. Also, the 
arhount'of electric energy produced, expressed in megawatt-hours.  

Greenfield Development. The development of a new power generating facility..: 

Independent System Operator (ISO). Ensures non-discriminatory access to a regional transmission system, providing all 
customers access to.,the power exchange and clearing all bilateral contract requests for use of the electrictransmission sys
tem. Also responsible for maintaining bulk electric system reliability. .  

Jurisdictional.. Facilities and activities subject'to the primary regulatory oversight of FERC or state regulat6ry agencies.  

Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG). Natural gas that has been converted to a liquid by cooling it to -260 degrees-Fahrenh 

Merchant Plant. A power plant that sells directly to wholesale customers without its output necessarily being committed 

long-term power sales agreements.  

Natural Gas. A naturally occurring mixture, of hydrocarbon and non-hydrocarbon gases found in porous geological forma
tions beneath the earth's surface, often in association with petroleum. The principal constituent is methane , 

Natural Gas Liquids (NGLs). Liquid hydrocarbons extracted during, the processing of natural gas. Principal commercial 
NGLs include butanes, propane, natural.gasoline and ethane.  

Natural Gas/Power Marketer. An entity which buys and sells a commddity or con'imodities at either fixed or index prices.  
More sophisticated trader/marketing entities also provide comprehensive energy management services, such as capacity, sup
ply, storage and price risk management. . . .: 

Peak Load. The amount of electricity required during periods of highest demand. Peak periods fluctuate by season, gener
ally occurring in the morning !hours in winter and in late afternoon during the summer.  

Throughput. The amount of natural gas transported through a pipeline system.  

Transmission System' (Electric). An interc6rinected'group of electic transmission lines and related equipment for moving 
or transferring electric energy in-bulk between points of supply and points at which it is transformed for delivery overa 
distribution system to customers, or for delivery to other electric transmissionosystens.  

Transmission System (Natural Gas). An interconnected, group of natural gas pipelines -and associated faciliiies for trans
porting.natural gas in bulk between, points of supply and delivery points.to industrial customers, local distribution compa
nies, or for delivery, to pther natural gas transmission systems.  

A discussion of the current business and operations of each of Duke Energy's segments follows. Duke Energy'eipects 
moderategrowth in its Electric Operations segment, consistent with historical trends. The Northeast Pipelines are an essen
tial part.of Natural Gas Transmission's strategy to advance projects that provide expanded services to meet the specific nee 
of customers. The proposed sale of the Midwest Pipelines allows Natural Gas Transmission to focus on regions, such as 
northeastern U.S., with increasing demand for gas. Duke Energy plans to significantly grow several of its other business 
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segments: Field Services, Trading and Marketing, Global Asset Development and Other Energy Services. For further disQession of the operating outlook of Duke Energy and its segments, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results 
Operations and Financial Condition, Current Issues - Operations Outlook." For financial information concerning Duke 

nergy's business segments, see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Business Segments." 

Duke Energy is a North Carolina, corporation with its principal execuiive offices located at 526 South Church Street, 
Charlotte, NC 28202-1904. The telephone number is 704-594-6200.  

ELECTRIC OPERATIONS..  

Service Area and Custoriters 

Electric Operations' service area, approximately two-thirds' of which lies in North Carolina, covers about 22,000 square 
.1, . '. . . f. I . .  

miles witti an estimated liopulation of 5.2 million and includes a number of cities, of which the .1arestare Charlotte, Greens
6oro, Winst6n-Salem and Durham in-North Caiolina and Grenille and Spartanburg in South Carolina.. Electric Operations 
supplies electric service directly to Approximately two million residental, commercial and industrial customers in more than 
200 cities, towns and unincorporated communities. Electricity is sold at wholesale to incorporated municipalities and -to sev
eral public and private utilities. In addition, sales are made through contractual agreements to municipal or cooperative cus
torters who purchased portions bf the'Catawba Nuclear Station. For statistics related to-gig'awatt hofir sales by'cistomer 
type, see"Business,'Operating'Statistics." For further'discussion of'the Cafawba Nuclear Station'joidiL othnership s'ee 
Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Joint Ownership of Generating Facilities."' 

Electric Operations' service area is undergoing increasingly diversified industrial development. The textile industry, 
machinery and equipment manufacturing, and chemical and chemical-related industries are of major significance to the 
economy, of the area. Other industrial activities include rubber and plastic products, paper and allied products, and various 
other light and heavy manufacturing and service businesses. The largest industry served is the textile industry, which accounted 
for approximately $456 million of Electric ;Operations' revenues for 1998, representing 10% of total, electric revyenues and 
37% of industrial revenues. Electric Operations normally experiences seasonal peak loads in summer and winter.  
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Capability .and Resources of Energy 

Electric energy required to supply the needs of Electric Operations' customers is primarily generated by three nuclear 
generating stations with a combined net capability of 5,020 MW. (Oconee Nuclear Station- 2,538 MW, McGuire Nuclear 
Station - 2,200 MW and Catawba Nuclear Station - 282 MW, which represents Electric Operations' 12.5% ownership 
share in the Catawba Nuclear Station), eight coal-fired stations with a combined capability of 7,699 MW, thirty-one hydro
electric stations with a combined capability of 2,797 MW and six combustion turbine stations with a combined capability 
of 1,784 MW. Energy and 'capacity are also supplied through contracts with other generators of electricity and purchased on 
the open market. Electric Operations has interconnections and arrangements with its neighboring utilities, which are consid
ered adequate for planning, emergeicy assistance, exchange of capacity and energy and reliability of power supply. Future 
increased energy requiitments of Electric Operations' customers are 'expected'to be supplied through purchased power con
tracts and open market puichases. For statistics regarding sources of electric energy see "Business, Operating Statistics." 

Fuel Supply 

Electric Operations presently. relies principally on coal and nuclear fuel .for the generation of electric energy. Electric 
Operations' reliance on oil and gas is minimal. Information regarding the utilization of sources of power and cost of fuels 
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1998 is set forth in the following table: 

'Generation bySource Cost of Fuel per Net 
(Percent) (d) Kilowatt-hour Generated (Cents) 

1998 1997 1996 1998 1997 - 1996 

Coal...................................... 50.7 59.0 53.6 132, 1.30 1.40 
Nuclear (a) ........................... ...... 46.2 38.5 43.7 0.44 0.48 0.53 
Oil and gas (b) * ............................. 1.0 '.4 .3 4.01 5.58' 6.74 

All fuels (cost based on weighted average) (a) ................. 97.9 97.9 97.6 0.93 0.99' 1.02 
Hydroelectric (c) .................................. 2.1 2.1. 2.4 

100.0 100.0 100.0 

(a) Statistics related to nuclear generation and all fuels reflect Electric Operations' 12.5% ownership interest in the Catawba 
Nuclear Station.  

(b) Cost statistics include amounts for light-off fuel at Electric Operations' coal-fired stations.  

(c) Generating figures are net of output required to replenish pumped storage units during off-peak periods.  

(d) Years prior to 1998 have been restated to include Nantahala Power and Light.  

Coal. Electric Operations obtains a large amount of its coal under supply contracts with mining operators utilizing both 
underground and surface mining. Electric Operations currently has an adequate supply of coal. Its supply contracts, all of 
which have price adjustment provisions, have expiration dates- ranging from 1999 to 2003. Duke Energy believes that it will 
be able to renew such contracts as they expire or to enter into similar contractual arrangements with other coal suppliers for 
the quantities and qualities of coal required. The coal 'purchased under these supply contracts is produced from mines located 
in eastern Kentucky, southern West Virginia and southwestern Virginia. Coal requirements not met by supply contracts have 
been and are expected to be fulfilled with spot market' purchases.  

The average sulfur content of coal being purchased by Electric Operations is approximately 1%. Such coal satisfies the 
current emission limitation for sulfur dioxide for 'existing facilities. See also "Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Results of Operations and Financial Condition, Current Issues - Environmental, Air Quality Control" for additional infor
mation regarding particulate matter.  

Nuclear. Generally, the supply of fuel for nuclear generating units involves the mining and milling of uranium ore to 
produce uranium concentrates, the conversion of uranium concentrates to uranium hexafluoride, enrichment of that gas and 
fabrication of the enriched uranium hexafluoride into usable fuel assemblies. After a region (approximately one-third of.the 
nuclear fuel assemblies in the reactor at any time) of spent fuel is removed from a nuclear reactor, it is placed in temporary 
storage for cooling in a spent fuel pool at the nuclear station site. Electric Operations has contracted for uranium materia 
and services required to fuel the Oconee, McGuire and Catawba Nuclear Stations. Based upon current projections, the 
contracts will meet Electric Operaitions'-requirements through the following years: 
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Uranium Conversion Enriclunent Fabication 
Nuclear-Station Material Service Service Service 

Oconee . ....... 1999 199 9 2 .2006, Oconiee,.......................................... ............ 2009 
1, , . , 1 '2 0 

McGuire' ...................... 1999 1999 20012009; 
Catawba ................ ............. .1999 1999, .2001 2009 .  

Uranium material requirements will be met through varidfs supplier contracts, with urainium material .prodced 'prima
rily in the United States and Canada Duke Energy believes tiatit will be able to renew contracts as they-expire or to enter 
into similar contractual-arrangements with other -suppliers of nuclear fuel. materials and services. Requirements not.tet by 
long-term supply contracts have' been and are 'expectedto be fulfilled with 'uranium spot ffiarket purchases. Duk&'neigy, in 
cooperation with other companies,, submitted a proposal to the Department.of Energy (DOE).tp use mixed oxide,fuel at its 
McGuire and Cataivbarnuclear stations. The mixed oxide fuelis very similar to conventional uraiiium fuel, but it utilizes 
plutoniuni from the government's surplus. Before.using the mixed oxide fuel, a contractmust be executed with the DOE 
and Duke Energy must apply -for apd receive amendrients to their respective:facility. operating licenses from.the Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC); Mixed oxide is currently not% expected tobe available prior to 2007.  

Under provisions of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, Duke Energy has entered into 'contracts with the DOE for 
the disposal of spent nuclear fuel. The DOE failed to begin accepting the spent nuclear fuel.on January 31' 1998, the date 
provided by the Nuclear Waste Policy Act and by Duk eEnergy',s contract with the .DOE. On June 8, 1998, Duke Energy 
filed with the United States' Court of Federal Claims a claim against the DOE for damages in excess of $1 billion arising 
out of the DOE's failure to begin accepting commercial spent nuclear fuel by January 31, 1998. Damages claimed in the 
suit are intended to recover costs that Duke Energy is incurring and will continue to incur as a result of the DOE's partial 
material breach of its contract with Dike Eergy, including costs associated with secuihi additional spent fuel storage 
capacity. Duke Energy Will continue to safely dianage its spent nuclear fiel untii the DOE accepts it.  

Competition 

Electric industry restructuring is 'being addressed in all 50 states and in the District of Columbia which is resulting in 
anges in the industry. For further 'discussion, see "Management's Discussioh and Analysis of Results of Operations and 
nancial Condition, Current Issues - Electric Competition." 

Electric Operations is subject to, competition in some areasfr'om government-owned power systems, municipally-owned 
electric systems, rural; electric cooperatives and, incertain instances, other private utilities. Currently, statutes in:North Caro
lina and South Carolina provide for the assignment by the NCUC and the PSCSC, respectively, of all areas outside munici
palities in such States to regulated electric utilities andirural electric cooperatives. Substantially all of the territory compris
ing the Electric Operations' service area.has been so assigned. The remaining.areas have. been designated as unassigned 'and 
in such areas Electric Operations rem'ainssubject to, competition. A decision of the North Carolina Supreme Court limits, in 
some instances, the right of North Carolina muniicipalities to serve customers outside' their corporate limits., In South Carol 
lina there continues, to be compeition between municipalities and other electricsuppliers outside the corporate limits of the 
municipalities, subject, however, to the regulation of the PSCSC.. In addition', Electric Operations is engaged in continuing 
competition with various natural gas providers.  

Regulation .  

The NCUC and the PSCSC apfove rates for retail electtic sales within their respective states. The FERC approves 
Electric Operations' rates for electric sales to wholesale customers. For further discussion of rate matters and fuel and pu
chased power cost adjustment procedures, see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Regulatory Matters 
Electric Operations.". The 'FERC, -the NCUC and the PSCSC 'also. have authority over the construction and operation of 
Electric Operations'. facilities. Electric Operations holds certificates of public convenience and necessity issued by the FERC, 
the NCUC and the PSCSC,' authorizing it to construct and operate the electric facilities now in operation for which certifi
cates are required, and to sell electricity to retail and wholesale customers. Prior approval from the NCUC and the PSCSC 
is required to issue securities.  

The NCUC, PSCSC and FERC have implemented regulations governing accessto regulated electric custoiier data by 
non-regulated entities and services provided between regulated and non-regulated affiliated entities. These regtilations affect 
the activities of Trading and Marketing, Global Asset Development, and Other Energy Services with the Electric Operations Sgment.  

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 (EPACT) and the FERC's subsequent rulemaking activities permit the FERC to order 
transmission access for third parties to transmission facilities owned'by another entity. EPACT does not, however, permit 
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the FERC to issue orders reqiiring transmission acess to retail customers. The FERC has issued orders for third-party 
transmission service and a number of rules of general applicability, including Orders 888 and 889. Pursuant to.the FER 
final rules, Electric Operations obtained from the FERC open-access rule. the rights 'to sell capacity and energy at nark 
based rates fr6nr its own assets. For furthet discussion, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Opera
tions and Financial.Conditidd,; Current Issues -' Eleciric Competition." 

The Electric Operations segment is subject to the jurisdiction of the NRC as to the design, ,construction and operation 
of its nuclear stations. For discussions of nuclear decommi ssioning costs and niuclear.insurance regulatory iequiren!nts and 
coverages, see Note -1:. to the Consolidated'.Financial Statements, "Nuclear. Decommissioning Costs".and Note 14 to% the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, "Commitments and Contingencies -Nuclear.Insurance," respectively.  

The hydfoelectric generating facilities of Electric Operations are licensed by the FERC' udidr Part Iof the Federal 
Power Act, with license terms expiring from, 2001 to 2036: The nuclear geneiating' facilitie' .bf Electric Operations aie 
'licentsed by the NRC with. license terms-expiring from 2013' to 2026. TIe FERC has authority to grant extensions' of hydro
electric generating licenses, and the NRC has'aiiffiority to grant et(efisions of nuclear gener'ating licenses. Duke Energy has 
applied for a 20-year renewal of 'its operating license for' -the Oconee Nuclear-Stati6n. The license rehewal process could 
take three to five years to complete .  

The Electric Operations .segment is subject to the 'jurisdiction, of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and 'state 
environmental agencies. For a discussion of envifonmental.regulation, see "Business, Environmental Matters."' 

NXTURAL GAS TRANSMISSION T " 

Natural Gas Transmission consists of the N6rtheast Pipelines, which includs Texas East&n Transmission Corporation 
(TETCO) andAlgdnquin Gas Trinsmission (Algonquin), and th Midwiest Pipelines, which includes Panhandle 
Eastern Pipe Line Company (PEPL) and Trunkliie Gas Comliaiy'(Trunkline). PEPL and Trunkline, along with additional 
storage related to those systems, are expected to be sold to CMS Energy Corporation in early 1999. See further discussion 
of'the sale in "Managemeit's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, Liquidity and 
Capital Resources." 

For 1998, consolidated natural gas deliveries by Natural Gas Transmission's. interstate pipelines totaled 2,593 TB 
(Trillion British 'thermal units), compared to 2,862 TBtu in 1997, which represented approximately 12% of the natural g 
consumed in the United States. The Northeatst'Pipelines and the Midwest Pipelines natural gas deliveries were 1,459 TBtu 
ahd 1,141 TBtu,-respectively, il.1998, with'7'TBtu of intercompany transportation. A sibstaniial'majority of the delivered 
volumes of Natural Gas Trarismission's .interstate pipelines' epiesents gas tiansported 'iider long-terfi firm service agree
ments with local distribution company (LDC)'customerslin the Ipelines' market ardag. Firmr'ansportatiotn services are also.  
provided under contract to.'gas'marketers, producers, other pipelines,'electric power'generatots and a vahety 'of end-users.  

'In additioil, the pipelines provide both firm anid interruptible transportation to customers on alshort-term or seasonal basis: 
See natural' gas deliveries statistics under "Business, Opertinig Statistics." Demand fori ghs transmission of Natural Gas 
Transmission's interstate pipeline systems is'sea'sonal, 'with the highest throughput occurri ng during the colder periods in the 
first and .fourth quarters.  

In 1998, Natural Gas Transmission's fully interconnected interstate pipeline system.consisted of approximately 20,700 
miles.and received natural gas from most major North American producing regions for delivery to markets throughout the 
Northeast and Midwest states. The proposed sale of the Midwest Pipelines would result in a reduction. of'approximately 
10,400 miles in Duke Energy's interstate'pipeline systems.  
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Midwest Pipelines' 

PEPL's major customers include 20 utilities located in the Midwest market area that encompasses large portions 
Michigan, Ohio, Indiana, Illinois and Missouri. Trunkline's major customers include eight utilities located in portion W 
Tennessee, Missouri, Illinois, Indiana and Michigan.  

PEPLalso owns ahd operates threeunderground storage fields located in Illinois, Michigan and Oklahoma with work
ing gas capacity of 31 Bcf. PEPL has received FERC approval to transfer these 'storage fields to. its subsidiary, Pan Gas 
Storage Company (Pan Gas) and has filed'for an effective date of April 1, 1999. Pan Gas is also the owner and operator of 
a 26 Bcf storage field in Kansas. Trunkline owns and operates one 13 Bcf storage field in Louisiana. Since the implemen
tation of Order 636, each of PEPL, Trunkline and Pan Gas provide firm and interruptible storage on an open-access basis.  
In addition to owning and operating storage fields, PEPL also leases storage capacity. PEPL and Trunkline have retained the 
right to use up to 15 Bcf and 10 Bcf, respectively, of their storage capacity for'system needs. See further discussion of Order 
636 in "Business, Natural Gas Transmission.- Regulation." 

Competition P 

Duke Energy's interstate pipeline subsidiaries compete with other interstate and intrastate pipeline companies in the 
transportation and storage of natural gas. The principal elements of competition among pipelines are rates, terms of service, 
and, flexibility and reliability of service.,, 

In the Mid-Atlantic and New Englind markets, TETCO competes directly with Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corpo
ration, Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company (TGPC), Iroquois Gas Traismission System (Iroquois), CNG Transmission Corpo
ration and Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation. Algonquin competes directly in certain market areas with TGPC and 
Iroquois. PEPL and Trunkline compete directly with ANR Pipeline Company, Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America 
and Texas Gas Transmission Corporation in the Midwest'market area.  

Natural gas competes with other foims of energy available to Duke Energy's customers and end-users, including elec
tricity, coal and fuel oils. The primary, competitive factor is price. Changes in the availability or price of natural gas and 
other forms of energy, the level of business activity, conservation; legislation and governmental regulations, the capability 
to convert to alternative fuels, and other factors, including weather, affect the demand for natural gas in the areas served b 
Duke Energy.  

Regulation 

The FERC has authority to regulate rates and charges foi natural gas transported in or stored for interstate commerce 
or sold by a natural gas company in interstate commerce for resale. For further discussion of rate matters, see "Manage
ment's Discussion and. Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Operating Cash Flows' and Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Regulatory Matters - Natural Gas Transmis
sion." The FERC also has authority over the construction and operation of pipeline and related facilities utilized in the 
transportation and-sale of'natural gas in interstate commerce, including the extension, enlargement or abandonrnefit of'such 
facilities. TETCO, Algonquin,,PEPL, Trunkline and Pan Gas. hold certificates of public convenience and necessity issued by 
the FERC, authorizing them to'cppstruct and operate the pipelines, facilities-and properties now in operation for which such 
certificates are required, and to transport:and stpre. natural gas in interstate commerce., 

Natural ,Gas Transmission's pipelinesoperate as open-access; transporters of natural gas,. In 1992, the FERC issued 
Order 636, which requires open-access pipelines to provide firm and int&ruptible. transportation services on an equal basis 
for all gas supplies, whether purchased from the pipeline or from another gas supplier. To implement- this requirement, Order 
636 provided, among, other things,.formandatory unbundling pftservices'that, historically. had, been; provided by pipelines.  
into separate Open-access transportation, sales and storage services. Order 636. allows pipelines to recover eligible costs, 
known as "transition costs," resulting from the implementation of Order 636. For further discussion of Order 636, see 
Note .4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Regiilatory Matters Natuiral Gas Transmission." 

Natuial Gas Tiansinissid ,is subject to thejurisdiction of the EPA. and state environmental agencies. For , a discussion 
of environnmental regulation,' se6 Business, Environmental Ma trs." Natural Gas Transmission is also subject to the Natu
ral Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, ,which regIulates gas pipeline aid' LNG plant safety requirements, and to the Hazard
ous Liquid Pipeline Safety Act of 1979, which regulates oil and petroleum pipelines.



FIELD SERVICES..  

Field Services gathers, processes, transports and markets natural gas and produces and markets NGLs. Field Services 
as and operates approximately 20,000 miles of natural. gas gathering systems, including intrastate pipelines, and 32 natu

ral. gas processing plants in the United States. Field Services also has ownership interests: in 12 other natural gas process-.  
ing plants in the'United States..  

Field Services gathers natural gas from production wellleads through gathering systems located in ten states that serve 
major gas-producing regions in the Rocky Mountain, Permian Basin, Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast (offshore and onshore) 
areas. Field Services' gathering operations also include several intrastate pipeline systems and.two natural gas storage 
facilities.' 

The map beloW includes Field Services' natural gas gathering systems, including intrastate pipelines, offices and sup
ply areas. The map also includes the interstate systems of the Natural Gas Transmission segment.  

.. ..... ..... .... ..... ... ... ..  

Denver 

CO 

4 Jb1sa 

AR, 

NMN 

Midland 

- Field Services 

Offices 
._ SupplyAreas 

.9



Field Services' NGL processing operations involve the extraction of NGLs from natural gas and, at certain facilities, 
the, fractionation of'the. NGLsinto their.individual components (ethane, propane, butane and natural gasoline).. The natur 
gas used in Field Services' processing operations is generally gathered on-its own gathering system or from.the naturalgW 
stream-on Duke Energy's transmission system. NGLs are sold-by Field Services to.a-variety of customersranging from large, 
multi-national petrochemical and refining companies to small, family-owned retail propane distributors..NGL sales are based 
upon current market-related prices. Field Services also produces helium at the National Helium Corporation facility in Lib
eral, Ka sas. r:... ..  

vField Services' operating results-are significantly, impacted by changes in NGL prices, which. declined approximately.  
25.7% in 1998 compared to 1997. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial 
Condition, Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures Aboit Market Risk" for a discussion of Field Services' exposure to 
changes in commodity prices.  

In 1998, Field Services sold assets related to its crude oil gathering and marketing business, including 1,800 miles of 
intrastate crude oil pipelines in the Mid-Continent and South Texas areas and 450 miles of intrastate NGL pipelines in the 
Texas Gulf Coast area, to-TEPPCO Partners, L.P. (TEPPCO) in exchange for an additional ownership interest in TEPPCO.  
As a result of the sale, Duke Energy now has a 2% general partner interest and a 19.1% limited partner interest in TEPPCO, 
a publicly owned master limited" partnership that transports refined products and liquefied petroleum gases through a 4,300 
mile pipeline system.,.  

Field Services expects to'complete the $1.35 billion acquisition of the natural gas gathering, processing, fractionation 
and NGL pipeline business of Union Pacific Resources including its natural gas and NGL marketing activities on or about 
March 31, 1999.

- See certain operating statistics of Field Services under "Business, Operating Statistics." Activities of Field Services can 
fluctuate in response to the seasonality affecting natural gas.  

Competition 
Field Services competes with major integrated oil companies, major interstate pipelines, national and local natural g 

gatherers, brokers, marketers and distributors for natural gas supplies, in gathering and processing natural gas and in mal 
keting and transporting natural gas and NGLs. Competition for natural gas supplies is primarily based on efficiency, reli
ability, availability of transportation and the ability to obtain a satisfactory price for the producer's natural gas. Competition 
for customers is based primarily upon. reliability and price: of delivered natural gas and NGLs.  

Regulation .  

The intrastate pipelines owned by the Field Services group are subject to state regulation and, to the extent they pro
vide services under Sectioli 311 of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 (NGPA), are also subject to FERC regulation. The 
natural gas.gathering activities of the Field Services group are generally not subject to regulation bV the FERC, but are sub
ject to state regulation.  

Field Services is subject. to the jurisdiction of the EPA and state environmental agencies. For a discussion of environ
mental regulation, see "Business, Environmental Matters." Certain operations of Field Services are subject to the jurisdic
tion of the Department of Transportation and certainsimilar state agencies whose regulations have incorporated certain pro
visions of the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, the Hazardous Liquid Pipeline Safety Act of 1979, and subsequent 
.amendments.  

TRADING AND MARKETING 

Trading and Marketing markets natural gas, electricity and other energy-related products across North America. Duke 
Energy owns a 60% interest in Trading and Marketing's operations, with Mobil Corporation (Mobil) owning-a 40% minor
ity interest.  

Trading'aid Marketifig was formed in August 1996 as a hatural-gas and power iarketiig joint Veifture with-Mbbil.  
Operations were expanded in June 1997 when- a wholly owned subsidiary of Duke Energy acquired from affiliates of Louis 
Dreyfus Corp. the remaining 50% ownership interest in Duke/Louis Dreyfus, L.L.C. (DILD), which Duke Energy did not 
already own.



Trading and Marketing markets natural gas primarily to local distribution companies, electric power generators, inclue-k 
g Global Asset Development's generation facilities, municipalities, industrial end-users and energy marketing companies.  
ading and Marketing markets electricity to. iivestdr owned utilities, municipal power generators and other power market

rs. Operations are primarily in the United States-and, to a lesser extent, in Canada, and are serviced through 16 offices or 
operating centers.  

Natural gas marketing operations encompass both on-system and off-system sales. With respect to on-system sales,
Trading,and Marketing generally purchases natural gas from Field Services' facilities and delivers the gas to an intrastate or 
interstate pipeline for redelivery to another customer. Natural Gas Transmission's pipelines, are utilized for deliveries When 
prudent. With respect to off-system sales, Trading and Marketing purchases natural gas from producers, pipelines and other 
suppliers not connected with Duke Energy'sfacilities for resale to customers. Substantially all of Mobil's United States and 
Canadian natural gas production is committed to be iarketed through Trading and Marketing through 2006.  

With respect to electricity marketing operations, Trading and Marketing purchases electricity from third-partysuppli
ers and from Global Asset Development's generation, facilities in California and Connecticut for resale to customers.  

Trading and Marketing has a portfolio of short-term. and'long-terni sales agreements with customtiers, the vast tmajority 

of which incorporate market-sensitive pricing terms. Long-term gas purchase agreements with producers, principally entered 
into in coinection with on-system sales, also generally include market-sensitive pricing provisions. Purchases and sales- of 
off-system gas and electricity supply are normally made under short-term contracts. Purchase and sales commitments involv-.  
ing significant price and location risk aregenerally hedged with commodity futures, swaps and options. For information 
concerning Trading and Marketing's risk-maliagement activities, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results.of 
Operations and Financial Condition, Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk - Commodity Price Risk" 
and;Note .7 to the-Consolidated Financial Statements, "Risk Manageinent and Financial Instruments - Commodity Instruments 
Trading." 

Trading and Marketing also provides energy management services, such as supply and market aggregation, peaking 
services, dispatching, balancing, transportation, storage, t6lling, contract negotiation and administration, as well as energy 
commodity risk management products and services.  

See certain operating statistics of,Trading and.Marketing under, "Business, Operating Statistics." Activities. of Trading 
. nd Marketing can fluctuate in response to the seasonality affecting both electricity and natural gas.  

Competition 

Trading and .Marketing competes with major integrated oil companies, major interstate pipelines and their marketing 
affiliates, brokers, marketers and distributors and electricutilities. and other electric power marketers for, natural gas supplies 
and in marketing natural gas, electricity and-other.energy commodities. Competition in the energy marketing business is 
driven by the price of-commodities and services delivered, along with the quality and reliability of services provided.  

. Regulation 

The energy marketing activities of Trading and Marketing may, in certain circumstances, be subject to the jurisdiction 
of theFERC. Current FERC policies permit Trading and Marketing entities subject to FERC jurisdiction to market natural 
gas and electricity at market-based rates.  

GLOBAL ASSET DEVELOPMENT 

Global Asset Development develops, owns aid operates.energy-related facilities worldwide. Global Assei Development 
conducts its operatiofis primarily through Duke Energy Power'SerVices and Duke Energy International.  

Deregulation of energy markets in the United,States and abroad is providing substantial oppotunities -for Global Asset 
Development to capitalize on its,.broad capabilities. Global Asset Development is an active participant in competitive power 
markets worldwide. Global Asset Development owns and operates approximately 4,100 megawatts of generation, including 
projects under construction, and has ownership interests in approximately 3,800 megawatts of generation, iicluding projects 
uider cditsthiction. Global Asset Development also wii and 6perates, approximately 900 miles of pipeline systems inAus
talia, includifig projects planned for constituction, and has ownership interests in approxinfately 1,000 miles of pipeline sys

ms, including projects under construction.,, 
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Duke Energy Power Services 

Duke Energy Power Services develops, owns and operates large y unregulated electric generation projects across 
United States. Duke Energy Power Services focuses on acquisition's of existing energy production facilities, greenfield an 
brownfield development oppohunities and operating'energy assets throughout North America.  

In 1998, Duke Energy Power Services completed the purchase of three electric generating plants in California from 
Pacific Gas & Electric 'Company (PG&E). Two of these electric generating plants sell electricity under the terms of Reli
ability Must Run Agreements with the California Indepepdent System Operator, which purchases electricity at FERC regu
lated rates. The plants have a combined net operating capacity of 2,645 megawatts.' Pursuant to California's electric restnic
turing law, Duke Energy Power Services entered into a contract with PG&E to operate and maintain the facilities f6r. two 
years following the sale. Energy and.'capacity from the plants is being s'old into the California power Iexchange and under 
separate contracts.  

Other investments include a 32.56 indirect' ownership interest 'in American Ref-Fuel Company, which owns five waste
to-energy facilities in New York, New Jersey, Massachusetts and Connecticut. Such facilities process about 4 million tons 
of municipal solid waste per year and have an aggregate generating capacity of 286 megawatts.  

Projects' under construction include: the second phase of the Bridgeport Energy Project, a 520-megawatt combined 
cycle natural gas-fired merchant'generation plant in'Connecticut;' the Maine Independence Station, a 520-megawatt com
bined cycle'natural gas-fired merchant generation plant in Maine' which is scheduled to begin producing pover in- the sum
mer of 2000; and the Hidaigo project, a 510-megawatt power pi ntto be built' il south Texas, which is targeted to begin 
producing power in mlid-2000.  

In January 1999, Duke.Energy Power Services agreed,to a.ten-year leasewith the Port of San Diego to operate and 
eventually replace the 706-megawatt South Bay Power. plant. The Port of San Diego will acquire this facility from San 
Diego Gas & Electric Company. Duke Energy Power Services expects to close on the lease valued at over $110 million by 
mid-1999. 'This plant's capacity is excluded from the gefieration, amounts previously discussed above." 

Duke Energy International 

Duke Energy International- develops, owns and operates energy projects worldwide. -Projects involve natural gas expl 
ration, production, processing, transportation and supply. Additionally, projects include' generation, delivery and 'marketing 
of electric power and thermal energy. Duke Energy International's regional target areas are Asia Pacific, South America and 
Europe.  

'In 1998,'Duke Energy International completed the purchase of the Queensland Pipeline, a 389-mile pipeline in south
east Queensland, Australia. Additional opportunities in Australia include' the purchase of the rights to develop and operate 
the 500-mile Eastern Gas Pipeline project in eastern Australia. Construction of this pipeline project is scheduled-to begin in 
July 1999 and completion is expected by midL2000. Also, Duke Energy International purchased' power'generation and trans
mission assets in western Australia and New Zealand, including an ownership interest in a pipeline in western Australia.'This 
acquisition also includes a development proposal for a cogeneration plant aid a portfolio of international and Australian
based projects. This transaction closed on January 22, 1999. .  

Duke Energy International's investments include 'a 25% iidirect ownership interest' in National Methanol Conipany, 
which owns and operates a methanol and MTBE (methyl tertiary butyl ether) plant in Saudi Arabia, aid a 42.86% indirect 
ownership interest in PT Puncakjaya, a 389-megawatt power generation facility in Indonesia. Investments in South America 
include, among others: a 9.76% indirect ownership interest in Hidroelectrica Piedra del Aguita' S.A., a 1,400-megawatt.  
hydroelectric generating facility in Argentina; a. 5 1.5% indirect ownership interest in Electroquil; S.A., a 168-megawatt 
diesel-fired generating facility in Ecuador; a 24% indirect ownership interest in, Sociedad Electrica de Santiago S.A., a 370
megawatt gas-fired generating facility in Chile; a 21.9% indirect ownership interest in Aguytia Energy LLC, an integrated 
natural gas and power 'project in Peru; and a 99% indirect ownership interest in 'PanEnergy Exploration and Production 
(Peru) Ltd. Duke Energy International also operates two liquiified natural 'gas (LNG) ships which have: been 'chartered to 
Nigeria LNG;Limited for 22.5 years starting in 1999. ' '..  

In February 1999, Duke Energy, through its wholly owned subsidiary Duke Energy International,1 commeiced 'a con
current cash tender offer in.Chilean pesos in Chile and the United. States for 51% pf the outstanding shares of Empresa 
Nacional de Electricidad S.A. (Endesa-Chile). The estimated total cash outlayis approximately $2.1 billion. based on cur
rent exchange rates. The tender offers are contingent upon, among other things, certain Endesa-Chile shareholder approvals 
If all approvals are obtained and the other conditions to the tender offers are satisfied or waived, the transactions areexpecte 

12



to be completed during the second quarter of 1999. Endesa2Chile controls 10U247 megawatts of generating capacity in 

gentina, Brazil, Chile, Colombia and Peru.  

ompetition and Regulation 

* Global Asset Development experiences substantial competition froni utility companies in- the United States aid abroad 
and from independent companies.  

Global Asset Development is subject to the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, which regulates LNG plant safety 
requirements.  

-Global Asset Development is subject to international, federal, state and local environmental regulations. For a discus
sion of environmental regulatiqn, see "Business, Environmental Matters." 

OTHER ENERGY SERVICES 

Other Energy Services provides engineering, consulting, construction and integrated energy solutions worldwide, pri
marily.through.Duke Engineering & Services, Duke/Fuor Daniel and DukeSolutions..  

Duke Engineeiing & Services specializes in energy and environmental projects.and provides comprehensive engineer
ing, quality assurance, project and constr ition -ianagenient and operatiig and maintenance services for all pliases of hydro
electric, nuclear and renewable povwer generation projects worldwide.  

Duke/Fluor Daniel, operating, through several entities, provides full service siting, permitting, licensing, engineering, 
procurement, construction, start-up, operating and maintenance services.for fossil-fired plants, both domestically and inter
nationally. Subsidiaries of Duke Energy add Fluor Daniel, Inc. each own 50% of Duke/Fluor Daniel.  

DukeSolutions provides integrated energy. solutions to industrial, commercial, institutional, governmental and whole
sale customers and focuses on increasing customers' efficiency; productivity and profitability through energy cost savings.  

Other Energy Services experiences substantial competition from utility companies in the United States and abroad and 
omindependent companies. .  

Other Energy Services is subject to the jurisdiction of the EPA and international, state and local environmental agen
cies. For a discussion of environmental regulation, see "Business, Environmental Matters." 

REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS 

Real Estate Operations conducts its business through Crescent Resources Inc., which develops commercial and residen
tial real estate projects and manages forest holdings in the southeastern United States. At December 31, 1998, Real Estate 
Operations owned 4.2 million square feet of commercial space, of which 76% was leased, with. an additional 1.7 million 
square feet under construction. At December 31, 1998, the commercial portfolio included 2.3 million square feet of ware
house space, 1.8 million square feet of office space and 0.1 million.square feet of retail space. In 1998, commercial build
inks totaling 1.3 million of square feet and 850 residential developed lots were sold. At December 31, 1998, Real Estate 
Operations had approximately 200,000 acres of land under its management.  

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

Duke Energy is subject to international, federal, state and local regulations with regard to air and water quality, haz
ardous and solid waste disposal and other environmental matters. Certain environmental regulations affecting Duke Energy 
include: 

* The Clean Air Act Amendrients of 1990, which require a two-phase reduction by electric utilities in aggregate annual 
emissions of sulfur dioxide and niirogen oxide by 2000; 

* State Implementation Plans; which were issued..by the EPA to 22 states and the District of Columbia related to exist
ing and new national ambient air quality standards for ozone; 

* The Federal Water Pollution Control. Act Amendments of 1.987, which require permits for failities that discharge 
treated wastewater into the environment; and 

* The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), which can require any 
individual or entity which may have owned or operated a.disposal site, as well as transporters or generators of haz
ardous wastes which were sent to such site, to share in remediation costs for the site.  

13



For further discussion of environmehital mattersinvolving.'Duke Eiiergy; including possible liability and capital costs, 
see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, Current Issuis.- Environment 
and Note 14 to the Consolidated. Financial Statements, "Commitments and Contingencies - Environmental." Complian 
with international, federal, state and local provisions, regulating the discharge of materials into the envrodbhlnt, or other
wise protecting the environment, is not expectedto have a material adverse effect on the coiietitive position, consolidated 
results of operations or financial position of Duke Energy.  

FOREIGN OPERATIONS AND EXPORT SALES 

Foreign operations and export sales are currently not material to Duke Energy'sbusiness as a whole. For a discussion 
of risks associated with Duke Energy's foreign 6perations, see"Management's Discussion and Analysisof Resuilts'of Opera-.  
tions and Financial Condition, Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk L Foreign Operations Risk" and 
Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  

EMPLOYEES ' ..  

. At December,31, 1998, Duke Energy had approximately 22,000 employees. Approximately' 1,600 operati i!and hidin
tenance. employees are represented, by the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, in two collective bargaining 
agreements.,An additional 77 employees, are represented by the.United Steelworkers and Rubberworkers of America. New 
agreements for each of these units were negotiated during 1998..Approximately 500 empjoyees are represented by the Oil, 
Chemical and Atomic Workers International Union, AFL-CIO. Approximately 300 of these employees and-their bargaining 
unit will transfer to CMS -Energy.upon the sale of the' Midwest 'Pipelines in early' 1999.'The reinaining -employees repre
sented by the Oil, Chemical and Atomi Wofkers In't6riation'al Union, AFL CIO are in'a'epaiate bargaining unit. Terms of 
their contract are still being negotiated.  

[4 
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OPERATING STATISTICS 

Years Ended December,31,' 
1998 1997 1996 ,1995 1994 

Electric Operations (a) 
Sources of Electric Energy, GWh (b) 

Generated net outpiut: 
Coalt........... .. . 42,164 45,234 40,649 32,389 32,714 
Nuclear................ ...................... 38,366 29,569 33,177 39,836 35,587' 
Hydro.....................1...................1,714 1,633 1,802 2,117 2,025 

* ,. - 'I 1 1.: . . - - ' ' 3 Oil and ga ...................................... 846 301 199 255 35 
Tofal generation... .. . 83,090 16,737 75,827 74,597 70,361 

Purchased power and net interchange . ..................... 2,659 3,781 3-885 1,239 1,299 
Total output-.:%... .............. .... 85,749 80,518 79'712 75,836: 71,660 

Plus: Purchases from otherCatawba joint owners............. .1,656 . 2,316 2,662 ,6,070 9,046 
Total sources of energy..'....... .. ; ....... . 87,405. .82,834 82,374 . 81,906 80,706 

Less; Line loss and company usage..... * .5,394 4;899 4,827 . 4,780 4652 
Total GWh sales...................... .................. 82,011.77,935 77,547. 77,126 76,054 

Electri nerg'y Sales, GWh 
Residefitial ............. ........ .. .... 214 Re i eit a .:' . ' ................ 22,0 62: 20,483 . 2 , 84' ' 20,124 19,306 , 

...G.e..eal'servic........... 2193 19,68 19593 18,461 17,577 
Industrial 

Textile ....... 11,981 1,955 11,603, 12,155'12,289 
..the.......................1,6 18,376, 186618,131 ,17,738. 17,108 

Other energy and'wholesale.. .......... 8,933 7,029 6,781 7,852 9,934' 
Total GWh sales billed ....... .................... 82,677 77,530 77,592,' 76,330' 76,214 

Unbilled GWh sales. .................... (666) .,405 '(45) 796 

8 Total. GWh sales.. ... .......... 82,011 77,935 77,547 ''77,126 76,054 
atural Gas Transmission 

Throughput Volumes,,TBtu (c):, 
Northeast Pipelines .  

TETCO................. ...................... 1,148 1,300 1,349 1,234 1,194 
Algonquin.........I ... ..... .. 311.'341..".'327..331288 

Total Northeast Pipelines 1,450 '1,641. 1,676 1,56 1,482' 
Midwest Pipelines 

PEPI .......... ........  PEL............................... 560 .65 687 663 .626 
* Trunkline ...................................................... 581 620 632 519 '560 

Total Midwest Pipelines............................. 1,141 1,279 1,31.9 1,182 1,186 
Intercompany eliminations ......... ............................... .7) (58) .(56) .(44) (91*j~j) 

Total Natural Gas Transmission .............................. 253 282 ._ 93 9 27.03. _2,577 

Other Operating, Statistics ' ."-. . .. .. ' 

Natural.,Gas Gathered and, Processedffransporte4d,TBtu/d (d) . '.. 3.6 ' 34, -'2.9- 1.9 ' 1.6 
.NGL Production, MBbl/d1,() 63. .10.2 108.2 278. ,154.8 149.4 
Average Natural Gas Price per.MMBtu (f)........................ $ 2.11 $ 2.59 $ '2.59 $ 1.64 $' 1.90 
Average NGL Price p~rGalloin -- ........ ............. 0.26 $ -0.35 '-.$, 0.39 $ 0.33 $-0.31 

.-Natural Gas. Marketed (g), TBtu/d . .......... ....... "' .... ..... -8.4 - 7.3 '.0' -37 2.7 
Elet.ciy....t.,.Gh............ ' 98,991 64,650. 4,229: 513.  

(h)'.-Ye'ars pri6i'to 1998 havie been 'restated to include Nantahala Power and Lig'lt 
(b) Gigawatt-'ho ' '''' . K I'

(c)' Triilio6n Bhfish' tli'rrna"I units' '. " ' 1 

(d) Trillion British tiermal units Pe'r daiy- '~ K . .. ' .  

()Thousaid..arrels-per day.- *: . , ', ' mMillion British thermal units, 
g)Includes volumes of Trading and Marketing and Field Services 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF DUKE ENERGY 

RicHARD B..PRIORY, 52, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Priory served as Presid 
and Chief Operating Officer from 1994. until he assumed his present position in 1997 following the merger. He was Exec 
tive Vice President, Power Generation Group, from 1991 to 1994.  

WILLIAM A. COLEY, 55, Group President, Duke Power. Mr. Coley served as President, Associated Enterprises Group, 
from 1994,to 1997 when he assumed his present position following the merger. Mr. Coley. served as Executive Vice Presi
dent, Customer Group, from 1.99 1 to 1994.  

FRED J. FOWLER, 53, Group President, Energy Transmission. Mr. Fowler served as Group Vice President of PanEnergy 
from 1996 until the merger, when he, assumed his present position. He was President of TETCO from 1994 to 1996, and 
President of ISource Corporation from 1993 to 1994.  

HARVEY J., PADEWER, 51, Group President,.Energy Services.. Mr. Padewer assumed his present position on January 1, 
1999. From 1995 through 1998, he served as Senior Vice President and General Manager of Utilicorp Energy Group, where 
he was President, Aquila. Energy; President, Utilico.Group; and Vice Chairman.of the Board, Aquila Pipeline Corporation.  
From 1989 through 1995, he served in executive positions-at ABB Power Generation; Inc., first as Vice President, Sales and 
Marketing and later as President, Turbine Power Division. .  

RICHARD W. BLACKBURN, 56, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Mr. Blackburn was named to his 
present position in October 1997. Prior to joining Duke Energy, he served as President and Group Executive of NYNX 
Corporation's Worldwide Communications and Media Group from 1995 'to 1997. He was Chief 
wide Communications and Media Group, of NYNEX from 1993 to 1995.  

RIcHARD J. OSBORNE, 48, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Osborne served as Senior Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer from .1994 untiF he assumed his present position in 1997 following the merger.  
Mr. Osborne served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from 1991 to 1994.  

RUTH G. SHAw, 51, Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer. Ms. Shaw served as Senior Vice Presi
dent, Corporate Resources, from 1994 until she assumed her,present position following the merger. Ms. Shaw was Vi 
President, Corporate Commuiications, from 1992 to 1994.  

JEFFREY L. BOYER, 42, Vice President and Corporate Controller. Mr. Boyer served 'as Controller from 1'994 to 1997, 
when he assumed his present position following the merger. He was Director of Corporate Accounting from 1992 to 1994.  

Executive officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors and serve until the first meeting of the Board of 
Directors following the annual meeting of shareholders and until their successors are duly elected.  

There are no family relationships between any of the executive officers nor any arrangement or understanding between 
any executive officer and any other person pursuant to which the officer was selected.  

Item 2. Properties.  
ELECTRIC OPERATIONS 

'At December 31, 1998, Electric Operations operated three nuclear generating stations with a combined net capability 
of 5,020 MW (which includes 12.5% ownership in the Catawba Nuclear Station), eight coal-fired stations with a combined 
capability of 7,699 MW, thirty-one hydroelectric stations with a combined' capability of 2,797 MW and'six-combustion tur
bine stations with a combined capability of 1,784 MW, all of which are located in North Carolina or South Carolina.  

In addition, Electric Operations. owned, as of December'31, 1998, approximately .13,OOQ conductor miles of electric 
transmission lines, including 600 conductor miles of 525 kilovolts, 2,600 conductor miles of 230 kilovolts, 6,500 conduc
tor miles of 100 kilovolts, and 3,300 conductor miles of 13 to 66 kilovolts. Electric Operations also' owned approximately 
90,100 conductor miles of electric distribution, lines, including.61,400 conductor miles of rural overhead lines, .1500 con
ductor miles of urban overhead lines, 7,200 conductor miles of rural underground lines and 6,000 conductor miles of urban 
underground lines. At December 31, 1998, the electric transmission and distribution systems comprisedapproximately1,600 
substations with an installed transformer capacity of approximately 83,900,000 kVA (kilovolt-ampere).  

Substantially all electric plant is mortgaged under the Indenture relating to First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds.  
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NATURAL GAS TRANSMISSION 

TETCO's gas transmission system, extends approximately 1,700 miles from-producing fields in the Gulf Coast region 
Texas and Louisiana to Ohio, Pennsylvania, New Jersey and New York. It consists of two parallel systems, one consist

ing of three large-diameter parallel. pipelines and the other consisting of from one to three large-diameter pipelines over its 
length. TETCO's system, including its gathering systems, has 73 compressor.stations.  

TETCO also' owvis and operates two offshore L6uisiana gas supply'systems, 'whichetend over 100 mil s into the Gulf 
of Mexico and consist of 490 miles of pipeline.  

Algonquin's transmissioni system cinnects with TETCO's facilities ii New Jersey, and extends through New Jersey, 
New York, Connecticut, Rhode Island and Massachusetts. The system consists of approxiiniitely 250 miles of pipeline with 
six compressor stations.  

PEPL's transmission system, which dolhsists of four large-diameter parallel pipelines and 13 mainline coihpressor' sta
tions, extends a distance of approximately 1,300 miles from producing areas in the Anadarko Basin of Texas, Oklahoma and 
Kansas through the states.of Missouri, Illinois, Indiana and Ohio into-Michigan..  

Trunkline's transmission system extends approximately 1,400 rhiles from the Gulf Coast areas* of Texas and Louisiana 
through the states of Arkansas, Mississippi, Tennessee, Kentucky, Illinois and Indiana to a point on the Indiana-Michigan 
border. The system consists principally of three large-diameter parallel pipelines, 18 mainline compressor stations and one 
offshore compressor platform.  

Trunkline also owns and operates two offshore Louisiana gas'supply systems consisting of 337 miles of pipeline extend
ing approximately 81 miles into the Gulf of Mexico.  

The PEPL'and Trunkline properties are included inthe proposed sale of the Midwest Pipelines, which is expected to 
close in early 1999.  

For information concerning natural gas storage properties, see, "Business, Natural Gas Transmi ssion." 

LD SERVICES 

For information regarding the properties of Field Services, see "Business, Field Services." 

GLOBAL ASSET DEVELOPMENT 

Duke Energy Power Services owns several electric generating stations, including three in California and one in.Con
necticut (95.9% ownership) currently under expansion. These power plants have a combined. capacity of 3,165. MW. For 
more information regarding electric generating stations, see "Business,. Global Asset Development - Duke Energy Power 
Services." 

A subsidiary of Duke Energy owns a marine terminal, storage and regasification facility for LNG located in Louisiana.  
This LNG facilityis operated by Duke Energy International and is included in the 'proposed sale of the.,Midwest Pipelines 
as previously discussed. The design output capacity of the facility is approximately, 700 million cubic, feet per day and its 
storage capacity is approximately 1.8 million barrels, which approximates 6 Bcf. See further ihformatioi regarding the prop
erties of Duke Energy International at "Business, Global Asset Development - Duke Energy International.?' 

REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS-

For information regarding the properties f Real Estate O t see "Business, Real Estate Operations." 

OTHER 

None of the properties used in connection with Duke Energy's other business activities are considered material to Duke 
Energy's operations as a whole.  
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.  

On January 8, 1999, a subsidiary of Duke Energy agreed'to a Compli'ance Order. on Consent (Consent Order) with 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment concerninIg alleged air quality permit:reporting and record-keepin W 
violations at the Greeley Natural Gas Processing Plant and several other Colorado, facilities. This Consent Order -superseded 
an earlier Compliance Order and Assessment of Civil! Penalty for the. Greeley Natural Gas Processing Plant. This Consent 
Order assesses a civil and noncompliance penalty of $54,000 and requires supplemental environmental projects of $525,000 
that involve implemrenting additional air emission controls to reduce air emissions.below standards..  

The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency has indicatedto.a subsidiary of Duke Energy that it intends to 'ilitiate 
an environmental enforcement proceeding relating to alleged air, qiality permit violations at a natural gas cormpressor sta
tion. This proceeding could result'in a-penalty ii excess of $100,000.  

Management believes that the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on consolidated results 

of operations or financial position.' 

See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Commitments and Contingencies" and "Manageinent's Discus
sion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, Current Issues - Environmental" for further discussion 
of legal. proceedings., 

Itim 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holder.  

No matters were submitted to a vote of Duke E.nergy's security holders during the last quarter of 1998.  

PART II. .  

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.  

The common stock of Duke Energy is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange. At February 26, 1999, there 
were approximately 153,633 holders 'of record of stcuh common stock.  

COMMON STOCK DATA BY QUARTER 

Dividends Dividends 
1998 Per Share Stock Price Range 1997 Per Share. Stock Price Range 

High Low High Low' 

First Quarter ........ $ .55 $60%/ $53/16 First Quarter. ....... $.40 $48 $43/8 

Second Quarter ' 110 629A/6 55/ 8 ', Second.Quarter ... .40. .48 421/8

Third Quarter .:.... . - _6616' 571/A6; Third Quarter .... .55 5f 1/s 471 VA6 

Fourth Quarter .... .55 7011/16 601/16 Fourth Quarter .... .55 563/1 '45 3 

a 'Financial informition reflects a ~cotnting fdr te 1997 merger with PanEnergy Corp as a pooling of interests. Asa result, 
the financial iniformation gives effect to the merger as if it had occurred on January 1, 1997..  

On December 1.7, 1998, Duke Energy's Board. of Directors adopted a shareholder rights plan,. which was subsequently 
approved by the North Carolina Utilities Commission and the Public Service Commission of South Carolina. Under the 
terms of the plan, holders of record of outstanding common stock on February 12, 1999 received one right' for each share 
of common stock owned. The plan is intended to assure fair and equal treatment for all shareholders in the event of a hos
tile takeover attempt and'to encourage a potential acquirer to n6gotiate with the Board of Directors a fairprice for all share
holders before attempting a takeover. The adoption of the plan was not in response to any takeover offer or threat.  
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.  

.*. 98 199a 1996(a) 1995(a) 1994(a) 
In millions, except per share amounts 

Income Statement .  

Operating revenues .................................. $17,610 $16,309 $12,302 $ 9,694. $ 9,115 
Operating expenses ....... .......... .... 15,177 14,339 10,143 7,626 7,309 

Operating income .............. ...................... 2,433 1,970 2,159 2,068 1,806 
Other ificorne and'expenses " . 214 138 135 122 101 
Earnings before interest and taxes .... ..................... 2,647 2,108 2,294 2,190 1,907 
Interest expense ......... .............. 514 472 499 508 485 
Minority interests ..................................... 96 23 6 
Earnings before income taxes ............................. 2,037 1,613 1,789 1,682., 1,422 
Income taxes ............................ .777 639 698 664 558 
Income before extraordinary item ......... .............. 1,260 974 .1,091 . 1,18 864 
Extraordinary loss, netof tax ... ..  

Net income ......................................... 1252 974 1,074 1,018 864 
Dividends and preritiums on rdeiptions of preferred 'and preference stock ........... .. .. . 21 72 44 49 50 

Earnings availablefor common stockholders ................................ $ 1,231 $ 902 $ 1,030 $ 969 $ 814 

'Common Stock Data 

Shares of common.stock outstanding 
Year-end ..................... ................ 363 360 359 362 361 
Weighted average, ........ 361 360 361 360 

Earnings per share (before extraordinary item) 
Basic ......................................... $.3.43$.2.51...2.90.$.2.68.s 2.26$ 3.43 $ 2.51 $ 2.88 2.67 

ar ings per hae .. : .i. . .-f .", , ,. ., I I: .I- .  Basic ., $ .341 .~ 2,51 $, -2.850 $ .2.68, $ .2.26 
Dilutive. ...... $ 3.40.$ 2.50 $ 2.88 $ 2.67 $ 2.25 

arnings per share, 

Bas...c............ ...... ..... 3 $ ?4,1 $ $2.8 $ 2.68, $ . 2.26 
Dilutive .................................................................... 340 250 $ 2.83 $ 2.67 $ 2.25 

Dividends per share ................................. $ 2.20 $ 1.90 $ 1.57. $ .1.50 $ 1.44 
Balance Sheet 
Total assets ................. ........... $26,8)6 $24,029, $22,366- $20,868, $20,254 
Long-term debt . . $ 6,272 $ 6,530 $ 5,485 $ 5,803 $ 5,931 
Preferred stock with sinking fund requirements ................ $ 124 $ 149 $ 234 $ 234 $ 280 

a) Financial information reflects accounting for the 1997 meiger With PanEnergy Corp as a pooling of iterests.As a result, 
th financial information gives 'effect to the merger as if it had becurred'on January '1, 1994.  

Item 7. Management's Disc ssion and Analysis of Resut.' of Operations and Financidl Condition.  
INTRODUCTION 

Duke Energy Corporation (collectively with its subsidiaries, "Duke Energy") is an integrated. energy ad enegy ser
vices provider 'with the abit to offer physical delivery and management of both electricity and natural gas throughout the 
United States and abroad.-Duke Eiergy provides these and other' services tlhrough seven* business segments: 

*.Electric. Operations 

* Natural Gas Transmission 
* Field Services 

* Trading aid Marketing 
* Global Asset Development.  

Other Energy -Services 
* eal Estate Operation 
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These segments were defined as a result of Duke Energy adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information." 

Electric Operations generates, transmits, distributes and sells electric energy in central and western North Carolina an 
the western portion of South Carolina (doing business as Duke Power or Nantahala Power and Light). These electric opera
tions are, subject to the rules and regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the North- Carolina 
Utilities Commission (NCUC) and the Public Service Commission of South Carolina (PSCSC).  

Natural Gas Transmission, through its Northeast Pipelines, provides interstate transportation and storage of natural gas 
for customers primarily in the Mid-Atlantic and New England states. Until the expected sale of the Midwest Pipelines in 
early 1999, Natural Gas Transmission also provides interstate transportation and storage services in the midAest states. See 
further discussion of.the'proposed sale of the Midwest Pipelines in the Liquidity arid Capital Resources section of Manage
ment's Discussion and Analysis. The interstate natural gas transmission and storage operations are also subject to the riues 
and regulations of the FERC.  

Field Services gathers, processes, transports and markets natural gas and produces and markets natural gas liquids 
(NbL). Field'Services operates gathering systems in ten states that serve major gas-producing regiois in the Rocky Motin
tain, Permian Basin, Mid-Contineit- and Gulf Coast areas.  

Trading and Marketing markets natural gas, electricity and other energy-related products across North America. Duke 
Energy owns a 60% interest in Trading and Marketing's operations, with Mobil Corporation owning a 40% minority interest.  

Global Asset Development develops, owns and operates energy-related facilities 'worldwide. Global Asset Development 
conducts its operations primarily through Duke Energy Power Services, LLC (Duke Energy Power Services) and Duke 
Energy International, LLC (Duke Energy International).  

Other Energy Services provides engineering, consulting, construction and integrated- energy solutions worldwide, pri
anirily.through Duke Engineering & Services, Inc. (Duke Engineering & Services), Duke/Fluor Daniel and DukeSolutions, 

Inc. (DukeSolutions).  

Real Estate Operations conducts its, business through Crescent Resources, Inc., which develops high quality comme 
cial and residential real estate projects and manages forest holdings in the southeastern United States.  

The 1997 merger of Duke Power Company (DukePower) and PanEnergy Corp (PanEnergy) was accounted for as a 
pooling of interests; therefore, the Consolidated Financial Statements and other financial information included in this Annual 
Report for periods prior to the merger include the ombined historical financial results of Duke Power ahd PanEnergy. (See 
Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis should be read' in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements..  

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

In 1998, earnings available for common stockholders increased 36.5% over 1997,to.$1,231 million, or $3.41 per basic 
share, net of an extra6rdinary. loss of $8 million, or $0.02 per basic share. The increase in earnings available for common 
stockholders was primarily due to increased electric sales 'aid energy marketing activities, expansions and acquisitions, gains 
on sales of assets and the absence of -1997 non-recurring merger costs. These increases were partially offset by decreased 
NGL prices and increased interest expense and minority interests.  

Earnings available for common stockholders decreased 12.4% in 1997 compared to 1996, to $902 million or $2.51 per 
basic share in 1997 from $1,030 million or $2.85 per basic share in 1996. The decrease was due primafily to non-recurring 
199 m erger costs, 1997 severance costs, premiums associated with the rededfiption and tender offer for ten issues"of pre
ferred stock and increased nuclear expenses. Partially offsetting the de&ease were lower expenses in 1'997 as compared to 
1996, when major storms affected Electric Operations' distribution costs, and an extraordinary loss related to the early.retire
ment of debt in 1996.  

Operating income for 1998 was $2,433 million compared to $1,970 million in 1997 and $2,159 million in 1996. Earn
ings before interest and taxes (EBIT) were $2,647 million, $2,108 million and $2,294 million for 1998, 1997 and 1996, 
respectively. Operating income and earnings before interest and taxes, excluding the effeit of 'gains on asset sales of $34 
million by Field Services in 1998, are affected by the same fluctuations for Duke Energy and each 'of its business segment 
Earnings before interest and taxes by business segment are summarized below and are discussed by business segment there0 
after.  
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Earnings Before Interest and Taxes by Business Segment 
Years Ended December 31, 
1998 . 1997 1996 

In millons 

Electric Operations .................................................. $1,513 $1,282 $1,419 
Natural Gas Transmission ................................................ 702 624 595 
Field Services ........................................................ 76 157 152 
Trading and Marketing ...................................................... 22 - 4 58 
Global Asset Development ................................................ 8 5 
Other Energy Services ................................. 20 
Real Estate Operations ................. 142 98 88 
Other Operations ....................................................... 2 (120). (38) 
Consolidated EBIT ... $2,647 $2,108 $2,294 

Other Operations primarily includes communication services, water services, and certain unallocated corporate costs.  
Included in the amounts discussed below are intercompany transactions that are eliminated in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.  

Electric Operations 

Years Ended December 31, 
1998 1997 1996 

Dollars in millions 

Operating Revenues ............................................................................................ $ 4,626 $4,401 $4,498 
O perating Expenses .............................................................................................. 3,228 3,221 3,195 
Operating Income .................................................. 1,398 1,180 1,303 
Other Income, Net of Expenlses ... ...... 11...... 115 102 116 
EBIT ............................................................. ............ $ ,Ii 

Volumes, Sales - GWh (a) ........................................... 82,011 77,935 77,547 

(a) Gigawatt-hour 

In 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Electric Operations increased 18.0% to $1,513 million from $1,282 mil
lion in 1997, primarily due to a 5.2% increase in gigawatt-hour sales. The increase in earnings before interest and taxes due 
to the absence of 1997 severance costs was substantially offset by 1998 severance and other costs related to the shut-down 
of Electric Operations' merchandising business.  

Sales to weather-sensitive customers increased significantly in 1998 compared to 1997, which was a mild weather year, 
with sales to residential and general service customers up 7.5% and 7.1%, respectively, primarily due to warmer spring and 
summer weather conditions. On July 21, 1998, Electric Operations customers set the third record demand of the summer, 
reaching a peak of 15,812 megawatts. Sales to industrial customers increased slightly in 1998 over 1997, with sales to tex
tile customers relatively flat. The number of.customers in the Electric Operations service territory increased 2.5% in 1998 
over 1997 due to economic growth in the region.  

In 1997, earnings before interest and taxes for Electric Operations declined 9.7% as compared to 1996, primarily as a 
result of severance costs and increased nuclear outage expenses. Also contributing to the decrease were lower electric rev
enues, which were due primarily to mild weather and to the South Carolina. rate reduction, which was effective June 1, 1996.  
Partially offsetting the decrease in earnings were lower expenses in 1997 as compared to 1996, when itiajor storms affected 
distribution costs.
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Natural Gas Transmission . -* 

Years Ended December 31, 
1998 1997 199 

Dollars in millions 

O perating R evenues .................................................................................................. $1,528 $1,572 $1,556 
Operating Expenses .................................................... 864. 964 973 

Operating Income.....................................:.............. 664 608 583 
Other Income, Net of Expenses......................................................: 38 16 12 
EBIT...................................... . ...... $702 $64 $ 5.95 

Volumes, Throughput- TBtu (a) ................................................................ . ........ 2,593 2,86 2,939 

(a). Trillion. British thermal units 

Earnings before interest and taxes for Natural Gas Transmission increased $78 million in 1998 over 1997. Earnings 
before interest arid taxes for Northeast'Pipelines increased $56 million to $476 million in 1998,compared'to 1997, prima
rily as aresult.6f the favorable resolution of regulatory issues related to gas supply realignment costs, favorable state prop
erty tax rulings and increased market expansion projects. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in throughput 
primarily*as a result of mild winter weather.  

In 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Midwest Pipelines increased 10.8% compared to 1997, primarily due to 
a gain, on the. sale of the general partner interests in Northern Border Partners, L.P. and non-recurring 1997 litigation 
expenses. These increases were partially offset by the favorable resolution of certain regulatory matters in 1997, which was 
reflected. as additional revenue and other incoime. See the Liquidity and Capital Resources - Investing Cash FloWs.section 
of Management's Discussion and Analysis for a discussion of the expected sale of the Midwest Pipelines in early 1999. (See 
also Note 14 to the Consolidated FihianciaIl Statenients.) 

Earnings before interest and taxes for Natural Gas Transmission increased 4.9% in 1997 over 1996, with increases in 
earnings at Northeast, Pipelines and Midwest Pipelines of 5.3% and 4.0%, respectively. Earnings before interest and tax 
for the Northeast Pipelines increased primarily due to market-expansion projects placed in service.  

For the Midwest Pipelines, earnings before interest and taxes increased primarily due to the favorable resolution of cer
tain regulatory matters in 1997 in amounts in excess of those resolved in 1996, which was reflected as additional revenue 
and other income. This increase was partially offset by 1997 litigation expenses.  

Field Services.  

Years Ended December31, 
1998 1997 1996.  

Dollars in millions 

Operating Revenues .. .................. $2,639 $3,055 $2,637 
Operating Expenses . 898 2,487 

Operating Income . ... 41 157 150 
Other Income, Net of Expenses .... ....... 35 2 

EBIT ............... .............................. ........... 76 $ 157 $ 152 

Volumes.  

Natural Gas Gathered and. Piocessed/Transported, TBtud (a) ..... ....................... 36 3.4 ,2.9 
Natural Gas Marketed, TBtuld ........................................... 0.4 0.4 0.5 
NGL Production, MBbl/d b ...( .............................................. 110.2 108.2 78.5 

(a) Trillion British thermal units per day 

(b). Thousand barrels per day 

in 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Field Services decreased $81 million compared to 1997, primarily due 
to a decrease in average NGL prices of approximately $0.09 per gallon, or 25.7%. The decrease in earnings before interes 
and taxes was partially offset by $34 million of gains on sales of assets which are included in other income. .  
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Earnings before interest and taxes for Field Services increased 3.3% in 1997 over 1996, primarily due to higher vol
mes as a result of acquisitions in 1996. Natural gas gathered and processed volumes increased 17.2%, and NGL produc
on increased37.8%in 1997 compared to 1996. Partially offsetting these increases were lower NGL'prices of approximately 
0.04 per gallon, or 8%, and higher natural gas prices.  

Trading and Marketing .  

Years Ended December 31, 
1998 1997 . 1996 

Dollars in millions 

Operating Revenues ................................................................................................ $8,785 $7,489 $3,814 
Operating Expenses ...................................... ....... 8,665 7,446 .3,758 
Operating Income ............. ................... .................. 120 43 56 
Other Income, Net of Ex es ........ ........ . 2, .1. 2 

EBIT..$................................................... $122 $ 44 $58 

Volumes 
N atural Gas M arketed, TBtu/d .................................................................................. 8.0 6.9 5.5 
Electricity Marketed, GWh ............................................ 98,991 64,650 4,229 

In 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Tradiig and Marketing increased $78 million over 1997. The increase 
resulted primarily from increased financial trading margins and electricity margins, partially offset by increased expenses 
due to business growth. Electricity volumes marketed increased primarily as a result of acquiring the remaining.50%. owni
ership interest in the Duke/Louis Dreyfus, L.L.C. (D/LD) joint. yenture in June 1997.  

Earnings before-interest and taxes for Trading and Marketing decreased $14 million in 1997 compared to.1996. The 
acquisition of. the reiaining 50% ownership interest in the D/LD joint venture in 1997,- coupled with a full year of opera
tions of the joint venture with Mobil Corporation formed in August 1996, accounted for the significant increases in Trad

ing and Marketing revenues, related operating expenses (including increased purchased power expense) and volumes in 1997 
ver 1996. Increased natural gasvolumesmarketed. of 25.5%.in 1997, in addition to increased natural gas margins from 

la tir,.ading activities,-were. largely .offset by the emerging.electric power trading and marketing activities. Higher. operating 
expenses, due primarily to increased personnel levels and system development costs -to provide -the necessary infrastructure 
for growth in the trading and marketing business, resulted in a decrease in earnings before interest and taxes in 1997 as 
compared to 1996.  

Global Asset Development 

Years Ended December 31, 

1998 1997 1996 
In millions 

Operating Revenues .. ........... $319 -$123 $72 OenigEpne .................... ............................ ......................... 26319 19. 7 
Operating Expenses 261..129..73 

Other Income, 'Net of Expenses ... .......... 22 11 . 1 
EBIT .................................................... $0 _ 

In 1998; earnings before iiiterest and taxes for Global Asset*Developnent increased $75 million 6ver 1997. The increase 
resultsprimarily from business expaision and acquisitions, including Duke Energy Power'Seivices' July 1, 1998 acquisition 
of three electric generating stations in California from Pacific Gas. & ElectricCompany (PG&E) and December, 1-997 acqui
sition of an indirect,32.5% ownership interest in American Ref-Fuel Company. Duke Energy Internationai also contributed 
to the increasein earnings before interest and taxes in 1998 compared to 1997. through an expansion to the PT Puncakjaya 
power generation facility in.Indonesia. This increase was partially offset by decreased earnings resulting from-lower prices 
at National Methanol, a methanol and MTBE (methyl tertiary butyl ether) plant in Saudi Arabia. .  

In 1997, earnings before. interest and taxes.increased slightly compared to 1996, due primarily to business expansion 
*and acquisitions, including the December. 1997, acquisition of.an ownership interest in American Ref-Fuel Company, and a 

ain on the sale of ai investment. These increases-were-partially offset by increased expenses due;tobusiness growth.  
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Other Energy Services 
Year Ended December3 

1998 1997 1996 

In millions 

O perating R evenues ....................................................................................................... $521. $376 $204 
O perating Expenses ........................................................................................................ 511 353 184 
Operating. Income . ............................ 10 23 20 

Other -Income,"Net of Expenses .............................................. (5) 
EBIT ... ........................... ................................... $ 10 $ 18 $ 20 

In 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Other Energy Services decreased $8 million compared to 1997, prima
rily due to decreased earnings of Duke Engineering & Services. Earnings before interest and taxes for Other Energy Ser
vices decreased $2 million in 1997 compared to 1996, primarily as a result of start-up expenses of DukeSolutions partially 
offset by increased earnings of Duke Engineering &.Services due to growth.  

Real Estate Operations 
Years Ended December 31, 

1998 1997 1996 
In milons 

Operating Revenues .................................................... $$181 $124 $114 
Operating Expenses ...................................................... 39 26 26 

Operating Income ....................................................... 142 98 88 
Other Income, Net of Expenses............................................. r 

EBIT ...................................... ..... $142 $ 98 . $ 88 

In 1998, earnings before interest and taxes for Real Estate.Operations.increased-44.9% compared to 1997, primarily as 
a result of increased project and lake lot sales and a-gain on land sales-in the Jocassee Gorges region-of South Carolin a 
Earnings before interest and taxes for Real Estate Operations increased 11.4% in 1997 -over 1996, primarily due to gains 
associated with bulk land sales in 1997.  

Other Operations 

Earnings before interest and taxes for Other Operations increased in 1998 compared to 1997, primarily as a result of 
the absence of $71 million of non-recurring 1997 merger-related costs and the favorable resolution of certain contingent 
items in 1998:-The increase in earnings before interest and taxes was partially offset by a 1997 gain on the sale of the own
ership interest in the Midland Cogeneration Venture.  

Earnings before interest and taxes for Other Operations declined $82 million in 1997 compared- to -1996. Contributing 
to the decrease were increased merger-related expenses of $57 million in 1997 compared to 1996 and the .1997 amortiza
tion of goodwill associated with the purchase of the remaining 50% ownership interest in the D/LD joint venture. This 
decline was partially offset by the sale of the ownership interest in the Midland Cogeneration Venture in 1997.  

Other Impacts on Earnings Available for Common Stockholders" 

Interest expense increased 8.9% in 1998 over 1997 due to higher average debt balances outstanding. In 1997, interest 

expense decreased $27 million, or 5.4%, as compared to 1996 as a result of lower interest rates.  

In 1998, minority interests increased $73 million compared to 1997. This increase includes 1998 dividends for trust 
preferred securities, of which $350 million were~issued in December 1997 and $600 million-were issued in 1998. See fur
ther discussion of-the 1998 issuancesof trust preferred securities in the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of Manage
ment's Discussion and Analysis. Excluding these dividends, minority interests relate primarily to the trading and marketing 
joint venture with Mobil Corporation formed in August. 1996.  

In January 1998, TEPPCO. Partners, L.P., in which a subsidiary of Duke Energy has a 2% general partner interest and 
a 19.1% limited partner -interest, redeemed certain First Mortgage Notes.-A non-cash extraordinaryloss of $8 million, net of 
income tax of $5 million ,was recorded related to costs of the early retirement of that debt; 
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On October 1, 1996, a subsidiary of Duke Energy, redeemed its $150million,.10o debentures and its $100 million, 
01/8% debentures, both due 2011. A non-cash extraordinary lossof $17. million,- net of income tax of $10 million, was 
corded related to the unamortized discount on this early retirement of debt.  

In December 1997, Duke Energy redeemed four issues-of preferred stock and- commenced a tender offer to puichase a 
portion of an additional six issues of preferred stock. Premiums related to these redemptions were included in the Consoli
dated Statements of Income in 1997 as Dividends and 'Premiums onRedemptions of. Preferred and Preference Stock.  

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Operating Cash Flows. Assets and liabilities recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets related to purchased capac
ity levelization and natural gas transition cost recoveries and the related cash flow impacts are affected by state and federal 
regulatory initiatives and specific agreements. For niore information On the purchased capacity levelization and'tie hatural 
gas transition cost recoveries, see N6tes 5 and 4; tespeciively, to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  

On August 29, 19,98, the FERC approved a settlement from Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation (TETCO),.a sub
sidiary of Duke Energy, which will.accelerate recoveryof natural gas transition, costs and reduce depreciation. expense to 
more appropriately, reflect the estimated useful lives of its facilities, principally interstate natural gas pipelines.- The order 
was effective October 1, 1998 and includes a rate moratorium until 2004.:Cash flows from operations are not expected to 
change for the first two years after implementation due to the offsetting effect on customer rates of the reduced deprecia
tion expense and- increased recovery of natural gas transition costs. When the natural gas transition costs are fully recovered, 
cash flows from operations are expected to decrease during 2(01 through 2003' by an estimated tofal of $270 million. For 
more' informatibn concerning- the settlement; see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Staterilentsw 

Investing Cash Flows. Capital and investment expenditures were approximately $2.5 billion i~n 1998 compared 'to 
approximately $2.0 billion in 1997. This increase was primarily due to business expansion by Global Asset Development, 
which included Duke Energy Power Services' $501 million purchase of three electric generating stations in California from 
PG&E' and the completion of the first phase of 'Bridgeport Energy, a $265 million, 520-megalvatt combined cycle natural 
gas-fired merchant generation plant. -Business expansion for Natural Gas Transmission an'dField Services'also contributed 

the increase in capital and investment experidittires. The increase was partially offset by decreased expenditures for Elec
ic Operations, primarily As a result of steam generator replaceinients at 'ertain' of its nuclear plants in' 1997, and by the 

acquisition of the remaining 50% ownership of the D/LD joint venture in June 1997.  

Capital and investment expenditures in 1997 included the acquisition of the remaining 50% ownership interest in the 
D/LD joint venture for $247 million, which substantially represented goodwill, and Global Asset Dev'elopmeni's acquisition 
of an ownership interest in American Ref-Fuel Company for $237 million. The iarease ii' ciital and investment expendi
tures in 1997 over 1996 also included increased Electric Operations construction costs, primarily due to steam generator 
replacements at certain of its nuclear plants and increased distribution line construction, and business expansion for the 
Natural Gas Transmission, segment. Theseincreases were partially offset by the 1996 acquisition of certain assets from 
Mobil Corporation.  

Duke Energy plans to riaintain 'its regulated electric operations facilities in the Ciroliias and pursue business expan
sion as opportunities arise. Projected 1999 capital and investmeift'expeiditures for Electric Opbrations, incfuding 'allovance 
for funds used. during construction, are approximately $900 million. These, projections include expenditures for existing 
plants, including refurbishment and upgrades related to the Oconee Nuclear Station's application' for a 20-year renewal of 
its operating license. The license renewal prpcess could take three to five. years to complete. All projections are subject to 
periodic review and revisions. Actual expenditures incurred may vary from such estimates due to various factors, including 
industry restructuring, weather, economic grow th, regulaiory constraints and environmental regulation'.  

Projected 1999 capital and investment expenditures for Natural Gas Transmission, including allowance for funds used 
during construction, are approximately,$400 million which do not include projections.related to the Midwest Pipelines which 
are expected to be sold in early 1999. These projections include the completion of the Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline 
project, which will deliver natural gas to markets in the Canadian Maritimes provinces and the northeastern United States 
from a supply basin offshore Nova Scotia. These projections also include other market expansion projects-and costs relat
ing to existing assets'' 

Duke Energy plans to continue to significantly grow several of its business segments: Field Services, Global Asset 
evelopment, Trading and Marketing and Other Energy Services. Expansion opportunities for Field Services include the 
lanned $1.35 billion acquisition of the natural gas gathering, processing, fractionation and NGL pipeline business of Union 
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Pacific Resources along with its natural gas'and NGLimarketing activities. The transaction is expected to close in the first 
half'of 1999 and is'contingent upon completion of. due:diligence and receipt of clearances under the .Hait-Scott-Rodino Act 

Expansion opportunities for Global Asset Developinent's international division, Duke Eliergy 1nternational, include th W 
$315, mi llion 'purchase of power generation and transmission assets in.western Australia and New 'Zealand, including an 
ownership interest.in a pipeline in western Australia. This acquisition also includes a development proposal for a cogeneration 
plant and.a portfolio. of international and Australian-based projects. This transaction closed on January.22, 1999.  

Also, Duke Energy International recently purchased the rights to developand operate the. 500-mile Eastern Gas Pipe
line project in eastern Australia. Construction of this $270 million pipeline project is scheduled to begin in July 1999 and 
completion is expected by the middle of 2000.1 

Expansion opportunities for Global.Asset Development's domestic division, Duke Energy Power Services, include the 
continuation of greenfield projects, such as the Bridgeport Energy project and the..Maine. Independence Station, a 520
megawatt combined cycle natural gas-fired merchant generation plant in Maine which is scheduled to begin producing power 
in the summer of 2000. Other exliansion opportunities include the Hidalgo project, a 510-inegawatt'power plant to be built 
in- south Texas, which is targeted to begin producing powet in mid-2000: Other -similar initiatives in 1999 for 'both Duke 
Energy International and Duke Energy Powei Services will likely require significant capital aid investment 'expenditures, 
which will be. subject to pefiodic'review and revision'aid fidy'vary significantly dependihg dn the value-added- opportuiii
ties presented..  

Projected 1999 capital and investment expenditures.,for Trading and Marketing, Other Energy Services and Real Estate 
Operations 'are aSproximately,$30 million, $90 million and $300,million, respectively. All projected capital and investment.  
expenditures are subject to periodic review and revision and may vary significantly depending on acquisition opportunities, 
market volatility, economic' trends and the value-added"opportunities presented.  

In October 199, Duke 'Energy, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, PanEnergy and Texas Eastern Corporation, 
entered into an agreement to. sell Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line, Company,(PEPL), Trunkline Gas Company (Trunkline) and 
additional storage. related tothose,sytems,.which substantialy comprisethe Midwest Pipelines t~hoesytes wic sbsani Mi s-Pileliealong with Trunkline LNG 
Company,,to CMS Energy Corporation.. The sales price of. $2.2 billion *involves cash proceeds of $1.9 billion and thel 
assumption of existing PEPL debt of approximately $300 million.-The sale is expected to close in early 1999 and will resul 
in an after-tax gain of approximately $700 million. The sale is contingent upon receipt of clearances under, the Hart-Scott
Rodino Act.  

Financing Cash Flows. Duke, Energy's consolidated capital structure at December 31, 1998, including short-term debt, 
a.s.4.3.3.% debt, .5.5% trust preferred securities, 2.0% preferredstock ,and 49.2% common equity. Fixed charges coverage, 

calculated using the Securities 'and Exchange Commission method, was 4.7 times, 4.1 times and 4.3 times for 1998,. 1997 
and 1996, respectively. , .. ,,, :..  

Duke Energy plans to continue to significantly grow sev~ial of its business segments: Field Services, Tradiig and Mar
keting, Global Asset Development and Other Energy Services. These growth opportunities, along with dividends, debt repay
ments and operating and investing requirements, are expected to be funded by cash from operations, external debt..financ
ing and the proceeds from the sale of the.Midwest Pipelines.  

Securities Ratings 

Duke Energy Coption S&P Moody's Fitch Duff & Phelps 

Fiist and Refunding iMortgage Bonds AA- Aa3 AA-'' AA 
Senior Unsecured A Al A+ AA
Preferred'Stock A ' al A+ ' A+.  

Trust Preferred Securities A al.. A + A+ 
Commercial Paper A-I P-1 F-1+ D-I+ 

To maintain financial flexibility and reduce the amount of financing needed for growth opportunities,. Duke Energy's 
Board of Directors adopted a dividend policy in June 1998 that targets 50% of earnings paid out in dividends on common 
stock. Prior to the adoption of the policy, approximately 65% of earnings were paid out in dividends. The Board of Direc
tors intends to maintain dividends at the current quarterly rate of $0.55 per share until the target payout ratid!is reiched.  
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In'February 1998, Duke, Energy completed its tender offer for a.maximum oftU50% of the.outstanding shares-of six of.  
O s preferred stock issues, purchasing two million shares of its preferred stock for $180 million.  

Duke Capital Corporation (Duke Capital) is a wholly, owned subsidiary of Duke Energy and serves.as the parent for 
Duke Energy's business segments except Electric.Operations and certain.other operations. In July 1998, Duke Capital issued 
$400 million of Senior Unsecured Notes. Also, during 1998; Duke. Capital's business trusts, which are treated as indirect 
wholly .owned subsidiaries of Duke Energy for financial reporting purposes, issued.$600 million of trust preferred securi
ties. (See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

In Decerhiber 1998,'Duke Energy issfed $300 million of Senior Unsecured Notes. The proceeds, along with $200 mil
lion in commercial paper, were used to redeem $500 mnllion ofFirst and Refundiilg Mortgage Bonds 'hich were called on 
December 31, 1998. In 'aanugry 1999, DblikEnergy iIssued' $200 million of Senior Notes.  

Under its commercial paper, facilities, Duke Energy, had the ability to borrow up to $2.8 billion and $2.5 billion as of 
December 31,-1998 and' 1997, respectively: At December'31, 1998, the commercial paper facilities consisted of $1.25 bil
lion for Duke Energy and $1.55 billion -for:Duke Capital.AtvDecember 31, 1997, the commercial paper facilitiesconsisted.  
of$1.25 billion-each for,'Duke Energy, and.Duke:Capital.,At December 31,,1l998;and.1997, Duke Energy's various bank 
credit facilities totaled approximately $2.9.:billiont'and $27 billion, -respectively:!At December, 31, 1998, $1.9 billion was 
outstanding under the commercial paper facilities and $100 million was outstanding under the bank credit facilities.  

As of December 31,1998, Duke Energy and its subsidiaries, excluding PEPL, 'had authority to issue up to $1.2 billion 
aggregate principal, amount of debt, and other securities under shelf registrations filed with the Securities, and Exchange 
Commission. Suchsecurities may be issued as First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds, Senior Notes;. Suborditnated Notes or 
Preferred'Stock. On January 27,. 1999, -DukeiCapitalrfiled a $1 billion shelf registration statement; which was declared effec
tive by the Securities and.Exchange Commission on February 10, 1.999.  

Duke Energy used authorized but unissued shares of its common stock to meet 1998 employee benefit plan contribu
tion requirements instead of purchasing shares on the open market. This practice:is expected to be continued in 1999.  

UALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK;' 

Risk' Policies.Duke Enery is exos d to mai ket'risks.'associated with'comimodity prices, interest rates, equity prices 
and foreign exchange rates. Comprehensive risk m anagement policies haive been established by the Corporate Risk Manage
ment Committee (CRMC) to monitor and control these market risks. The ORMC is chaired by the Chief Financial Officer 
and primarily. comprises senior executives. The CRMC has-responsibility for overseeing all corporate energy risk manage
ment and recommending energy financial exposure limits, as-well as, responsibilityfor oversight of interest rate risk,. foreign 
currencyrisk and credit risk. . .  

Interest Rate Risk. Duke Energy is exposed to risk resulting from chan'ges' in interest rates as'a resiult of its issuance 
of variable-rate debt, fixed-fate debt and'trusi peferred securities,' commercial paper and auction market preferred stock, as' 
well as fixed-to-floaiing-interest rate sWaps and-iiterest rate lock agreements. Duke Enery manages its interest rate expo
slre by limiting its variable-rate and fixed-rate exposure to 'a crtaini percentage of total capitalizaiioni as set by policy, and 
by' inonitoring the effects' of market chaiges'ininterest rates. (See Notes 1, 7,10, 12 and 13 to'the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.) 

If market interest rates average 1% higher (lower) in 1999 than in 1998, interest expense* would increase (decrease), 
and earnings before income taxes would decrease (increase) by approximately $23 million. Comparatively, had interest rates 
averaged 1% higher (lower) in 198 thaihl'' i997, i iterest expense' would have increased (decreased), and earnings before 
income taxes would have decreaed (increased) by approximately $24 million.7These amiounts were determined by consid
ering the impact df the hypdthetical interiest rates oil the variable-rate sec'rities.'outstanding as of December 31, 1998.and 
1997. In the event of a significant change in interest rates, rffianagement would likely take actions 'to'ianage its exposure 
to the change., However due'to the uncertainty of the specific actions that would be taken and their possible effects, the 
sensitivity analysis assumes no changes in Duke Energy's financial structure, 

Commodity Price Risk.. Duke Energy, 'substantially through its subsidiaries, is exposed to the, impact' of market. fluc
tuations ill the pfice and transportation costs of natural gas, 'elictricity and petroleum products marketed. Duke Energy 
erhplo established policies and procedures to manage its risks associated, with these market fluctuations using various 

ommodity derivatives, iiicltidihg futures, swalps and'options.; (See Notes 1 andi7 t6 the 'Corisolidated Financial Statemerits.) 
e risk in the commodity trading portfolio is measured on a daily basis utilizing a Value-at-Risk model to determine the 

maximum potential one-day favorable or unfavorable Daily Earnings at Risk (DER). The DER is monitored in-comparison 
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to established thresholds. Other measures are also utilized to monitor the risk in the commodity trading portfolioon a 
monthly and annual basis. .  

The DER computations are-based on a -historical simulatioi, which utilizes price movements over a speciffed.period t 
simulate forward.price curves in' the energy markets to estimate the favorable or unfavorable impact of one-day's price 
movement on the-existing portfolio. The historical simulation emphasizes the most recent market activity,-Which is consid
ered the most relevant predictor of futire market movements for .natural gas, electricity and petroleum.products. The-DER 
computations utilize several key assumptions, including a 95% confidence level for the resultant price movement and the 
holding period specified for the calculation. Duke Energy's calculation includes commodity derivative instruments and for
wards held for trading purposes and excludes the effects of embedded physical options in the trading'portfolio. At Decem
ber 31, 1998 and 1997, the estimated potential one-day favorable or unfavorable'impact oi earnings before income taxes 
related to commodity instruments held for trading purposes was approximately $10 million ahd $2 million, respectively.  
During 1998, the average estimated potential one-day favorable or unfavorable impact on earnings, before income- taxes 
related to. commodity instruments held for trading purposes was.approximately $5 million. The increase in 1998 compared 
to 1997 is a result of an increase in the authorized energy financial exposure limit, which was approved by the CRMC.  
Changes in markets inconsistent with historical trends could cause actual resilts to exceed predicted limits. Market risks 
associated with commodity.derivatives held'for. purposes other than trading were not.material at December 31, 1998 and 
1997.  

-Subsidiaries of Duke Energy are also exposed to, market fluctuations in the prices, of NGLs related to their ongoing 
gathering-and processing'operating activities. Duke Energy closely monitors the risksassociated with NGL price changes'on 
its future operations, and where appropriate, uses crude oil and natural gas commodity instruments to hedge NGL prices. If 
NGL prices averaged:one cent per gallon less in 1998, earnings before income taxes would have decreased by approximately 
$8 million. Duke Energy generally does not maintain a material 'inventory of NGLs or actively trade commodity derivatives 
related to NGLs.  

Equity Price Risk. Duke Energy maintains trust funds, as required by the Nuclear' Regulatory Commission,: to fund 
certain costs of nuclear decommissioning. (See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.) As of December 31, 1998 
and 1997, these funds were invested primarily in domestic and'international-equity securities, fixed-rate, fixed-income secu 
rities and cash and cash equivalents. Management believes that its exposure to flictuations in equity prices or interest rate 
will not affect consolidated results of operations. See further, discussion in the Current Issues, Nuclear Decommissioning 
Costs section of Management's Discussion and Analysis..  

.Foreign Operations Risk. Duke Energy is exposed toforeign currency risk, sovereign. risk and other foreign opera
tions risks arising frotm equity. investments it international affiliates and businesses owned and operated in foreign cotii
tries. At December 31, 1998 Duke Energy had more than $100 million invested in. Australia. Investments in other foreign 
countries were not material at December 31, _198 or 1997. In order to mitigate risks associated with foreign currency fluc
tuations, the majority of contracts entered into by Duke.Energy or its affiliates are denominated in or indexed to the U.S.  
dollar or may be.hedged,through issuance of debt denominated in the foreign currency. Duke Energy also uses foreign cur
rency swaps, where appropriate, to manage its risk related to foreign, currency fluctuations. Other exposures to foreign cur
rency.risk, sovereign risk or other foreign operations risk are periodically reviewed by management and were not material 
to consolidated results of operations or financial position during 1998 or 1997.  

CURRENT ISSUES 

Operations Outlook. Duke Energy's business strategy is to develop regional centers, of energy assets involving gas, 
electric generation and marketing in the UIinited States. and internationially. Ifi the United States,' Duke Energy is aggressively 
investing in new pipelines and power pliants in the Northeast, Gulf Coast and West. Interiationally, Duke Energy is focus
ing on opportunities in Asia Pacific, South America and Europe., 

Electric Operations is expected to grow-moderately, consistent with historical trends. Expansion -will primarily result 
from continued economic growth in its service territory..In 1997, as a result of the merger with -PanEnergy, Duke Energy 
signed various agreements with the NCUC, PSCSC and the FERC capping base.rates to retail and wholesale electric cus
tomers at existing levels -through 2000. In addition, Duke Energy signed agreements with the other joint owners of the 
Catawba Nuclear Station providing for a cap on certain rates charged under interconnection agreements. In response to these 
rate agreements and coripetitive pressure , Electric Operations coiitinuies to. strive to maintain low costs and competitiv 
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rates for its.customers and to provide high quality customer service. Duke Energy does not expect.a negative impact as a 
* suit of such agreements on its. results of operations or financial position. (See further discussion in the Electric Competi

-section below.).  

The Northeast-Pipelines are an esseiltial part of Natural Gas Transmission's strategy to advance projects that provide 
expanded services.to meet the specific needs of customers. The proposed sale of the Midwest Pipelines allows Natural Gas 
Transmission to focus on regions, such as the northeastern U.S., with increasing demand for gas. Northeast pipeline projects 
will provide transportation from: new supplies in both eastern and western Canada in addition to traditional domestic sup
ply basins..  

Duke Energy plans to significantly grow several of its business segments: Field Services, Trading and Marketing, Glo
bal Asset Development and Other Energy Services. Deregulation of energy. markets in the United States.and abroad is pro
viding substantial: opportunities for these segments to. capitalize on their broad capabilities. Field Services will expand 
through the purchase. of the natural gas gathering, processing, fractionation and NGL pipelinebusiness from Union Pacific 
Resources along with, its natural gas and NGL marketing activities.  

Global Asset Development expects to continue strong growth through acquisitions; construction of greenfield projects 
and expansion of existing facilities as value-added opportunities present themselves. Duke Energy's combination of assets 
and capabilities that span the energy value chain have contributed to Global Asset Development's successful combination of 
natural gas pipeline capabilities, power generation, energy marketing and other services. .This demonstrated domestic strat
egy is now being deployed internationally in the Asia Pacific area and in South America. Other Energy Services seeks to 
grow with types of services incliding comprehensive energy efficieicies in food, textile'and government facilities.  

The strong real estate market in the Southeast continues to present substantial growth 'opportunities for Real Estate 
Operations. In 1998, Real Estate Operations initiated development of significant office and industrial facilities in each of its 
established markets to capitalize on market conditions.  

While the proposed sale of" the' Midwest Pipelines will provide an opportunity to deploy capital into areas of higher 
growth, Duke Energy expects 'to 'experience some near-term earnings pressure as' 'a result of the sale. Duke Energy believes Wat its strategy of developing regional centers of energy assets will return lon gterm growti and increase shareholder value.  

uke Energy continues to target long-term annual growth in earnings per share of eight to ten percent.  

Electric Competition. Wholesale Competition. The Energy Policy Act of 1992 (EPACT) and the FERC's'subsequent 
rulemaking activities have established the regulatory framework to open the wholesald energy market to competition. EPACT 
amended provisions of the Public Utility Holding Coipany'Act of 1935 and the Federal Power Act to remove certain bar
riers to a competitive wholesale'market. EPACT permits -utilities to participate in the development of independent electric 
generating plants for sales to Wvholesale customers, 'and 'also permits the FERC to order transmission access for third parties 
to transmission facilities owned by another entity. It does not; however, permit the FERC to issue an order requiriAg ttans
mission access to retail customers. The FERC, responsible in large measure for implementation of the EPACT, has moved 
vigorously to implement its mandate, interpreting the statute broadly and issuing orders for third-party transmission service 
and a number of rules of general applicability, iicluding Orders, 888 and 889.  

Open-access transmission' for wholesale customers as defined by the FERC's final rules provides energy suppliers, 
including Duke Energy, with opportunities to sell and deliver 'capacity and energy at market-ba.sed prices. Duke Energy and 
several of its non-regulated subsidiaries were granted authority by the FERC to act as power marketers in 1995. In 1998, 
an additional non-regulated subsidiary was granted power marketer authority. Electric Operations obtained from the FERC 
open-access rule the rights to sell 'capacity and energy at inarket-based rates from its own assets. Open access .provides 
another supply option through which Electric' Operations can purchase at attractive rates a portion of capacity and energy 
requirements resulting in lower overall costs to customers. Open 'access also, provides Electric Operations' existing whole
sale customers with competitive opportunities to seek- other..suppliers for their capacity and energy requirements.  

Wholesale sales 'represented approximately 1.1.3% of total gigawatt'hour sales for Electric Operations in 1998. Supple
mental power sales' to the other joint owners of Catawba Nuclear Station comprised the majority of wholesale sies. Such 
supplemental power sales will continue to decline in 1999 as the joint ownersretain more capacity and energy from Catawba 
Nuclear Station or purchase from a third party. (See, Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements-) 

lRetail Competition. Currently, Electric'Operations operates as a vertically integrated, investor-owned utility vith exclu
ive rights to supply electricity in a franchised service territory - a 20,000-scqu'are-mile service territory in the Carolinas. In 
s retail business, the NCUC and the PSCSC regulate Electric Operations' service and rates.  
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Electric industry restructuring is being.addressed in all -50 statesand il the District 6f'ColumbiawHich'is fesulting in 
changes in the industry. 'These changes Will likely iiiipact all eitiies owiing electric generating assets: The NCUC and th 
PSCSC are studying the merits of restructuring the electric Utility industry in the Carolinas. Although the Nortli Carolin 
and South Carolina legislatures have not made a final decision on this matter, initiatives are underway-to determine whether 
it is in the best,interests of all, parties to.deregulate the'electric industry. , -. .  

In May 1997, North Carolina passed A-bill, that established a study commission to examinewhether cohipetition shodld 
be implemented in the--state. 'The commission's report to the state General'Asseitibly is expected ti'8b completed by early 
2000. Duke Energy is a- member of the study commission along with other utility representatives, legislators, customers and
a member of an environmental group. . . * ,, ., 

- On February:3,' 1998,-the PSCSC presented its report to the South Carolina Houseof Repreentatives on how to deregu
late the electric industry. The report leaves the final decisiois to the General Assembly of South Carolina. Ti'e Public'ltil
ity Subcommittee of the House of RepresentatiVes Commrittee on Labor, Commerce and Iidustry lias beehcohlucting hear
ings regarding electric industry restructuring during the past year. - ' "

Late. in 1998, a task force was formed by the-South Carolitia Senate to ekamine issues related to&deregulatibn of the 
state's electric utility business. This task'force will prepare d report for-review, discussioi aid possible legislative'actibn by 
the Senate Judiciary'Committee and the-GeneralAssembly as a whole.  

Currently, theelectric utility industry is predominantly regulated on a basis designed, to, recover the cost of providing 
electric power to customers. If cost-based regulation were to be discontinued, in the industry for any reason, including com
petitive pressure on the cost-based prices of electricity, profits could be reduced and electric utilities might be required to 
reduce their asset balaices to reflect a market basis less ihan:cost. Iiscontinuance of cost-based regulaiion ,would also require 
affected utilities-to-write off their Associated regulatory assets. Duke Energ/ys regulatory-assets are iicluded in the Consdli
dated Balance Sheets. The portion of these regulatory assets related'to Electric' Operations is* approxiniately $1:5 billion, 
including primarily purchased capacity costs, debt expense and deferred taxes related to regulatory assets. Currently, Duke 
Energy is recovering substantially all of these regulatory assets, through its wholesale and retail electric ratesr and would 
attempt to continue torecover these assets during a transition to competition. In addition, Duke Energy would seekto. recove 
the costs of its.electric generating facilities in excess of the market.price of power at the~time of transition.' 

- Duke Energy supports a properly managed and orderly, transition tocompetitive generation and retail services in the 
electric industry. However, transforming the current regulated industry into efficient, competitive generation and retail .6lec
tric markets is a complex undertaking, which will require. a.carefully. considered transition to, a restructured electric indus
try. The key to effective retail competition is fairness among. customers, service providers and investors. Duke Energy intends 
to work with customers, legislators- and regulators to address all the important issues. Maiagement cannot predict.the poten
tial impact, if any,.of these competitive forces on future consolidated results of operations-or financialposition 

Natural GaslCompetition. Wholesale Competition. On"July 29, 1998, the FERC issued a Notice of Proposed Ruleiaking 
(NOPR) on short-term natural'gas Itransportation services, which proposed-an integ'rated package of revisions to its regula
tions governing interstate natural gas pipelines 'Short term"' has been defined in the NOPR as 'all -transactions of less than' 
one year. Under the proposed approach, cost-based regulationgYould be eliminated for short-term,transportation and, replaced 
by regulatory policies intended, to thaximize competition in the short-term transportation market,-mitigate the ability of com
panies to exercise residual monopoly power and provide opportunities -for greater flexibility providing, pipeline services. The 
proposed changes include,initiatives to revise.pipeline scheduling procedures, receipt and delivery point policies and pen
alty policies, and require pipelines. to auction short-term capacity. Other pr6posed,changes would iiprove the.-FERC's 
reporting requirements, permit pipelines to negotiate rates and terms of. seryices, and revise certain rate and certificatepoli
cies that. affect competition. . ' - .- ,.. . -- 

In conjiinction with the NOPR, the FERC also issued a!Notice of Inquiry (NOI) on; its pricifig policies in the existing 
long-term market and pricing policies for new capacity. The FERC seeks comments.9n whether -its policies are biased.toward 
either short-term or long-term service, provide accurate'price signals, and the, right incentives, for pipelinesto provid& opti
mal transportation services and construct. facilities that meet future demand and do not result in ove building and excess 
.capacity. Comments on the NOPR and NOI ate due in April,. 1999,; 

Because these. notices are at a. very early stage and ultimate resolution is unknown, management cannot estimate the 
effects of these matters on future.consolidated results of operations or financial position. , 

. Retail Competition. Duke Energy currently does -not. ;rovide' retail' natural gas service, but changes in 'r6gulation to 
allow retail competition could affect Duke Energy's natural gas transportation contracts with local distribution companies.  
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Natural gas retail deregulation isin the eryf early stages of development and management cannot estimate the effects of this 
atter. on future consolidated resilts of operations ior financial position. .  

W Nuclear Decommissioning Costs. Duke Energy's estimated site-specific nuclear decommissioning costs total approxi
mhately $1.3 billion stated ini 1994 dollars based on decon missioning studies completed in 1994. This estimate includes the 
cost of decommissioning plant components hot subject to radioactive contamination. Duke Energy cointribuites to an exter
nal deconmissioning trust -fund and'maintainis an internal reserve to fund these costs.-, 

The 6alance of theexterhialfunds as of December 3 1 8 anl 1997 ,was $580 rillion and $471 million, respectively.  
The balance 6f the iiternal reserve as of Decemb'r 31, 1998 'and 1997, was $217 million and $211 million, resp ectively, 
and is reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Accumulafed Depreciation and Amortization.  

B6th the NCUC and- th SCSd' have granted Duke Energy recovery of estimated decommssioiing costs through retail hat estiate detm es~~n costs itsti~ retailen 
rates over th expected remiaiiiing service periods of its nuclear plants. Management believes thatffunding of the deconimis
sioning costs will not have a material adverse effec ori onsolidated results of operations or finaicial position. (See Note 
11t the Cololidatid Finaicial Staterieits.) 

As of December 31'; 1998,and 1997, the external deedmrnissioning trust fund was invested primarily in, domestic and 
international equity securities, fixed-rate, fixed-income securities and cashiand-cash equivalents. Maintaining a portfolio that 
includesilong-term equity investments maximizes 'the returns to be utilizedto fund nuctear decommissioning, which in the 
long-tenri will -better correlate to inflationary iicreases in decommissioning' costs. However, the equity:securities included 
in Duke Energy's .portfolio are; exposed to price fluctuations: in equity markets,7andthe 'fixed-rate; fixed-income securities 
are. exposed to changes in interest rates.  

Duke;Energy actively monitors its portfolio by benchmarking the performance of its investments against certain indexes 
and by maintaining,' and periodically reviewing, established target allocation percentages of the assets in its trusts. Because 
the accounting for. nuclear."decommissionihig recognizes that costs are recovered through the Electric Operations segment's 
rates, fluctuations in equity prices or interest rates do not affect consolidated. results of operations.  

Environmental. Duke Energy -is subject'to interfiational, federal, state -and -local 'regulations regarding air and water 
uality,; hazardous and solid waste disposal and -other>environmental matters. .: 

tu Pl'ants ah Juperfu ities. Duke Ener wa n operator of manufactured gas pats until the early 
1950s and has entered into a co pitive effort withthe'State of North Carolina and other owilers of certain former manu
factured gas plant sites to'inivestigate8nd, where necessary, remediate these contaminated sites..The State of South Carolina 
has expressed interest in entering into a similar aDrangement. TDike Energy is considered by regulators to be a potentially 
responsible party;andmay.:be subject to:future liability at. seven federal :Superfund sites and three-state Superfund sites.  
While the cost of remediation of the remaining sites may be substantial, Duke Eiergy will share in any liability associated 
with remediation of coritamination at suchsites with other potentially responsible parties. Management. believes that reso
lution of these niatiefs will not havea m'aterial adverse effect oof nsolidated results of operations or financial position.  

- PCB (Polychlorinated Biphenyl)!Assessmenti.and Clean-up Programs. TETCO, a wholly -owned' subsidiary of Duke 
Energy, is currently conducting PCB assessment -and clean-upiprograms.atvceitain of its compressor station sites under- con
ditions stipulated by a U.S. Consent Decree. The programs include on- and off-site assessment; installation of on-site source 
control equipment and groundwater monitoring wells, and on- and off-site clean-up work. TETCO completed the soil 
clea-up programs during 198, subject to reguitory approval. Groinidwater rilonitorng activities will continue at several 
sites beyond 1999.' 

. o In 1987, the Commonwealth ofrKentucky instituted-a suit'in state court against TETCO, allegini improper disposal of 
PGBs at TETCO's three compressor station sites ii Kentucky. This.suit is still pending. In 1996, TETCO completed'clean-up 
of these sitesf Under- the U.S. ConsentcDecree. - - . - ' . ' 

Duke En~ryf 'etf~ eii'' -in c 6. k' ne syonm and 
DukeEnergy lias al6ideiitified eionmentalcontamination at certain sites on the PEPL and Trunkline systems and 

has undertakenclean-up programs at these sites. The contamiiration resulted from the past-use of lubticalts containing PCBs 
and-the.prior use-of.wastewatr .collection facilities and.other on-site'disposal areas. Soil and sediment testing, to date, has 
detected':io sighificant off-site contamination Duke Energy has communicated' with the 'Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA)-andappropriate state regulatory, agencies- on these matters:.Under the'terms of the agreement with CMS Energy Cor

oration, Duke Energy is obligated to complete the'PEPL and Trunkline clean-up programs-at certain agreed-upon sites.  
ese clean-up programs are expected to continue until 2001. .  
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At December 31, 1998 and 1997, remaining estimated, clean-up costs on the TETCO, PEPL and Trunkline systems were 
accrued and included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Environmental Clean-up, Liabilities. These cost estimates rep 
resent gross clean-up costs expected to be incurred, have not been discounted or reduced by customer recoveries and gen 
erally do not include fines, penalties or third-party claims. Costs expected to be recovered from customers have been deferred 
aid are included ii the 'Consolidated.Balance Shedts as Environiiiental Clean-up Costs .  

The federal and state clean-up programs are not expected to interrupt or diminish Duke Energy's ability to deliver natu
ral gas to customers. Based on Duke Energy's experience to date and costs incurred for clean-up-operations, management 
believes the resolution of matters relating to the environmental issues. discussed above will not have a material adverse effect 
on consolidated results of operations or financial position.  

Air Quality Control.. The Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 ,require a two-phase reduction by electric utilities in 
aggregate annual emissions of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide by 2000. Duke Energy currently meets all requirements of 
Pfhirse I. Duke'Enerigy supports the hational objective of protedtiig. air qualityi n the most cost-effective rnanner, -and has 
already reduced emissions by operating plants efficientl', using nuclear and hydroelectric generation and implementing vari
ous compliance strategies. To meet Phase II requirements by 2000, Duke Energy's current strategy includes Using low-sulfur 
coal, purchasing sulfur dioxide emission allowances and installing low-nitrogen oxide burners and emission monitoring 
equipment. Construction activities, needed to comply :with Phase II requirements are substantially complete. Additional 
annual operating expenses of approximately $25. million for low-sulfur coal premiums, emission allowance purchases. and' 
other compliance activities will occur after 2000.. This'strategy. is contingent upon developments in. future markets -for emis
sion allowances, low-sulfur coal, future regulatory and legislative actions and advances in clean air technologies.  

In October 1998, the EPA issued a final ruling on regional ozone control which requires revised State Implementation 
Plans for 22 eastern states and the District of Columbia. This-'EPA ruling- is being challenged in court by various states, 
industry and other interests, including the states of North Carolina and South Carolina and Duke, Energy: Depending on the 
resolution of this matter, costs to Duke Energy may range:from approximately -$100 milliot -to $500 million.  

In December 1997, the United Nations held negoiiations in Kyoto, Japan to determine how to a'hieve worldwide stai
bilization of greenhouse gas emissions, including carbon dioxide emissions from fossil-fired ;generating facilities and ineth
ane from natural gas pperations. Further negotiations in November' 1998 in Buenos Aires, Argentina, resulted in 'a work pla 
to complete the operational details of the Kyoto agreement by late 2000. Duke Energy is taking steps to. prepare for possible 
action on greenhouse gas emissions and has'completed 'a greenhouse gas emissiotis inventory. Implications of greenhouse 

gas emissions are being integrated into planniig processes. Becadse this nriatter is in the early stages of discussio,' manage
ment cannot estimate the effects -on future consolidated results of 6perations or financial position.  

Litigation and Contingencies. Forinformation concerning litigation and other commitments and contingencies, see 

Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.  

Year 2000 Readiness Program. State of Readiness. Duke Energy initiated its Year 2000. Readiness, Program in 1996 

and began a formal review oftcomputer-based systems and devices that are used inf its business operations both domestically 
and 'internationally. These systems and devices include customer information, financial, materials management and person

nel systems; as well as components of natural gas production, gathering, processing and transmission, and electric genera

tion, distribution and transmission. ' 

Duke Energy is using a thfee-phase approach to address year 2000 issies:' 1) inventory and preliminary assessinent of 

computer systems, equipment and devices; 2) detailed assessnierit ind remediation' planning; aid 3) conversion, testing and 
contingency planning. Duke Energy is employing a combination of systems repair and planned systems replacement activi

ties to achieve.year 2000 readiness for its business and process control systems, equipment and devices. Duke Energy has 
substantially completed the first two phases throughout its business operations, and-is in various stages of the third and final 

phase. Duke Energy's goal is to have its critical systems, equipment and devices year 2000 ready by:mid-1999. Business 

acquisitions routinely, involve an analysis of year 2000 readiness and are incorporated into the overall program as necessary.  

Duke Energy 'is actively evaluating and tracking year 2000 readiness of external third parties with which it has a mate-.  

rial relationship; Such third parties:include vendors; customers, U.S. governmental agencies, foreign governments and agen
cies, and other business associates. While the year 2000 readiness'of third parties.cannot be. controlled,,Duke Elhergy is 
attempting to assess' the readiness of third parties and any potential implications to its operations: Alternate suppliers of 

critical products, goods and services.are being identified, where necessary.  

Costs. Management believes it is devoting the~resources necessary toachieve year 2000 readiness in a timely manner.* 

Current estimates, for total costs of the program, including internal labor as well as incremental costs such as consulting and 
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contract costs, are approximately $65 million, of which approximately $41 millionihad been incurred as:of December 31, 
AM 998. These costs exclude replacement systems that, in addition to being year 2000 ready, provide significantly enhanced 

pabilities which will benefit operations in* future periods.  

Risks. Management believes it has an effective program in place to.manage-the risks associated with the year 2000 issue 
in a timely manner.. Nevertheless, since it is not possible to anticipate all future outcomes, especially when third parties are 
involved, there could be circumstances in which Duke Energy would temporaily be unable to deliver energy or energy ser
vices to its customers. Management believes that the most. reasonably likely worst case scenario would be small, localized 
interruptions of service, which likely would be rapidly restored. In addition, there could be a temporary reduction in energy 
needs of customers due to their own year 2000 problems. In -the event that such 'a scenario occurs, it is not expected to have 
a material adverse impact on consolidated results of operations or.financial position.  

Contingencv Plans. Year 2000 contingency planning is currently utidetway to assure continuity of bosiness operations 
for all periods'during which year 2000 impacts may odcur. Duke Energy is participating in multiple industiy efforts to assure 
effective year 2000 contiligency plans, and intends to complete its 'own year 2000 contingency plans by mid-1999: These 
plans address various year 2000 risk scenarios thatcross'departmental, business unit, and industry lines as well as specific 
risks from various internal and external sources, including supplier readiness. .  

Based on assessments completed to date and compliance plans in process, management believes that year 2000 issues, 
including the cost' of making critical systenlis, equipment and devices-reidy; will idot have a maierial adverse effect on Duke 
Energy's business operation or consolidated results of operations or financial position. NeVertheless, a6hieviiig year 2000 
readiness is subject to risks and uncertainties, including those described above. While management believes the p6ssibiiity 
is remote, if Duke Energy's internal -systems, or the internal systems of external parties, fail to achieve year 2000 readiniess 
in a timely manner, Duke Energy's business, consolidated results of -operati6hs or financial cbidition could be advirsely 
affected.  

'-'NewAccounting Standard. In September 1998, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards,(SFAS) No. 133, "Account
inig for Derivative 'Instruments and Hedging Activities," was issued. Duke Energy is required to adopt this standard 1y Janu
ary 1, 2000. SPAS No. '133 requires that all derivatives be recognized-as either assets or liabilities and-measured at fair value, e d it defines the accounting for changes in the. fair value of the derivatives.dependiig on the intended use of th6 derviative.  

uke Energy 'i currently reviewing the expected impact of.SFAS No. 133. on consolidated results of operations and finan
ci al position.  

Subsequent Event. OnFebruary'18, 1999, Duke Energy announced its intent to make a concurrent cash tender offer 
in Chilean pesos in Chile and the United States for I%.of the outstanding shares of Endesa-Chilej.The estimated. total cash 
outlay is approximately $2.1 billion based on current exchange rates. The offer will.be contingent upon, among 'other things,.  
certain Endesa-Chile shareholder approvals. If all approvals are obtained, the transactions are expected to be conipleted dur
ing the second quarter of 1999. Endesa-Chile controls and operates 10,247 megawatts of generating capacity in Argentina, 
Brazil, Chile, Colombia and Peru.  

Forward-Looking Statements. From time to time,. Duke Energy niay make statements regarding its assumptions, pro
jections, expectations, intentions or beliefs about future events. These statements are intended as "forward-looking state
ments" under the Private Sectirities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Duke Energy cautions that assumptions, projections, 
expectations, intentions or beliefs about future events may and 6fted do vary frofit actual results and the diffdrences between 
assumptions, projections, expectations, iitentions or beliefs and actual results can be material. Accordingly, there can be no 
assurance that. Actual results will not differ 'materially from those expressed 'r implied by the 'forward-looking statements.  
Factors that could cause actual achievements and evdits to differ materially from those expressed 'or iriplied in such forward
looking statements include state and federal legislative and regulatory initiatives that' affect' cost and investment recovery, 
have an impact on rate structures and affect the speed and degree to whih 'competition enters the electric and natural gas 
industries; industiial, commercial and residential growth in the service territories of Duke' Energy and its subsidiaries; the 
weather and other natural Ohenomena;- the timing and.extent of changes in commddity prices and interest rates; changes in 
environmental aid other laws and regulations to which Duke Energy and its subsidiaries are subject or other external fac
tors over which Duke Energy has no control; the results'of. financing. efforts; growth in opportunities for IDuke Energy's 
business'units; achievement of year 2000-readiness; and the effect.of accounting policies issued periodically by accounting 
standard-setting bodies. . '..  

*tern 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.  

See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, Qualitative and Quail
titative Disclosures About Market Risk.""" 
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Suppliementary Data.  

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Consolidated Statements of Income 

Years Ended December 31, 

1998 '-11997 .1996 
In millions; except per share amounts 

Operating Revenues 

Sales, trading and marketing, of natural gas and petroleum products;' 
(Notes I and 4) .. $7,854 $ 8,151 $ 5,848 

Transportation and storage of natural gas (Notes 1 and 4) ..................... 1,450 1,504 1,523 
Generation, transmission and distribution of electricity (Nptes I and 4) . 4,586 4,334 4,436 
Trading and marketing of electricity (Notes 1 and 4) ............ 2,788., 1,665 .78 
Other (Note 8) . *., .. , .932 655 417 

Total operating revenues 1761.......... ...  

Operating Expenses ..  

Natural gas and petroleum products purchased (Note .1), ..... ... 7497 7,705 5,414 
Fuel used in electric generation (Notes I and 11) ............. .767 743_ .758-; 
Net interchange and purchased power (Notes 1, 4 and 5) 2.......... 29 960. 4517 
Other operation and maintenance (Notes 4, .11 and 14) .............. 2 738 2,721. ,2 ,383 
Depreciation and amortization1(Notesr.and 5) ............................ 909 841 789 
Property and other taxes ............................................ 350 369 342' 

Total operating expenses .. , .......... .......... ............ .......... . .......... .... 15,177 14,339 10,143 

Operating Income ........ . -***2,**3**12,159 

Other Income and. Expenses j 

.Deferred returns .and allowance for funds used during construction (Note 1) ..-... '88 109 105" 
O ther, net . ............................. ........... ............ .......................... . .. 129 30 

Total other income and expenses ......................................................... . 214 138 _ 35 

Earnings Beforethnterest and Taxes . ................ .............................. ...... 2,647 - 2,108 2,294 

Interest Expense (Notes.7 and .10) '. . ................ . ....... .. : .514' 472 499

Minority Interests (Notes 2 and '12) ...... ...... '.. .. .96 ... 23 . .6 

Earnings Before Incorme Taxes - .........." r .. 2037'' ' 1.613 '' 1,789 
Iicome Taxes (Notes 1"and '6) ............. 777 639 698 

Income Before Extraordinary Item .............................. ,2 6 0  '974 1,091 
Extraordiniary Loss,net of tax . .................. ....... ..................... I .... ............ 8 (17) 

N et Incom e ...................... .................. .......... '.. ......... 1,074 

Dividends and Premiums on Redeitn f Preferred and refernce Stock 
~''Nte 13)'eepos.eread P.frec ..... , .:21"" 72 ' 44 

(Note 13)....... .......... ....... ..... ........................ ....................... .............. ... 2 24 

Earnings Available for Common Stockholders ............................. $1,231.. $ ... 2. $ 1,030 

Common Stock Data (Note 1) 

Weighted average shares outstanding . . ............... 361 360-. _361.  

Earnings per share (before extraordinary item). '; , ..  

Basic .............. . ....... ........ . $ 3.43: $ 2.51 $ 2.90 

Dilutive ...................................... ........... ;$ 3.42 $ 2.50 $ 2.88, 

Earnings-.per share 

Basic ..... ......... . .. . .. .... ........... :.. $ 3:41; $ 2.51 $ ;2.85 

Dilutive ................................ $ 3.40 I.$I 2.50 $ 2.83' 

Dividends per share ............................................ $ 2.20 $ .1.90 $ 1.57 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements' 
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Consolidated, Statements of Cash Flows 

W Years Ended December 31, 
1998 1997 1996 

In millions 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Net Income .................................................... $ 1,252 $ 974 $ 1,074 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization . . 1,055 983 965 
Deferred. income taxes ........... ............ ...................... .99 ,94 
Purchased capacity levelization ........................................... 88 56 '73 
Transition cost (payments) recoveries, net .............................. (28 (36 . 91 
(Increase) decrease in 

Receivables ............................... ....................... 18) (266) . (646) 
Inventory ............ ..................... ......... (104) (7) 45 
Other current assets ................................................ (39) (18) 17 

Increase (decrease) in 
Accounts payable ........................ ......................... 72 239 '577 
Taxes accrued (6.J50................ ........ ..... 5 (11 
Interest accrued ................................................... (2) (13) (18) 
Other current liabilities ............................................. 84 15 (10) 

Other, net . 12 64 '84 

Net cash provided by operating activities................................. 2,331 2,140 2,335 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Capital expenditures ............................. . (1,323) '(1,394) 

Investment expenditures ..... ........................  

Decommissioning, retirements and 'other ... ....... ............. 24 34 (18) 
Net cash used in investing activities ................ ................... (2,476) (1,994 (1,568) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Proceedsfrom the issuance of 

Long-term debt .............. ,5 Long..term.debt...................... .... I...... ............... 1,5 1,618' ' 363 
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in subordinated notes of Duke Energy 

Corporation or subsidiaries ........................ 581 
Comnmoti'stock.and stock options....................................... 176 15 '12 

;Payments for the redemption of 
Long-term debt .... ... .. .. .. (698) ...(869)' :(527) 
Common stock.................................................... - (25) (159) 
Preferred and preference stock . . (180) (224) 

Net change in notes payable and commercial paper ............... ....................... (350) (290) 159 
Dividendspaid ................................................... '(814) (726) (609) 
Other *................................................................... ................ 6 . (41) . (12) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ....... 78 (203) (773) 
Net decrease in cash. and cash equivalents.1................................. (67) (57) (6) 
Cash received from business acqui -sitions .................................................. 38 
Cash and cashv.quivalents'at beginning of year ........................................ 10 166 * 172 
Cash and cash equivalents at 'end ofyear............................................... . 80 $ 109' $ 166 

S upplemeri 'l Disclosures 
Cash paid for interest, net of amount capitalized............................................ $ 490 $ 476 $493 
Cash paid for income taxes................................................................ $ 733 $ 470 .$ 550 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 31, 

1998 1997 
In milions 

ASSETS 
Current Assets (Note 1) 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) ........................................ $ .80 $ 109 
R eceivables (N ote 7) ......................................................................................................... 2,318 2,281 
Inventory ................................................. .................................................. 543 440 
Current portion of natural gas transition costs (Note 4) ......................................................... 100 67 
Current portion of pirchased capacity costs (Note 5) ........................................................... 99 76 
Unrealized gains on mark to market transactions (Note 7) ........ ......................... ......... 1,457 551 
O ther (N ote 7) ................................................................................................................. 228 161 

Total current assets ............................................... 4....................................................... 4,825 3;685 
Investments and Other Assets 

Investm ents in affiliates (Notes 8 and 14) ........................................................................... 902 686 
Nuclear decommissioning trust funds (Notes 7 and 11) ................................. 580 471 
Pre-funded pension costs (N ote 17) ..................................................................................... 332 337 
Goodwill, net (Notes 1, 2 and 6) ............................................... 495. 504 
N otes receivable .............................................................................................................. . 244 240 
Unrealized gains on mark to market transactions (Notes 1 and 7) ....................................... 396 66 
O ther ......... . ............ ............................................... ....................................................... 283 144 

Total investments and other assets ................................................................................. 3,232 2,448 
Property, Plant andEquipment (Notes 1, 5, 9, 10, 11 and 14) 

Cost ............................................................................. 27,18 25,448 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .................................................................... 10,253 9,71 

Net property, plaitand equipm ent ................................... ..................................... ........ 16,875 15,736 
Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits (Note 1) 

Purchased capacity costs (Note 5) ....................................................................................... 648 759 
D ebt expense ................................................................................................................... 253 253 
Regulatory asset related to incom e taxes ............................................................. . ............. 506 511 
N atural.gas transition costs (N ote 4) ...... .......................................................................... 80 194 
Environm ental clean-up costs .................................................... ....................................... 87 104 

O ther ............................................................ ................................................................ .. 300 339 
Total regulatory assets and deferred debits .................... .. ................... .874 2,160 

Total Assets ................................................................ $26,806 $24,029 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statelients 
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Consolidated Balance Sheets'- Continued December 31, 
1998 1997 

In millions 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Current Liabilities 

A ccounts payable ........................................ ; ........ ...................................................... $ 1,754 $ 1,670 
Notes payable and commercial paper (Notes 7 and 10) . ................................ 209 170 
Taxes accrued (Note 1) ...................................................... 19 125 
Interest accrued ................................................................................ 109 111 
Current maturities' of long-term debt and preferred stock (Notes. 10 and .13) ............................ 707 77 
Unrealized losses on mark to market transactions (Notes I and 7) . .................................-.--- 1,387 _538 
Other.(Notes I and 14) ...................................................... 642 584 

Total current liabilities. ........ ........................................ A 
Long-term Debt (Notes 7 and 10) ........... .................................... 6,272 6,530 
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities (Note 1) 

Deferred incom e taxes (Note 6) ............................... :..:....... . ........... ....................... . 3,733 3,707 
Investmefit tax credit (Note 6) . . 242 257 
Nuclear decommissioning costs externally funded (Notes 7 and 11) ......................... 580 471 
Natural gas transition liabilities (Note 4) ................................................ 4 78 
Environmental clean-up liabilities (Note 14) ........................... ............. 148 158 
Unrealized losses on mark to market transactions"(Note 7) ... :............... 362 50 
Other ............................................ 903 967 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities ....................................... 5,972 5,688 
inority Interests (Note 2) ....... ............. ............................... 253 168 

u uaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests in Subordinated 
Notes of Duke Energy Corporation. or Subsidiaries (Notes 7 and 12) ..................... 919 339 

Preferred and Preference Stock (Notes 7 and 13) 
Preferred and preference stock with sinking fund requirements ............................ 104 149 
Preferred and preference stock without sinking fund requirements ............................................ 209 340 

Total preferred and preference stock ............................................ 313 489 
Coniitments and' Contingencies (Notes. 5, 11 and 14) 
Common Stockholders' Equity (Notes 15 and 16) 

Common stock, no par, 500 million shares authorized; 363.0'million and 359.8 million shares 
outstanding at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively ............................................... 4,449 4,284 

Retained earnings .................... .................................................................................... 3,701 3,256 
Total com m on stockholders' equity .................................................................................. 8,150 7,540 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity ......................................................................... $26,806 $24,029 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements'.  
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders' Equity 
Years Ended December 31, 

1998 1997 1996 

In millions 

Common Stock 

Balance at beginning of year .......................................... $4,284 $4,289. $4,297 
Stock repurchased (Note 15) -... . . -. . .31) 
Dividend reinvestment and employee benefits . 165' 9 23 
Other capital stock transactions, net ...................................... 4  

Balance at end of year ........................ 4,449"4,284 4,289 

Retained Earnings .  

Balance at beginning of year........................................... 2,716 
Net income.............................. 1,252 97 
Common stockdividends.............................................. (794)' (682)' (566 
Preferred and preference. stock dividends and. premiums 

on redemptions (Note 13)............................................... 1) M) (44) 
Other capital stock transactions, net 8........................ ............... 8 . (16)..- (128) 

Balance at end of year,..... ...... . 3,701: 3,256 .3,052 
Total Common Stockholders? Equity ......................................... $850 $7,540 $7,341 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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DUKE- ENERGY CORPORATION 

'Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 19% 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES : , 

Consolidati6ii.The consolidated financial statements include the accouits of all of Duke Energy Corporation's majority
owned subsidiaries after the elimination'of significant intercoripany 'transactions and balances. Investments in other entities 
that are not-'con&olled by Duke Energy. Corporation, but where it has significant iiluence over operations, are accounted 
for using the equity method.  

The' preparation of finincial stateinents iii conformity with geiierally accepted accounting principles requires manage
ment to' iake estimates and assumfptioils. that affect the amounts- reported in' the fihiAhcial statements and "accompanying 
notes. Although these estimates are based on rianagement's knowledge of current and expected future events, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. ., 

"Duke Eniergy"'is used froni time to time hereid as 6letive'reference to Duke Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries.  

. Cash and Cash Equivalents. All liquid investments with maturities.at date, of purchase of three months or less are 
considered cash equivalents.. . . .  

Inventory. Inventory consists primarily of materials and supplies, gas held for transmission, processing and sales'com
mitments and coal,held for electric.generation. Inventory is recorded at the lower of cost or market, primarily using the 
average cost method.  

Commodity'Derivatives. DikW Energy, primarily through its subsidiaries, manages its exposure to risk from existing 
contractual 'cdmiitrments and pr6vides risk mariagement services to'it~ customers and suppliers through' forward'contracts, 
futures, over-the-counter swap agreements and options.  

Commddity'derivatives and certaid forWard'contracts utilized for 'trading purlposes are accounted'for using the mark
-mark6t method.- Under this methodology, these insiruments are adjusted to market value, and the gains and losses are rec

ognized in current period income and are included in the-Consolidated Statements of Income-as Natural Gas'and Petroleum 
Products;.Purchased or Net Interchange and. Purchased Power. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets as Unrealized Gains or Losses on Mark to Market Transactions., 

Futures, over-the-counter swap'agreeients and optiofs are also utilized for non-tiading purposes to hedge the impact 
of market fluctuations in the price and transpotation costs of natural gas, blectricity and other-ehergy-relaied products. In 
order to, qualify as.a.hedge, the price movements in the commodity derivatives must be highly correlated with the underly
ing hedged commodity. Under the deferral method of accounting,.gains andlosses related to commiodity derivatives which 
qualify 'as hedges of commodity commitients are recojnized.in income when the underlying hedged physical transaction 
closes.and are. included in the Consolidated Statements. of Income as Natural Gas and. Petroleum Products Purchased or Net 
Interchange and Purchased Power.. Deferred gains and losses related to such instruments are reported in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets as Current Assets or Liabilities until recognized in income. If the commodity derivative is no longer, suffi
ciently correlated to the underlying commodity, or if the underlying commodity transaction closes earlier than anticipated, 
the deferred gains or losses Are recogfiized in income.  

Derivative Financial Instruments. Duke Energy uses interest rate swaps, accounted for under the accrual method, to 
manage the.interest rate characteristics associated with outstanding debt. Interest rate differentials to be paid or received as 
interest rates change are accrued and recognized as an adjusmentto interest expense. The amount accrued as either a pay
able to or receivable from counterparties is included in the Consolidated, Balance Sheets as Regulatory Assets and Deferred 
IDebits., 

Duke Energy 'also utilizes ihterest rate-lock agreements to hedge interest rterisk associated with riewdebt issuances.  
Under the deferral method of accouitilg, gains or'losses 6n such agrebrnents, when settled, are deferred'in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets as Long-term Debt and aredarkiortized in'the'Consolidated Statements of Income as an adjustment to.inter
est expense.  
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PouCIEs - Continued 

Duke Energy enters into foreign currency swap agreements to manage foreign currency risks associated with energy.  
contracts denominated in foreign currencies. These. agreements are accounted for under the mark-to-market method. See 
previous discussion of the mark-to-market method in the Commodity Derivatives section.  

-Goodwill Amortization. Goodwill related to the purchases of Duke/Louis Dreyfus, L.L.C. (D/LD), Texas'Eastern Cori

poration (TEC) and other natural gas gathering, transmission and processing facilities and engineering coisulting businesses 
is amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 years, 40 years and. 15' years, respectively. See Note.2 for a desciiption of the 
D/LD acquisition. Goodwill recorded as ofDecember 31, 1998 and 1997 related to the 1989 TEC acquisition was $245 mil
lion. Accumulated amortization of goodwillat December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $166,rrillion.and $124 million, respectively.  

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost. Duke El ergy capitalizes all 
construction-related direct labor and material costs, as well as indirect construction costs. Indirect costs include general 

engineering, taxes and the cost of money. The cost of renewals and, betterments that extend the useful life of property, plant 
and equipment is also capitalized. The cost 'of repairs and replacements is charged to expense as iictirred. Depreciation is 

generally computed using the straight-line method. The composite weighted-aiverage depreciation rates, excluding nuclear 
fuel, were 3.82%, 3.67% and 3.77% for 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.  

When property, plant and equipment maintained by Duke Energy's regulated operations are retired, the original cost 

plus the cost of retirement, less. salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation and amortization. When entire regulated 

operating units are sold or non-regulated properties are retired or, sold, the property and related accumulated depreciation 

and amortization accounts are reduced, and any gain or loss is recorded in income, unless otherwise required by the Fed

eral Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).  

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The recoverability of long-lived assets, and intangible assets are reviewed whe 

ever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Such eval 

ation is based on various analyses, including undiscounted cash flow projections.  

Unamortized Debt Premium, Discount and Expense. Premiums, discounts and expenses incurred in connection with 

the issuance of presently outstanding long-term debt are amortized over the terms of the respective issues. Any call premi

ums or unamortized expenses associated with refinancing higher-cost debt obligations used to finance regulated assets. and 
operations are amortized coisistent with regulatory treatment of those items.  

Environmental Expenditures. Environmental expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past opera
tions and do not contribute to current or future revenue generation are expensed. Environmental expenditures relatifig"to 
current or future revenues are expensed or capitalized -as appropriate. Liabilities are recorded when environmental assess

ients and/or clean-ups-are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Certain of these environmental assessmenits 

and clean-up costs are expected to be recovered from Natural Gas Transmissi6ih customers and have, therefore; been deferred 

and are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Environmental Clean-up Costs.  

Cost-Based Regulation. Duke Energy's regulated operations are subject to the' provisions of Statement of Financial 

Accounting Standards '(SFAS) No. 71,"'Accounting 'for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.". Accordingly, certain 

assets 'and liabilities that result from the regulated ratemaking process are recorded that would'not be' recorded under gen
erally accepted accounting principles for non-regulated entities. These regulatory assets and' liabilities are classified! in the 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits and Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities, respec
tively. The applicability of SFAS, No. 71 is routinely 'evaluated, and factors such as regulatory changes and the impact of 

competition are considered. Discontinuing cost-based regulation or increasing competition might require companies to reduce 

their asset balances to reflect a market basis less.than cost and.to. write off their associated regulatory assets. Management 

cannot predict the potential impact, if any, of discontinuing cost-based regubation or increasing competition on future finan

cial position or results of operations. However, Duke Energy continues to position, itself to effectively meet these challenges 

by maintaining competitive prices.  

Common Stock Options. The intrinsic value method of accounting is used for common stock options issued 

employees.  
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Notes to.Consolidated Financial Statements -Continued 

No-n 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AccouNTING PoLICIEs - Continued 

Revenues. Revenues on sales ofelectricity and transportation and storage olr natural gas are recognized- as. service is 
provided. Revenues on sales of natural gas and petroleum products are recognized in the period of delivery:.Receivables on 
the Consolidated Balance Sheets included $193rmillion.and $232 million as of December,31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, 
for electric service that has been proyided but not yet billed to customers When rate cases are-pending final approval, a 
portion of the revenues is subject to possible refund...Reserves have been established where required forsuch cases.  

Nuclear Fuel. Amortization of nuclear fuel is included in the. Consolidated Statements of Income as Fuel Used in 
Electric Generation. The amortization is recorded using the units-of-production method.  

Deferred Returns and Allowance for Funds Used I)uring Construction (AFUI)C). Defierred returnsrepresent the 
estimated financing costs.tssociated with funding certain regulatory assets. These regulatory assets primarily aroseifrom the 
fiindiiig of purchased capacity costs above Ievels collected in rates. Deferred returns are noi-casli items and are primarily 
recognized as an addition toPur6hased Capacity Costs with aiI offsetting creditto Other Income and Expenses.  

AFUDC represents the estimated'debt and equity costs of capital funds necessary to finance the construction of new 
regulated facilities. AFUDC is a non-cash item and, is recognized as a cost of Property, Plant.and-Equipment, with offset
ting credits to Other. Income and Expenses and io Interest Expense. After construction is completed, Duke Energy is per
mitted to recover these costs, inchiding a fair return, through their inclusion in rate baseand din the provision for depreciation.  

Rates used for capitalization of deferred returns and AFUDC by Duke Enerjy's'regulated operations are calculated in 
compliance with FERC rules.  

Income Taxes. Duke Energy and its subsidiaries file a. consolidated- federal income tax return. Deferred income taxes 
have been provided for. temporary -differences. Temporary differences occur when events and transactions recognized for 

ancial reporting result in taxable or tax-deductible amounts in different periods. Investment tax credits have been deferred 
d are being amortized over the estimated useful lives of the related properties.  

Earnings Per Common Share. Basic earnings per share is based on a simple weighted average of common shares 
outstanding. Dilutiv6 earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other agreements to 
issue common stock, sich as stock options, were exercised or converted into comnon stock The numerator, for. the calcu
lation of basic and dilutive earnings per share is earnings available for common stockholders.  

Denominator for Earnings per Share 

1998 1997 1996 
In iions 

Denominator for basic earnings per share 
(weighted average shares outstanding) 3................................361 360- 361 

Assumed exercise of dilutive stock option's . .................. 1 2 2 
Denominator for dilutive earnings per share ..................... .......... . 362 362 363 

Extraordinary Items. In January 1998, TEPPCO Partners, L.P. (TEPPCO),'in which a subsidiary of Duke Energy has a,2% general partner interest and a 19t1% limited partner interest, redeemed certain First Mortgage Notes. A non-cash 
extraordinary loss of $8 million, net of ihcome tax of $5 milli6n; was recorded related to costs of the early retirement of debt. Earnings per common share for 1998 were reduced by $0.02 as a resiilt of this charge.  

On October 1, 1996, Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation (TETCO), a subsidiary of Duke Energy, redeemed $150 million, 10% debentures and $100 million, 10 '/8% debentures due 2011. TETCO'recorded a non-cash extraordinary item of $17 million, net of income tax of $10 rillion, related to the unamortized discount on this early retirement of debt. Earnings 
per common share for 1996 were reduced $0.05 as a result .of this charge.  

Reclassifications. Certain amounts have been reclassified in the Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the pen4 presentation.  
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Sthtements - Continued 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ' Continued 

New Accounting Standard. In September.1998, SFAS No. 133, "Accounting, for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities,'' was-issued. Duke Energyis required to adopt this standard by January 1, 2000. SFAS No. 133 requires that all! 
derivatives be-fecognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and it defines the accounting for changes 
in the fair value of the derivatives depending on the intended use of the derivative. Duke Energy is currently reviewing the 
expected idipact of SFAS No. 133 on consolidated results of operations and financial position.  

NOTE 2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 

PanEnergy Corp (PanEnergy). On June. 18, 1997, Duke Power Company (Duke Power) changed its name to Duke 

Energy Corporation. and completed a stock-for-stock merger. with PanEnergy (the merger). PanEnergy was involved in the 

gathering, processing, transportation and storage of natural gas; the production of natural gas liquids (NGL); and the mar
keting of natural.gas, electricity and other epergy-related products. Pursuant, to the merger agreement, Duke Energy issued 
.158.3.million shares of its common stock in exchange for all of the outstanding common stock of PanEnergy. Accordiigly, 
each share of PanEnergy common stock otitstahidingwas converted into the right to'receive 1.0444 shares of Duke Energy's 
common stock.In addition:each outstaiding option to purchase PanEn&gy-c6mmorf stock became an option to purchase 

common stock of Duke Energy, adjusted accordingly. The merger was'accounted for as a pooling of interests; therefore, the 
Consolidated Financial'Stateinents'and other financial'information included ifl ithis Anual Repoft for periods prior to the 

merger include the combined. historical -financial results. of Duke Power.and PanEnergy.  

Operating revenues and net income previously reported by the separate companies and the coibined amoulits presented 
in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income are as, follows: 

'-Year Ended December 31, 1996 

f Duke Power PanEnergy, Adjustments Combined 
In millions 

Operating revenues $4,758 $7,505 $39 $12,302 
Income before extraordinary item ......................... ....... $ 730 $ 361 - $1,091 
Net incom e .......................... ........................ ..... $ 730 $ 344 $ 1,074 

The adjustment to operating' revenues is a reclassificatioi of PanEiergy's equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 

from other income to revenues to be consistent with Duke Energy's financial statement presentation.  

Duke/Louis Dreyfus, L.L.C. On June 17, 1997, a wholly owned subsidiary of Duke Energy acquired the remaining 
50% ownership interest in D/LD from affiliates of Louis Dreyfus Corp. for $247 million. D/LD markets electric power, 
natural gas and energy-related services to utilities, municipalities and other large energy users in North America., The acqui
sition was accounted for by the purchase method, and the assets and liabilities and results of operations of D/LD have been 

consolidated in Duke Energy's financial statements since the date of purchase. The purchase-price substantially represents 

goodwill.  

Duke/UAE L.L.C. During December 1997, a wholly owned subsidiary of Duke Energy formed a joint venture with 

UAE Ref-Fuel L.L.C. (UAE), a wholly 9wned 'subsidiary of United American Energy Corp. Duke Energy owns a 65% 

interest in the joint venture, with UAE.owninga 35% minority interest. The joint.venture acquired a 50% ownership inter-.  

est in American Ref-Fuel, Company, a waste-to-energy firm with operations primarily in New York and New Jersey. Thus, 

Duke Energy has an indirect 32.5% ownership. interest in American Ref-Fuel Company and provided $237 million of invest

ment and financing to the venture.  

Duke Energy llading andMarketing, L.L.C.On August 1, 1996, a wholly owned subsidiary of Duke Energy formed, 

a natural gas and power,marketing joint venture with Mobil,Corporation affiliates..The marketing company conducts busi

ness as Duke Energy Trading and Marketing, L.L.C. in the United States and as Duke Energy Marketing,L.P. in Canada.  

Duke Energy operates the joint venture and owns a 60% interest, with Mobil Corporation owning a 40% minority interest.  
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 

NoTE 3. BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

Duke Energy is an integrated energy and energy services provider with the ability to offer physical delivery and, man
agement of both electricity and natural gas throughout the United States and abroad. Duke Energy provides these and other 
services through seven business segments: 

* Electric Operations 

* Natural Gas Transmission 

* Field Services 

* Trading and Marketing 

* Global Asset Development 

* Other Energy Services-' 

* Real Estate Operations 

These segments were defined as a-result of Duke Energy adopting SFAS No. 1311 "Disclostires about Segments of an 
Enterprise and Related Information.".  

Electric Operations generates, transmits, distributes and sells electric energy in central and western North Carolina and 
the western portion'of South Carolina (doing businIess as Duke Power or Nantahala Power and Light). These electric opera
tions are subject to the rules and regulations of the FERC, the North Carolina Utilities Comnissiond(NCUC) and the Pub
lic Service Commission of South Carolina (PSCSC). .  

Natural Gas Transmission, through its Northeast Pipelines,.provides interstate transportation and storage of natural gas 
customers primarily in the Mid-Atlantic and New England states. Until the expected sale of the Midwest. Pipelines in 

erly 1999, Natural Gas Transmission also provides interstate transportation and storage services in the midwest states. See 
further discussion of the proposed sale of the Midwest Pipelines in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The 
interstate natural gas transmission and' storage operations are also subject to the rules and regulations of the FERC.  

Field Services gathers, processes, transports and-markets natural.gas and produces and, markets NGLs. Field Services 
operates gathering systems in ten states that serve major gas-producing regions in the Rocky. Mountain, Permian Basin, 
Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast.areas. .  

Trading and Marketing' tarkets nIatural gas,, electricity' and other energy-related products across North America. Duke 
Energy owns a 60% interest ih Trading and Marketing's operations, with Mobil Corportion owning a'40% minority interest.  

Global Asset Development develops, -owns and operates energy-related facilities worldwide. Global Asset Development 
conducts its operations primarily through Duke Energy Power Services,- LLC (Duke Energy Power Services) and Duke 
Energy International, LLC (Duke Energy International).  

Other Eiiergy Services provides engineering, consulting, constructioii'and integrated energy solutions Worldwide, pri
marily through Duke Engineering & Services, Inc.,-Duke/Fluor Daniel and DukeSolutions, Inc.  

Real Estate Operations conducts its -business through Crescent Resourcs,1 Inc., which develops high quality commer
cial and residential real estate projects and manages forest holdings in the southeastern United States.  

43



DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 

NoTE 3. BUSINESS SEGMENTS - Continued 

Business Segment Data, 
Depreciation Ca ital and 

Unaffiliated Intersegment Total I and Invesment Segment 
Revenues Revenues Revenues EBIT Amortization Expenditures Assets 

In millions 

Year Ended December 31, 1998 
Electric Operations .......................... $ 4,626 $ - $ 4,626 $1,513 $522 $ 586 $13,073 
Natural Gas Transmission ................. 1,426 102 1,528 702 215 290 4,996 
Field Services ................................. 2,094 545 2,639 76 80 304 1,893 
Trading and Marketing ..................... 8,614 171 8,785 122 11 8 3,233 
Global Asset Development ................ 237 82 319 80 31 1,027 2,061 
Other Energy Services ...................... 436 85 521 1( 12 41 376 

Real Estate Operations ..................... 181 - 181 142 6 217 724 
Other Operations ............................. (4) 26 22 2 32: - 27 848 
Eliminations .................................... . (1,011) (1,011) - -- (398) 

Total Consolidated ........................... $17,610 $ - $17,610 $2,647 $909 $2,500 $26,806.  

Year Ended December 31, 1997 
Electric Operations ................... $ 4,40.1 $ $ 4,1401 '$1,282 $498 $ 743 $12,958 

Natural Gas Transmission ............... . 1,468 104 1,572 624 229 247 5,059.  
Field Services ................................. 2,481 574 3,055 157 71 157 1,855 

Trading and Marketing ..................... 7,411 78 7,489 44 7 18 1,857 

Global Asset Development ............... 4..09 . 14 123 5, 9 348 98 

Other Energy Services .................... 343 33 376 18 6 47 22 
Real Estate Operations .................... 124,'. 124 98 4' 223 594 

Other Operations ............................ (28) - .(28) (120)i 17 245 941 

Eliminations ...... . -(803) (803) - (446) 

Total Consolidated ........................... $16,309 $ - $16,309 $2,108 $841 $2,028 $24,029 

Year Ended December 31, 1996* 

Electric Operations .......................... $ 4,498 $ - $ 4,498 $1,419 $481 $ 610 $12,625 

Natural Gas Transmission ............ 1,470 86 . 1,556 595 228 194 5,186 
Field Services ................................. 2,216 -421 2,637 152 ,. 59 531 1,709 
Trading and Marketing ..................... 3,773 41 3,814 58. 4 7 1,404 

Global Asset Development .;......'....... 65;' 7 72 7 35 '522 

Other Energy Services, .................... 183 21 204 20 3 39 130 

Real Estate Operations ..................... 114 - 114 . 88- 4 115 446 

Other Operations ............................ . (17) (17) 38) 3 19 .727 

Eliminations .......................... ........ '(576) (576) - - (383) 

Total Consolidated ........................ $12,302 $ $12,302 $2,294 $789 $1,550 $22,366 

Duke Energy's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer differefit products and services and are each 

managed separately. Management evaluates segment performance based on earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT). Seg
ment earnings before interest and, taxes, presented in the accompanying table, includes intersegment sales accounted for at 

prices representative of unaffiliated party transactions. Segment assets are provided as additional information in. the accom

paiying table and are net of intercompany advances, intercompany notes receivable. and investments in subsidiaries.  

Other Operations primarily includes communication services, water services and certain unallocated corporate costs.  
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 

NoTE 4. REGULATORY MArrERS 

Electric Operations. The NCUC and the 'PSCSC approve rates for retail electric sales within their respective states.  
The FERC approves Electric Operations'. rates for electric sales to wholesale customers. Electric sales to the other joint 
owners of the Catawba Nuclear Station, which represent a substantial majority of Electric Operations' electric wholesale 
revenues, are set through contractual agreements.  

In 1997, in conjunction with the merger, Duke Energy agreed to cap 'the base electric rates for retail customers at exist
ing levels* through 2000,with very limited exceptions. Duke Energy als6 *agreed to freeze rates, except for the market-based 
rates, for transmission and wholesale electric sales. In addition, Duke Energy agreed to a cap on 'the rates charged to the 
other joint owners of Catawba Nuclear Station Under the itercon'necti6n agreements and oh'the reimbursement of certain 
costs related to administration and general expenses and general plant costs under operatioi and fuel agreements. Manage
ment believes that these agreements will not have a material adverse effect on consolidated results of operations or finan
cial position.  

Fuel costs are reviewed semiannually in the wholesale jurisdiction. and annually in the South Carolina retail jurisdic
tion, with'provisions for reviewing such costs'in base rates. In the'North Carolina retail jurisdiction, a review of fuel costs 
in rates is required annually aild during geheral rate case proceedings. All jurisdictions allow Duke Energy to adjust elec
tric rates for past over- or under-recovery of fuel costs. Therefore, the difference between actual fuel costs incurred for elec
tric operations and fuel costs recovered through rates is reflected in revenues. The stipulation agreements related to the 
merger do not apply to the fuel cost adjustments.  

The PSCSC, on May 7, 1996, ordered a rate reduction in. the form of a decrement. rider of 0.432 .cents per kilowatt
hour, or an average of approximately 8%, affecting South Carolina retail customers. South Carolina retail sales represent 
approximately 30%' of Electric Operations' total regulated electric sales. The rate reduction Was reflected on bills rendered 

or after June 1, 1996. This net decrement rider reflects an interim' true-up decrementadjdstmerit associated with the 
elization of Catawba Nuclear Station purchased capacity costs and an interim i-ue-up'incremenit associated with amorti

zation of the demand-side management deferral account. The rate adjustment was made; in piart, because cumulative levelized 
revenues associated with the recovery of-Catawba Nuclear Station purchased capacity costs had ekceeded purchased capac
ity.payments and associated deferred returns.  

Certain of Electric. Operations' electric wholesale customers, excluding the 'other Catawba Nuclear Station joint own
ers, initiated proceedings in 1995-before the FERC concerning rate-related matters. Duke Energy and' nine of its.eleven 
wholesale customers entered into a. settlement' in July 1996.'which reduced the customers' electric rates by approximately 
9% and renewed their contracts with Duke Energy through 2000. Both of the customers that did not enter into the settle
ment signed agreements and began purchasing electricity from other suppliers in 1997. Early in 1998, Duke Energy reached 
agreements, which were approved by the FERC' in September 1998,. with both of these former customers to recover the 
stranded costs incurred to serve these'customers. Management believes that these agreements will ndt have a material adverse 
impact on consolidated results of operations or financial position.  

In December. 1997, Duke Energy filed applications with the FERC, NCUC and PSCSC for authority to combine 
Nantahala Power and Light (a wholly owned subsidiary) and Duke' Power.'Duke Energy received the necessary approvals 
in June, April and February 1998, respectively. Nantahala Power and Light- began operations as a division of Duke Power 
effective August 3, 1998.  

Natural Gas Transmission. Duke Energy's interstate, natural gas pipelines primarily provide transportation and storage 
services pursuant to FERC.Order 636. Order 636 allows pipelines. to recover eligible costs resulting from implementation 
of the order (transition costs). In 1994, the FERC approved TETCO's settlement resolving regulatory issues related prima
rily to Order 636 transition costs arid a number of other issues. related to services prior to Order 636. Under the 1994 settle
ment, TETCO's. liability 'for transition costs was estimated based on the amount of producers' natural' gas reserves and 'other 
factors. This settlement provided for the recovery of certain of these transition costs from customersthrough volumetric and 
reservatioh charges. In 1995, basedlupon producers' discoveries of additional natural gas reserves, TETCO increased the 

tmated liabilities for transition costs by $126 million, increased regulatory assets by $86 million for amounts expected -to 
collected from customers and recognized a, $40 million charge to operating expenses ($26 million after tax). In .1998, 
C favorably resolved all remaining gas purchase contracts, recognizing $39 million of income ($24 million after. tax).  
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued 

NOTE 4. REGULATORY MATTERS - Continued 

On August 29, 1998,-the FERC approved a settlement filed by TETCO, whibh accelerates recovery, of natural gas tran
sition costs and reduces depreciation expense t6 tnore appropriately reflect the' estimated useful lives of its facilities, prihi
cipally interstate natural gas pipelines. Prior to the settlement, Duke Energy reviewed the conditidn of its natural gas pipe
line facilities and current maintenance practices, and concluded that extensiofi- of the useful lives 'was appropriate. Thes6 
facilities have a book value of approximately $1.8 billion, net of accumulated-depreciation of $2.,billion. The new weighted 
average rate of depreciation -for storage and transportation plant is apptoximately, 1.25%. Implementation of the settlement 
began October 1, 1998, and a rate moratorium will be in effect until 2004. The settlement reduces customer rates as a result 
of the reduced depreciation epense offset through.2001, by. the accelerated'recovery' f natural gas transition costs. The 
settlement is not expected to have a material effect on the net results of operations or financial" position of Duke Energy.  

GLOBAL ASET DEVElOPENr. Two California electric generating plants, Moss Landing and Oakland, self electricity utiider 
the terms of Reliability Must Run (RMR) Agreements with the California Independent System Operator (ISO), which pur
chases electricity, atFERC regulated rates. Duke Energy has not received final approval from, the FERC with respect to the 
ellectric rates charged by the two plants, and, therefore, the -rates are subject to,partial refund. Management believes that the 
final resolution of this matter will not have, a material adverse effect, on consolidated results of operations or financial 
position. .  

NOTE 5. JoINT OWNERSHIP OF GENERATING FACILITIES 

Joint Ownership of Catawba Nucleair"Station 

Owner Ownership Interest 

North Carolina Municipal Power Agency Number 1. (NCMPA) ....... 37.5% 
North Carolina Electric MembershipCorporation .N.CEMC)... . . 28.15% 
Duke Energy Corporation................................................ 12.5% 

Piedmont Municipal Powe Agency (PMPA)........ ..................... 12.5% 
Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc. (Saluda River) .................. 9.375% 

100% 

-As of December.31, 1998, $516 million of Property, Plant and Equipment,'net of $219 million bf accumuiated depre
ciation ind amortization, -fepresented Duke Energy's -invbstment in Catawba Nuclear Station Units 1 and 2. Duke Energy's 

share of operating costsis'ibcluded in the Consolidated Statements of Income.  

Duke Energy entered into contractual interconnection agreements with the other joint, owners of.Catawba Nuclear Sta-.  

tion to purchase declining percentages of the generatiigcapacity and energy from the station..Thesepurchased power agree
ments were effective beginning with the commercial operation of each unit.,Units..l.and, 2, began commercial operation in 

June 1985 and August 1986, respectively. The purchased power agreements were established for fifteen years for NCMPA 
and PMPA and ten years for' NCEMC an&,'luda River. While the- purchased 06weriagr~ements with NCMPA ahd PMPA 

extend for fifteen years, a significant decrease in the perbceitage of capacity and energy Duke Energy is obligated to pur
chase occurs in the eleventh calendar year of operation for each unif. This significant decrease occuried' in 1995.for Uiit ' 

and 1996 for Unit 2.  

The interconnection agreements also 'provide for supplemental power sales by Duke Energy to 'the other joint owners 

of Catawba Nuclear Station' to satisfy'theii capacity and energy needs beyond the capacity and energy which they retain 

from'the station or. potentially- acquirefin the form of other resources. The agreerents' further provide 'the other joint own

ers the ability to secure such supplemental requiremeits outside of thesecontractual agreements following an appropriate 

notice period. NCEMC and Saluda River have given such appropriate notice effecti'e Janiuary I1, 2001 and January 1, 2002, 
respectively. In addition,- as'a result, of the merger, the other joint owners have the' right to end their sujiplem ental capacity 
requirements as of January 1, 2001 upon notice. to Duke Energy by Decemiber31, 1999.-As the other joint owners retai 

riore capacity and energy from the' station,' or obtain additional capacity and' nergy froim'a third 'party, supplemental' pW 
sales are expected to decline. Management believes this-will not have a material adverse :effect on consolidated results 

operations or'financial-position.  
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NOTE 5. JOINT OWNERSHIP OF GENERATING FACILITIES - Continued 

The interconnection agreements with the other joint owners include provisions that Duke Energy will provide generat
ing reserves to. backstand the other joint owners' retained capacity in the station at the system average cost of installed 
capacity. Additionally, the agreements include certain reliability exchanges designed to manage outage-related risks by 
exchanging energy entitlements between the Catawba and McGuire Nuclear Stations, impacting Duke Energy as well as all 
the other joint owners. The agreements also provide the other joint owners the ability to terminate the interconnection agree
ments in their entirety upon eight years written notice to Duke Energy. Such notice was.submitted by.PMPA in December, 
1997, and by SaludaiRiver in May, 1998. Both PMPA and Saluda River will provide the reserves associated with their 
respective retained capacity. Management believes this will not have a material adverse effect on consolidated results of 
operations or financial position.  

Purchased energy cost paymehts are based on variable operating costs and are a- function of the generation output of 
the station. Purchased capacity payments are based on the-fixed costs of-the station and include capital costs'and fixed oper
ating and maintenance costs. Actual purchased capacity costs for 1998 and projected obligations:.through 2000, the last year 
of the purchase buy-backs, are approximately $73 million, $53 million and $7 million, respectively.  

The portion of purchased capacity subject to levelization not currently recovered in rates is being *deferred, and a 
deferred return is recorded on the accumulated balance. Duke Energy is recovering the accumulated balance, including the 
deferred return, when the sum of the declining purchased capacity payments and 'accrual of deferred returns fi the current 
period drops below the levelized revenues. Jurisdictional leveliiations are intended to recover total costs, including deferred 
returns, and are subject to adjustments, including final true-ups. The costs of purchased energy and the non-levelized por
tion of purchased capacity is recorded on a current basis.  

The current levelized revenues approved in the last general rate proceedings are approximately $211 million; $94 mil
n and $7 million for North Carolina retail, South Carolina retail and Other Wholesale. (FERC), respectively. Purchased 
wer costs, subject to levelization, are deferred based on allocation factors of approximately 62%, 26%. and 2% for North 

Carolina retail, South Carolina retail and Other Wholesale (FERC), respectively. The PSCSC, on, May 7, 1996, ordered a, 
rate reductiori in the form of a decrement fider for an interim true-up adjustment. Deferred amounts related to two former 
wholesale customers have been recovered separately and are -no longer collected through wholesale rates. An allocated 
amount of purchased power costs in the pricing of supplemental sales made to the other joint owners is, also recovered on 
a current basis.  

For the yearsended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, purchased capacity and energy costs from the other joint 
owners was approximately $88 million, $120 million and $151 million, respectively. These amounts, after adjustments for 
the costs of capacity purchased not reflected in current rates, are iicluded in the Consolidated-Statements of Income as Net 
Interchange and Purchased Power. As of December 31, 1998 and 1997, $747 million and $66 million, respectively, asso
ciated with the cost of capacity purchased but not reflected in current rates have been accumulated in the Consolidated Bal
ance Sheets as Purchased Capacity Costs and Current Portion of Purchased Capacity Costs.  
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NoE 6. INcoME TAXES 

Income Tax Expense 
'For the Years Ended December 31, 

1998 1997 1996 
In millions 

Current income taxes 
Federal $673 -. $433 $514 

. State... 138 100. 109 

Total current income taxes ....................:................................... 811 ' 533 - 623 

Deferred income taxes, net 
Federal .... ................ . ....................... (15) 112 73.  
S tate ... ......................................... .......................................... (4 ) _13 

Total deferred income taxes, net ................................................ 19)- 121 86 

Investm ent tax credit amortization .................................................... (15) (15) 11 

Total income tax expense ........ 7.......... $77 $639 $698 

Income Tax Expense Reconciliation to Statutory Rate 
For the Years Ended December 31, 

1998 . 1997 . 1996 

In millions 

Income tax, computed at the statutory rate of 35% ................. $ 713 $ 565 $ 626 
Adjustments resulting from: 

State income -tax, net of federal income tax effect .......................... 90 71 79 

O ther item s, net ............................ . ........ (...................26) _ _) 

Total income tax expense ............... ................................................ 639 .$698.  

Effective tax rate ......................... ...... ................ .. . .... 39.60 39.0% 

Net Deferred Income Tax'Liability Components 
December 31, 

1998 1997, 
In millions 

Deferred credits and other liabilities .................. $ 409 
Alternative minimum tax credit cartyforward (a) ........................... 30 30 
Other : . I .' .4 Ot.................:.................................................... ....... 36 4 

Total defeired income tax assets ..................................... 334 485 
Valuation allowance .................................... ......................... (52) (47) 

Net deferred income tax assets .. . 282 438 

Investments and other assets....................................... (207) (263) 
Property, plant and equipment . . (2,405) (2,358) 
Regulatory assets and deferred debits................................. (542) (623) 
Regulatory asset related to restating to pre-tax basis ....................... (435) (438) 
Other...................................................... (69 (99 

Total deferred income tax liabilities (3,658) (3,781) 

State deferred income tax, net of federal tax effect ........................ (357) (364) 

Net deferred income tax liability.............................................. ... $(3,733) $(3,707) 

(a) The 'alternaiive minimum tax credit carryforward can be carried forward indefinitely.  
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NoTE 6. INCOME TAXES - Continued 

In 1990, PanEnergy established a provision for certain taxissues related to the purchase of TEC, vhich resulted in.an 
increase in goodwiil and deferred income tax liability.-If tax benefits relating to the valuation allowance for deferred income 
tax assets and other tax reserves are recognized subsequent to December 31, 1998, approximately $29 million will' be allo
cated as an adjustment to goodwill.  

Nor' 7. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Duke Energy, primarily through Trading and Marketing, manages its exposure to risk from existing contractual com
mitments and provides risk management services to its customers through forward contracts, futures, over-the-counter swap 
agreements and options (collectively, "commodity instruments"). Energy commodity forward contracts involve physical 
delivery of an energy commodity. Energy' cmmodity futures involve the buying dr selling, of natural gas, electricity or other 
energy-related commodities at a fixed ,price. Over-the-counter swap agreements require Duke Energy to receive or make 
payments based on the difference between a specified price and the actual price of the underlying commodity. Energy com
modity options held to mitigate price risk provide the right, but not the requirement, to buy'or sell energy-related commodi
ties at a fixed price.  

Commodity Instruments - Trading. Duke' Energy engages in the trading of commodit' instriiments 'and therefore 
experiences net open positions. Duke Energy manages open positions with strict policies which limit' its exposure to 'nar
ket risk and require daily reporting to management of potential financial exposure. These policies include statistical risk tol
erance limits using historical' price movements to calculate a daily earnings at risk measurement. The weighted-average life 
of Duke Energy's commodity risk portfoliowas approximately 11 months at December 31, 1998. During 1998, 1997 and 
1996, net gains of $114. million, $34 million and $25 million, respectively, were.recognized from trading natural gas com

dity derivatives. During 1998, net gains of $14 million were recognized from trading electricity commodity instruments.  
t gains related to trading electricity commodity' instruments were not material-during 1997 and 1996. As of December 31, 

I 998 and 1997, the absolute notional contract quantity of natural gas commodity derivatives held 'for trading purposes was 
11,149 billion cubic feet (Bcf) and 5,408 Bef, respectively. As of December'31,1998, the absolute notional contract quan
tity of electricity commodity instruments held for'trading purposes was 112,867 gigawatt hours (GWh). As of December 31, 
1997, outstanding electricity commodity-instruments were not material. At December 31, 1998 and 1997, 'other outstanding 
energy-related commodity derivatives held for trading purposes were not material.  

Commodity Instruments - Trading 

1998, - 1997 
Assets._ Liabilities Assets Liabilities 

In Milions 
Fair value at December 31 ............................... ........ $1,853 $1,749 $617 $588 
Average fair value for the year, -........... .......... 685 646 384 , -369 

Commodity Derivatives - Non-Trading. At December 31, 1998 'and 1997, Duke Energy held-or issued 'several 
derivatives that reduce expo'sure to market: fluctuations relative to price and transportation costs of'natural gas, electricity 
and petroleum products. Duke Energy's market exposure arises from natural gas storage inventory balances and fixed-price 
purchase and sale. commitments that extend.for periods of up to eight years. Futures, swaps-and options are' used to man
age and hedge price and location risk related to these market exposures.Futures and swaps are also used'to manage mar
gins on underlying fixed-price purchase or sale-commitments for physical quantities of natural gas,- electricity and other 
energy-related comhodities. Options are' utilized to manage margins and to limit overall price risk exposure. The gains, losses and costs related to those commodity derivatives that qualify as a hedge a're not recognized until the underlying 
physical transaction closes: At December 31, 1998, Duke Energy had deferred nit gains olf $10 million related to commod
ity derivative hedges. As of December 31, 1998,.the absolute notional contract quantity of commodity derivatives held for 

on-trading purposes was 218 Bcf of natural gas and 10,618 GWh of electricity. C6mmodity derivatives held for non-trading 

poses were not material at December 31, 1997.  
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NoTE 7. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued 

Interest Rate:Derivatives. In order to obtain variable ratenfinancing at 'an attractive cost, Duke Energy entered into 
interest rate swap agreements in Which $200 million of 8% Series.B First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds were effectively 
exchanged for floating rate-debt at the three-month London Interbank, Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a 0.074%.margin and $100 
million of 7.5% Series B First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds were effectively exchanged for floating rate debt. at three
month LIBOR plus a 1.1272% margin. The interest rate swaps expire in 1999 and 2000, respectively, and rates are reset 
quarterly. As a result of the interest rate swap contracts, interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income is rec-.  
ognized at the weighted average LIBOR rate for the year plus the applicable margins.  

Weighted Average Rates for Interest Rate Swaps' 
For the Years Ended December 31, 

1998 1997 1996 

8% Series B Swap .............................. 5.69% 5.78% .. 5.64% 
7.5% Series B Swap ............................. 6.74% 6.83% 6.69% 

The fair value of interest rate swaps was approximately $8 million and $10 million at December -31, 1998 and 1997, 
respectively. These amounts represent estimated amounts that Duke Energy would have received if the swaps had been 
settled at current market rates on the respective dates. .  

In c nnection with'tlhe January' 1999 'issuance of $'200 nillion Se''iior Notes, Duke Energy entered into Treasury Rate' 
Lock"Agreements-in Deceinber'T998'to'hedge its interest rate risk. The agr'eemefits, with a notional principal amount of $200 

million, were settled on Jdnuary 7, 1-999, 'and resulted ih a deferred gain of approximately $2 million, which will be amor

tized to interest expense oVer the life ofthe underlying 'debt' isuance. TIe fair vafu& of the lock'agreemefits was not niate

rial'at December 31, 1998. ' .  

Foreign Currency: IDerivatives. Tradin gand Marketing enters intoforeign currency swap agreements to manage fo 

eign currency risks associated with, energy contracts denominated in foreign currencies. The agreements, with a notional, 

contract amount of approximately $120 million, begin in the year 2000 and.extend to the .year 2005. The weighted average 
fixed exchange~rate forsthe agreements is 1.472 Canadian dollars to U.S. dollars. The fair value of these agreements.was not 

material at December 31, 1998. . . ' 

Market and Credit Risk. New York Mercantile Exchange (Exchange) traded futures and option contracts are guaran

teed by the Exchange and have nominal credit risk. On all other transactiong'previously described, Duke Energy is exposed 
to credit risk in.the edyent of nonperformance.by. the counterparties. For each counterparty, Duke Energy analyzes the finan

cial condition prior to entering into.an agreenient, establishes credit limits and monitors the appropriateness of these limits 

on an ongoing basis. The change in market value of exchange-traded futures and options contracts requires daily cash settle

ment in margin accounts with br6kers. Swap contracts and most 'other over-the-counter instruments ate generally settled at 

the expiration of the contract term and may be subject to margin requirements with the counterparty.  

Financial Instruments. In 1996, TETCO rechived $99 million from the financing of the right to cOllect' certain Order 

636 natural gas transition costs, with limited recourse. At December 31, 1998 and 1997, $17 million and $53 million, respec
tively, remained outstanding related to the transition cost recovery -rights and' were 'included in the Consolidated Balance 

Sheets as Other -Current Liabilities and Deferred Credits and' Other Liabilities.:Management believes the probability that 
Duke Energy will be required to perform under the recourse provisions is: remote.  

The fair value of financial instruments is summarized below. Judgm&nt is required in interpreting market data to develop 

the'estiniates' of fair value. Accoidi'ngly,.the estimates determined as of Deceiber 31, 1998 and 1997 are not necessarily, 
indicative of the' amounts Duke Energ5' couild liave realized in current market exchanges. The majority of the estimated'fair 

value amounts were obtained frim. independent parties.  
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NoTE 7. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued .  

Financial Instruments 

* 1998 1997 
Approximate Approximate 

Book Vaue Fair Value Book Value Fair Value 
In millions 

Long-term debt (a) ........................................................... $6,959 $7,240 $6,607 $6,843 
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in subordinated notes 

of Duke Energy or subsidiaries .................................. ... 919 937 339 356 
Preferred stock (a) ........................................ .... 333 346 489 '530 

(a) Includes current maturities.  

The fair value of cash and 'cash equivalents, notes receivable, notes payable and commercial paper and nuclear decom
missioning trust funds are not materially different from their. carrying amounts because of the short-term nature of these 
instruments or because the stated rates approximate inarket rates.  

Guarantees made to affiliates or recourse provisions from affiliites And the sals agreement for Order 636 natural gas 
transition cost. recovery. have no book value associated with them, and there are no fair values readily determinable since 
quoted market prices are not available.  

NoTE 8. INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATES 

Investments in domestic and international affiliates which'are not controlled by Duke Energy but where it has signifi
t influence over operations 'are' accounted for by the equity method. These investments include undistributed earhings of 

W0 million and $21 million in 4998 and .1997, respectively. Duke Eneigy's share .of net income from these affiliates are 
reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Other Operating Revenues.  

Natural Gas Transmission. Investments primarily include ownership interests in natural gas pipeline joint ventures 
which transport gas from Canada to the United States. Investments include a 37.5% ownership interest in Maritimes & 
Northeast Pipeline and a 9.8% ownership interest in Alliance Pipeline.  

Field Services.Investments primarily include a 37% interest in a partnership which owns natural gas gathering sys
tems in the Gulf of Mexico (Dauphin Island Gathering 'Partners) and a 21.1% interest in TEPPCO.  

Global Asset Development. Global Asset Development has. investments in various natural gas and electric'geiiration 
and transmission facilities worldwide. Significant investments include a 32.5% indirect interest in Americtin Ref-Fuel Company, a 9.76% indirect interest in Hidroelectrica Piedra del Aguila S.A. and a 25% indirect interest in National Methanol Company, which owns and operates a methanol and MTBE (methyl tertiary butyl ether) plant in Jubail, Saudi Arabia.  

Other Energy Services. Investments include the participation in various construction and support activities for fossil
fueled generating plants. " ' 

Real Estate Operations. Invesiments include various real estate development projects.  
Other Operations. Investments include a'20% interestin the BellSouth PCS L.P. joint venture, Which provides wireless personal communication services.  
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Investment in Affiliates 
December 31, 1998 December 31, 1997 December 31, 1996 

Domestic International Total Domestic International Total Domestic International Total 
In millions 

Natural Gas Transmission $104 $ 37 $141 $ 67 $ - $ 67 $ 46 $ - $ 46 

Field Services .................. 303 - 303 160 - 160 130 - 130 

Global Asset Development ..... 171 223 394 174 208 382 14 184 198 

Other Energy Services ........... 19 23 42 16 10 26 50 1 51 
Real Estate Operations .......... 5 - 5 2 - 2 5 - 5 

Other Operations ............. 17 - .17 36 13 49 60 13 73 

Total .................... $619 $283 $902 $455 $231 $686 $305 $198 $503 

Equity in Earnings of Investment.  

December 31, 1998 -December 31, 1997 December 31, 1996 

Domestic International Total Domestic International Total Domestic International Total 

In millions 

Nattiral GasTransmissiodn. $ 14 $ 3' $ 17 $8 $- $ 8 $ 5 $ $ 5 

Field Services .................. 9 - 9 19 - 19 12 12 

Global Asset Development ..... 50 18 68 8 21 29. 6 19 25 

Other Energy Services ............ 1 13 14 4 8 12 19 :2 '21 

Real Estate Operations ........... -

Other Operations ... _(2) - 29) _30) (30) 31) 1_3 

Total . ................... $45 $34 $79 $ 9 $29 $38,. 11% , $22 

Summarized Combined Financial Information of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries 
December 31, 

1998 1997 1996,.  
In miions 

Balance Sheet 
Current Assets .... ........................................... ..... 848 $ 642 $1,025 

Noncurrent Assets ....................... ....... 7,340 5,868 5,661 

Current Liabilities 1.... I084 . .758 .879 

Noncurrent Liabilities ................ 3,884. :462 

Net Assets .......................................................... $3,220 $2,495 $2,345.  

Income Statement 
Operating Revenues................................................$1,667 $, 905 $3,133 
Operating Expenses ................................................. 1,166 -. 703 .2,494 

Net Income 263.......... . . . . . : .....: .. 263 72; 160 

Duke Energy had outstanding notes receivable from certain affiliates of $80 million and $87 million at December 31, 

1998 and 1997, respectively.  
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NoTE 9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQilPMENT 

December 31, 
1998 1997 

In millions 

Electric utility 
Generation ........................................ $ 7,670 $ 7,575 
Transmission and distribution ........................... .................. 6,324 6,084 
General plant' ......................................... 1,127. 1,119 
Nuclear fuel ........................................... 554 644 
Construction work in progress ............. ........................................ 328 

Total electric utility .................................. 16,003 15,644 
Natural gas transmission ................................... 6194 6,094 
Gathering and processing ................................... 1,409 1,315 
Construction work in progress ................................ 469 351 
Other property and equipment ................ ............. 3,053 2,044 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment..................................... $27,128 $25,448.  

Accumulated Depreciation 

December 31, 
1998 1997 

In millons 

Electric utility (a).................................................. ........ $ 6,371 $6,068 
Natural gas transmi-ission ................................................. . .2,585 2,459 
O ther ..................................... .......... .. .. 1,297 1,185 

Total Accumulated Depreciation ...... $10253........$9712....  

....... 10,2 3- 22 2 

(a) Includes amortization of nuclear fuel: -19.98 - $325 million; 1997 -$370,million.  

On July, 1, 1998, a subsidiary of Duke Energy purchased three electric generating stations inCalifornia for $501 mil
lion from Pacific Gas & Electric Company. These'siations. have. a combiibed capacity of 2,645 mnegawatts. Two of the three 
plants, Moss Landing and Oakland, are subject to the terms of RMR Agreements' with the California. ISO.,The cost of these 
facilities is included within "Other property and equipment" above.  
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NoTE 10. DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES 

Long-term Debt December 31, 
-Year Due 1998 1997 

Duke Energy (a) 
First and refunding mortgage bonds: 

5.76%-8% ............... .............................................. 1999 $ .425 $ 425 
7% ....................................................... 2000 200 200 
5/% - 7.41%............................2001-2004 500 600 

61/% 7 ............................. ..... I...............200.....200....... 20 52208 32532 
6%% - 8.30%..............................................2023-2025,. 678 878 
7%-8.95% .......................... 2027-2033 165 165 
Mortgage bonds matured during 1998............................ 50 

Pollution control bonds, 3.85% - 7.75%..............................2012-2017 172 172 
Notes: 

6.9% - 9.21% ........................................... 2011-2016 65 
6% ....................................................... 2028 -300 

Commercial paper, 5.28% and 5.9% weighted-average rate at December 31, 1998 
and 1997, respectively .............................................................. 1,200 800 

O ther debt ........ .... ................................. ..... 23 26 
Duke Capital Corporation 
Senior Notes: 

61/4 ... ..... 2000' 200 20 

6 4%.6......................................................0200 250 

20-108 125 32 

Commercial paper- % and 6.03% weighted-average rate at December 31, 1998 
and 1997, respectively ... ............................................................... 500 800 

201 -201 12 17 

Other debt .. ..... I........................................................................ .. 2 
PanEnergy.  
Bonds:'3283 

73/% ........... .................................... 2022 8 38 

85/8% Debentures ..... .............................................................. .2025 100 100 
Notes: 

9.55% - 9.9%, maturing serially ................................................. 1998 -2003 59 73 

TETCO1 
Notes: 

4 2000-2004 500 500 
Medium term, Series A, 7.64 -9.07% .. 1999-2012 100 100 

Algonquin Gas Transmission Company ...

9.13% Notes r,.3.d.6.03.o.weighted-av era. 2003 100 100 

Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company (PEPL) 
7he de .................................................................... 2004 100 100 

7.2% - 7.95% Debentures....... ............................. 2023 -2024 20 200 

Crescent Resources, Inc. (b) 
9Construction and mortgage loans, 5.21%-7.10% ........................ 1998 -2011 69 117 

Revolving credit facilities, 5.98% and 6.30% weighted-average rate at 
December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively ............................. 2001 100 77 

Global Asset Development 

TETCO 

52%- 103t ot s 24 5 0............................................ 11 6 

Oterdebmtem ofSbiries 76 .7 .: 99-21 10 100 

Unamortized debt discount and premium, net....................................... (48) (46) 

Total long-term debt.......................................................... ............ 6,959 6,607 
Current maturities of long-term debt ..................................................... (687) (7) 
Total long-term portion.............................................. $6,272 $6,530 

(a) Substantially all of Duke Energy's electric plant was mortgaged.  

(b) Substantial amounts of Crescent Resources' real estate development projects, land and buildings were pledged as collater 
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NOTE 10. DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES - Continued -, 

The annual maturities of consolidated long-term debt at December 31, 1998..were $687 million, $413 million; $388 
mil Ilion, $133,million. and $526 million for 1999 through 2003, respectively.. Such payments exclude .$1,853 million of long
term debt that matures after 2003 which have call options whereby Duke Energy,has the option, to repay, the debt early.  
Based on the years in which Duke Energy may first exercise their redemption options, $820 million could potentially, be 
repaid in 1999, $178 milli on in 2000, $328 million in 2002, $427 million in 2003 and $,100 million thereafter.  

Credit Facilities 

December 31, 
1998 1997 

Credit , Credit 
Facilities ._________in Faciitie Outstanding 

In millions 
Annually renewable facilities .. ......................... $ 54 $16 

364-day facilities,(a) ................ ...... .600 300 

Two-year revolving facilities (b) ...........................- -7. 40 
Four-year revolving facilities ........ ..... I . ........... 125 100 125 ,77 

Five-year revolving facilities (a) .......................... 2,200 2,200 
Total Consolidated .......................... ............... $ 100" $ 2 $93 

(a)O Supported commercial paper facilitiesF 

~ (b) Supported. pollution control bonds.  

W Note§ Payable and Commercial Pape 

. . ..December 31, 
1998 -1997 

In millions 

Credit facilities outstanding .,.......................................... ....... $ 100 $ 93 
Note payable . 4 4.  
Commercial paper outstanding ... . 1,905. 1,750 

2,009 1847 

Less portion classified as long-term. ................................................  
Credit facilities ..................... (100) (77) 
Commercial paper .............. (1,700) (1,600) 

Portion classified as short.term.......................................$ 209 $ 170 

The weighted average interest rat on outstanding. short-term notes payable and commercial paper at December 31, 
1998 and 1997 was 5.23% and 6.04%, respectively.  

NOTE 11. NUCLEAR DECOMISS5IONING o~ 

Nuclear Decom issioning Costs. Estimated site-specific nuclear decommissioning costs, including the cost of decom
missioning plant components not subject to radioactive contamination, total approximately $1.3 billion stated in 1.994 dol
lars based on decommissioning studies completed in 1994. This amount includes Duke Energy's 12.5% ownership in the 
Catawba Nuclear Station. The othe joint owners of Catawba Nuclear Station are responsible for decommissioning costs 
related totheir ownership interestsin the station. Both the NCUC andthe PSCSC have granted Duke Energy recovery of 

stimated deco wass.39o nd6.4% retail ratesover the expected service periods of Duke Energy's nuclear 
ations. Such estimistes presumie each unit will besdecommissimoed as soon as possible following the end of its license life.  
Ithough subject to extemi sion, th cuhreet opratong licensesxfor Duke Energy's nuclear units expire as follows: OconeeJ 

and 2 -'2013, Oconee3 -2014; McGbire 1 2021, McG.iire2 - 2023; and Catawba 1 - 202, Catawba 2 - 2 
S026.  
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NOTE 11. NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING COSTS - Continued 

During 1998 and 1997, Duke Energy expensed approximately $57 milliori which vas' contributed to the external funds 
for decommissioning costs and accrued an additional $6 million and $3 million to the internal reserve in 1998 and 1997, 
respectively. Nuclear units are depreciated at an annual rate of 4.7%, of which 1.61% is for decommissioning. The balance 
of the external funds as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, was $580 million and $471 million, respectively. The balance of 
the internal reserve as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, was $217 million and '$211 million, respectively, and is reflected 
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization. Management believes that the decom
missioning costs being recovered through rates, when coupled with assumed after-tax fund earnings of 5.5% io5.9%, are 
currently sufficient to provide for the cost of decommissioning.  

A provision in the Energy Policy Act of 1992 established a fund for the decontamination and decommissioning of the 
Department of Energy's (DOE) uianiuin enrichment plants. Licensees are subject to an annual assessment for 15 years based 
on their pro rata share of past enrichment services. The annual assessment is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of 
Income as Fuel Used in Electric Generation. Duke Energy paid $10 million during 1998 and has paid $65 million cumula
tively related to its ownership interests in nuclear plants. The remaining liability and regulatory asset of $79 million and $87 
million at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, is reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Deferred Credits 
and Other Liabilities and Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits, respectively.  

Spent Nuclear Fuel. Under provisions of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, Duke Energy has entered into con
tracts with the DOE for the disposal of spent nuclear fuel. The DOE failed to begin accepting the spent nuclear fuel on 
January 31, 1998, the date provided by the Nuclear Waste Policy Act and by Duke Energy's contract with, the DOE. On 

June 8, f998, Duke Energy filed with the United States Court of Federal Claims a claim against the DOE for damages in 

excess of $1 billion arising out of the DOE's failure to begin accepting commercial spent nuclear fuel by January 31, 1998.  
Damages claimed in the suit are intended to recover costs that Duke Energy is incurring and will continue to incur as a res 
of the DOE's partial material breach of its contract with Duke Energy, including costs associated with securing addition 

spent fuel storage capacity. Duke Energy will continue to safely manage its spent nucleai fuel until the DOE accepts it. Pay
ments made to the DOE for disposal costs are based on nuclear output and are included in the Consolidated Statements of 
Income as' Fuel Used in Electric Generation.  

NOTE 12. GUARANTEED PREFERRED BENEFICIAL INTERESTS IN SUBORDINATED NOTES OF DUKE ENERGY OR SUBSIDIARIES 

Duke Energy and Duke. Capital Corporation (Duke Capital) have each formed business trust 'for. which they own all 

the respective common securities. The trusts issue and sell preferred securities and invest the gross proceeds in assets of the 

trusts. Substantially all the assets of each trust are junior subordinated notes issued by the respective company; 

Trust Preferred Securities 
December 31, 

Issued Rate 1998 1997 Junior Subordinated Notes 
In millions 

Duke Energy 
1997 ........................................ 7.2% $350 $350 7.2% Series A due 2037 

Duke Capital 
1998 ................................................................ ...... 73/ % 250 7 I/s% Series A due 2038 
1998 ........................................................... 7/% 350 - 73% Series B due"2038 

Unamortized debt discount' .............. ............ (31) (11) 
$919 $339 

These trust preferred securities represent preferred undivided beneficial interests in the assets of the respective titists.  

Payment of distributions on these preferred securities is guaranteed by the respective company, but only to the extent t 
trusts have funds legally and immediaiely available to make such distributions. Diudends of $44' million and $15 miioW 
related to the trust preferred securities have been included in the Consolidated Statements 'of Income as Minority Interests 

for the years ended December 31, '1998 'and 1997, respectively.  
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Authorized Shares of Stock as f December 31 1998 and 1997 

Shares 
Par Value (in millions) 

Prferred Stock. ..................... ....................... $100 12.5 
Preferred Stock A ....................................... ................... ................... $ 25 .. 10.0 
Preference Stock ....... :...................$.... .. ...... 1........................................ $100 .5 

As of December .31, 1998 and 1997, there were no shares of preference stock outstanding.  

Preferred Stock with Sinking Fund Requirements 

Shares Outstanding December 31, 
Rate/Series Year Issued at December 31, 1998 1998 1997 

Dollars in millions 

5.95% B (Preferred Stock A) ............................ -1992 800,000 $:20 $ 20" 
6.10% C (Preferred Stock;A) .................. ......... 1992 800,000 20 20 
6.20% D (Preferred Stock A) ........................... 1-992 800,000 20 20 
6.20% T ....................................................... 1992 130,000 1,3 13 
6:30% U ............. .................. 1992 130,000 13 13 
6.40% V ..................... 1................................. 992 130,000 13 13 
6.75% X .. . ................................................. 1993 250,000 25 50 

Total ..... ... ....................... $124 $149 

The annual sinking fund requirements for 1999 throtigh 2003 are $20 milliono, $33 million, $13 -million 
and $1 million, respectively. Some additional redemptions are permitted at Duke Energy's option.  

Preferred Stock without Sinking Fund Requirements 

Shares Outstanding December-31, 
Rate/Series Year Issued at December 31, 1998 1998 1997 

Dollars in millions 
4.50% C .............. 1964 175,000 $ 18K $ 35 
7.85% S ..... ............ ............................ 1992 300,000 30 -60 
7.00% W ...................... ................................ 1993. . 249,989 25 50 
7.04% Y .... .......... 1993 299,995 30 60 
6.375% (Preferred StockA ..........A)................... 1993 1,257,185 31 60 
Auction Series A .......... 1990 750,000 75 75

Total............... $209 $340 

The' call provisions for the outstanding preferred stock specify various redemption prices not exceeding 104% of par 
Value, plus accumulated dividends to the redemption date.  

During December 1997, Duke Energy redeemed approximately three million shares of preferred stock for $203. mil
lion. During February 1998, Duke Energy purchased approximately two million shares of its preferred stock for $180 mil
lion. The premiums related to these redemptions were included in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Dividends and 
Premiums on Redemptions of Preferred and Preference Stock for 1997.' 

0 OE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Futur Construction Costs. Duke Energy plans tomaintain its regulated electric operations facilities in the Carolinas 
nd pursue business expansion as opportunities arise. Projected 1999 capital and investietit expenditures for Electric Opera

tions, including allowance for funds used during construction, are approximately. $900 million. These 'projections include 
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expenditures for existing plants, including refurbishment and upgrades related to.the Oconee Nuclear Station's application 
for a 20-year renewal of its operating license. The license renewal process could take three to five years to complete. All 
projections.are subject to periodic review and revisions. Actual expenditures incurred may vary from such estimates -due to 
various factors, including industry restructuring, weather, economic growth, regulatory constraints and environmental regulation.  

Projected 1999 capital and investment expenditures-for Natural Gas Transmission, including allowance for funds used 
during construction, are approximately $400 million and do not include projections related to the Midwest Pipelines which 
are expected to be sold in early 1999. These projections include the completion of the Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline 
project, which will deliver natural gas to markets in the Canadian Maritimes provinces and the northeastern United 'States 
from a supply basin offshore Nova Scotia. These projections also include other market expansion projects and costs relat
ing to existing assets.  

Duke Energy plans to cbntinue to significantly grow several of its business segments: Field Servicesi Global Asset 
Development, Trading and Marketing and Other Energy Services. Expansion opportunities for Field Services include the 

planned $1.35.billion acquisition of the natural gas gathering, processing, fractionation and.NGL-pipeline business of Union 
Pacific Resources along with its natural gas and NGL marketing activities., The transaction 'is expected to close in the first 

half of 1999 and is contingent upon completion of due diligence andreceipt of clearances under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act.  

Expansion opportunities for Globil Asset Development's infernational division, Duke Energy*International, include the 
$315 million purchase of power generation and transmission assets in western Australia'and New .Zealand, including an 

ownership interest in a pipeline in wdstern Australia. This acquisition' also includes a development proposal for a 'cogeneration 

plant and a portfolio of internation'al aid Australian-based projects. This transaction closed on January 22, 1999.  

Also, Duke Energy International recently purchased the rights to develop and operate the 500-mile Eastern Gas Pi 

lineproject in eastern Australia. Construction 'of this $270 million pipeline project is scheduled to beginin July 1999 
completion is expected by the middle of 2000..' 

Expansion opportunities for Global Asset Development's domestic division, Duke Energy Power Services, include the 

continuation of greenfield projects, such as the Bridgeport Energy project and Maine Independence Station, as well as the 
Hidalgo project, a,5 10-megawatt power plant to be built in south Texas, which is targeted to begin producing power in mid
2000. Other- similar initiatives in' 4999 for both Duke Energy International and Duke Energy Power Services will likely 
require significant capital and investment expenditures, which will be subject to periodic review and revision and may vary 

significantly depending on the value-added opportunities presented..  

Projected 1999 capital and investment expenditures for Trading and Marketing, Other Efiergy Services and Real Estate 

Operations are approximately $30 million, $90 million and $300 million, respectively. These projected capital and invest

meit expenditures are subject to 'periodic review and revision and iay vary significantly depending' on acquisition oppor
tunities, market volatility, economic trends and the value-added opportunities presented.  

Nuclear Insurance. Duke Energy owns and operates the McGuire and Oconee Nuclear Stations with two and three 

nuclear reactors, respectively, and operates and has a partial ownership interest in the Catawba Nuclear Station with two 

nuclear reactors. Nuclear insurance coverage is maintained in three program areas: liability coverage; property, decontami

nation and decommissioning coverage; and business interruption and/or extra expense coverage. Certain expenses.,associ

ated with nuclear insurance premiums paid by Duke Energy are reimbursed by the other joint owners of the Catawba Nuclear 

Station.  

Pursuant to the PriceAnderson Act, Duke Energy is requir .to insure agist putlic liability claims resulting from 
nuclear incidents to the full limit' of liability of approximately $9.8 billion..  

Primary Liability Insurance. The maximum required private primary liability insurance of $200 million has been pur

chased along with a like amount to cover certain worker tort claims. ' .  

Excess Liability Insurance. This policy, currently provides,,approximately $9.6 billion of 'coverage throigli the Pri 

Anderson Act's mandatory industry-wide excess secondary insurance program of risk pooling. The $9.6 billion of. covera~g 
is the sum of the current potential cumulative retrospective premium assessments of $88 million per licensed commercial 
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nuclear reactor. This $9.6 billion will be increased by $88 million as each additional commercial nuclear reactor is' licensed, 
or reduced by $88 million for certain, nuclear reactors that are no longer operational and may be exempted from the risk 
pooling insurance program. Undernthis program, licensees..could be assessed retrospective premiums to compensate for dam
ages in the event of a-nuclear incident at any licensed facility in the nation. If such. an incident occurs and public liability 
damages exceed primary insurances, licensees. may be assessed upsto $88 million for each- of their licensed reactors, pay
able at a rate not to exceed $10 million a year per licensed reactor for each incident. The $88 million amount is subject to 
indexing for inflation and may be subject to state premium taxes.  

Duke Energy is a member of Nuclear. Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL); which'provides property and business inter
ruption, insurance coverages for Duke Energy's nuclear facilities under the following three policy programs: 

Primary Property Insurance. This policy provides $500 -million in primary property damage coverage for each of Duke 
Energy's nuclear facilities.  

Eicess'Property'Insurance. This policy provides excess property, decontaniination and dcomrissioning liability insur
ance in the following amounts: $2.25 billion for the Catawba Ni clear Staiion and $I.5 billio i each for the Oconee and 
McGuire Nuclear Stations.  

Business Interruption Insurance.':This policy provides business interruption and/or extra expense coverage resulting 
from an accidental outage of a nuclear. unit.-Each. unit of.theMcGuire and Catawba Nuclear:Stations' is insured for-up to 
approximately $4 million per weekand the.Oconee Nuclear Stationunits are insured for upatb approximately $3 million per 
week. Coverage amounts per unit, decline if more than one unit is involved-in an-accidental outage. Initial coverage begins 
after a 17-week deductible period and continues at 100% for 52 weeksand 80% for the next 104 weeks.  

If NEIL's losses ever exceed its reser'ves. for any of the above three programs, Duke Energy will be liable for assess
W ents of. up to five times its annual premiums. The current potential maxirhumi assessments are as follows: Primary- Prop

erty Insurance - $23 million;.Excess Property Insurance -. $23 million; -Business Interruption Insurance --$20 million., 
The other joint owners of the Cata wba Niclear Station are obligated to assurfie their pro 'rata share of aIy liabilitis for 

retrospective premiums and other premium assessments resulting from the Price-Anderson Act's excess secondary insurance 
program of risk pooling or the NEIL policies.  

Environmental. Duke Energy is subject to fnternational, federal, state and local 'rgulations regarding air and Water 
quality, hazardous and solid waste disposal and other environriental matters 

TETCO is currently conducting PCB (polychlorinated biphenyl) assessment and clean-up programs at certain of its 
compressor station sites under coiditions stipulateiby'a U.S. Consent Decree. The programs iriclide on- and off-site assessment, installation of ori-site source cOntrol 'equipmen( and groundwater m6hitoring wells and oi- and off-site clean-up work.  TETCO completed the soil clean-up programs during 1998, 'subject to regulatIry.ppIroval. Groundwater moniitoting activi
ties will continue at several sites beyond 199.  

In 1987, the Commonwealth of Kentucky instituted a suit in state court Against TETCO, alleging improper disposal of PCBs at'TETCO's three compressor station sites in Kentucky. This suit is still pending. In 1996, TETC completed clean-up 
of these sites'under the U.S. Consent Decree.

Duke Energy has also identified environmental contamination at certain sites-on the PEPL and Trunkline Gas Company (Trunkline) systems and has undertaken clean-up prdgrams at these sites.' The contamination resulted from the past use of lubricants containing PCBs and the prior use of wastewater collection facilities and other on-site dispo areas. Soil and 
sediment testing, to date, has detected no significant off-site:contamination. Duke Energy has. communicated with the Environmental ProtectionAgency and appropriate state regulatory agencies on these matters. Under the.terms of the agreement with CMS Energy Corporation discussed in Other Commitments :and Contingencies -below; Duke Energy. is obligated to' omplete the PEPLand Trunkline clean-up programs at certain agreed-upon. sites. These clean-up programs are expected t6 
ontinue until 2001.. . . .  
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At December 31, 1998'and 1997,.remaining estimated clean-up costs on the TETCO, PEPL and Trunkline systems have 

been accrued and are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Other Current Liabilities and Environmental Clean-up 

Liabilities: These cost estimates represent gross clean-up costs expected to be incurred, have not been discounted or reduced 

by customer recoveries and generally do not include fines, penalties or third-party claims. Costs to be recovered frdm cus

tomers are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets-as of December 31, 1998 and 1997,. as Environmental Clean-up 
Costs.  

The federal and state clean-up programs are not expected to interrupt or dimninish Duke Energy's ability to deliver natu

ral gas to customers. Based on experience to date and costs incurred for clean-up operations, -ma nagement believes the reso

lution of matters relating to-the environmental issues discussed above will not have a material adverse effect onconsoli

dated results of operations or financial position.  

Litigation. On April 25, 1997, a group of affiliated plaintiffs that own and/or operate various pipeline and marketing 

companies and-partnerships primarily in Kansas filed suit against PEPL, a subsidiary of Duke Energy,,in the U.S. District 

Court for the Western District of -Missouri. The plaiitiffs allege that PEPL has engaged in unlawful and anti-competitive 

conduct with regard to requests for interconnects with the PEPL system for service to the Kansas City area. Asserting that 
PEPL has violated the antitrust laws and tortiously interfered with the plaintiffs' business expectancies, the plaintiffs seek 

compensatory and punitive damages. Under the terms of the agreement with CMS Energy Corporation discussed in Other 

Commitments and Contingencies below, Duke Energy is retaining any liabilify associated with this suit. Based on informa

tion currently available.to Duke Energy, management believes that the resolution of this matter will not have a material 

adverse effect on consolidated results of operations or financial position.  

Duke Energy and its subsidiaries are-also involved in other legal, iax and regulatory proceedings before various court0 

regulatory commissions and governmental agencies regarding matters arising in- the ordinary course of business, some 

which involve substantial amounts. Where appropriate, Duke Energy .has made accruals in accordance with SFAS No. , 

"Accounting for Contingencies," in order to. provide for such matters. Management believes that the final disposition :of 

these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on consolidated results of operations or finafncial position.  

Other Commitments and Contingencies. In January 1998, Duke Energy acquired a 9.8% ownership inAlliance Pipe

line. This pipeline is designed to transport natural gas from western Canada to the Chicago-area market center for distribu

tion throughout North America. The pipeline is scheduled to begin commercial operation in late 2000.. In addition to buy

ing an ownership interest in the pipeline project, Duke Energy has a contractual commitment for 67.25 million cubic feet 

per day of capacity on the line over 15 years for an estimated total of $315 million.  

Periodically, Duke Energy may become involved in contractual disputes with natural gas transmission customers involv

ing potential or threatened abrogation of contracts by the customers. If the customers are successful,-Duke Energy may not 

receive the.full value of anticipated benefits under the contracts.  

In the normal course of business, certain of Duke Energy's subsidiaries ahd affiliates enter into various contracts for 

energy services which contain certain schedule and performance requirements. Risk management ,techniques are used to 

mitigate their exposure associated with such contracts. Certain subsidiaries of Duke Energy.have guaranteed performance 

under some of these contracts. In addition, certain 'subsidiaries of Duke Energy have guaranteed debt agreements of affili

ates and have provided surety bonds and letters of credit.  

Management believes that these cominitments and contingencies will not have a material adverse effect on consolidated 

results of operations or financial position.  

Duke Energy, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, PanEnergy and TEC, entered into an agreement to sell -PEPL, 

Trunkline and additional storage related to those systems (collectively, the PEPL Companies), which substantially comprise 

the Midwest Pipelines, along with Trunkline LNG- Company (Trunkline LNG), to CMS Energy Corporation (CMSEnergy).  

The sales price of $2.2 billion involves cash-proceeds of $1.9 billion and the assumption of existing PEPL debt of appoxi 

mately $300 million. Management believes that the retention of certain assets and liabilities, such as the Houston offic 
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building, certain environmental, legal and tax liabilities, and substantially all intercompany balances, will not have a mate
rial adverse effect on consolidated results of operations or financial position. The sale will result in an after-tax gain of 
approximately $700 million and is contingent upon receipt of clearances under the Hart-Scott-kodino Act. Closing is expected 
in early 1999.: 

Total assets of the PEPL Companies and Trunklide LNG were $1.2 billion at December 31, 1998.  

Combined 1998 Operating Results of the PEPL Companies and Trunkline LNG (a) 

In millions 
Operating Revenues .. $482 

2Operating Expenses . . . 278.  
Other Income, Net .................. ................................ 10 

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes ..................... ............................................. $214 

(a)- Excludes intercompany building rental revenue, allocated corporate expenses, building depreciation and cer
tain other costs to be retained by Duke Energy.  

Leases. Duke Energy utilizes assets under operating leases in several areas of operations. Consolidated rental expense 
amounted to $80 million, $92 million, and $84 million in 1998, 1997, and 1996, respectively. Future minimum rental pay
ments under DukeEnergy's various operating leases for the years 1999 through 2003 are $85 million, $76 million, $65 mil

O n, $41 million, and $33 million, respectively.  

OTE 15. COMMoN: STOCK 

The Board of Directors authorized Duke Energy to repurchase up to $ billion of its common stock during the period 
beginning February. 1996 and ending February 2001. As a result of the merger, shares repurchased between February 1996 
and June 1999 were limited to 15 million shares. As of December 31, 1996, approximately three million shares had been 
repurchased for $159 million. No repurchases of common stock were made in 1997 or 1998, and none are anticipated in the 
future.  

NoTE 16. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

Under Duke Energy's 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, stock options for up to fifteen million shares of common stock may 
be granted to key- employees. Under the plan, the exercise price of each option granted, equals the market price of Duke 
Energy's common stock on the date of grant. Vesting periods range from one to five years with a maximum exercise.term 
of ten years.  

Effective with the merger, each share of PanEnergy common stock, outstanding immediately prior to the merger, was 
converted into the right to receive 1.0444 shares of Duke Energy common stock. Each option to purchase PanEnergy com-" mon stock, outstanding prior io the merger, was assumed by Duke Energy and became exercisable upon the same terms as under the applicable PanEnergy stock option plan and option agreement, except that these options became options to purchase shares of Duke Energy common stock, appropriately adjusted.  
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Stock Option Grants 

Weighted 

.Options Average 

(in thousands) Exercise Price 

Outstanding at December 31, 1995 ............................. 3,559 $18 
G ranted : ............ ....... .................... 498 28 
Exercised ....................................................................... (7 12) 16 
Forfeited ............................................... :............................... . ) 22 

Outstanding at December 31, 1996 .................................................. 3,274 20 
G ranted .............................................................................. 388' '44 
Exercised ................ ...................................... (873) .19 

F orfeited ............ ............................................................... ... I . . (60 27 

Outstanding at December 31, 1997 .............. 2'729 24 

G ranted .................................................................................... 3,548 57 
Exercised ............................................... . (948) 21 
Forfeited .................. ........................................ (8) 7 

Qutstanding at December 31, 1998 4 6.................... ......................... 4 45 

Stock Options at December 31, 1998 

Outstanding - Exercisable< 

Weighted Weighted Weighted 

Range of Average Average Average 
Exercise Number . Remaining Exercise Number Exerise 
Prices (in thousands) Life (Years) Price (in thousands) .Price 

$10 to $14 ........................................ 57 2.3 $12 57, $12.  

$15 to $20 ...................................... . 637 4.9 18 637 . .18 

$21 to $25 .................................... 556 4.9' 21 . 556, 21 

$26to $31 ................. ........ ......... 199 7.1 27 199. 27,: 

$42-to $50 ........................................ 240 8.1 44 ' 87 44 

$55 to $60 ........... ............ 2,709 9.2 57 -
$66 to $67 ........................................ 63 9:7 67 7 67 

Total ............................................ 4,461 1,543 22 

Duke Energy had two million ooti6ns exercisable at both December 31, 1997 and '1996, withW weighted average exer

cise prices of $21 and $19 per option, respectively.  

The weighted-average fair value of options granted was $9, $10 and $9 per option during 1998, 1997 and 1996, respec
tively. The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-picing.model.  

Weighted-Average Assumptions for Option-Pricing 

*.1998 1997 1996 

Stock dividend yield ....................................... 4.2% 3.5% 2.6% 
Expected stock price volatility ................................ 15.1% 20.7% 26.0% 

Risk-free interest rates ..................................... 5.6% 6.5% 5:7% 

Expected option lives ..................................... 7 years 7 years 7 years 

Had compensation expense for stock-based compensation been determined based on the fair value at the grant date 

1998 net income would have been $1,250 million, or $3.40 per basic share; 1997 net income would have been $971 

lion, or $2.50 per basic share; and 1996 net income would have been $1,074 million, or $2.85 per basic share. .  
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Retirement Plans. Duke Energy .and its-subsidiaries have maintained multiple non-contributory defined benefit retire
ment plans covering most employees with minimum service requirements.. Effective January 1, 1997, the Duke Power retire
ment plan was amended to'base anplan participant's benefit'on a cash balance formula. Under a cash balance formula, a plan 
participant accumulates a-retirement benefit based upon a percentage, which may viry with age and years of service, of cur
rent eligible earnings and current interest credits. Prior to January 1, 1997,,the Duke Power retirement plan benefits were 
based on an age-related formula. which took into account, the participant's years, of benefit :accrual service and highest aver
'age eligible earnings.". o 

Through December 31, 1998, 'thePanEnergy plan'provided retirement benefits (i)'for eligible employees of certain sub
sidiaries that are generally based on an employe&'s years of benefit.accrual service and higliest average eligible earnings, 
and (ii) for eligible eniployees 6f certain other* subsidiaries undera' cash balance 'formula. In 1998, a significant,amount of 
lump sum payouts was made' from the PanEnergy 'plan resulting in a'settlenient ain of $10 millio. "Effective January 1, 
1999, the benefit foimula-under-the PanEnergy, plan, for all eligible employees, was changed to a cash balance formula.  

In connection with the expected 1999 sale of the Midwest Pipelines to CMS Energy, benefit accruals under the PanEnergy 
plan were frozen on December 31, 1998, for all participants who, as a result of the"sale, will becone employees of CMS 
Energy and its subsidiaries. Ohice ille transfer of benefit dbligatidn 'and related assets- of the affect participants to CMS 
Energy is completed,-iie PanEneigy plan will be merged into the DukeEnergy'Pla1.  

On December 31,' 1998, all defined benefit retirement plans maintained by Duke Energy, except for the PanEnergy.plan, 
were merged to form the Duke.Energy Retirement Cash Balance Plan: (Duke Energy Plan). The plan merger changed the 
benefit for certain participants; from a formula based primarily on benefit accrual service and highest average earnings, to, 
a cash balance formula.  

Duke Energy's policy is 'to fund amounts, as necessary, on an acttiarial, basis to provide assets-sufficient to nieet ben
*l ts to be'paid to plan, participants. On December 30, 1997, assets and-related liabilities of $236 million and $204 million, 

respectively, for certain PanEnergy plan participants wete. transferred to.the ,Duke Poer plan. As aresult of this transfer, 
no contributions'to the Duke PoWer-plan were necessary in 1998 or 1997.* 

In 1998, Duke Energy adopted SFAS No. 132, "Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Ben
efits," which required the restatement of prior year data; 'This restatement did not change the net periodic expense or the 
funded status of the retirement or postretirement benefil plans.  

Components,of Net Periodic Pension Cost 

For the Years Ended December 31, 
1998 1997 1996 

Inmillions ' 

Service cost benefit ed.rned during the year ..... ...... $ -63 $ 262 $ 63 
Interesicost on projected benefit obligation . 169' 164 153 
Expected return on plan assets ............ .................. .......... 209) (192)
Amortization of prior service cost ........ (4). (5) 2 
Amortization of net tiansition asset ........... . (5) 
Recognized net'actarialloss.... ............ . ... 10 17 13; 
Settlement 'gain' '. " '. . "'. . . .. . . . . . . ....f 

Net periodic pensioncosts ................ 6 $25 $ 30, 
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Reconciliation of Funded Status to Pre-funded Pension Costs 
Decem br 31, 

.1998- 1997 
In millions 

Change. in Benefit Obligation 
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ............................ $2372 $2,126 
Service cost ................................................................... 63 62 
Interest cost ....................................................... ....... . " 169 164 
Plan am endm ent .... ................................... ..................... , 5 '11 

Actuarial loss .... ......................... ......... ..... 141 179 
Special termination benefit .................... 2 

Benefits paid .............................. ....................... .......... (172 
Benefit obligation at end, of year,....................................$2,540 $2,372 

Change in Plan Assets.  
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year (a)................. $2,725 $2,445.  
Actual return on plan assets .. .......................... 406 451 
Employer contributions...................................................... 1 1 
Benefits paid .................... ........... .. .............................. (210) ) 

Pair value of plan assets at eihd of year (a)............. $2,922 $2,725 

Funded status ............ ........................................ ;............. $ 382 $ 353 
Unrecognized net experience loss ... .................................... 2 81 

Unrecognized prior service cost reduction .......... (..........2...... (7) (65) 
Unrecognized net transition asset .................................... 25 ) 

Pre-funded pension costs .............. . ...................... $ 33 

(a) Principally equity and fixed income securities.  

Assumptions Used for Pension Benefits Accounting (a) 
1998 1997 1996 

Percent 

D iscount rate ............................. .................................. 6.75 7.25 7.50 
Salary increase ................................... ....... 4.67 4.15 4.80 
Expected long-term rate of return on,plan assets ............... 9.25 9.25 9:18 

(a) Reflects weighted. averages across all plans.  

Duke Energy also sponsors employee savings plans which cover substantially all employees. Employer matching con
tributions of $53 million, $53 million and $35 million were expensed in 1998, 1997 and, 1996, respectively.  

Other Postretiement Benefits. Duke Energy and most of-its subsidiaries provide cerfain health care and life insur

ance benefits for retired employees on a contributory and non-contributory basis. Employees become eligible for these ben

efits if they have met certain age and service requirements at retirement, as defined in the plans. Under plan amendments 

effective late 1998 and early 1999, health care benefits for future retirees were changed to limit employer contributions and 

medical coverage.  
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Such benefit costs are accrued over the active service period of employees to the date of full eligibility for the 
benefits. The net unrecognized transition obligation, resulting from the implementation of accrual accounting, is being amor
tized over approximately 20 years.  

Duke Energy is using an investment account under section 401(h) of the Internal Revenue Code, a retired lives reserve 
(RLR) and multiple voluntary employees' beneficiary association (VEBA) trusts under section 501(c)(9) of the Internal Rev
entie Code to partially fund postretirement benefits. The 401(h) vehicle, which provides for tax deductions for contributions 
and tax-free accumulation of investment income, partially funds postretirement health care benefits. The RLR, which has 
tax attributes similar to 401(h) funding, partially funds postretirement life insurance obligations. Certain subsidiaries use the 
VEBA trusts to partially fund accrued postretirement health care benefits and fundpostretirement life insurance obligations.  

Components of Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Costs 

For the Years 
Ended Decembr 31, 

1998 1997 1996 
In millions 

Service cost benefit earned during theyear. ..................... $ 10 $ 10 $ 8 
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation..........43 46. 44 
Expected return on plan assets ........................... (18) (19) (16) 
Amortization of prior service cost ............................. 7 6 1 
Amortization of net transition obligation ........................................... 16 18 
Recognized net actuarial loss (gain) ...... ..................... 1 _L0 
Net periodic postretirement benefit costs $'59 $58 $ 55



DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

Note Cto)GonsolidatedFinanciaI Statements Continued 

NoT 17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued : 

Reconciliation of Funded Status to, Accrued Postretirement Benefit CostsT . .  

1998 .1997 7'' 
In millions 

thange in Benefit 6iiligation, 
rcumiuatd bpstrtirrienedaolboa g on yea 667 $ 64 
Servi cost ............. ............... .... 10 10 
I h...erest cost , ,43" 46 

Amendmei nts (49) 4.............................4 4 
A ctuarial (gain loss ............... ............. ... .... ........... (6 4 

Benefits paid ............................................... (46) (45) 

Accinulaied'bstretirement benefit obligation at end of year ............. $625 $ 667 

Change in.Plan Assets 
Fair vili f0lan assets at beginning of year (a)...................... $ 266 $ 225 
Actaal returi on plan assets .: ....... : . . .. .. . ... 34 ' 45 
Employd contriliutions ... ::::......: .:..45. . .0 

Plan participants' contributions* . : : .: ..... . .... .6.  
Benefits paid ... ................... .......... .. .. .. 6 43 

Fair market valde of plan Assets 'at dh fyear'(a)..... .... .... . $305 $ 266 

F Uded statis ................... ...... ... . ......................... .... . ... $(320) $(401) 
Unrecognized prior.. service cost ..................................... .9 64 

Unrecognized net experience (gain) loss ........................... (23) 4 
Unrecognized transition obligation ................................ 239 256 

Accrued postretirement benefit costs ....... ...................... $ (95) $ (77) 

(a) Principally equity and fixed income securities.  

Assumptions Used for Postretirement Benefits Accounting (a) 
1998 1997 1996 

Percent 

D iscount rate ............................................................................... 6.75 7.25 7.50 

Salary increase .:........................................................................... 4.67 4.33 4.84 

Expected long-term rate of return on 401(h) assets ............................. 9.25 9.25 9.00 
Expected long-term rate of return on RLR assets .................. 6.75 6.75 6.50 
Expected long-term rate of return on VEBA assets ................. 9.25 9.25 9.50 
A ssum ed tax rate (b)...................................................................... 39.60 39.60 39.60 

(a) Reflects weighted averages across all plans.  

(b) Health care portion of postretirement benefits in VEBA trusts.  

For measurement purposes, a 5% weighted average rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care ben

efits was assumed for 1998. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 4.75% for 2005 and remain at that level there

after. Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans.  
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DUKE ENERGY, CORPORAT0ION 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -- Continued-.  

NoTE 17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - Continued 
Sensitivity to Changes in Assumed Health Care Cost Trend Rates 

1-Percefitage- 1-Percentage: 
Point Increase Point Decrease 

e~i nifflons 

-Effecton total of service'and, interest cost components,.....-..... 3 $ 2 
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation ......................... 30 (28) 

NOTE 18. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA. (UNAUDITED) . , 

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total 
In millions, except per share data 

1998 
Operating revenues ....................... $4,115 $4,Q14 $5,298 -$4,183 $17,610 
Operating income .......................................... 608 549 826 450 2,433 
EBIT ........................................................... 678 582 871 516 2,647 
Income before extraordinary item ..................... 328 279 429 224 1,260 
Net income .............................. 320 279 429 224 1,252 
Earnings per share (before extraordinary item) 

Basic ........................................................ $ 0.89 $ 0.76 $ 1.18 $ 0.60 $ 3.43 
Dilutive ..................................................... $ 0.89 $ 0.76 $ 1.17 $ 0.60 $ 3.42 

Earnings per share 
Basic ....................................................... $ 0.87 $ 0.76. . $ 1.18 $ 0.60 $ 3.41 

ilutive .................................................... $ 0.87 $ 0.76 $ 1.17 $ 0.60 $ 3.40 

Operating revenues ........................................ $3,786 $3,113 $4,820 $4,590 $16,309.  
Operating income .......................................... 610 352 606 402 1,970 
EBIT ................................. . 644 407 632 425 2,108 
Net incom e ................................................... 312 168 309 185 974 
Earnings per share 

Basic ............................... $ 0.84 $ 0.43 $ 0.83 $ 0.41 $ 2.51 
Dilutive .................................................... $ 0.83 $ 0.43 .$ 0.83 $ 0.40 $ 2.50 

NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (UNAUDITED) 

On February 18, 1999, Duke Energy announced its intent to make a concurrent cash tender offer in Chilean pesos in 
Chile and the United States for 51% of the outstanding shares of Endesa-Chile. The estimated total cash outlay is approxi
mately $2.1 billion based on current exchange rates. The offer.will be contingent upon, among other things, certain Endesa
Chile shareholder aprovals. If all approvals are obtained, the transactions are expected to be completed during the second 
quarter of 1999. Endesa-Chile controls and operates 10,247 megawatts of generating capacity in Argentina, Brazil, Chile, 
Colombia and Peru.  
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORAT!ON 

Schedule, II- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves 
In Mini 

Balance at D ecem ber 31, 1998 (a) .. $6.................................................................................................. $367 
Balance at December 31, 1997 (a,b).................................................... 329 
Balance at December 31, 1996 (a,b) .................................................................. 281 

(a) Principally consists of injuries and damages reserves, property insurance reserves and litigation and other contingency 
reserves which are included in. "Other Current Liabilities" or "Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities" in the Consoli

dated Balance Sheets.  

(b) Financial information reflects accounting for the 1997 merger with PanEnergy Corp as a pooling of interests. As a result, 
the financial information gives effect to the merger as if it had occurred on December 31, 1996.  
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Independent Auditors' Report 

HE BOARD OF DIRECEORS AD STOCHOIERS' OF DuKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

We -have audited the consolidated balance sheets- of Duke Energy Corporation and subsidiaries (Duke Energy) as of 
December 3,1, 1998:and 1997,i and the related consolidated statements of income, common stockholders' equiiy and cash 
flows for each of the' three years in the period ended December 31, 1998. Our audits also included the consolidated finan
cial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index at Item 14. These financial statements and financial statement 
schedule are the responsibility of Duke.Energy's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion, on the financial 
statements and fitancil. statement shedule based on our audits. The, consolidated financial statements and consolidated 
financial statementfschedil"give retroactiv effect to the merger of Duk Power Company and PanEnergy Corp, which has 
been accounted, for a's a pooliig of interests as descfibed in Note 2't6 tli consolidated financial statements. We did not audit the sfatements 'bf income, common stockholders' eqiyadcas floV tede staeme '31, inc, commn stockhes' efquity, and cash fows'of PanEnergy Corp and subsidiaries for the year 
ended December'31, 1996, w hich statents reflect total operatingreyenues of (in millions), $7,537 for .the, year ended 
December 31, 1996. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and 
our bpinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for PanEnergy Corp and subsidiaries for 1996, is based solely on' 
the report of such other auditors.  

We colducted our audits in ao nce ithgeierally accepted auditing standards. Those'standards require thaa we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain 'reasdnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free.of material misstate
ment. Ali auidit includesexamining,'on a test 1as s, evidence supporting the amouits and disclosures in the financial state
merits. An audit also includes assessiiig the accounting principles used and significant estimates made b' minagement, as 
well as'evaluating the overalf financial statement presenttion. We believe that our. audits and the report of the other audi
tors provide a reasonable basis for our opinioin.  

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Duke Energy as of December 31, 1998 and -1997, 
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the-period ended December 31, 1998 in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, based on our audits and (as to 'the amounts 

uded for PanEnergy Corp and subsidiaries) the report of the other auditors, such consolidated financial statement sched
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in. all mate
respects the information set forth therein.  

Is/ DELOrIrE'& ToucHE LLP 
Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Charlotte, North Carolina 
February 12, 1999 
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Responsibility forFfinancial' Statements 

The financial statements of Duke Energy Corporation (Duke Energy) are prepared by management, which is resp 
sible for their integrity and objectivity. The statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting priW 
ciples appropriate in the circumstances to reflect.in -all material respects-the substance. ofevents and transactions which 
should be included. The other information in the annual report is consistent with the financial statements. In preparing these 
statements, management makes informed judgments and estimates of the expected effects of events and. transactions that are 
currently being reported.  

Duke Energy's system of internal accointing c6ntirol is designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safe

guarded and transactions are executied accordiig'to manageitment's authorization. Internal accounting controls also provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recordedj roperly'so'that financial statemlieits can be prepared acording to gei
erally accepted accointing principles. In addition, accouiiting controls provide rieson'able assurance'that'errors or irregulari
ties which could be-material to the financial statements are prevented or, are detected by employees within a timely period 
as they perform their assigned functions. Duke Energy's acc6untilik c6ntrols are'dditinually iviewed for,&ffectiveiess.. In 
addition, wi tteni policies, standads. and procedures, and a strong internl audit program auient Duke,Energy's account

inig ontrols:.,.  

The Board of Directors pursues its oversight role for the financial statements through the audit committee, which is 

composed entirely of directors who are not empliqee s of Duke Enidrg. The aiidit comittee niets with maiagenIent and 
internal auditors periodically to review the work of each group and to monitor eah gfotp'sdischarge of its responsibilities.  
The audit committee also meetis periodically With luke Eiieigy's independeht auditors, beloitte & Touche LLP. The inde

pendent auditors have free access to the audit cortimittee and the Bord of Directors to discuss internal accounting contfol, 
auditing aid financial reporting matirs without tlhe presence of mnagement. e m e n, 

/S/ JEFFREY, L. -BOYER 

Jeffrey L. Boyer 
Vice President and Corporate Controller 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on; Accounting and Financial Disclosure.  
None.  

PART III.  
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant..  

Reference is made to "Executive Officers of Duke Energy" included in "Item 1. Business" of this report. See "Elec
tion of Directors," "Inforniation Regarding the Board of Directors and "Other Matters" in' the proxy statement relating to 
Duke Energy's 1999 annual meeting of shareholders (the Proxy, Statement), iicorporated herein by reference.  

Item 11. Executive Compensation.  

See "Executive Compensation" and "Compiensation of Direct6rs' in tlie Proxy Statemen't, incorporated herein by reference.  

Item 12.-Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.  

See "Security Ownership of Nominees, Directors and Executive Officers'. in the Proxy Statement, incorporated herein 
. by reference.  

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.  

See "Information Regarding the Board-of Directors" ini the Proxy Statement, incorporated herein by reference 
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PART IV.  

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.  

(a) Consolidated Financial Statements, Supplemental Financial Data and Supplemental Schedules included in Part IIW 

this annual report are as follows: 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Consolidated Statements of Income for the YearsEnded December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 

Consolidated Statements.of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders', Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 
- a. 1996 

Notes toConsolidated Financial Statements p 

Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited) (included in Note 18 tb thd Consolidated Financial Statements) 

Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves for the Years Ended 

December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 , - .  

All other schedules are omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they:are required or because the 

required information is included in the financial statements or notes thereto.  

(b) Reports on Form 8-K 

A Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 5, 1998 contained disclosures under Item 5, Other Events, and 

Item 7, Financial Statements and Exhibits.  

A Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 1, 1998 contained disclosures under Item 5, Other Events, and 
Item 7, Financial Statements, Pro Forma Financial Information and Exhibits.  

A Current Report on Form 8-K filed, on December 18, 1998 contained disclosures under Item 5, Other Events, an 

Item 7, Financial Statements and Exhibits.  

(c) Exhibits - See Exhibit Index immediately following. the signature page.  
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to. the requirements of Section 13 or, 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
W ed this report to.be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  

Date: March 15, 1999 DuKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

(Registrant) 

By: RICHARD B. PRIORY 

Richard B. Priory, 
Chainnan of the Board, President 

and Chief Executive Officer 

Pursuant to the iequirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been. signed below by the follow
ing persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.  

(i) Principal executive officer: 
Richard B. Priory 

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer 

(11),Principal financial; officer: 
Richard J. Osborne .  

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.  

(iii) Principal accounting officer: 
Jeffrey L. Boyer 

Vice President and Corporate Controller 

(iv) All of the Directors:, 
Richard B. Priory 
G. Alex Bernhardt, Sr.  
Robert J Brown 
William A. Coley 
William T. Esrey 
Ann Maynard Gray 
Dennis R. Hendrix 
Harold S. Hook 
George Dean Johnson, Jr.  
Max Lennon 
Leo E. Linbeck, Jr.  
James G. Martin 
Russell M. Robinson,. II 

Date: March 15, 1999 

Richard J. Osborne, by signing- his name hereto, does hereby sigii thi documint on behalf of the registrant and on 
behalf of each of the above-named persons pursuant to a power of attorney duly executed by the tegis trant and such per
sons, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit hereto.  

By: /sf RCHA D J OSBORIE 
Attorney-In-Fact 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 

Exhibits filed herewith are designated by an asterisk (). All exhibits not so designated are incorporat6d by refer * 
to a prior filing, as indicated. Items constitutingman'agementcontracts or:coinpensatory.plans or arrangements are des 
nated by a double.asterisk-** .

Exhibit 
Number 

2 - Agieement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 24, 1996, as amended and restated as of March 10, 
1997, amongregistrant, Duke Transaction Corporation and PanEnergy Corp (filed with Form 8-K dated 
March, 20, 1997, FilfNo. 1-4928, as Exhibit 2(a)).  

3-A - Restated Articles of Incorporation of registrant, dated June 18, 1997 (filed with Form S-8,No. 333-29563, 
effective Juine 19, 1997, jas Ehibit 4(G)).  

- By-Laws of registrant, as ariended:,' 
4 - Rights Agreement, dated as of December 17, 1998, between the registrant and The Bank of New York, as 

Rights Agent (filed with Form 8-K dated February 11, 1999).  
10-A - Agreement, dated March 6, 1978, between the registrantand theNorth Carolina Municipal Power Agency 

No. 1 (filed with Form 8-K for the month'of March 1978, File No. 1-4928).  
10-B - Agreement, dated August 1, 1980, between the registrant and Piedmont Municipal Power Agency (filed with 

Form 8-K for the month of August 1980, File No. 1-4928).  
10-C - Agreement, dated October 14, 1980, between the, registrant and. North Carolina Electric Membership 

Corporation (filed with Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1980, File No. 1-4928).  
10-D - Agreement, dated October 14, 1980, between the registrant and Saluda Riv&r Electric Cooperative, Inc.  

(filed with Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1980, File No. 1-4928).  
10-E** - Employee Incentive Plan (filed with Form 10-K for the yearended Decemberz3l,1993, File No. 1-4928, as 

Exhibit 10-F).  
10-F** - Directors' Charitable Giving Program (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended Dec mber 31,1992, File No.  

1-4928, as Exhibit 10-P).  
10-G** - Estate Conservation Plan (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992; File No. 1-4928, as 

Exhibit 10-R).  
10-H** - Supplemental Insurance Plan (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992, File 

1-4928, as Exhibit 10-S).  
10-1** - Executive Short-Term Incentive Plan (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended December,31, 1994, File No.  

1-4928, as Exhibit 10-V).  
10-J** - Executive Savings Plan (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996, File No. 1-4928, as 

Exhibit 10-Z).  
10-K** - Executive Cash Balance Plan (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996, File No.  

1-4928, as Exhibit 10-AA).  
10-L** - Directors' Savings Plan (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996, File No. 1-4928, as 

Exhibit 10-BB).  
10-M** - Duke Power Company Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix A to Schedule 14A-of rkgistrant; March 18, 

'1996, File No. 1-4928).  
10-N** - 1989 Non-employee Directors Stock Option Plan of Panhandle Eastern Corporation, adopted Februiry 1, 

1989 (filed with Form S-8 Registration.Statement of Panhandle.Eastern Corporation, File No. 33-28912, as 
Exhibit 28(a)). ,... ; .  

10-O** - 1982 Key Employee Stock Option,. Plan of Panhandle Eastern' Corporation, as amended through 
December 3, 1986 (and related Agreeient) (filed with F6rm 101K 6f Paihaidle Eastern Corporation for the 

year ended December '31, 1986, File No. 1 8157, as Exhibit 10(g)).  
10-P** - Employees -Savings Plan' of Panhandle Eastern Corporation and Participating Affiliates (filed with Form 

10-K of Panhandle Eastern Corporation for the year ended December 31, 1990, File No. 1-8157, as Exhibit 
10.12).  

10-Q** - Panhandle Eastern Corporation 1994 Long Term Incentive Plan (filed with Form 10-K of Panhandle Eastern 

Corporation for the year ended December 31, 1993, File No. 1-8157, as Exhibit 10.18).  
10-R - $1,250,000,000 Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of August 25, 1997, among registrant, the banks listed 

therein and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as Administrative Agent (filed with Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 1997, as Exhibit 10-R).  

10-S - $950,000,000 Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of August 25, 1997, among Duke Capital Corporation, 
the banks listed therein and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Administrative Agent (filed with Form 10
the year ended December 31, 1997, as Exhibit 10-S).  
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Exhibit 
ber 

- $600,000,000 364-Day Credit Agreement dated as of August 24, 1998, among Duke Capital Corporation, 
the banks listed therein and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Administrative Agent, (filed with Form 8-K of 
Duke Capital Corporation dated February 24, 1999, File No. 0-23977, as Exhibit 99.2).  

10-U** - Employment Agreement by and between the registrant and Richard B. Priory dated November 24, 1996 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit C-i of Exhibit 2 to this Form 10-K), and the First Amendment thereto 
dated October 22, 1997 (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, as part of Exhibit 
10-U).  

10-V** Employment Agreement by and among PanEnergy Corp, the registrant and Paul M. Anderson dated 
November 24, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit B-1 of Exhibit 2 to this Form 10-K), and the First 
Amendment thereto dated October 24, 1997 (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, 
as part of Exhibit 10-V).  

10-W** Employment Agreement by and among PanEnergy Corp, the registrant and Fred J. Fowler dated November 
24, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit B-3 of Exhibit 2 to this Form 10-K), and the First 
'Amendment thereto dated October 24, 1997, filed herewith.  

10-X** - Employment Agreement by and between the registrant and William A. Coley dated November 24, 1996 
(incorporated by reference to'Exhibit C-2 of Exhibit 2 to this Form 10-K), and the First Amendment thereto 
dated October 24, 1997 (filed with Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997, as part of Exhibit 
Il0-X).  

10-Y** - Employment Agreement by and between the registrant and Richard J. Osborne dated November 24, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit C-3 of Exhibit 2 to this Form 10-K), and the First Amendment thereto 
dated October 27, 1997, (filed with Form 1-K ,for the year ended December 31, 1997, as part of Exhibit 
10-Y).  

10-Z** - 1990 Long-Term Incentive Plan of Panhandle Eastern Corporation (filed with Form 10-K of Panhandle 
Eastern Corporation for the year ended December 31, 1990, File No. 1-8157, as Exhibit 10.14).  

10-AA - Formation Agreement between PanEnergy ,Trading and Market Services, Inc. and Mobil Natural Gas, Inc.  
dated May 29, 1996 (filed 'ith Fort'l0'-Q of PanEney: Corp for the quarter ended June 30, 1996, File No.  1-8157, as Exhibit 2).  

*10-BB - Employment Agreement by and between the registrant and Richard W. Blackburn dated November 10, 1997.  
-CC - Duke Energy Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix A to Schedule 14A of the registrant, 

March 16, 1998)} 
10-DD - Duke Energy Corporation Policy Committee Short-Term Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix B to Schedule 14A of the registrant, March 16, 1998).  
10-EE - Stock Purchase Agreement between PanEnergy Corp, Texas Eastern Corporation and CMS Energy 

Corporation, dated as of October 31, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K of the registrant, File No.  
1-4928, filed November 5, 1998).  

10-FF Merger and Purchase Agreement among Union Pacific Resources Company, Union Pacific Fuels, Inc., Duke Energy Field Services, Inc. and DEFS Merger Sub Corp., dated as of November 20, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K of the registrant, File No. 1-4928, filed December 1, 1998).  
*12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.  
*21 - List of Subsidiaries.  
*23(a) - Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.  
*23(b) - Consent of KPMG Peat Marwick LLP.  
*24(a) -- Power of attorney authorizing Richard J. Osborne and others to sign the. annual report on behalf. of the registrant and certain of its directors and officers.  
*24(b) - Certified copy of resolution of the Board of Directors of the registrant authorizing power of attorney.  *27 Financial Data Schedule for the Year Ended December 31, 1998.  
*99 Independent Auditors' Report of KPMG Peat Marwick LLP to the Board of Directors of PanEnergy Corp dated January 16, 1997. ' 

The total amount of securities of the registrant or its subsidiaries authorized under-any instrument with respect to long
term debt not filed as .an exhibit does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The registrant agrees, upon request of the Securities and Exchange Commission, to furnish copies of any or all of such instruments.  
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The Piedmont Municipal Power Agency is a joint action agency formed by 10 municipal 

electric utilities in northwestern South Carolina. Its mission is to assist its 

members in providing competitive electric energy and related services, as well as to 

contribute to the economic vitality of each member community.  

PMPA owns 25 percent of the Catawba Nuclear Plant Unit No. 2 and buys additional 

power from Duke Energy. The agency's corporate office is located in Greer, S.C.



s we approach the 21st century, South Carolina's electric 

utilities are poised to enter a new world of customer choice 

and competition. The deregulation of the state's electric 

s presents unique opportunities and challenges for 

the Piedmont Municipal Power Agency and its 10 

mnrrbeszcommunities.  

Recognizing that the power industry as entering a period of 

unprecedented change, PMPA has begun harting a new 

course as part of its ongoing quest to provide alue to the 

communities it serves. With new leadership, a raneyed sense 

of optimism and a willingness to form newpartnerships and 

alliances, PMPA remains commre to ensuring tha our 

member utilities and oar customers are successful in y future 

regulatory evifrnment and that changes are fair to allt 

consumers.  

Piedmont Municipal Power Aaency



Management Letter 

t is our pleasure to include all utilities - municipal, 
present PMPA's 1998 cooperative and investor owned 

annual report. This - in deregulation. Also, the 

year, we began plan recognizes that a system for 

charting a new recovering stranded costs is 

course that we believe will critical to the successful 

strengthen both our deregulation of the electric 

internal alliances among industry and that this system 

our members and their must be understood prior to 

communities, and our legislative action. The plan is being 

external relationships with used by legislators to develop 

other utilities, businesses, legislation for 1999.  

legislators and regulators.  
Leading us in this new course is In the S.C. Senate, Senator Donald 

Don A. Ouchley, who joined Holland, Chairman of the Senate 

PMPA as General Manager in judiciary Committee, created a Tas 

the summer of 1998. Don Force on Electric Deregulation ti 

replaced James A. Bauer, who evaluate if, when and how Sout 

retired in September, after Carolina's electric industry should e 

serving 14 years as General deregulated. The Task Force is 

Manager. chaired by Senator Thomas Moore 
and is comprised of State Senators, 

Over the year, our primary focus members of the PSC, and utility and 

has been on preparing our agency industry representatives. PMPA is 

and its members for deregulation of fortunate to be represented on the 

the electric industry. Our efforts Task Force by General Manager, 

have, and will continue to be, Don Ouchley.  

focused in four primary areas: Don A. Oudey, General Manager (left), and 

legislative involvement, David V. Duncan, Chairman, Board of Directors As a part of our legislative and 

customer service, power supply regulatory involvement, PMPA 

and finance, has worked to educate its members 
and their governing bodies about 

In 1998, the S.C. House of Representatives, on how South electric deregulation and the 

Representatives Public Utilities Sub- Carolina should proceed with legislative process. In February, we 

Committee continued to debate the deregulation. The plan does not hosted a power conference for our 

Competitive Power Act, which was address whether deregulation would directors and the elected officials 

introduced in 1997 by Rep. Doug be beneficial to South Carolina; from our member utilities. The 

Smith. At the end of the legislative instead, it identified the issues that conference focused on the current 

session, no action was taken on the must be addressed if deregulation is legislative and regulatory process and 

bill and new legislation must be to occur here. The plan does not on ways each individual member and 

introduced in 1999 for debate to specifically address public power the agency as a whole could best 

continue. The PSC presented a plan, utilities; however, it does recognize prepare for the challenges ahead.  

in early 1998 to the House of that special consideration is needed to Representative Harry Cato, 

2 Piedmont Municipal Power Agency



Chairman of the House Labor, members have met with their addition, plans were begun in late 
Commerce and Industry Committee, legislators to explain our position, 1998 to refinance a portion of the 
participated in the conference and and this involvement is continuing to agency's 1996A Refunding Series.  
discussed how his committee will grow as the deregulation debate Over the past three years, our 
proceed with the deregulation debate. continues. Our director of legislative refinancing efforts have generated 
Participants also heard from other affairs coordinates these efforts in more than $180 million in gross debt 
public power utilities and learned both Columbia and Washington, service savings. The majority of these 
about programs and services that D.C., to give PMPA a strong voice in savings has been concentrated in the 
could help position them for the legislative arena. years between 2002 and 2008, and 
competition. Of particular interest to will result in savings of more than 
the member utilities were programs This year, we have continued to look $13 million per year during that 
to help build stronger relationships for opportunities to increase our period.  
with their existing customers. flexibility regarding power supply and 

generation costs. One such As a public power utility, it is our 
Following the conference, the Board opportunity is the Department of sole mission to provide affordable, 

Directors authorized PMPA to hire Energy's (DOE) program to burn reliable electric resources to our 
Accounts Coordinator to work Mixed Oxide Plutonium (MOX) in member utilities while enabling them 

the member utilities and their commercial nuclear plants. In to continue contributing to the 
customers. Todd Kilsdonk joined August, the joint owners of the economic vitality of their individual 
PMPA in October and is working Catawba Nuclear Plant, teamed up communities. The potential for 
with each member to develop a key with Duke Engineering and Services, electric deregulation does not change 
accounts program that meets their COGEMA Inc. (an international fuel that mission. In fact, it is that 
needs. He is also exploring various fabrication company) and Stone & mission that will guide us in charring 
rate options and service programs Webster (a global provider of a new course to meet the many 
that may be offered through PMPA. engineering and related services) in challenges that lie ahead. From 

responding to a DOE call for legislative and regulatory activities, to 
PMPA has worked throughout the proposals to use MOX fuel in nuclear customer service programs and 
year to keep its members informed of reactors beginning in 2007. The use communications, to changes in power 
and active in the deregulation debate. of MOX fuel at Catawba could supply, to refinancings, we will 
In December, we hosted a half-day reduce PMPA's fuel cost over the always act to protect the interests of 
workshop for mayors and 15-year life of the project. The DOE our member utilities and to assure 
commission chairmen on is expected to announce which that public power utilities are a part 
deregulation to update these key reactors will be used in the MOX of all efforts to deregulate the electric 
representatives on the upcoming project in 1999. industry.  
legislative agenda. We hosted a 
Round Table on deregulation and A significant improvement to agency 
economic development for utility costs was achieved this year through 
management, chambers of commerce the 1998A bond refinancing. The David V Duncan Don A. Ouchley 
and economic development refinancing generated approximately Chairman, Board ofDirectors Genera/Manager 

organizations in October and have $8.9 million in gross debt service 
participated in events and programs savings, which is equal to a 5.2 

o r member communities. 
percent reduction in debt service 

esenlatives from all of our costs over the life of the bonds. In 
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Abbeville 
"A close-knit, small community demands the personal touch that only locally owned public power can provide. Together, we have solved the 
problems of the past, and, together we will meet the challenges of the new millineum." 
-David H. Krumwiede, City Manager, City of Abbeville 

L ocated in the foothills of 
western South Carolina, the 
historic city of Abbeville is 

surrounded by rolling countryside 
and small rivers that flow into the 
Savannah River. City leaders have 
charted a new course for this quaint 
city by taking a fond look back at its 
rich history and applying the work 
ethics of yesterday into the bright and 
thriving business climate of today.  

The downtown economy is booming, 
thanks to the concerted efforts of 
business and civic leaders who have 

renovated historic buildings into 
restaurants, specialty shops and 

overnight accommodations. Tourists 
from throughout the nation regularly 
visit Abbeville for its exquisite 

downtown square, stately homes and 

professional Opera House. Abbeville 
is also located on the South Carolina 
National Heritage Corridor - a 

select series of highways, roads, MJ 
towns, cities and sights that define 
the state's history, culture and natural 
beauty.The area is also home to two 

major educational institutions: 
Erskine College and Lander College 
- both within minutes of downtown 
Abbeville. Industrial companies have electricity, to customers both inside from PMPA and operates its own 

found the area to be ideal for their and outside the city limits. The city distribution system. The city of 

business needs, with over 30 began providing electricity in the Abbeville has charted its future by 

manufacturing and distribution early 1900s and prides itself on honoring its rich history and 

companies located within the region. providing a high level of personal supplying quality power for 

In addition, Abbeville County is service to its entire customer base future growth into the next 

home to three industrial parks and is almost 100 years later. These personal century.  

in close proximity to Interstate 85. services include levelixed billing, 
demand-side management and a 

The City of Abbeville provides public proactive approach to customer 

utilities, including water, sewer and concerns. The utility purchases power 

Peak Demand for 1998: July-iS5 MW (includes 2.3 MW from 
SEPA and 3.1 MW from hydroplant) 

Usage for 1998:67,012 MWh (includes 8,047 MWh from 
SEPA and 9,500 MWh from hydroplant) 

Peak Generation: 3.1 MW 
Population: 6,000 
Customers: Residential-3,075; usage-32,300 MWh 

Commercial-458; usage-27,278 MWh 
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Clinton 
'One of the greatest benefits of public power is that retail rates, service policies and customer-service programs are established locally by 

residents of the community. Our ability to quickly react to customer-service requirements and tailor services 
to their needs will be our greatest asset in the deregulated environment." 

-Charles B. Litchfield, City Manager, City of Clinton 

S trategically located near majora or 

highway systems - Interstates 
26 and 85, Clinton is known as 

the "Gateway" to the Upstate. This 
historic city primarily began as a 
textile town with Clinton Mills being 
the largest employer in the area. In 
the past few years, historic 
preservation has played a major role 
in the economic revitalization of the 
downtown area. In the past three 
years, 75 percent of all buildings in 
the historic district have been 
renovated, and the majority of these 
are now occupied by a thriving 
business community. Civic and 
business leaders have charted a new 
course for the future by continuing 
its preservation efforts and 
strategically planning ways to ensure 

elocal economy remains successful.  
Mority has been set for the 

ation of the remaining buildings 
in the historic district - with the 
goal of using these buildings for The population of Clinton is 8,203 diesel generators totaling 
housing. In addition, city leaders and and Laurens County, an estimated approximately 2 MW. This system 
private developers are in the early 62,540. City leaders continue to also provides a valuable back-up to 
planning stages for developing the work closely with the business and the municipal water treatment 
"Eastside Industrial Park" to lure new residential community to improve the facility. As part of providing superior 
and expanding industries into quality of life in Clinton, showing customer relations, the city offers 
Clinton. These industries will join their strong sense of ownership in the such programs as a water heater 
other forces in the local economy community with their theme of maintenance program, which allows 
such as the Whitten Center, the "Pride in Service." The city of customers to pay a nominal monthly 
Thornwell Home and Asten-Press. Clinton's utility system was founded fee for the repair or replacement of 

Clinton is also home to in 1907 and provides water, sewer their water heaters at no additional 
Presbyterian College - a and electric service to its customers, cost. By supplying superior customer 
private, liberal arts college, The city purchases its power from relations and the highest quality 
home to over 1,000 students PMPA, operates its own distribution service available, the city of Clinton is 

- which provides cultural, system and is able to lower peak utilizing its power to continue on a 
sporting and educational events for demand as well as reduce course set for success.  
the surrounding community. supplemental power costs through 

Peak Demand for 1998: August-24 MW (includes 1.9 from SEPA) 
Usage for 1998:123,369 MWh (includes 2,123 MWh from SEPA) 
Peak Generation: Diesel generators totaling approximately 2 MW 
Population: 8,203 
Customers: Residential-3,650; usage-34,933 MWh 

Commercial-575; usage-41,012 MWh 
Industrial-6; usage-30,352 MWh 
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Easley 
'The primary strength of Easley Combined Utilities is the flexibility provided by local control. We are able to respond quickly to our 
customers' wishes. The ability to rapidly provide products and services that our customers desire will provide Easley Combined Utilities an 
advantage in the deregulated market." -Joel D. Ledbetter, General Manager, Easley Combined Utilities S ince its origins as a textile 

manufacturing community, the 

city of Easley continues to be 

one of the Upstate's most 
economically successful 
municipalities. Due to the visionary 

leadership of government and civic 

leaders, as well as its location in the 

pro-business climate of Pickens 

County, Easley has seen tremendous 
residential growth in the past several 

years. That growth is largely due to 

the approximately 150 manufacturing 
plants that have expanded or relocated 

to Easley and its surrounding 

communities. Since 1985, Pickens 

County has attracted more than $406 

million in capital investments, 
creating over 2,800 new jobs. The 

superior quality of life in the region 

was noted in the publication "Crime, 

Justice and Society 1998," ranking 
Pickens County as the best overall 

county in the state due to its low 

crime rate, superior SAT scores and 

low taxes. Continuing on its charted 

course for economic success, Easley is 

responsible for nearly 50 percent of all 

retail sales in Pickens County. Easley 

is also adjacent to major educational 
institutions including Clemson 
University, which has earned national 

prominence in the areas of 

engineering, agriculture, architecture, ECU purchases power from PMPA a PMPA member utility, the ECU 

forestry and textiles, and Southern and is able to meet peak electric continues to meet the 

Wesleyan University, a four-year generation through diesel generators diverse needs of 

liberal arts college. totaling approximately 6 MW. The residential and 

utility offers special value-added business customers, 

The Easley Combined Utilities programs for their customers ensuring that the 

(ECU) was founded in 1927 to including a water heater maintenance area continues to 

provide utility services, including plan, which allows customers to pay a prosper in the new 

water, sewer and electricity, to Easley nominal monthly fee for the repair or millennium.  

and the surrounding community. The replacement of their water heaters. As 

Peak Demand for 1998: July-56 MW (includes 6.7 MW from SEPA) 
Usage for 1998:263,058 MWh (includes 21,989 MWh from SEPA) 
Peak Generation: Diesel generators totaling approximately 6 MW 
Population: 16,880 
Customers: Residential-9,969; usage 122,390 MWh 

Commercial and Industrial 1,486; usage-92,556 MWh 
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Gaffney 
"The Board of Public Works is Gaffney's 'hometown utility.' We are dedicated to providing our community 

with the most reliable and competitively priced utilities possible." 
-Donnie L Hardin, General Manager, Gaffney Board of Public Works L ocated in northwest South 

Carolina, the city of Gaffney is 
located in Cherokee County 

and has a population of 13,275.  
Gaffney's location in Cherokee 
County, between the Greenville
Spartanburg area of South Carolina 
and Charlotte, North Carolina, 
makes it an ideal location for 
individuals and businesses seeking 
small town life with easy access to 
big-city amenities. Since World War 
II, industry has played a major part in 
the local economy and, today, 
Gaffney is home to a variety of 
industrial businesses including Nestle, 
Milliken and several international 
textile companies. Gaffney has a well
deserved reputation as a major 
supplier of peaches, the area's largest 

and Gaffney plays host to the 
al South Carolina Peach Festival.  

*stately homes that line the 
owntown area are proud testaments 

to Gaffney's rich history, and civic 
leaders have recently renovated Main 
Street in the Historic Downtown 
District. Gaffney is also home to 
Limestone College, a four-year, 
liberal arts college.  

Founded in 1907, the Gaffney Board 
of Public Works provides electric, also able to meet peak electric overall welfare of the community 
water and wastewater services to the generation through diesel generators with the altruistic Project Hope 
city and surrounding community. totaling approximately 8 MW. program. The Board of Public Works 
The BPW purchases power from Committed to quality service to the continues to chart a successful course 

PMPA and is able to meet the community, the BPW routinely offers for Gaffney and its residents by 
service needs of any size special programs such as energy supplying quality power for future 

electrical load at the most audits and billing options to help growth in the new millennium.  
competitive prices customers save on their energy bills.  

A aavailable. The BPW is In addition, the BPW helps with the 

Peak Demand for 1998: August-44 MW (includes 5.4 MW from SEPA) 
Usage for 1998:231,690 MWh (includes 17,827 MWh from SEPA) 
Peak Generation: Diesel generators totaling approximately 8 MW 
Population: 13,275 
Customers: Residential-6,057; usage-62,825 MWh 

Commercial-rs,092; usage-75,457 MWh 
ndustrial-33; usage-50,106 MWh 

cther-41; usage-io6,267 MWh 
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Greer 
"Last year, Greer introduced Destination 2000, a customer-motivated program that raises service to a higher level.  
Customer service has always been a priority, and we're moving it to an even higher level." 
-H. Jerry Balding, General Manager, Greer Commission of Public Works 

LThe Greenville-Spartanburg International Airport has grown into L ocaed a th foohils oftheone of the finest airports in the country, steadily meeting the 
scenic Blue Ridge Mountains, Upstate's ever-increasing needs.  

the city of Greer has an 
estimated population of 14,500.  
Strategically located along Interstate 
85, Greer is midway between Atlanta 
and Charlotte in the 
Spartanburg/Greenville Metropolitan 

area and adjacent to an international 
airport. The area provides a strong 
industrial corridor, a force made even 
stronger with the recent addition of 
the BMW automotive assembly 
plant. In calling Greer home, BMWI 
joins other major industrial 
companies such as Spartan Food 4 

System Inc., Springs Industries and 
Phil Chem as major contributors to 

the local economy - all customers of 

the Greer Commission of Public 
Works. With a strong foundation in 
industrial recruitment, city and 
business leaders have positioned 
Greer as a prime business location for 
new and expanding industry. The 

Chamber of Commerce has joined 
forces with other chambers as part of 
the 1-85 Business Belt Group, a 
group dedicated to the promotion of 
the 1-85 business corridor as a viable 

economic region with a high quality 

of life.  

A member of PMPA, the Greer 

Commission of Public Works (CPW) accounts program, which focuses on World Wide Web 

was established in 1913. The CPW the precise and individual needs of (www.greercpw.com/). By planning 

provides natural gas, electricity, water the CPW's largest industrial for the future, focusing on improving 

and wastewater service to more than customers. The CPW is able to meet the local economy and anticipating 

9,000 customers in the Greer area. In peak electric generation through the needs of its customers, the 

1998, the CPW launched diesel generators totaling Greer CPW has charted a 

"Destination 2000," a utility-wide approximately 2.5 MW. Customer successful, ambitious course 

initiative focused on improving service programs of the CPW include for the future.  

customer relations. One component billing options, outage systems and 

of this program includes a key an informative hoe page on the 

Peak Demand for 1998: July-45 MW (includes 7.3 MW from SEPA) 
Usage for 1998:202,411 MWh (includes 23,986 MWh from SEPA) 
Peak Generation: Diesel generators totaling approximately 2.5 MW 
Population: 14,500l ns 

Customers (1997): Residential-8,560; usage-102,367 MWh 
Commercial-(1,347; usage-wc00,044 MWh 
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Laurens 
'The Laurens CPW is dedicated to offering to our customers tailored choices of services of the desired quality and reliability at competitive prices." 

-Coleman F. Smoak Jr., General Manager, Laurens Commission of Public Works 

L ocated in the rolling hills of B r 

South Carolina, the city of 
Laurens is but a short distance 

from Greenville and Spartanburg, 
which together form the 36th largest 
market in the United States. The city 
of Laurens joins other small towns 
throughout the state which are deeply 
committed to revitalizing their 
downtown corridors. With civic and 
business leaders joining forces with 
the Laurens Main Street USA 
program, Laurens has recently 
undergone major renovations to 
bring consumers back to the historic 
downtown district. Renovations to 
the area include a streetscape plan 
that includes lush landscaping, period 
lighting and streets restored to their 
original brick covering. In addition, 

"Laurens Lights" program was 
ted in Christmas of 1998, 

n splendid lighting displays 
tughout the downtown area. In 
addition to improving the downtown 
business district, Laurens is also home 
to a solid industrial base that includes 
manufacturing, logging and textile 
companies.  

A member utility of PMPA, the 
Laurens Commission of Public 
Works (LCPW) offers water, sewer, leaders to bring a consistently high programs that include customer 
gas and electric service to customers quality of life to its residents. These billing options, a charitable donation 
both within and out of the city efforts include participation in the program called Community Change 
limits. The LCPW was created in "Laurens Lights" program, the and an informative customer home 
1922 for the improvement and downtown renovation project and page on the World Wide Web 

expansion of the existing utilities helping develop Hunter Industrial (www.lcpw.com). By partnering with 

system and, over 75 years later, the Park. The LCPW has allocated other crucial entities and fulfilling a 
LCPW continues to anticipate and money for the design of commitment for future development, 
facilitate the changing utility needs improvements to four new sites at the the Laurens CPW is ensuring the 

of its customers. In addition, park and is actively participating in course for Laurens is on the fast track 
the LCPW works diligently marketing efforts. The LCPW offers for success.  

with municipal and civic a variety of service and informative 

Peak Demand for 1998: July-23 MW (includes 4.7 MW from SEPA) 
Usage for 1998: 104,931 MWh (includes 15,315 MWh from SEPA) 
Peak Generation: None 
Population: 10,000 
Customers: Residential-3,776 usage-44 506 MWh 

Commercial-645; usage--46,9l 5 MWh 
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Newberry 
'Working together with our base of residential and business customers, the City of Newberry is truly a partner for progress in making our city a 
prosperous place to work and live. Customer satisfaction has, and remains, our primary goal, and it is our duty and pleasure to use public power a* 
source for improving the quality of life in Newberry."-Charles H. Guerry, City of Newberry Utility Director 

N ewberry, located in the T N Opr H..... y........r 

central Midlands of South 

Carolina, has a population 

of 10,581. The city's strategic 
location along Interstate 26, between 

Columbia, the state capital and 

Greenville, allows easy access to two 

major metropolitan areas. Since the 

late 1800s, textile industries have 

provided Newberry County's 

economic foundation and, today, 

they are joined by wood processing 

and wood products firms as well as 

food processing industries. The 

recently renovated Newberry Opera 

House has emerged as a proud 
symbol of a city that remembers its 

rich, significant past and has taken 

great strides to preserve its history for 

future generations. There are several 

blocks within the downtown business 

district on which every building is 

listed on the National Register of 

Historic Places. Newberry is also 

home to Newberry College, a fully 

accredited four-year, coeducational 

liberal arts college supported by the 

South Carolina, Southeastern and 

Florida Synods of the Lutheran 
Church of America.  

Chrho mrc.load, the city offers the most Newberry holds firm in its 

The city of Newberry began utility competitive prices available and is commitment to offer the necessary 

service in the late 1800s and now actively involved with civic and other power and performance that will 

provides water, sewer and electrical governmental entities to promote chart the course for future growth 

service to both residential and Newberry as a excellent location for and development.  

business customers. Meeting the new and expanding industries. As a 

service needs of any size electrical member of PMPA, the ciry of 

load,- the1 ciyofrstems 

Peak Demand for 1998: July-33 MW (includes 2.2 MW from SEPA) 
Usage for 1998:168,374 MWh (includes 2,337 MWh from SEPAl 
Peak Generation: None 
Population: 10,581 at 

Customers: Residential-3,926; usage-42,470 MWh 
Commercial-821; usage-55,630 MWh 
Inedustrial-i 3; usage-54,420 
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Rock Hill 
"Rock Hill has always invested in meeting the growing needs of our customers, and, every day, we're working harder, smarter and 
more creatively for customer-service excellence. As a public power entity, we know where we are, we know where we want to be, 

and we'll be quite resourceful and competitive in getting there." 
-J. Russell Allen, City Manager, City of Rock Hill T he city of Rock Hill, located......................................................... o 

in York County, is the 

county's largest city and 
continues to be one of the fastest
growing South Carolina cities. Rock 
Hill is part of the Charlotte
Gastonia-Rock Hill metropolitan 
statistical area, the Southeast's second 
largest business hub and the nation's 
fifth largest trade area. The city is 
home to Winthrop University, York 
Technical College and Clinton Junior 
College, which are all known for 
offering high-quality education. Rock 
Hill has strategically positioned itself 
as a progressive community with an 
excellent quality of life and a strong 
tradition of actively pursuing business 

and industrial growth. Through an 
aggressive economic development 

,,jgram, the city has developed four 
ier business parks which are 

W e to more than forty businesses.  
ivic and business leaders have 

developed strong financial incentives 
to encourage new and expanding 
business development in the 
downtown area, including loan 
programs to support business growth 
and historic preservation. The 
Downtown Rock Hill Association 
helps organize and sponsor special 
community events which bring more and sanitary sewer service to more program, security lighting and 
than 22,000 people annually to the than 23,000 customers. Established customer energy audits. To prepare 
Main Street area. At the entrance of in 1911, the public power utility for electric industry restructuring, 
Rock Hill's historic district, visitors operates a system consisting of more Rock Hill Utilities created a key 
are greeted by the GateWay Plaza, a than 500 miles of electric distribution accounts program in 1998 to help 
civic art monument that stands as a lines, four delivery substations and a focus on and meet the needs of its 

true symbol of this city's fifth substation planned for 2002. commercial and industrial customers.  
commitment to growth and Rock Hill provides superior customer Rock Hill's leaders have charted the 
prosperity. The GateWay service by offering such programs as future growth of the city with a 
features four majestic statues the "AllCall" automated service collective vision of quality that 
honoring the beautification, reporting system, the residential honors the past and will successfully 
educational, cultural, historical Smart Switch load management carry it into the next millennium.  

l and business efforts of its citizens.  

Peak Demand for 1 998: July-i 33 MW (includes 14.8 MW from SEPA) . City of Rock Hill Utilities Usage for 1998:628,406 MWh (includes 48,590 MWh from SEPA) 
artment supplies electric, water Peak Generation: Diesel generators totaling approximately 3 MW 

Population: 50,289 
Customers: Residential-21,61 1; usage 236,550 MWh 

Commercial & indlustrial-2,952; usage-360,483 MWh 
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Union 
'Being a public power utility, the city of Union is dedicated to providing the finest customer-service available. By offering superior customer incentiv 
along with the most reliable and competitive rates available, we've formed personal relationships with our family of customers-relationships tha 
see us through successfully into the next century." 
-Charles H. Potts, City Administrator, City of Union T he unique combination of 

small-town charm, proximity 

to the metropolitan 
communities of Greenville and 

Spartanburg and location in a county 

that includes 55,000 acres of the 

Sumter National Forest makes the 

city of Union an ideal home for 
families and businesses. With an 

estimated population of nearly 

10,700, Union is home to a diverse 
business community that includes 

Torrington, Conso, Fieldcrest 
Cannon, and Kohler - all served by 
City of Union utilities. Since the mid 

1990s, economic growth in Union 

has been tremendous. A unique 

development of the city and county 

has led to the development of the 

165-acre Mac Johnston Industrial 

Park, fast becoming home to a wide 

variety of industrial businesses. With 

a dedicated workforce, available 

industrial sites, access to three 

interstate highways within 35 miles of 

the city, a revitalized downtown 

shopping district, rolling rural 

acreage, and higher education 
opportunities at the local campus of 

the University of South Carolina, 

Union is a city that offers a proud 

heritage, a superior quality of life and 

a firm grasp on future development.  

The City of Union began supplying its 

citizens with water and electric utility to residents such as Community industrial customers have 

service in 1898, wastewater treatment Change, a charitable donation the power and the energy 

in 1917 and gas service in 1956. The program for needy residents. As a to chart the course for 

City of Union is committed to its PMPA member city, Union offers optimum growth into the 

customers both within and out of the superior service and quality programs next century.  

city limits and offers special programs to ensure residential, business and 

Peak Demand for 1998: July-31 MW (includes 2.3 MW from SEPA) 
Usage for 1998: 142,264 MWh (includes 2,486 MWh from SEPA) 
Peak Generation: None 
Population: 10,700 
Customers: Residential-6,029; usage-64,678 MWh 

Commercial-883; usage-45,587 MWh 
Iniustrial-It; usage-8,986 MWh 

tther-99; usage-p 2,918 MWh 
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Westminster 
"There is a personal touch between our workers and the city of Westminster. That's one of the 

pluses of being in a small service area. When deregulation comes about, we can capitalize on our personal touch." 
-R. Buck Marcingill, Chairman, Westminster Commission of Public Works L ocated in Oconee County, 

known as the "Golden Corner" 

of the state, the City of 
Westminster is in the foothills of the 
beautiful Appalachian Mountains.  
Westminster's population is 4,351 
and Oconee County's population is 
over 62,000. The city's economic 
base is diversified, thanks to the 
development efforts of civic and 
business leaders. That base ranges 
from modern industry to a revitalized 
Main Street District. The city also 
features outstanding architecture, 
boasting over 100 period homes 
dating back to the late 1800s. Home 
to the Chamber of Commerce, the 
restored train depot is a prime 
example of Westminster's 
commitment to the reuse and renewal 

istoric buildings. Westminster 
host to the South Carolina 
Festival and offers a wide 

variety of recreational opportunities 
with the rivers, lakes, forests, 
mountains and golf courses found 
throughout Oconee County.  
Westminster is also located on the 
South Carolina National Heritage 
Corridor - a select series of 
highways, roads, towns, cities and 
sights that define the state's history, 
culture and natural beauty.  

A PMPA member city, Westminster 
established a Commission of 

Public Works in 1921 and 
provides electricity, water providing a high level of personal life. Westminster continues to 

and wastewater service to its entire customer base provide the energy needs and 
treatment facilities to services that include demand-side economic expertise for both residents 

customers both within and management, personalized customer and business to ensure they continue 
out of the city limits. service and a deep commitment to on a successful course for future 
Westminster prides itself on the community's overall quality of growth and development.  

Peak Demand for 1998: July-7 MW (includes .4 MW from SEPA) 
Usage for 1998: 34,458 MWh (includes 483 MWh from SEPA) 
Peak Generation: None 
Population: 4,351 
Customers: Residential-i ,447; usage-i 8,084 MWh 

Commercial-220; usage-i6,374 MiWh 
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Operations Report 

The Catawba Project For many months of the year, load was Surplus Power Sales In 1998, the Catawba Nuclear Plant less than retained capacity from the Off-system, surplus power sales have 

achieved a net capacity factor of Catawba Project. During these months, continued to produce net revenue 

88.9 percent and a net availability of the load-management programs were improvements for PMPA. In 1998, 

89.0 percent. Catawba Unit One had a not operated. the agency sold 193,358-megawatt 

90.0 percent capacity factor and 90.5 hours of surplus energy to utilities 

percent availability. The unit was off- Energy and Demand and marketers across the region 

line at the start of 1998 due to a The 1998 annual peak demand generating total revenues of 

scheduled refueling outage and returned occurred in July and equaled 406.6 $2,795,296. These sales represent a 

to service on January 5. In early August, megawatts. Energy usage for the year net improvement to revenues of 

Unit One was taken off-line to repair equaled 1,963,367 megawatt hours, $1,217,294.  

components of its ice condenser and which represents a 8.5 percent increase 

was returned to service in early over 1997. The increase in usage is PMPA sold power to 12 utilities in 

September. Catawba Unit Two had a attributed primarily to warmer weather. several states east of the Mississippi 

87.7 percent capacity factor and 86.5 Retained capacity from the Catawba River and participated in two regional 

percent availability for the year. It Project was 232.4 megawatts. Included automated sales systems: the 

completed a record 381 continuous in the energy and demand figures are Automated Interchange Matching 

days of operation prior to its scheduled allocations of power from the System and the Energy Broker 

refueling outage. Southeastern Power Administration Network.  
(SEPA). In 1998, the members received 

Load Management a total of 48.2 megawatts and 143,355 

In 1998, PMPA reduced peak demand megawatt hours from SEPA. Year 2000 Upda 
by approximately 49 megawatts through PMPA completed an impact a 

the operation of its load-side generation, Coincident of all systems that could be affecte 

residential demand-side management Year Energy Usage Peak Demand by year 2000 (Y2K) in May 1998 

and municipal load management 1998 1,963,367 MWh 406.6 MW and found minimal exposure. Two 

programs. 1997 1,809,768 MWh 383.8 MW primary systems, the accounting 
1996 1,809,897 MWh 382.7 MWsytmadheSA ytmwl 
1995 1,760,088 MWh 387.8 MWsytmadheCAAytmwl 

Five PMPA members operated load-side 1994 1,667,343 MWh 340.2 MW be replaced or upgraded by late 

generation programs in 1998 that 1999 to ensure Y2K compliance.  

allowed the agency to save 18 A99eCine Pea Demand-MW 
megawatts of peaking generation. Clinton 24.4 

Easley 56.0 internal compliance, PMPA has 

PMPA continued to operate its Gaffney 43.0 worked closely with its member 

residential demand-side management Greer utilities and with Duke Power to 

program, PowerPartners, during 1998. Laurens 22.7 prepare for 2000.  
Newberry 32.2 

At year's end, 18,431 customers were Rock Hill 133.1 
participating in the volunteer program. Union 31.0 Duke Power, the operator of the 

PowerPartners generated approximately Westminster 7.0 Catawba Nuclear Plant, has assured 

five megawatts of load reduction and Total 406.6 the joint owners of Catawba that all 

was activated an average of 2.25 days 1998 Energy Usage-~ systems will be operational in 2000.  

per month for an average of 2.22 hours Abbeville 57,683 PMPA and its members will 

per day. Clinton 123,369 participate in industry-wide, Y2K 
Easley 263,058 tests conducted by Duke in April 

Municipal load-management programs Gaffney 231,695 and September 1999.  
Greer 209,129 

implemented during periods of high Laurens 104,931 
demand provided approximately 26 Newberry 168,374 
megawatts of load reduction. Rock Hill 628,406 

Union 142,264 
Westminster 34458 
Total 1,3,367 
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Financial Highlights levels of variable rate debt and the Portfolio Statistics 
PMPA's source of funds comes from 1998A Refunding Issue provided for (dollarsin thousands) 
three major areas, which include this decrease of approximately $5 Earnings Income Rate of Return 
operating revenues, interest income million in interest expense. 1997 $34,668 7.10% 

and withdrawals from other funds 
on hand. Total operating revenue Remaining significant uses of funds Maket Value 
for 1998 was $140 million and include operations and maintenance As of 12/31 Value Years (overagematurhy) 
included Sales to Participants of expense, and purchased power 1998 $470,638 4.00 years 
$107 million and Sales to Other expenses, which account for 17.7 
Utilities of $33 million, which percent and 15.2 percent, Transactions Number Amount 
represent 56.9 percent and 17.6 respectively, of total uses of funds. 1998 699 $909,536 
percent of total sources of funds, Operations and maintenance have 1997 533 $656,514 
respectively. 1998 Sales to remained constant over the past two Debt Outstanding 
Participants of $107 million is years, while purchased power has (dollars in thousands) 
about $10 million more than 1997 increased by $3 million. Bonds Outstanding 
sales. Increased demand and energy e d 
requirements, along with a 2.5 After all operating and capital Series 1998A $161,380 
percent rate increase effective May expenses were dispersed, PMPA had Matured January 1, 1998 $19,370 
1, 1998, are the primary excess working capital for the year Refunded $144,090 
contributors to the increase in of over $3.5 million, which was Bonds Outstanding 

icipant sales. 1998 Sales to deposited into working capital 
Utilities of $33 million is a accounts. This increase in working 

llion decrease from 1997 sales, capital is a combination of positive Withdrawal from Other Funds 8.6% 
due largely to reductions in sales to net operations results and lower- Sales to Participants 56.9% 
Duke Energy. Contractual than-anticipated capital 
requirements of the Interconnection expenditures.  
Agreement between Duke Energy 
and PMPA call for annual 
reductions in the sellback provision, 
which ends in 2001. Sources of Fnds 

Interest income provided a $32 
million source of funds along with 
the withdrawals of $16 million from Debt Service 50.4 
PMPA's Rate Stabilization Fund. Special Fund Deposits 0.6% 
At year's end, the agency's Rate Other Deposits 2.0% 
Stabilization Fund totaled $207 Operations & 
million. This is a net decrease from 
1997 of $16 million, which includes 
the net of planned withdrawals and 
interest deposits. Interest earnings in 
the Rate Stabilization Fund 
produced an average yield of 7.22 Use of Funds 
percent on deposited funds for the 

year.  

sesdice makes up 50.4 percent 

RP's tostal use of funds. In 
8 interest epense, the major Payment InLieuo axes m 

component of debt service, DistrbutAionisrtv 0.6% 
decreased by 7 percent. Increased Transmission 2.2% 

Purchased Power 15.2% 
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Board of Directors and Staff 

Board from left David H. Krunmwiede, Abbeville; 
Charles H. Guerry, Newberry; R.Buck Marcengill, Westminster; 
J. Russell Allen, Rock Hill; Charles B. Litchfield, Clinton; 
David V. Duncan (Chariman), Greer, Charles H. Potts, Union; 
Richard S. Hole, Easley; Donnie L Harden, Gaffney; 
Coleman F. Smoak, Laurens.  

Staff from left: Calvin W. Daniels, Engineering Manager; John N. Glover, Financ 
Director; S. Scott Griffin, Director of Legislative Affairs; Todd Kilsdonk, Key Accoun 
Coordinator; Robin Broumas, Public Relations Manager; Sandy Boozer, Information 
Technology Manager; Don Ouchley, General Manager.  
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Independent Auditors' Report 

KPMG Peat Marwick LLP 
One Insignia Financial Plaza 
P.O. Box 10529 
Greenville, SC 29603 

The Board of Directors 
Piedmont Municipal Power Agency: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Piedmont Municipal Power Agency (the "Agency") as of December 
31, 1998 and 1997, and the related statements of revenues and expenses and changes in retained earnings and cash flows for 
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Agency's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
dards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

cial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
unts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 98-1, Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues, requires disclosure 
of certain matters regarding the Year 2000 issue. The Agency has included such disclosures in Note 18. Because of the 
unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issues, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts will not be fully 
determinable until the Year 2000 and thereafter. Accordingly, insufficient audit evidence exists to support the Agency's 
disclosures with respect to the Year 2000 issue made in Note 18. Further, we do not provide assurance that the Agency is, 
or will be, Year 2000 ready, that the Agency's Year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that 
parties with which the Agency does business will be Year 2000 ready.  

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had we 
been able to examine evidence regarding Year 2000 disclosures, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of PMPA, as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The 
supplementary information included in Schedules 1 and 2 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole.  

K 4P>M,: 7 PcA- iMi(,acX LLP 

ch 3, 1999 
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Balance Sheets 
December 31, 1998 and 1997 (Dolars in thousands) 

Assets 1998 1997 
Utility plant (note 5): 

Electric plant in service $ 550,236 551,094 

Nuclear fuel 32,547 44,109 

Construction work-in-progress 2,831 2,083 
585,614 597,286 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (228,016) (223,129) 

Net utility plant 357,598 374,157 

Restricted funds (notes 2 and 6) 193,843 188,108 

Revenue fund assets (notes 2 and 7): 
Cash 7,105 8,339 

Marketable debt securities 273,265 284,636 

Accrued interest receivable 3,111 4,124 

Due from restricted funds 419 120 

Participant accounts receivable 8,292 6,941 

Other accounts receivable 2,430 1,791 

Materials and supplies 5,148 5,158 

Total revenue fund assets 299,770 311,109 

Deferred charges: 
Unamortized debt issuance costs 22,789 22,134 

Net deferred expenses to be recovered from future 

revenues (notes 2 and 8) 323,010 296,202 

Excess costs on advance refundings of debt 190,470 188,213 

Other 3,041 3,219 

Total deferred charges 539,310 509,768 

$ 1,390,521 1,383,142 

Retained Earnings and Liabilities 

Long-term debt (notes 9 and 10): 
Bonds 1,344,319 1,346,399 

Unamortized discounts (53,393) (52,420) 

Unamortized premiums 1,663 1,060 
1,292,589 1,295,039 

Restricted fund liabilities: 
Accrued interest payable 46,463 45,995 

Reserve for decommissioning (note 11) 26,803 23,017 

73,266 69,012 

Revenue fund liabilities - accounts payable (note 7) 8,249 6,230 

Retained earnings 16,417 12,861 

Commitments and contingencies (notes 14, 15 and 16) 
$ 1,390,5211,814 a 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
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Statements of Revenues 
Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 
ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 (Dollars in thousands) 

1998 1997 
Operating revenues: 

Sales of electricity to participants $ 105,731 95,968 
Sales of electricity to other utility (note 4) 32,970 40,078 
Other 1,239 1,220 

Total operating revenues 139,940 137,266 

Operating expenses: 
Operation and maintenance 22,444 22,627 
Nuclear fuel amortization 6,795 6,925 
Purchased power (note 4) 28,647 25,242 
Transmission 4,131 4,128 
Distribution 1,617 1,738 
Administrative and general 10,136 13,370 
Depreciation 18,271 18,381 
Decommissioning 3,786 3,980 
Payments in lieu of property taxes 4,645 4,503 

Total operating expenses 100,472 100,894 

Net operating income 39,468 36372 

Other income (expenses): 
Interest income 31,799 34,668 

et increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 115 (364) 
Interest expense (74,912) (80,070) 
Amortization expense (13,746) (13,762) 
Other (5,976) (5,617) 

Total other expenses, net (62,720) (65,145) 

Revenues under expenses before deferred items (23,252) (28,773) 

Deferred items to be recovered from future revenues, 
net (notes 2 and 8) 26,808 29,666 

Revenues over expenses 3,556 893 

Retained earnings at beginning of year 12,861 11,968 

Retained earnings at end of year $ 16,417 12,861 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  

P 
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Statements of Cash Flows 
Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 (Dollars in thousands) 

1998 1997 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Revenues over expenses $ 3,556 893 

Adjustments to reconcile revenues over expenses to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 38,812 39,068 

Net (increase) decrease in fair value of investments (115) 364 

Net deferred expenses to be recovered from future revenue (26,808) (29,666) 

Reserve for decommissioning 3,786 3,980 

Decrease (increase) in: 

Participant accounts receivable (1,351) 1,687 

Other accounts receivable (639) 1,101 

Accrued interest receivable 995 620 

Materials and supplies 10 (174) 

Increase (decrease) in: 

Other liabilities (351) 

Accounts payable 2,019 1,189 

Accrued interest payable 468 1,443 

Net cash provided by operating activities 20,733 20,154 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchase of investment securities (767,366) (609,160) 

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investment securities 772,836 615,448 

Expenditures for electric plant in service (1,453) (1,545) 

Expenditures for nuclear fuel (7,054) (9,457) 

Net cash used in investing activities (3,037) (4,714) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 

Payment of bond principal (19,370) (7,340) 

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 155,779 141,300 

Refuinding of bonds (144,090) (142,145) 

Defeasance losses (7,029) (1,576) 

Increase in debt issuance costs (4,220) (4,468) 

Net cash used in financing activities (18,930) (14,229) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash (1,234) 1,211 

Cash at beginning of year 8,339 7,128 

Cash at end of year p 7,105 8,339 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 

Cash paid during the year for interest $ 72,417 78,627 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
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Notes 
*Minancial Statements 
Wemiher 31, 1998 and 1997 (Dolars in thousands) 

(1) Description of the Entity and Industry Developments The Agency's General Bond Resolution requires that its rate structure be 
Piedmont Municipal Power Agency (Agency) was incorporated in 1979 under designed to produce revenues sufficient to pay operating, debt service and other 

the South Carolina Joint Municipal Electric Power and Energy Act. The Act, adopted specified costs. The Agency's Board, which is comprised of representatives of the 
April 1978, enabled the formation, by South Carolina municipalities and municipal Participants, is responsible for reviewing and approving the rate structure. The 
commissions of public works, of a joint agency to plan, finance, develop, own and application of a gven rate structure to a gven period's electricity sales may 
operate electric generation and transmission facilities. Ten municipal utility systems produce revenues not intended to pay that period's costs, and conversely, that 
(Participants) comprise the Agency's membership. The participants, located in period's costs may not be intended to be recovered in period revenues, The 
northwestern South Carolina, are the cities of Abbeville, Clinton, Easley, Gafney, affected revenues and/or costs are, in sucb cases, deferred for future recognition.  
Greer, Laurens, Newberry, Rock Hill, Union and Westminster. The ultimate recognition of deferred items is correlated with specific future events; 

The Agency and Duke Power Company (Duke) are parties to agreements giving primarily payment of debt principal.  
the Agency a 25% undivided ownership interest in Catawba Nuclear Station Unit 2 Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs 
(Project). Duke is the operating owner of the Project. The Agency's Project power Unamortized debt issuance costs at December 31, 1998 and 1997 of $22,789 
output entitlements (approximately 286 MW) come from Catawba Nuclear Station and $22,134, respectively, (net of accumulated amortization of $17,301 and 
Units I and 2; subject to the terms of the "Catawba Reliability Exchange" under $15,753, respectively) are being amortized on the bonds outstanding method.  
which the Agency pays 12.5% of the costs and receives 12.5% of the power output Excess Costs on Advance Refundings of Debt 
associated with each of these 1,145 MW units. Additionally, the terms of the Excess costs on advance refundings of debt at December 31, 1998 and 1997 of 
"McGuire Reliability Exchange" allow transfers of energy between PMPA's resulting $190,470 and $188,213, respectively, (net of accumulated amortization of 
entitlements from the Catawba Units and Duke's two nuclear units at McGuire $103,671 and $92,327, respectively) are being amortized on the bonds outstanding 
Nuclear Station. The operating licenses for Catawba Unit I and Unit 2 expire on method.  
December 6, 2024 and February 24, 2026, respectively. Organization Costs 

The passage of the National Energy Policy Act of 1992 (Energy Act) is causing Organization costs at December 31, 1998 and 1997 of $756 and $785, 
the evolution of a traditional rate regulated industry into a competitive market respectively, (net of accumulated amortization of $411 and $382, respectively) are 
environment. The Energy Act is intended to promote competition among utility and being amortized on the straight-line method over 40 years.  
non-utility generators in the wholesale electric generation market. The Energy Act, Discounts on Bonds Payable 
coupled with increasing customer demands for lower-priced electricity, has The discounts on bonds payable At December 31, 1998 and 1997 of $53,393 
accelerated industry restructuring and has intensified interest in increased and $52,420, respectively, (net of accumulated amortization of $33,860 and 
competition at the retail level. $31,243, respectively) are being amortized on the bonds outstanding method.  

In 1996, the Federal deregulation debate intensified as several bills were Premiums on Bonds Payable 
introduced to shape the competitive electric market. Activity in South Carolina also The premiums on bonds payAble at December 31,1998 and 1997 of $1,663 
intensified as the legislature and Public Service Commission (PSC) worked to and $1,060, respectively, (net of accumulated amortization of $691 and $384, 
develop a better understanding of deregulation issues. In 1996, the PSC conducted respectively) are being amortized on the bonds outstanding method.  
f rmal survey of the State's utilities to determine the industry's position on Income Taxes 

in lation. The Agency is exempt from Federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code 
Wn 997, two bills to restructure the electric utility industry in South Carolina Section 115 by reference; therefore, the Agency is also exempt from state income 

W ntroduced in the South Carolina General Assembly - House Bill 3414 and taxes.  
Senate Bill 346. In addition, Joint Resolutions were introduced in both the House Casb Flows 
and Senate to create an electric industry deregulation study committee and task For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Agency considers interest
force to study electric industry deregulation. None of these bill or resolutions were hearing deposits with banks and Duke to be cash.  
acted upon or passed and, accordingly, they have died. Marketable Debt Securities 

At the request of the Speaker of the House of Representatives of the South As authorized by the bond resolution, investments in marketable debt securities 
Carolina General Assembly, the Public Service Commission issued a report dated include only direct obligations of the United States government, and obligations of 
February 3, 1998 titled "Proposed Electric Restructuring Implementation Process" United States government agencies. These investments are uninsured and 
(the "PSC Report"). The PSC Report sets forth the procedures the Public Service unregistered and are held by the Agency's trustees or by the Agency, as trustee.  
Commission would follow to implement electric restructuring if and when required During 1997, the Agency implemented the provisions of Governmental 
by South Carolina law. Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 31, Accounting andFinancial 

In the fall of 1998, the Chairman of the Senate Judiciary Committee appointed a Reportingfor Certain Investments andfor External Investment Pools, which 
task force to begin the process of drafting legislation to handle the many issues requires investments in marketable debt securities to be reported at fair value. The 
related to the deregulation of South Carolina's electric utility business. effect of the adoption of this pronouncement was to increase investments in 

The First Session of the I13th General Assembly of the South Carolina legislature marketable debt securities and decrease net deferred expenses to be recovered 
(which includes calendar years 1999 and 2000) will commence on January 12, from future revenues by $25,563 at December 31, 1995.  
1999. It is anticipated that several bills will be introduced. What the results of these Depreciation Expense 
legislative initiatives will be or whether any such legislation will become law cannot Electric plant in service, including unclassified assets, is stated at cost and is 
be predicted. depreciated on a straight-line basis at rates calculated to amortize the composite 

Federal legislation has been passed which encourages competition among utility assets over their respective estimated useful lives. Depreciation begins when assets 
and non-utility power producers. Together with increasing customer demand for are placed into service. The Agency's annual provision for depreciation expressed 
lower-priced electricity and other energy services, these measures have accelerated as a percentage of the average balance of depreciable utility plant was 3.3% for 
the industry's movement toward more competitive pricing structures. 1998 and 1997.  

PMPA has developed a strategic plan, that was adopted by its Board of Directors Materials and Supplies 
in 1996, to help guide it through the impending industry changes. PMPA's strategic Materials and supplies inventories are stated at lower of cost or ma-ket using 
plan includes periodic reviews of the recoverability of regulatory assets and the the average cost method.  
impact of such recovery on the Agency's rates. Also, the agency has developed a Use of Estimates 
comprehensive position on deregulation. The Agency's management is participating The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
in the deregulation debate, both on the national and state level. accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
Basis ofAccounting contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 

The Agency's accounting records are maintained on an accrual basis in reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and substantially in results could differ from those estimates.  
conformity with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission's Uniform System of Financial Reporting 

cntig SnUnder GASH Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financal Reportingfor W he Agency follows the accounting practices set forth in Statement of Financial Proprietary Funds and Other Government Entities that Use Proprietary Fund 
m ntng Standards No. 71 (SFAS No. 7 1), Accounting for the Effects of Certain Accounting, the Agency has adopted the option to apply Financial Accounting 

ofRegulation, as amended. This standard allows entities to capitalize or Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations that do not conflict with or 
144W certain costs or revenues based on the Agency's ongoing assessment that it is contradict GASH pronouncements.  

probable that such items will be recovered throughR future revenues.  
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Notes 
to Financial Statements 
December 31, 1998 and 1997 (Dollars in thousands) 

(3) Power Sales Agreements (4) Project Agreements 
Catawba Project Power Sales Agreements Project Agreements between the Agency and Duke consist of the Catawba 

The Agency and each Participant are parties to Catawba Project Power Sales Nuclear Station Purchase, Construction and Ownership Agreement (the Purchase 
Agreements (Sales Agreements). These Sales Agreements oblige the Agency to Agreement), the Catawba Nuclear Station Operating and Fuel Agreement (the 
provide each Participant a share of Project power output and, in turn, each Operating Agreement), and the Catawba Nuclear Station Interconnection Agreement 
Participant must pay its share of Project costs. Participants make their payments on (the Interconnection Agreement) 
a "take-or-pay" basis whether or not the Project is operable or operating. Such PurchaseAgreement 
payments are not subject to reduction or offset and are not conditioned upon This agreement between the Agency and Duke provides for the purchase of the 
performance by the Agency or any given Participant. The Sales Agreements are in Catawba Project by the Agency. it also details Duke's responsibilities, as engineer
effect until the earlier of August 1, 2035, or the completion of payments on the contractor, for construction, initial fueling, and placing the Catawba Nuclear Station 
bonds and satisfaction of obligations under the Project agreements. into commercial operation.  

OperatingAgreement 
The Participants Shares of the Agency's Catawba Project Output are as follows: This agreement, between the Agency and Duke, provides for Duke, as operator 
City of Abbeville 2.68% for the Agency, tube responsible for the operation, maintenance, and fueling of 
City of Clinton 7.84 Catawba and for making of renewals, replacements and capital additions. in 
City of Easley 13.24 addition, the Operating Agreement provides for decommissioning of Catawba at the 
City of Gaffney 10.5 end of its useful life through a future decommissioning agreement, separate from 
City of Greer 9.34 the Operating Agreement.  
City of Laurens 6.49 Interconnection Agreement 
City of Newberry 10.47 This agreement, between the Agency and Duke, provides for the interchange of 
City of Rock Hill 28.04 power supply and power supply services. it also defines a fifteen year arrangement.  
City of Union 10.01 terminating on January 12001, whereby the Agency sells a portion of its Project 
City of Westminster 1.84 power output entitiement to Duke. These sales commenced upon commercial 

100.00% operation of each Catawba Unit and decrease annually over the contract term. The 
Agency may, with notice, decrease but not increase these sales. Sales to Duke 

Supplemental Power Sales Agreements reduce the like amount of power the Agency purchases from Duke until, upon 
The Agency and each Participant are also parties to Supplemental Power Sales expiration of the contract, the Agency retains its full Project power output 

Agreements (Supplemental Agreements) under which each Participant has agreed entitlement and no longer purchases the equivalent amount of power from Duke.  
to pay, in exchange for supplemental bulk power supply, its share of supplemental 
bulk power supply costs. A Participant may terminate its Supplemental Agreement 
with ten years advance notice.  

(4) Project Agreements - continuedP 
In a separate agreement between Duke and the Agency, Duke has agreed to purchase additional portions of project power output for the period 1996 through 1999. The 

following schedule reflects historical and future transactions and includes additional megawatt (MW) sales to Duke for the penriod 996 through 1999 resultntg from the 
agreements mentioned above.  

Catawba Unit 1 Catawba Unit 2 Total 

Annual Annual Annual 
(ncr Incr ncr 

Total (Decr) Total (Decr) Total (Decr) 
Retained Sold Owned Sold Retained Sold Owned Sold Retained Sold Owned Sot l 

year MW MW MW MW MW MW MW MW MW MW MW MW 
1985 4.77 138.36 143.13 0.00 143.13 143.13 4.77 281.49 286.26 
1986 4.77 138.36 143.13 0.00 4.77 138.36 143.13 (4.77) 9.54 276.72 286.26 (4.77) 
1987 9.55 133.58 143-13 (4.78) 4.77 138.36 143.13 0.00 14.32 271.94 286.26 (4.78) 
1988 14.32 128.81 143.13 (4.77) 9.55 133.58 143.13 (4.78) 23.87 262.39 286.26 (9.55) 
1989 19.08 124.05 143-t3 (4.76) 14.32 128.81 143.13 (4.77) 33.40 252.86 286.26 (9.53) 
1990 23.87 119.26 143.13 (4.79) 19.08 124.05 143.13 (4.76) 42.95 243.31 286.26 (9.55) 
1991 28.63 114.50 143.13 (4,76) 23.87 119.26 143-13 (4.79) 52.50 233.76 286.26 (9.55) 
1992 33.39 109.74 143.13 (4.76) 28.63 114.50 143.13 (4.76) 62.1)2 224.24 286.26 (9.52) 
1993 38.18 104.95 143.13 (4.79) 33.39 109.74 143.13 (4.76) 71.57 2 14.69 286.26 (9.55) 
1994 42.94 1110.19 143.13 (4.76) 38.18 104.95 143.13 (4.79) 81.12 2115.14 286.26 (9.55) 
1995 119.27 23.86 143.13 (76.33) 42.94 100.19 143.13 (4.76) 162.21 124.05 286.26 (81.09) 
1996 94.05 49.08 143.13 25.22 89.27 53.86 143.13 (46.33) 183.32 102.94 286.26 (21.11) 
1997 106.32 36.81 143.13 (12.27) 101.55 41.58 143.13 (12.28) 207.87 78.39 286.26 (24.55) 
1998 118.58 24.55 143.13 (12.26) 113.82 29.31 143.13 (12.27) 232.41 53.86 286.26 (24.53) 
1999 125.87 17.26 143.13 (7.29) 121(08 22.05 143.13 (7.26) 246.95 39,31 286.26 (14.55) 
2000 143.13 0.0 143.13 (17.26) 138.37 4.76 143.13 (17.29) 281.501 4.76 286.26 (34.55) 
2001 143.13 (.00 143.13 0.00 143.13 0.00 143.13 (4.76) 286.26 0)00 286.26 (4.76) 

In December 1997, the Agency's Board of Directors voted to issue notice, pursuant to the contract, to cancel the Interconnection Agreetment with Duke. The cancellation is 
effective January 1, 2006.  

From 1985 through 1994 revenues from participants substantially exceeded net costs. Such excess revenues have been set aside in a Rate Sabbigzarion account. As 

revenues from sales to Duke diminish in accordance with provisions of the Interconnection Agreement, Rate Stabilition funds will be utozed, tin tace manner, to 
minimize rate increases and maoeize a competitive rate position. i 
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Notes 
inancial Statements 4mber 31, 1998 and 1997 (Dolars in thousands) 

(5) Utility Plant (8) Net Deferred Expenses to be Recoveredfrom Future Revenues 
Original costs of major classes of the Agency's electric plant in service at As described in note 2, rates charged to Participants are structured to 

December 31, 1998 and 1997 are as follows: systematically provide for debt requirements and operating costs of the Agency. The 
expenses and revenues excluded from rates are deferred to such periods as they 

1998 17 are intended to be included in rates.  
Land $ 336 336 Net deferred expenses to be recovered from future revenues include the 
Structures and improvements 156,559 156,400 following: 
Reactor plant equipment 237,096 236,895 
Turbo generator units 69,270 69,270 1998 197 Chane 
Accessory electric equipment 48,604 50,134 (Cumulative 
Miscellaneous plant equipment 16,636 16,386 Totals) 
Station equipment 4,777 4,777 Items to be recovered in future 
Other 2,002 1,900 Participant billings: 
Unclassified 14,956 4,996 Interest expense $ 325,042 323,109 1,933 

$ 550,236 551,094 Depreciation expense 230,383 212,903 17,480 
Amortization of redemption 

Unclassified assets are in service but not yet classified to specific plant accounts. and defeasance losses 104,293 92,800 11,493 
Nuclear fuel at December 31, 1998 and 1997 of $32,547 and $44,109, Amortization of bond discounts 

respectively, represents costs associated with acquiring and processing reload fuel and debt issuance costs 51,633 47,777 3,856 
assemblies as well as the cost of nuclear fuel in the reactor. Nuclear fuel is Nuclear fuel expenses 873 873 
amortized based on bum rates using a unit of production basis. The Agency Lener of credit fees 51649 5,649 
regularly removes fully amortized nuclear fuel costs from its books when fuel other 2,392 2392 
batches are replaced during core refueling operations, Costs in 1998 of $18,617 720,265 685,503 34,762 
were removed. Items reducing future Participants 

A summary of accumulated depreciation and amortization at December 31, billings: 
1998 and 1997 follows: Investment income $ (76,528) (76,528) 

1998 1997 Increase in fair value of 
Accumulated depreciation of investments (9,989) (9,874) (115) 

electric plant in service $ 210,424 193,715 Rate stabilization (revenue 
Accumulated amortization received to reduce future 

of nuclear fuel 17,592 29,414 billings to Participants) (477,224) (460,912) (16,312) 
$ 228,016 2212Reserve and contingency 

deposits (34,293) (33,074) (1,219) 
tricted Funds (598,034) (580,388) (17646) 

e General Bond Resolution, Project agreements, and Agency policies restrict Deferred revenues (expenses) 
use of bond proceeds, Agency revenues, and Agency funds on hand. Certain recognized: 

restrictions define the order in which available funds may be used to pay costs; Deferred interest, depreciation, 
other restrictions require minimum balances or accumulation of balances for amortiztion expense included 
specific purposes. At December 31, 1998 and 1997, the Agency was in compliance in Participant billings for debt 
with all such restrictions and held the following restricted assets: principal payments (72,449) (48,674) (23,775) 

Rate stabilization draws 
1998 1997 applied to expenses 270,406 237,883 32,523 

Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Reserve and contingency 
Value Cost Value Cost revenue applied to expenses 2 1,878 

Debt service - bond principal $ 23,774 23,775 19,369 19,370 
Debt service - bond fixed rate interest 31,866 31,867 33,331 33,331 Net deferred expenses to be 
Debt service - bond retirement I I I I recovered from future 
Debt service reserve 86,539 85,047 87,649 86,428 revenues $ 323,010 296,202 _ 
Reserve and contingency 8,792 8,504 8,939 8,643 
Decommissioning 27,811 26,803 23,683 23,017 The following deferred expenses will be recognized in future periods when rates 
Special reserve 15,060 15,000 15,136 15,000 charged to Participants produce revenues sufficient to retire the debt which funded 

$ 193,843 120,27 188,108 185,790 those costs: 
Funds are comprised of: Interest expense on the Agency's bonds and variable rate demand obligations 
Marketable debt securities 192,929 190,083 186,914 184,596 along with associated letter-of-credit, banking and re-marketing fees (except 
Accrued interest receivable 1,333 1,333 1,314 1,314 interest and fees related to Capital Appreciation Bonds) paid from bond 
Due to revenue fund (419) (419) (120 (120) proceeds during a defined Construction Period," (net of income earned on 

$193,843 190,997 188,108 185790 the temporary investment of those bond proceeds); 
*Interest expense on Capital Appreciation Bonds accrued but not paid until 

(7) Revenue Fund Assets and Liabilities maturity; 
Revenue fund assets and liabilities are used in the Agency's day-to-day Amortization of debt issuance expenses, bond discounts, defeasance losses, 

operations. The assets are allocated for the following purposes: redemption losses, and organization costs paid from or included in bond 
proceeds; 

1998 1997 Depreciation on utility plant constructed with bond proceeds and amortization 
Fair Amortized Fair Amortized of nuclear fuel acquired with bond proceeds; and 

Value Cost Value Cost Certain other project costs paid from bond proceeds.  
Working capital $ 57,482 56,552 51,698 51,007 
Fuel acquisition 29,257 29,257 29,517 29,517 
Rate stabilization 213,031 206,818 229.894 223.029 

$2 ,770 22,627 $1110 0 53 

* abilities of $8,249 and $6,230 at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, 
Aspaid out of working capital assets.  
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The Agency has also deferred Participant revenues which, during the 18 17 
Construction Period, were established at levels to cover Project costs not paid from 1997C Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 
bond proceeds, as well as scheduled deposits to a Rate Stabilization account. The payable annually from t999 to 2003 and 2016 to 
revenue associated with those scheduled deposits and the interest income thereon 2019 with variable interest rates (4.1% at 
will be recognized when those funds are drawn upon to pay Project costs. Also, December 31, 1998) 38,300 38,300 
certain settlement revenues and excess revenues in certain funds have been 1998A Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 
transferred to the Rate Stabilization account and have been deferred for recognition payable annually from 2006 to 2025 with 
until the time the funds are applied to the payment of Project costs. interest ranging from 4.q% to 5.5% 161,380 

Revenues associated with increases in the fair value of investments have been Total long-term debt t,344,319 1,346,399 
deferred until such time the securities have matured or are sold.  

Additionally, the Agency's General Bond Resolution requires Participant less unamortized discount (53,393) (52,420) 
revenues to be established at levels sufficient to provide specified deposits into a Plts unamortized premium 1,603 1,060 
Reserve and Contingency fund. Monies in that fund are used for the construction or $1292,8 12 0 
acquisition of utility plant. The recognition of such revenues is deferred until such 
time as the depreciation is recorded on the assets constructed or acquired with 
those monies. The bonds are special obligations of the Agency and are secured by future 
(9) Long-term Debt revenue and pledged monies and securities as provided by the bond resolution.  

Long-term debt at December 31, 1998 and 1997 consists of the following: The bonds generally provide for early redemption beginning ten years after 
1998 1997 issuance at prices ranging from 100% to 103% of the bond principal amounts.  

1986 Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, The Agency has advance refunded certain bond issues as described in note 10.  
payable in 2025 with interest at 5% $ 33,620 33,620 

1986A Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, The following is a summary of total debt service deposit requirements for bonds 
payable in 2023 and 2024 with interest at 5.75% 103,815 103,815 outstanding at December 31, 1998: 

1988 Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, Year Principal Interest Total 
payable annually in 1998 and from 2010 to 2013 1999 $ 21,200 71,963 93,163 
with interest ranging from 6.70% to 7.75% 7,745 10,435 2000 16,025 70,873 86,898 

1988A Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 2001 19,370 70,065 89,435 
payable annually from 2004 to 2015 with interest 2002 20,470 68,993 89,463 
ranging from 7.3% to 7.65% 4,284 4,284 2003 20,880 68,893 89,773 

1991 Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 2004 23,015 67,689 90,704 
payable annually from 2005 to 2023 with interest 2005 24,728 66,402 91,130 
ranging from 4% to 6.85% 213,550 213,550 20 31,772 64,943 96715 

1991A Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 2(07 33,993 63,063 9705 
payable annually from 1998 to 2007 and from 2008 43,056 61,228 104 
2013 to 2018 with interest ranging from 5% to 6.5% 161,855 169,225 2009 37,390 66,730 104 0 

1992 Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 2(1 37,310 66,721 104,031 
payable annually from 2010 to 2025 with interest 2011 39,049 64.861 103,910 
ranging from 6.30% to 6.375% 19,940 164,030 2012 38,759 62,927 tol,686 

1993 Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 2013 52,367 50,598 102,965 
payable annually from 2000 to 2025 with interest 2(14 56,660 47,382 104,042 
ranging from 4.9% to 5.6% 80,150 80,150 2015 60,385 42,504 102,889 

1996A Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 2(16 64,27) 39,122 103,392 
payable annually from 2013 to 2021 with interest 2)17 67,360 35,879 103,239 
ranging from 6.55% to 6.6% 163,565 163,565 2018 68,95 32,492 101,487 

1996B Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 2)19 80,22) 28,7(8 108,928 
payable annually from 1998 to 2013 with interest 2)2( 85,45 23,616 109,066 
ranging from 4.8% to 6.0% 153,115 162,425 2(21 90,48 18,889 109,369 

1996C Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 2122 92,975 14,619 107,594 
payable annually in 2021 to 2022 with variable 2(23 100,59 9,902 110,492 
interest rates (3.85% at December 31, 1998) 50,000 50,000 2024 93,775 4681 98.456 

1996D Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, $ 1,320,544 1,283,743 2 
payable annually from 2022 to 2025 with variable 
interest rates (3.95% at December 31, 1998) 50,000 50,0(0 The debt service deposit requirements for principal differ from total Iong-term 

1997A Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, debt outstanding at December 31, 1998, because the principal payment of $23,775 
payable annually from 1999 to 2000 and in 2024 which is dueJanuary 1,1999, was deposited during 1998. All principal payments 
with variable interest rates (4.1% at are due on January 1 of the year subsequent to the deposit requirement.  
December 31, 1998) 32,300 32,300 

1997B Refunding Series Electric Revenue Bonds, 
payable annually from 1999 to 201)3 and 2016 to 
2019 with variable interest rates (3.85% at 
December 31, 1998) 70,701 70,70 
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(10) In-Substance Debt Defeasance The following describes the methods and assumptions used by the Agency in 
On January 1, 1998, the Agency issued $161,380 of the 1998A Refunding Series determining carrying value and estimated fair value of financial instruments: 

Bonds carrying interest rates from 4.4% to 5.5%. The 1998A proceeds were used to (a) Cash 
refund a portion of the 1992A Refunding Series Bonds. These proceeds were used Carrying value uals estimated fair value.  
to purchase U.S. Government Securities and were placed in an irrevocable trust (b)Marketable Debt Securities 
with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the Estimated fair value, which is the carring value, of al] marketable debt 
refunded bonds. The refunding resulted in a net defeasance loss of $13,601, which securities is derived from quoted market prices.  
is the difference between the acquisition price of the new bonds and the net (c) Participant Accounts Receivable, and Other Accounts 
carrying amount of the refunded bonds. Receivable 

In prior years, the Agency defeased in-substance certain Electric Revenue Bonds Carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these 
by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust fund to provide for instruments.  
future debt service payments on the old debt. Accordingly, the trust account asset (d) Long-term Debt 
and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the accompanying Carrying value of long-term debt coupon securities includes par, less unaccreted 
financial statements. On December 31, 1998, $330,455 of the bonds are discounts, plus accrued interest payable. Carrving value also includes Capital 
considered defeased in-substance. Appreciation Term Bonds valued at original price plus accreted discount.  
(11) Reserve for Decommissioning Estimated fair value of all long-term debt securities is derived from quoted 

The Agency is in compliance with Nuclear Regulatory Commission requirements market prices and includes accrued interest.  
for funding future decommissioning costs. Since 1985, the Agency has been making The estimated fair values of the Agency's long-term debt with carrying values 
regular deposits to segregated decommissioning accounts. Deposits pertaining to different from their estimated fair values at December 31, 1998 and 1997 are as 
contaminated portions of the Project are held by a Trustee. The Agency has custody follows: 
of funds set aside to decommission non-contaminated portions of the Project. The 1998 1997 
Agency's share of decommissioning costs, based on decommissioning studies Estimated Estimated 
completed in 1994, is estimated to be $81,700, which includes an estimate for Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
inflation from 1994 to 1998. This estimate presumes the Catawba Nuclear Station Amotnt Value Amount Value 
will be decommissioned as soon as possible following the expiration of its Long-term debt: 
operating licenses in 2024 and 2026. t986 Electric Revenue 
(12) Employee Benefit Plans Refunding Bonds$ 26,633 33,101 26,331 31,956 

The Agency maintains a defined contribution money purchase plan in 1986A Electric Revenue 
compliance with Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. On behalf of all full- Refunding Bonds 94,007 106,919 93,485 106,862 
time employees, the Agency contributes 10% of base salary into the money 1988 Electric Revenue 
purchase plan. Agency contributions totaled $94 and $80 in 1998 and 1997, Refunding Bonds - - 2,782 2,782 
respectively. Employee contributions may also be made to the Plan, providing 1988 Electric Revenue 

,dj~hkined employer and employee annual contributions do not exceed 25% of Refunding Bonds 17,569 35,820 16,283 23,814 
income, or $30, whichever is less. 1988A Electric Revenue 

e Agency also maintains a deferred compensation plan under Section 457 of Refunding Bonds 9,056 17,114 8,410 11,268 
ternal Revenue Code. From time to time, on behalf of selected employees, the 1991 Electric Revenue 

Agency contributes to the deferred compensation plan. Employee contributions may Refunding Bonds 202,993 235,386 202,191 234,904 
also be made to the deferred compensation plan providing combined employer and 1991A Electric Revente 
employee annual contributions do not exceed certain limitations. Refunding Bonds 161,608 181,052 168,811 188,582 

Assets of the money purchase plan and deferred compensation plan are held by 1992 Electric Revenue 
ICMA Retirement Corporation, administrator and trustee, for the Agency for the Refunding Bonds 20,397 22,370 166,102 184,453 
exclusive benefit of the employees. 1993 Electric Revente 
(13) Disclosures Regarding Fair Value of Financial Refunding Bonds 80,762 87,571 80,688 86,602 
(13)umnt 1996A Electric Revenue Instruments 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107 (SFAS No. 107), Refunding Bonds 168,311 t70,289 168,276 170,201 
Disclosure About Fair Value ofFinancial Instruments, requires disclosure of fair 1996B Electric Revenue 
value information about financial instruments whether or not recognized in the Refunding Bonds 155,803 166,292 165,390 173,523 
balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. Fair value estimates 1996C/D Electric Revenue 
are made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of the financial Refunding Bonds 100,283 100,283 100,326 100,326 
instruments and the relevant market information. Where available, quoted market 1997A Electric Revenue 
prices are used. In other cases, fair values are based on estimates using present Refunding Bonds 32,391 32,391 32,604 32,604 
value or other valuation techniques. These techniques involve uncertainties and are 1997H/C Electric Revenue 
significantly affected by the assumptions used and the judgments made regarding Refunding Bonds 109,309 109,309 1(9,355 109,355 
risk characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rates, prepayments, 1998A Electric Revenue 
estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss experience and other factors. Refunding Bonds 59,93 1 
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates. Derived fair value $ b3M L d u99 1,341,034 457,22 
estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in 
many cases, may or may not be realized in an immediate sale of the instrument, (14) Nuclear Insurance 

Under SFAS No. 107, fair value estimates are based on existing financial Duke maintains nuclear insurance coverage in three program areas: liability 
instruments without attempting to estimate the value of anticipated future business coverage; property, decontamination and decommissioning coverage; and business 
and the value of the assets and liabilities that are not financial instruments. interruption and/or extra expense coverage. Duke is reimbursed by the other joint 
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the owners of Catawba for certain expenses associated with ntclear insurance 
underlying value of the Agency. premiums paid by the Corporation.  

0 
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Pursuant to the Price-Anderson Act, Duke is required to insure This Agreement involves an element of interest rate risk in excess of 
against public liability claims resulting from nuclear incidents to the amounts recognized in the financial statements. This risk arises from 
full limit of liability of approximately $9.8 billion. the possible unfavorable changes in market interest rates.  

Primary Liability Insurance. The maximum required private in exchange for the Agency receiving a fixed monthly fee of $98, 
primary liability insurance of $9.6 million has been purchased along the Agency has given up interest income which will be earned on 
with a like amount to cover certain worker tort claims. scheduled monthly deposits into certain debt service principal and 

Excess Liability Insurance. This policy currently provides interest accounts through December 31, 1999. This Agreement allows 
approximately $9.6 billion of coverage through the Price-Anderson the Agency to earn a yield of 6.58% on short-term funds. Because of 
Act's mandatory industry-wide excess secondary insurance program of the decrease in short-term interest rates, if the Agency had terminated 
risk pooling. The $9.6 billion of coverage is the sum of the current the Agreement at December 31, 1998, it would have received an 
potential cumulative retrospective premium assessments of $88 additional payment of $508. However, the Agency has the intent to 
million per licensed commercial nuclear reactor. This $9.6 billion continue with this Agreement through its contractual maturity.  
will be increased by $88 million as each additional commercial The future value of the Agreement is not reflected in the Agency's 
nuclear reactor is licensed, or reduced by $88 million for certain financial statements. The level yield income relating to this agreement 
nuclear reactors that are no longer operational and may be exempted is recognized in the statements of revenue and expenses as a 
from the risk pooling insurance program. Under this program, component of interest income.  
licensees could be assessed retrospective premiums to compensate (17) Subsequent Event 
for damages in the event of a nuclear incident at any licensed facility In February 1999, the Agency issued $97,510 in Electric Revenue 
in the nation. If such an incident occurs and public liability damages Bonds, 1999A Refunding Series, with interest at 5.25%. The proceeds 
exceed primary insurances, licensees may be assessed up to $88 will be used to current refund $94,425 Electric Revenue Bonds, 
million for each of their licensed reactors, payable at a rate not to 1996A Refunding Series, bearing interest rates ranging from 6.55% to 
exceed $10 million a year per licensed reactor for each incident. The 6.6(%. The refunding resulted in a net defeasance loss of $5,611.  
$88 million amount is subject to indexing for inflation and may be (18) Year 2000 
subject to state premium taxes. The Agency began considering the impact of its Year 2000 issues in 

Duke is a member of Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL), 1996. Management established a project team which reports Year 
which provides property and business interruption insurance 2000 progress to the Board of Directors on a regular basis. The 
coverages for nuclear facilities under the following three policy Agency conducted an impact analysis of internal operations including 
programs: hardware, application and system software, network and 

Primary Property Insurance. This policy provides $500 million in telecommunications, and facilities to identify and assess their date 
primary property damage coverage for each of Duke's nuclear sensitivity. An inventory of all computer systems was completed and a 
facilities. plan was developed to address all non-compliant systems. The Agency 

Excess Property Insurance. This policy provides excess property, also conducted an impact analysis of external operations including 
decontamination and decommissioning liability insurance in the vendors and service providers.  
following amounts; $2.25 billion for Catawba and $1.5 billion for A portion of the computer software and hardware embedded 
each of the Oconee and McGuire Nuclear Stations. technology used by the Agency was not designed to recognize 

Business Interruption Insurance. This policy provides business calendar years after 1999 - the so-called "Year 2000 Problem 
interruption and/or extra expense coverage resulting from an Agency has identified the Accounting/Financial Reporting System and 
accidental outage of a nuclear unit. Each unit of the McGuire and the Load Control/Demand Side Management System (SCADA) as its 
Catawba Nuclear Stations is insured for up to approximately $4 mission-critical systems. The replacement of the Accounting/Financial 
million per week and the Oconee Nuclear Station units are insured Reporting System is currently in progress, and the Agency expects to 
for up to approximately $3 million per week. Coverage amounts per complete the conversion by October 1999. The SCADA system is in the 
unit decline if more than one unit is involved in an accidental outage. assessment stage and conversion to a Year 2000 compliant system is 
Initial coverage begins after a 17-week deductible period and expected by December 1999.  
continues at 100 percent for 52 weeks and 80 percent for the next The Agency is significantly dependent upon the Year 2000 
104 weeks. readiness of Duke Power and the Participants. The failure of the 

If NEIL's losses ever exceed its reserves for any of the above three Agency or others with whom the Agency conducts business to become 
programs, Duke will be liable for assessments of up to five times its Year 2000 compliant on a timely basis could result in disruptions in 
annual premiums. The current potential maximum assessments are as electric service in the service areas of the Agency and its participants 
follows: Primary Property Insurance - $30 million; Excess Property and could result in a significant loss of revenues to the Agency.  
Insurance - $23 million; Business Interruption Insurance - $20 Therefore, the Agency is actively involved in Duke Power's Year 2000 
million. efforts and shares information on a regular basis with the 

The other joint owners of Catawba are obligated to assume their Participants. In addition, the Agency has assessed the Year 2000 
pro rata share of any liabilities for retrospective premiums and other compliance of external vendors. The majority of the vendors have 
premium assessments resulting from the Price-Anderson Act's excess indicated that they will be Year 2000 compliant by the end of 1999.  
secondary insurance program of risk pooling or the NEIL policies. As of December 31, 1998, the Agency has budgeted more than 
(15) Contingencies $250 to replace current systems including the accounting and load 

The Department of Energy (DOE) has been determined to be side demand monitoring systems for 1999. These costs include 
responsible for storage and disposal of spent fuel from nuclear replacement systems that, in addition to being Year 2000 compliant, 
facilities as of January 1, 1998. Because the DOE does not have provide significantly enhanced capabilities which will benefit 
adequate facilities to handle the spent fuel, PMPA and Duke have operations in future periods.  
incurred additional costs. PMPA anticipates litigation will be required The Agency believes that, based on available information, it will be 
to resolve this matter. Management is unable to estimate the costs able to manage its Year 2000 transition for systems and 
associated with such litigation at this time. Because such liability is infrastructure, without any material adverse effect on its business 
not yet probable and reasonably estimable, the accompanying operations or financial prospects. However, there can be no 
financial statements do not include any provision for such costs. assurance that failure to resolve any issue relating to such transition 
(16) Forward Delivery Agreement would not have a material adverse effect on the Agency.  

In order to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, 
the Agency has entered into a Forward Delivery Agreement which 
requires certain actions and obligations on the part of the Agency and 
incurs certain off balance sheet risks through December 25, 1999.  
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Schedule 1 
e of Revenue and EXenses 
the Bond Resolution an Other Agreements 

ended December 31, 1998 (Dollars in thousands) 

Actual Budgeted Actual 
Revenues Revenues Over 

and and (Under) 
Expenses Expenses Budget 

Revenue: 
Sales of electricity to Participants $ 105,731 104,656 1,075 
Sales of electricity to Duke 30,174 29,443 731 
Sales of electricity to others 2,795 1,543 1,252 
Interest income 31,799 30,410 1,389 
Other 1,239 1,228 11 

Total revenue $ 171,738 167,280 4,458 

Expenses: 
Catawba operating expenses: 

Operation and maintenance $ 22,444 21,895 549 
Nuclear fuel 6,795 7,264 (469) 
Purchased power - Duke 7,765 7,265 500 
Payments in lieu of taxes 4,645 4,692 (47) 

Interconnection services: 
Purchased power: 

Duke 12,603 10,358 2,245 
Participants 8,200 8,243 (43) 
Other 79 48 31 

Transmission services 4,131 3,564 567 
Distribution services 1,617 1,753 (136) 

Administrative and general: 
Agency 3,016 4,114 (1,098) 

* Duke 7,120 8,823 (1,703) 
ther 5,976 4,324 1,652 

pecial funds deposits (withdrawals): 
Bond fund: 

Deposits from revenues 94,043 97,488 (3,445) 
Liquidity facility fees 700 708 (8) 
Refundings (1,381) - (1,381) 

Reserve and Contingency fund: 
Deposits from revenue 9,404 9,749 (345) 
Capital additions (1,219) (1,174) (45) 
Transfer excess funds (8,186) (8,575) 389 
Refundings (138) - (138) 

Decommissioning fund: 
Deposits from revenue 2,048 2,048 
Interest income (1) 1,738 1,686 52 

Revenue fund: 
Working capital 3,526 (1,255) 4,781 
Fuel (7,055) (6,416) (639) 
Rate stabilization: 

Interest income (1) 16,312 15,485 827 
Net deposits (draws) (32,523) (32,523) 

Supplemental power reserve: 
Interest income (1) 998 1,007 (9) 
Transfer excess funds (998) (1,007) 9 

Other capital transactions: 
Plant additions: 

Reserve and contingency fund 1,219 1,174 45 
General plant 105 51 54 
Transmission plant 128 75 53 
Fuel acquisitions 7,055 6,416 639 

Bondings: 
Bond proceeds (155,779) - (155,779) . Bond payments 144,090 - 144,090 
Debt issuance 12,881 - 12,881 
Refunded series interest 379 - 379 

Total expenses $ 171,738 167,280 4,458 

(1) Included in "Revenue: Interest Income." 
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__________________Funds 

Reserve and eenta 
lipnu Q~raft Bond Con pgn Deom 0si oe 

Principal 
Working Rate Fuel Interest t 

Ca itaf Stabilizaton Account Retire Reserve 
Balances at beginning of year: 

BAlanesatbgnig yer $ 51,007 223,029 29,517 52,702 86,428 8,643 23,017 15,000 a Assets 
Liabilities 0 
Net 44777 

Project revenues: 
Participants-Electric (1) 105,731 

-Facilities rent (1) 1,187 
-Control services (1) 21 
-Other (1) 31 

Duke Power-Electric (1) 30,175 
Other-Surplus Electric 1) 2,795 
Interest income (1) 12,751 16,312 1,738 998 0 

Project costs (see note): E 
Operations and maintenance (2) (22,444) 
Fuel (3) 6,795) 6,795 
Purchased power-Duke (2) (7,765) 
Decommissioning (3) (2,048) 
General and administration (2) (9,216) 
Payments in lieu of taxes (2) (4,634) 
Other (2) (5,976) 
Debt service (3) (94,043) 94,043 
Liquidity facility fee (3) (700) 700 
Reserve and contingency (3) (9,404) 

Supplemental power costs: 
Purchased Power-Duke (2) (12,603) 

-Participants (2) (8,200) 
-Other (2) (79) 

Transmission services (2) (4,131) 
t Distribution services (2) (1,617) 
Q General and administration (2) (920) 
M4 $ Payment in lieu of taxes (2) (11) 

Other fund changes: 
Transfers in (out): 

Rate stabilization (3) 32,523 (32,523) 
Excess funds(39,8(816(9) 
Reimbursement (3) 1,219 (1,219) 

Payments: 
Debt retire/interest (2) (92,108) 
Ca ital additions (2) (1,453) (7,055) 

Debt re nding: 
New issue roceeds (1) 155,779 306 
Excess funds (3) 1,519 
Old issue retirement (2) (144,090) 
Cost to issue (2) (12,881) 
Refunded Series interest (2(39 

Balances at December 31, 1998 $ 4 29,257 55,643 8 8,504 26,803 15 00 

Assets $ 56,552 
Liabilities 

(1) Deposited in appropriate fund Note 1: In accordance with the Bond Resolution, third party payment requirements (except debt service 
(2) Paid to third parties payments) are transferred from Revenue Fund (Working Capital) to the Operating Fund and actual 

W M 6 (3) Transfers between funds disbursements are made from the Operating Fund.  
Note 2: The schedule above has been prepared in accordance with the underlying Bond Resolution, and 
accordingly, does not reflect the change in the fair value of investments as of Decmber 31, 1998.
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